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SENATOR CATHERINE A. COSTA (Ch.airwoman): I believe we 

should start the hearing at this time. We were waiting for the 

Assistant Commissioner, but she isn't here yet, so we are just 

going to start anyway. 
I am Senator Catherine Costa. I represent the Seventh 

District in Burlington County. I am the Chairman of the Senate 

Committee on Children's Services. At this time, I would like 

to introduce one other member of the Committee who is here -­

Sena.tor Gabe Ambrosio -- to my· left. We expect two of the 

other Senators, and I will introduce them as they get here. 

As all of you know, we are going to hear testimony 

today on staffing and caseload issues within the Division of 

Youth and Family Services of the Department of Human Services. 

The focus of this hearing is to review what has transpired in 

the Division following the appropriation of approximately $10 

million over the last three fiscal years for additional 

staffing positions. These additional appropriations were in 

direct response to the dramatic increase in the number of· 

reported child abuse cases, the need to c·onduct investigations 

of the reports, and the subsequent increase in caseloads of 

DYFS workers. 
In addition, we are also interested in determining 

exactly what the current caseload is in DYFS; that is, whether 

the additional moneys appropriated to the Division have 

alleviated the staffing problem, and if not, why not? For 

example, we have such questions as: Have caseloads been 

reduced, or have they remained constant? What is the turnover 

rate for caseworkers? What difficulties does the Division have 

in hiring and recruiting caseworkers? Is the salary structure 

adequate? Have criminal background checks hindered 

recruitment? What accounts for caseload differences among 

district offices? What accounts for the percentage reduction 

in clients over the past year? How does a child-who has been 

repeatedly beaten from the tim~ she was five weeks old-- I 
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point to this. (Senator Costa holds up newspaper) As you can 
see, I have had this newspaper. far quite, some,-time. · ···Actually.;.: 
ii,:t,- is:_ .0from~,Ap-r·i1: :Q-f this- year.· ~ 'lt · addresses·_ .a .child ~who ~as 
beat~t.:£ron1·:the::ti~ she was five weeks old. She had a skull 
fracture at the time -- the first time. How does she find 
herself being returned to her parents, who did the beatings? 

These are some of the issues we would like to hear 
about today. We will hold the record of the hearing open for 
two ·weeks for anyone who wishes to 
who doesn't have it here today. 
Fischer, the Committee Aide. 

submit -written testimony, 
You can send it to Amy 

Before we hear from the witnesses, I would l,ike to 
introduce also, Paul Anzano, partisan aide, and Judy Peoples, 
who represents the Minority on the Committee. I would also 
like to ask Senator Ambrosio if he would like to make some 
comments? 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: Not at this time, thank you. 
SENATOR COSTA: With that, the first person we will 

call .from the witness list is William Waldman, Act_ing Director, 
Division of Youth and Family Services. This is a heck of a 
thing for him to come into. He just came on board. Bill? 
W I L L I A M W A L D M A N,: Thank you, Senator. Costa. 

SENATOR COSTA: Mr. - Waldman, you are not the Acting 
Director. You are the Director of DYFS. 

MR. WALDMAN: I am the Acting Director. Senator, 
Deputy Commissioner Welch is here. I wonder if I could yield 
to her? 

SENATOR COSTA: All right. Deputy Commissioner Odella 
Welch. Odella, I am so glad you got here, and just in time. 
D E P U T Y C O M M. 0 D E L L A W E L C H: Please 
accept my apologies for being late. I was circling around 

· looking for a parking spot. 
SENATOR COSTA: Oh. I received a phone call yesterday 

from Commissioner Drew Altman. He was in Washington. He is 
trying to get waivers for the REACH bill I sponsored. 
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DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WELCH: Exactly. He asked me, 

s-enato,r,, -to extend, his thanks to yoµ_ __ for your· effort· in that 

t:.8.gard.·'·----, ,,_ ···- _::-;-- ;:.-:::~;·;·;-_·.::;:.,.:;. ,:_,,_:_.- ~--~.c ·.!:~:: 

a:,·.,,,-.:- =' -At tliis .point,~" Sena-tot~ - ·1 ·wmtld :-be:g yeu1=- indulgence ,i 

After Mr. Waldman and I ~ave completed our testimony, I have' 

other pressing issues related to the other divisions under my 

responsibility back in the office, and I would like to return 

there after I have answered your questions, if that is all 

right with you. 

SENATOR COSTA: As long as we can keep him here. 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WELCH: Yes. I would like, as 

well, if you would again indulge us, if you would hold your 

questions until we have both made our presentations, because I 

am certain that Mr. Wald.man's presentation will clarify -- will 

both respond to and clarify a lot of the questions you have. 

SENATOR COSTA: Well, I would like to acknowledge what 

you have said, but I have said to the panel-- We will hold the 

questions until after you have finished, but in case there is 

something we feel we just have to say_ at that moment, we will 

do so. 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WELCH: Certainly. With that, I 

would like to say: Chairman Costa, members of the Committee, 

and other children's advocates, I am very pleased to be here 

this morning to represent Commissioner Altman and the 

Department of · Human Services, and to introduce to you our new 

Director of the Division of Youth and Family Services. 

As Deputy Commissioner for Agencies, responsible for 

what is commonly known as DYFS, the Division of Public Welfare, 

Medical Assistance, and the Commission for the Blind and 

Visually Impaired, I welcome this opportunity -- my first -- to 

address you :today .. 

I would like to begin by briefly reviewing the current 

directions and goals of our Department and explaining a little 

bit about how DYFS fits into that mission. 
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The Department of Human Services is the largest 
department in the State. We have. _a _$.4 billion, ,budget ,and 
emaloy about 23,000 people. But, as Commissioner Altman has 
stated SO-'\Often;. w.::e · are. mor,e. =:than just~:bigb:.::iOUr;:_J)epartm~t 11 :is 
respons·i·ble···f"or,, some···of, the·toughes:t ·problems~we; .;as·,·a· society, 
face -- problems such as confronting poverty, child abuse, and 
homelessness; problems such as caring for the blind, the 
mentally ill, and the developmentally disabled; serving an 
ever~aging population and serving our veterans. 

Commissioner Altman has pledged to make the Department 
a more pro-active force for both the taxpayer and the client. 
He has begun to take decisive steps to meld our seven divisions 
into one strong Department. I am sure you have heard that 
statement from him before also. In a department like ours, the 
job is never done, and there are always areas where we need to 
do better. 

DYFS is one of the Department's seven divisions. Its 
mission is. to meet the social service needs of New Jersey's 
children and their families by protecting children, supporting 
families, and, throtigh·community education, preve11ting abuse in 
a pro-active way. Its responsibility is to be accountable to 
its clients, to you, and to the people of New Jersey. These 
hearings are but one way of ensuring that accountability. As 
part of its mission, DYFS: Shields children from abuse; houses 
homeless families and protects the elderly; arranges adoptions; 
provides day care; houses battered women and children; and 
cares for pregnant teen-agers and children with AIDS. These 
are only a few of the functions of this multifaceted agency. 
When children are in trouble in the State of New Jersey, DYFS 
is almost always the agency called upon for help, and sometimes 
at odd hours of the day or night. 

In its long history, which dates back to 1899, DYFS's 
role and function have changed and evolved with society and its 
needs. In the past, the Division was reactive, and could only 
step into a crisis after a child had been abused. 
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Since the early 1980s, the philosophy has changed to 

one that is ,more-,pro--active, and _that iS" because:·we:·. repognize­

---:_·a.s yo·u do -'-~- .t'he· q_onnection::-:between -t-he ... lnc·;r,.eased::.stress :on. 

today ··s _.fami--lies. and .the ::rising· 'type.s. '.and~ seve1:.itY-:. of_: problems 

children face. In a nutshell, more children and families are 

receiving needed services. If we err, it is always on the side 

of safety for the most vulnerable of society -- our children. 

We do this in partnership with communities to develop 

more· and stronger local programs. The Division can't be 

expected to be al 1 things to al 1 people. They must rely on 

cooperation and shared responsibilities with all sectors of the 

community, and while prevention is an important part of the 

mission, results are hard to measure. We do know that· in .the 

last six months our caseloads have declined slightly. We 

believe it is because we' re doing a better job in helping to 

stabilize families and prevent abuse. How many children have 

escaped abuse and neglect because New Jersey has begun to 

recognize and deal with the demands on its families is 

something we don't know. 

The changes from reactive to pro-active have meant 

simply one thing. Kids -- our children -- are safer today in 

New Jersey than they were five years ago. 

By focusing more closely on the needs of children and 

families, we have been able to identify other serious problems 

they face. One example is the simply devastating plight of 

children with AIDS. There are presently 95 children afflicted 

with this disease in our caseload, and we anticipate that 

number continuing to grow at an extremely rapid rate. Child 

care, homelessness, parenting, domestic violence -- this list 

of problems is constantly growing. 

Because the problems are so varied and so severe, they 

have created more stress, more frustrations, and more demands 

on DYFS' staff, whose job is more difficult than you and I can 

imagine, and you will hear more about that this afternoon, I'm 
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certain. These people .are the backbone of our Department. Few 
do. more ... for_ the mo$t needy in our State. · · · · -·--

t,j ·y·,;We:~!have attempted-· to.-·-provide::.needed supports -for ::them 
b.y ."upgrading I t-h:e -'titles- and: :s,aila~:4es. GftJcasewotkers~r ~e:Lliave 
instituted a career ladder, one that has not work'ed'· as ·we-11 ·as: 
we would have liked to have seen it work, but we have 
instituted that career ladder. We have provided additional 
supports. Offices have been relocated and upgraded, and we 
have ·increased available cars and equipment. We have enhanced 
our training for caseworkers and supervisors. Together with 
the Communication Workers of America, we have introduced a 
Stress Management Program which now exists in almost every DYFS 
. . 

office in the State. We have created a Parents' Rights 
Handbook and a Citizen Complaint Action Line. 

We have not done enough, but in today's ever-changing 
society, what is enough, and when can what we do ever be 
enough? We can only continue to identify and work to resolve 
these difficult issues. 

You have helped us in the past to meet these 
challenges by providing significant budget increases and 
additional staff to allow us to hold our own. But imagine the 
frustrations of a DYFS caseworker who must tell a single mother 
of three children, or more, that no housing other than a 
cramped motel room exists, or is available for her and her 
children. 

Imagine being a DYFS caseworker working around the 
clock to find a shelter, a fester home, or simply a place to 
sleep for an emotionally disturbed teen-ager, or having to find 
a home for a baby with AIDS. 

But, rather than dwell on these problems, everyday we 
are molding new approaches, new solutions, and reordering our 
priorities to better address these issues. One example is the 
recently opened group home for children with AIDS, which is one 
of the first, if not the first, in the country. Another is our 

6 

• 



new Family Preservation Service, which moves counselors 

directly-:-:into ,·the,. home to confront --eris-es on the spot and avoid 

Out-o·f-home--· p· ·1a~emen·+--s -f~: chi' ldren ·. · · ·, ~ ... .,;::.,,;:;.,·: 0 ·, • "''··--'- •-.- _~:_,·_~- ·t_ ·.,.~_-.• _:-,· .. 
· W' J.; :. ,._,--_ · _ · • · •· -- - - --~- · _,. -•:"",._. ... -1.._ •--t-• • 

,_-,y •-=-:2•]1~· f.Our.; :natiiona"Jily ~, . .-recogn-ized · ,1Post-Adop:tive: S"ervices. 

Program,, ,c•ounsels···and ·supports ·families · which- ·have accepted 

hard:...to-place children, thereby preventing further disruption 

in the life of the child. 

We still have a long way to go. One basic need is to 

maintain a full complement of staff in our district offices at 

all times. That is difficult to do given the bureaucracy of 

government. We have made some progress, and Director Waldman 

will provide some additional detail on that in his 

presentation. We need to give our workers the tools and 

resources they need to do their jobs. 

We need to train our foster parents better and to 

provide them wi tl:1 additional supports, such as respite care, 

competitive board rates, and enrichment programs for their 

foster children, and we appreciate your efforts in helping us 

to do this. 

In order to speed up our recrui trnent of foster and 

adoptive parents, we need to amend the criminal history record 

checks statute to allow for temporary approval of a foster or 

adoptive home in special cases.. As you know, bills on these 

foster care initiatives . have been . moving through the 

Legislature, and we need your help to make them a reality. 

We will also be asking for your support for our Fiscal 

Year 1989 budget requests. These requests include additional 

services for young victims of AIDS, troubled youth, battered 

women, and families who need child care. It is only through 

the commitment of the Legislature and the partnership that 

exists throughout the State with community service providers, 

that we can accomplish our mission to serve those who depend 

upon us for safety and family support. We will do our part. 
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On. the issue of accountability, we must expect our 
managers- :and: workers: to : be accountab-le ·, for,;;.. th~:ir .,actions., 
I:.i:kew.ise,,_ ... ,.we_.~ mus,t ... be :accountable· .. to our clients and to the 
public. ·:D.ecisions. :made daily . ·by ,.o. a DYFS ·worker.· '--c are:-:-:-.:...of.ten 
critical in the life and safety of a child. 

Accountability for performance and efficient use of 
resources must be practiced at all levels of government or any 
organization. Along with accountability goes a responsibility 
on the part of management to prov.ide staff with the tools and 
supports they need to do their jobs. With your help, the 
Department is committed to doing exactly that. 

One sensitive area where DYFS actions are sometimes 
questioned, is in the matter of balancing the rights of . 
children and the rights of parents and, Senator Costa, we have 
had conversations about this. Adults have all of the rights of 
due process. Children are vulnerable. They have no rights, 
and must rely on adults for protection. Child abuse is always 
an emotionally charged situation. But, in this delicate 
balan~e, is there any question that the welfare of children 
must prevail? This is where accountability and confidentiality 
appear to be at odds. 

Accountability, simply stated, means we must answer 
for our actions. Confidentiality often means we can't. You 
may well hear of specific cases in which DYFS is criticized for 
its actions on behalf of children. You pick up the paper and 
you read that DYFS can't comment. I have had problems with 
that. Our staff is called overzealous, to use one of the 
kinder terms. Well, let me emphasize. this: It is very 
frustrating to be- criticized and be unable to set the record 
straight. But the laws that protect the privacy of our clients 
won't allow us to do that, even if the clients themselves 
publicly discuss it. 'l'he same dilemma applies to discussing 
staff disciplinary actions. 
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However, as you know, we are always available to 

discus-s ~spec=ific.,,s-ituations _-in closed session.with- you,~ .. and .we 

iriv.ite :.you,-:,~S'"•.often .. _ as-::ue:cessa,ry-, to -r·eview =-these 0cases -with 

~s1::; ·1we are.sat:::,you:c disposal:'~'.\:/ 1:,y- ~, nvi-,·~.; \.,,;,-i~.~, .-, , , , ,-, 'r-,::;;·, 

In conclusion,, 'Commissioner -kltman and I want to thank 

you ·for your continued support of Department programs, both 

through the funding process and through your advocacy for our 

children. 

Now, if it pleases you, I would like to introduce 

William Waldman, recently appointed Acting Director of DYFS. 

Bill brings a strong background in human services to this 

challenging position. For 12 years, he directed Middlesex 

County's Department of Human Services. He is also President of 

the New Jersey Chapter of the National Association of Social 

Workers and is highly regarded in the human services field. 

His testimony here today will further clarify some of the 

issues before your Committee and, of course, I am available fat 

your questions also. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: Commissioner, do you have a copy of 

your testimony? 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WELCH: Yes, I do, sir. 

SENATOR COSTA: We would now like to hear from you, 

Bill Waldman. r don't know if I should say you walked into a 

hornet's nest, but I hope we can be constructive in this 

hearing. 

MR. WALDMAN: Thank you, Senator Costa, and thank you, 

members of the Committee. It is a pleasure to be here. 

I would like to express my appreciation to the Senate 

Cammi ttee on Children's Services for the opportunity you have 

presented to me today, in the form of the hearing you are 

holding on staffing and caseload issues relevant to the 

Division of Youth and Family Services. In the three short 

weeks since my appointment as Acting Director of DYFS, I have 

spent a great deal of time with the staff of our Division, 
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becoming more fully acquainted with our organization, 
structure;_·· ·programs-,-- and services., . as ._ .. weLL.:.,as- the-,- issues:·• and 
ch:a_lleng;9s_, .we-J.:face~.,mday in;:pi;oteetirtg, a~i-lalren-'...,and· velnerahle 
adult$!;-· ::s:trengj::henirtg:~::··fairiilies, and preventing abuse and 
neglect. 'The internal perspective at the Division I am gaining 
in this process, will be balanced and enhanced by the external 
perspective I hope to gain through the forum you have provided 
in today' s hearing. 
which ·is vital to 
appropriate agenda 
Services. 

Again, I thank you for this opportunity, 
me in forging a clear, consistent, and 
for the Division of Youth and Family 

I would also like to express my appreciation to the 
members of this Committee, and to the entire New Jersey 
Legislature, for the support we have received traditionally for 
DYFS, in expanding resources, both our internal resources in 
terms of staff and related requirements, and our res~urces for 
funding programs and services in the community, all tq meet the 
needs of the children and families that we serve. 

In addition, each member of this Committee is 
sponsoring important legislation designed to improve the status 
of children, provide additional resources to address unmet 
needs, and enhance the quality, accountability, and 
accessibility of services. Your concern for DYFS and the 
children of New Jersey is indeed deeply appreciated, and I look 
forward to working with you in the future to face the many 
challenges ahead. 

Deputy Commissioner Welch has outlined the overall 
mission and direction·of our Department. I would like to more 
directly address the staffing and caseload issues that are the 
subject of today's hearing, by providing you an overview of how 
we have utilized the staff resources that have been provided, 
the changes in our caseload that bear upon the adequacy of 
these resources, the steps . we have taken to improve working 
conditions, and the additional work -- as Odella indicated -­
that needs to be done. 
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In Fiscal Year 1985, the Legislature approved a 

supp1emental,· -appropriation: --which - provided,- in t,art, _ for- the 

add.it.ion:. of ·.5.01': direct-• s~rvic~- · persG>Iin~l -.to t.:c'espond;.-~to.-:the:~verll' 

s-ignif.1.cant , =in~,rease.s= in ,::t1:"aseload whicn- ~-were': ..\experienced ::-at 

that time. The caseload continued to grow in 1986 and peaked 

at our hig~est level of 58,000 children under supervision. 

Truly, 1986 was a crisis year for DYFS. We were 

struggling with a record number of new cases, while at the same 

time recruiting to fill the new po·sitions that were made 

available and train the workers for service. Caseworkers 

worked overtime to meet the demand and did whatever was needed 

to protect a child from harm. Their dedication and personal 

sacrifices under ·these very trying circumstances are a source 

of great pride for us and for the State of New Jersey. 

In the past year, we have experienced a gradual but 

steady decrease in the total DYFS caseload. However, we are 

still experiencing increases in the number of referrals or 

complaints we receive, which we expect to reach a record level 

of 55,000_ this year, almost 5000 more_ than 1986, and double the 

1983 level. Today, there are 50,000 children actively under 

our·supervision -- a 12-1/2% reduction from the 58,000 children 

under supervision at peak in 1986. Because of this trend, 

along with management controls and new programs, the average 

caseload has dropped from a high of one caseworker to 50 

children in 1986, to an average of one caseworker to 38 

children today. 
We thus were ultimately successful in utilizing all of 

the positions allocated. However, due to 

approximately 18%,· there are currently 

vacancies in the 'Division's total staff 

a turnover rate of 

in excess of 250 

complement of 34 78 

employees. If all direct service vacancies were filled, the 

actual average caseload would be reduced to one caseworker for 

36 children. This compares to the Child Welfare League of 

America standards of one worker to 32 children. 
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Despite the average caseload numbers I just quoted, 
some . degree~ of=~ in~quity does __ exist,. .. and .. will ,_.remain· ,"among· 
individual·': worker O -0aseloads~'-' :·There ·--are_·. some-= very- ~practieal­
:reasons , : , ,for : such .=i :~. imba 1 anc·es .,:: .i ,-, .=Fir s.t; ,; ·, : r a wnew .wo_rkeh,. ; .c ail.nott. 
immedi:ateiy handl-e··40~·cases;··· :rt:·t-akes time fo.r a::n:ew .. worker,·to~ 
be trained and to learn a very difficult and demanding job. 
Second, vacancies caused by sick leave, maternity leave, 
retirements, promotions, and resignations cause a temporary 
transfer or assignment of caseload to other workers. Finally, 
sometimes cases are not closed in a ti_mely fashion. All of the 
above factors can, and do, interfere with absolute parity for 
all workers in every office at all times. 

For example, we know that there are 24 workers who 
currently have caseloads in excess of 80 children. Six of 
these workers have caseloads exceeding 100 children. This 
should never occur, and we are taking immediate steps to 
rectify the situation, and even more importantly, to prevent 
its recurrence. 

It should be noted, however, that caseload assignments 
are fluid. DYFS is a 24-hour agency that has constant movement 
of cases from segment to segment. Any report we give you is a 
snapshot at a given point in time and, quite frankly, is 
subject to rapid change. 

We have implemented management controls to reduce 
caseloads. In 1986, supervisors and workers in every district 
office in our Division completed a quite rigorous review of 
every case over a nine-month period. If a child was no longer 
at risk· and there had been minimal supervision over time, our 
caseworkers matched these families, wherever possible, to 

. appropriate community resources and closed their DYFS cases. I 
believe this effort was a significant factor in the reduction 
of our caseload. 

In addition, DYFS regional administrators have been 
given the authority and a 10% flexibility to reassign staff 
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among district offices to respond quickly to variations -in 

c.ase.load .. s.ize,._.-.befo:Ee. it reaches a crisis--. 1eveL. '.: i-;::"":,, ·,, 

: ;-;.-;~~.-:. .. 1.;:.,But·r1"oif,·,cou-r-se) · caseload _ratio: is .-;noct jus~ a",.,_n,LJl'DDe:E-S. 

game:_.:.:~ Th.Eure are:. no>quiclt · .-and easy·, answers=:-:·:to achieving.:· and 

maintaining manageable caseloads, or we would have found ~hem 

quite.some time ago. Child welfare agencies around the country 

are grappling with these same realities. The fact is that 

reducing caseloads demands action and vigilance in many areas: 

We have to be very careful and expand our coordination with 

other community service agencies to assure that they can handle 

cases that perhaps we do not need to get involved in; we have 

to redouble our efforts in training our staff; we have to focus 

on issues like quality of supervision; we have to have the 

available resources we need in the community to address those 

caseload issues; and, quite frankly, we need sufficient 

i~ternal management controls in the personnel system that 

anticipate and respond quic.kly to changes in the work force, 

and take directed time-limited intervention through clear case 

practice standards -- I believe that is very important; we need 

flexibility to shift. resources in response to changing 

situations; and we often have to reallign geographical coverage 

areas. I think you can appreciate that need, in view of the 

growth that is taking place in the State of New Jersey today. 

I intend, and I have set my agenda, to work carefully 

on all of the above issues, to assure that our staff resources 

are deployed in a manner that best protects and serves our 

children and families, but is also fair and equitable to our 

dedicated workers. 
DYFS workers really have one of the toughest · jobs in 

State government. Child protective services is not the most 

sought aftei:: position in the social work pr?fession. I say 

this also as the President Elect of the National Association of 

Social Workers for New Jersey. Attracting and retaining people 

to fill vacant positions is, indeed, a persistent problem. 
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For example, only one Civil Service examination for 
DYFS . caseworkers. was offered - in an•- 18-month-· 'period. Even if 
the exam :-;.were,-. 7to:;·,be .. ;-offered' every- s-ix · 0 months) :: :.it - cou-ldn' t 
possibly:·:produce-::-a ~-:large· enough pool- o-fi, eligibtl.e eandida.tes :-;to: 
fill the vacancies. This is true because:·· -1)· .. No•·orie -can­
anticipate or control the number of citizens who will apply to 
take such an exam, or pass it; 2) not every candidate who 
passes the exam is willing to accept a vacant caseworker 
position in all areas of the State -- this is important to 
consider; and 3), the Department of Personnel's process for 
preparing, scheduling, administering, grading, and certifying 
these examinations has improved vastly, but is still slower, I 
think it is fair to say, than all of us would like it to be. 

In the past year, however, DYFS has worked very 
closely with the Department of Personnel to find better ways to 
recruit and hire entry-level caseworkers. We tried several 
options, but none . could meet our urgent needs to fill those 
vacancies, until very recently. We have a little bit of a 
breakthrough on the process to report to you that I think will 
have a major impact on this issue. Initially, we hired hourly 
workers to fill vacant positions, until we could appoint Civil 
Service candidates, and that did help, However -- and this is 
the important part -- the first walk-in exam for Family Service 
Specialist was heid last month. This was the first walk-in 
exam ever given for a professional title within DYFS. Three 
hundred candidates passed the test, and within six weeks we 
will have a list of candidates to begin interviewing. In the 
past, this same process took approximately six to twelve 
months. Two more walk-in exams will be held by late October, 
and will continue on a coordinated basis. The important part 
is that we have coordinated with the Department of Personnel, 
so that when· one of these lists is two-thirds empty, or 
completed, another walk-in test .will be given, and we will have 
continuous lists of people to draw from to recruit to fill 
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vacancies. I am advised by our staff that by the end of this 

year, we will have_ made truly g-iant·- st:rides,,.iri · filling the 

vacancies that exist .. : We: are. g£atejruJ..:;_i£orrn:the: 0 {:ooperation we 

l_!-ave: ,rac;eitved·,. f1:onr• the· ·P.epartment ,of. }Pe.ttsonh.eJi,:: 7 1 • ,, .-, )- -=:; ,1 "'"'::'-:·. - - -

·_ .... It::h-as _ been more - difficult- to· ·attract p'eopie to work 

in the urban areas, where poverty, unemployment, inadequate 

housing, and crime intensify family stress and crisis. High 

crime areas heighten our workers' concern for personal safety 

and sec·uri ty. Vacancies -are usually highest in our district 

offices in Newark, Plainfield, Elizabeth, Atlantic City, and 

Perth Amboy. 

At our request, the Depart_ment of Personnel also 

agreed to try another different approach to the traditional way 

of testing people interested in positions in the five areas I 

just mentioned. Instead of administering a written or oral 

examination, the Department tested these individuals by 

reviewing and assessing their education and experience,· using 

information provided on the application for examination. This 

practice. is know as E&E -- rating people by education and 

experience. Our experience is that - this is much quicker, and 

also produces eligible candidates that are, in fact, willing to 

accept positions in one of these areas where we have difficulty 

in filling the vacancies. As a, result of this process -- this 

innovation -- we were able to fill some longstanding vacancies 

in those off ices and, in some cases, we are able to make 

regular Civil Service appointments of individuals who we had 

previously hired to work on an hourly basis. 

Because the work of a DYFS caseworker is so intense 

and demanding, caseworkers need 1ots of support to do their 

jobs. I would like to review the efforts that were made to 

increase supports, and to improve working conditions and the 

work environment itself, because I think these issues also bear 

on the issue of turnover and vacancies. 
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. Inside the Division itself., we. -have . created a special 
Medical,-.,;lJ'nit. i. to iprovide~:backup \to•:.1 c:a-sewo.rkers·:_who· have, C'lients· 
with AIDS a.il.d;-:other~ :_intense-:- medical-=J?trci:>blems .:~:-.. ·we::hq.ve .:engaged 
profess-iona-1:·_, cronsultants-·~- .to. :::assis.t = =us: .. _on·~- ·case practice and 
other p~ofessional issues. We have expanded and strengthened a 
new Worker Training Program to a 20-day period, that has both 
didactic classroom training and some on-the-job type training 
with more experienced workers. We have instituted expanded 
supervisory training. As you know, we have a new title series 
now. We went from the old social worker titles to the Family 
Service Specialist titles. As Deputy Commissioner Welch 
mentioned, we have a career ladder that, in fact, enables 
people who really love direct practice, who don't want.to move 
up to supervision, to have a higher title and salary range. It 
is said, and I would agree, from what I have learned in the 
brief time I have been there, that it hasn't been as successful 
as we would like it to be. However, we do have· some ideas to 
improve it as time goes on. 

From the vi_gnettes Odella mentioned, you can realize 
and appreciate some of the occupational stress and burnout 
associated with child protective service work. Dr. Janet 
Cahill, who worked closely with one of the employee unions -­
the Communications Workers of America -- and our Division, has 
developed a Stress Management Program for field staff. She 
will testify here today on this subject. I believe this 
program has been both popular and successful, and needs to be 
expanded. 

Paperwork: It's still a problem. We are a people 
agency, so why do we have to do so much paperwork? First, I 
think it is precisely because we are involved with people, most 
-0f them vulnerable children, and we make decisions that affect 
the safety, and sometimes the very life of a child. We need a 
formal means to communicate 
decisions. In some cases, 

and record important events and 
Federal funding is contingent on 
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documentation, as are court decisions and case practice 

decisions~··· ---·- ------- -·- - -

-.-.-_~,-~-: _.'.::~;_ 1:::We, have::b:rought=._-some -modern .. .technology_ to 00 the::-loqal 

~££,fees::,, "L'-' Wo:rrd" ,,:,cprocessor.s .and::;, microc.-omputers : :have:·,- be.en 

inst al led to streamline -caserc~,recording • .,, ,-. These:-. .improvements ·_·may 

solve ·some of the problem, but we must strive toward that 

delicate balance between the need to monitor professional 

performance and the amount of documentation that is absolutely 

minimally necessary. 

We will continue to eliminate duplication wherever we 

can. We will look to the Personal Computer Pilot Project in 

the Long Branch District Office, and hope to gain from that 

project 

adopt 

some greater insights and new solutions that we can 

statewide to help minimize paperwork. This project 

attempts to eliminate duplication of client information that is 

required on several of our DYFS forms. 

Providing direct supports to workers also involves 

improving their physical environment. Conditions in some of 

the district offices were surely problematic. 

In the past · two years,· 15 district off ices have been 

relocated to better facilities, and some to brand-new 

buildings. Space was added to three more. Six more of our 

offices will be relocated by the end of this fiscal year. 

Through a series of annual life-safety, environmental quality 

inspections of all DYFS office sites, we attempt to identify 

deficiencies and work towards their abatement. We honestly 

have some additional way to go in getting our workers into 

adequate facilites where they can work more comfortably. -

Child abuse investigators and case managers are in the 

field investigating· complaints, visiting families, visiting 

foster parents, visiting - the children in their care, 

transporting them to medical visits, and so forth. A car is an 

absolute necessity. Three years ago -- and I believe at the 

former hearings that were held in this regard this was noted --
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there was not a sufficiency of cars available for our staff, 
S;ince.that time, we have added a total of 392 cars for the use 
of our fieild 1s.taff t,r :··";"'- -' - .. '··:·--::·: 0 ·:; , :·;-:--.7" .. :,_: .~ .. -,-~_, : '.? _ ... , ,~--~ .... , 

.-:; f . , , .~, . I men11ioned,,·,earl'ier -'that ".'many-- ·:c§seworkers-.. managed 
themselves ·-and~the·children in their charge admirably, despite 
the stresses and demands of high caseloads. We have heard 
concerns raised by the union that disciplinary actions are 
increasing. I independently took a look at the numbers on 
this,. and can report them to the Cammi ttee today. Last year, 
with a total of 3400 staff, there were a total of 76 
disciplinary actions. This is an increase from 1982, when 
there were 50 disciplinary actions, on a staff base of 2750. 
However, if you look at it on a percentage basis, the actual 
increase in disciplinary actions initiated by our Division was 
less than 1% over those five years. We will .continue our staff 
development and training activities, so that workers will have 
the skills and support to perform their responsibilities. We 
must require accountability, because of the critical nature of 
the services that our workers perform. On the other hand, we 
cannot blame our workers for deficiencies in our system. 

I began with the statement that caseload size is not a 
numbers game, and that making it manageable depends on 
availability of resources in any particular community. My 
years of experience in government leads me to believe that 
government alone cannot solve all of the problems, particularly 
those involving child abuse and child neglect. As Deputy 
Commissioner Welch stated earlier, we simply can't be all 
things to all people. We have to focus. What we have done is, 
in every county, we approached schools, heal th professionals, 
and public. and private community agencies to work with us to 
expand community support systems for the children in this 
State. Since 1983, we have al located a total of $49 mi 11 ion 
new dollars for prevention and family support programs. 
range from expanding traditional services like 
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day-care, homemaker _ services, .and counseling to newer 

support•- services,· 1-ike-·-parent • aides . .and,, self~help_. groups~ .... We 

used,._. local; .gov.erilinents and community groups to help guide the 

al location a£-:-:.-these0 ·' funds 7, --so that maximum·- re.sul'ts._ .,.,could_· be: 

achieved. I believe we have really consolidated a partnership 

with communities and counties in the planning and allocating of 

funds for children. 

These major initiatives represent a long-term strategy 

to prevent child abuse and family disruption. I believe this 

will have a decisive long-range impact on caseload size. It is 

an investment in the future. 

If more intensive services are available to families 

in ·crisis, they have a better chance to get through the crisis, 

and are able to cope with minimal assistance sooner. 

Confronting the issues of foster care, career clients, and the 

scarcity of resources, particularly for adolescents, caused us 

to tap, as much as we· could, the community-based supports that 

are out there. We have to tighten up on our own management 

controls, and we have to define more specific case plans with 

time frames ·in each of our cases. That is the process, in 

essence, that I spoke of earlier, that helped to reduce our 

caseload. 

In addition, efforts to expand the· number of community 

programs have also had a pronounced preventive effect at the 

front end of the system. Families with problems other than 

abuse and neglect can be referred to more appropriate local 

programs at the point of intake, obviating the necessity of 

clients to get involved in our system. In the past, they would 

have had to enter the DYFS system to get help, because it was 

of ten the only agency -- of the only show in town -- wi 11 ing, 

or available, to respond. 

Are we moving in the direction of community 

partnership in services? Absolutely, but we surely have a very 

long way to go. When prevention and in-home services are 
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.... __ 

unable to provide adeql:late protection to a child, or keep a 
family together, the most desirable alternative is temporary 
placement with a foster family. 

We have made great strides in reforming the faster 
care system, which I believe has distinguished New Jersey as a 
national leader in this particular area. However, I want you 
to know that we are still facing serious problems in recruiting 
and retaining enough foster care homes. We need your help to 
professionalize the critical role that foster parents play in 
our child welfare system in New Jers.ey. 

As our Deputy Commissioner did, I would also like to 
appeal to you to support the foster care bills sponsored by 
Senator DiFrancesco. These measures will provide respite care, 
foster parent training, and a higher board rate, which will 
make us more competitive with some of our surrounding states. 
These bills, right now, are awaiting action in the Senate 
Revenue, Finahce, and Appropriations Committee. 

I am also appealing for your support of our Fiscal 
Year 1989 budget request. We need to develop more services for 
troubled adolescents and for children with AIDS. 

Stress, morale, job satisfaction, and turnover are 
unquestionably linked to the availability of community·programs 
for families. The lack of community resources to do the job we 
need to d_o, in ·many i?).stances is a daily source of frustration 
for our workers. I know this from my own experience as a· 
caseworker in New Jersey. I believe our caseworkers are 
dedicated professionals. I believe they want to do their 
jobs. But, we must help to get them the resources and the 
tools they need to complete the job. 

In my testimony, I have outlined efforts to reduce 
caseloads, to improve working conditions, and to improve 
accountability throughout the agencies. We have indicated 
progress in several areas, but obviously a lot more needs to be 
done. We will continue to work with our employee unions on 

20 



stress management issues. We remain committed to achieving 

100% · .of·_ t!te--~-Child ~ Welfare -.Leag1,;1e,, of,,, America-· standards ·for 

~-aseload · s.ize,. c· :"We. ,-hope·· y~:m will positively consider our 

request f'dr additional diI'ect serv.icce positions,;· ,,a:s ·-a 0·-pa:tt · of 

the State Fiscal Year 1989 budget process. 

· There are many more important issues and initiatives 

to discuss. However, this is a one-day hearing, arid you have 

many people on the roster to testify. My staff and I are 

available·, and will be here all day to respond to questions 

from the Committee. 

I intend, personally, to listen carefully to all of 

the testimony and concerns expressed here; to continue my 

dialogue with community and advocacy groups; to visit our 
. 
facilities; to talk with staff at all levels in our 

organization; and to communicate with our foster parents and 

the citizens we serve. I intend to vigorously apply my 22 

years of experience in public human services in New Jersey, to 

manage the staffing and caseload issues of the Division, and to 

forge ahead to fulfill our mission of protection, support, and 

prevention. 

I will 

Commissioner 

do so with the strong leadership of 

Drew Altman -- and in partnership with 

our 

our 

community, local governments, our staff, and with your support 

and guidance. I would welcome the opportunity to report back 

to you in six months, as to the status of our initiatives and 

our progress in resolving some of the issues we have pointed 

out today. 

Thank you for this opportunity to both present and -­

very importantly to me -- to listen. And thank you for your 

deep commitment to New Jersey's children and their families. 

SENATOR COSTA: Thank you very much. I would like to 

introduce you to another caring, sensitive Senator on this 

Cammi ttee, Senator Leanna Brown. 

Senator Brown. 
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I know we have quite a few questions. I am just going 
to, :,throw ou:e-: a-:afew~ and --then T. will ask our,- other ·Senators fo-1: 
thei-r -questions. ;,First __ of -a-i:l, ·,.yqu are. ;speaking'=' of lowering 
cas~:lloads,-.. _:, As,::of,,what'''date ·are.; you:."."'Speaking :of :1that i the 
caseloads have been lowered? 

MR. WALDMAN: They have been lowered since 1986. We 
had reached a high of about one to 50, when our caseload 
peaked, when it was at about 58,000. Since then, there has 
been a steady decline -- a constant decline -- to this period 
right now, where our caseload has dropped from 57,000, 58,000 
to about 50,000, and the ratio of caseworker to children is one 
to 38. Again, that is on actual staff count. If we filled all 
of our positions, as I indicated, it would be one to 36. 

SENATOR COSTA: I have something about intake case 
management vacancy rates, as of August, 1987, and the actual 
ratios you have per individual. Just like in Camden -- south 

I am speaking of my area 64 children with one 
caseworker. I don't know how anyone can handle that. I have a 
letter here, which was just delivered to u~. The person has 
signed the letter. She is a shop stewardess. It says: "On 
September 1 7, I was made aware by the management that two 
members of my intake unit had more than 80 children on their 
caseload, effective September 4, 1987. I was also told they 
must bring their numbers down below 80 by September 22" -­
which is today. "My understanding of this request was because 
of a hearing in Trenton, which was going to address the high 
numbers which workers have to be responsible for. 

"The two workers in my unit with more than 80 children 
on their caseloads, were the only two workers on intake 
rotation in my unit for approximately six weeks during the 
summer. This was the result of a lack of staff, vacations, and 
maternity leave. Also, these workers were unable to have 
clean-up weeks, because of the above. 
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"I feel it was unfair to have my workers work all 

weekend .. in order . for - the Division _to: appear _on-.-these -hearings 

and say .. that no workers have mor~ than- 80, .. ~ch.ildren, on ··-.their: 

c-ase:l:oadl~ .. Management"°i states, <-that the¥. unders.~an:d the plight i <t>•f· 

a:.DYFS: worker·;· however-,:,they continue to make demands which add 

stress to the worker. I am unable to attend these hearings 

because I have a deadline of September 22 to complete these 

cases and have them processed in the computer, so the workers 

show having less than 80 children on their caseloads." 

MR. WALDMAN: Senator Costa, I can say 

sincerely that that certainly wasn't a directive that I 

to you 

know of 

that was made in our Division. 

SENATOR COSTA: I'm pleased about that, but just 

getting to the point itself--

MR. WALDMAN: Yeah, but I--

SENATOR COSTA: --of h_aving a caseload of 80 

children. Then you wonder why we' re lasing caseworkers. I 

have a question about caseworkers. When they have to make 

their reports -- their paperwork -- they are constantly dealing 

with paperwork -- do they have to write it longhand? D.o they. 

type it? Do they put it on the word processor? What is the 

procedure? 

MR. WALDMAN: We have 

modernizing some of our offices. 

been in the process of 

I would like one of my staff 

-- Marc Cherna -- to perhaps give you a more detailed account. 

MARC CHERN A (speaking from audience): Some write it; 

some dictate it. Most of the time, they are on the word 

processor to do what they have to do. On reassessments., and 

things like that, they can just take what is already there and 

make the corrections. 

That is something we 

Long Branch project. 

It is uneven among offices right now. 

are working t_owards. Bill discussed the 

That is part of that, to eliminate that 

duplication. So, the computer does a lot of that work once we 

put it in the first time. 
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SENATOR COSTA:. All right. So, they really have to 
take. -the time-. --- quite a· bit of time. · Speaking: of modernizing 
the off,ic~s:-:-~ ~-They..::_trav:el:-. a. -10,t in their -G:ars~,.:.nigh-t.-, f:rom:-oiie 
p1.ace •. to anothe_r?, ,-.·,·Why,... couldn' t. they have a. _tape · ma.chine·: to 
dictate into while traveling from one place to another? 

MR. CHERNA: They do, but not everyone is comfortable 
with it. 

SENATOR COSTA: Beg pardon? 

MR. CHERNA: Not every worker is comfortable doing 
that, but they do have dictating equipment. 

SENATOR COSTA: They can just talk, and that way you 
can have secretaries do it, rather than having someone who is 
good with children taken off their casework. 

Senator Ambrosio would like to jump in at this point. 
SENATOR AMBROSIO: Director, you indicated that there 

was a 12-1/2% reduction in caseload from a peak of -- I think 
you said 58,000 to 50,000. 

MR. WALDMAN: That is correct. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: What do you attribute that 
reduction to? 

MR. WALDMAN: I think a big part of it had to do with 
the project I mentioned, where the staff culled· the entire 
caseloads and found cases that we really didn't need to be 
involved in any more. That was a very large project that 
occurred on a statewide basis. I think that was one reason. 
It is really speculation in some instances, al though I feel 
strongly that that was a big part of it, because I know that a 
number of cases were closed. 

I think also that some of our investments in the 
cummuni ty -- investments we made in terms of community-based 
services -- have started to pay .off. We had been investing in 
preventive programs. We had found local not-for-profit 
agencies to do counseling. So, there are other agencies about, 
that are able to remediate the problems, or even prevent them, 
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because of the initiative we have taken. I hope that is a 

m:ajo·r 'factor ·in--this .- , as ,well. , ·=·· .. _ .. "· ,_ .. _ 

;- ,., , , , ; f· 1 1 cSENATOR·, AMBROSTO: -So . it c is i ~your .tes.t imony that this 

is an a'ctua:l.,deeline "itt:.rdemand,far s;ervices'2 ~- : ... ~r- ... -·----· 

·MR.- WALDMAN:·""_--, Well,~ we -have~ ·experienced- an actual 

decline. · My staff advises, and I believe, that it is probably 

more of a leveling off. It is interesting. As I mentioned, 

the numbers of complaints or referrals we have gotten do 

continue to rise. It takes a lot to investigate that. I think 

we are going to reach a record peak at the end of the year. 

Generally, about 35% of those are validated, and we take some 

type of intervention. 

I think what you' re seeing happening may be still a 

large case flow, but a more appropriate handling of each 

individual case. I say that as a caseworker. You know, the 

idea of setting time-limited goals, not to hang onto a case 

for ever-- In some instances, when applying those kinds of 

casework techniques, I believe our workers have been successful 

in moving cases; doing what is necessary; providing brief 

counseling; making a referral; and closing out the case. 

We think it has peaked, and it is going to be steady 

at about the number it is now. It may have some small growth, 

but I don't see the decline continuing that much longer. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: That is an interesting 

speculation. I know this is not something that you can be 

responsible for, because you weren't in the position. But, 

when we look at the projections that were given for Fiscal 

Years 1985, 1986, and 1987, and we see that in each of those 

years the caseload was underestimated by some 15% to 20%, and­

you have had to come back to the Legislature for additional 

appropriations-- Are we in the same position today as we were 

then, where you· are underestimating your caseload? 

MR .. WALDMAN: I don't believe we are. One of the 

controls I believe has been established over time, is that our 
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caseload controls are being fully computerized and 
systematized.-,,; It, ,is hardc- to predict, but I believe we have 
_better record·: ,keep;ifig,~~,better contro-ls,;T-and·t.-I·.-;hope: to ;--·give :.you. 
much better; :es..t:imatiori.s .. ·;_-_; :,· Fnr <~r.,, ,;i,,.~::·-1 

SENATOR· i 1AMBROSIO-: · · I --am!·. '·also --·interested in your 
comment on the changing in the staffing between the case 
managers and the administrators for the various fiscal years. 
There was a big jump in Fiscal Year 1986. Four-hundred and 
ninety-eight additional caseworkers were added. In '87, that 
was reduced by 24. I'm sorry. In '87, 498 were added. But 
for Fiscal Year 1988, you have asked for a reduction in 
caseworkers. Why would you be doing that? 

MR. WALDMAN: I don't believe we have actually asked 
for a reduction in caseworkers. (At this point, Deputy 
Commissioner Welch makes an indiscernible comment.) In fact, 
for the Fiscal Year 1989 budget, we have asked for an increase 
of 69 positions. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: Well, I'm looking at '88, and there 
is a reduction from 1918 to 1894 in cas~workers. Why ~ould you 
be asking for a reduction in caseworkers? 

MR. WALDMAN: To my knowledge, Senator, I don't 
believe we have. Would someone ask Marc to clarify, or perhaps 
Ted to clarify that? 
THEODORE JOSEPH (speaking away from microphone): 
I'm sure the numbers are even. They are not all caseworkers. 
We have moved more closely to having every office have a 
consistent group of resource development specialists, case 
practice specialists, people to assist caseworkers. I think 
that switch would have been, if I get it right, ·about 24 
people, and I think that probably would have played out in that 
way. The actual number of .caseworkers on the front lines has 
not decreased. It has_ stayed relatively steady. That is a 
total of-- That would be the total number of workers -- staff 
available in a particular district office. That is what you 
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are looking at. 

c-aseworkers:.' 

There is a difference between ·that and 
~ . . . . : . . ·. ' ~ ~ 

, .SENATOR-:-~ROSIO,z,: : But::.:aren' t ,you. ·reduc.~ng --the: :numl:;,e-r· 

a·f:.-:.<irtitiaL response·· people who are available to service the 

Department? 

MR. JOSEPH : No . 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: No? Okay. 

MR. WALDMAN: There have been shifts, perhaps, from 

office to office of some personnel. We have a 10% flexibility 

rule. It is possible that one district office may have 

declined in caseload and another increased, and we may have 

transferred individuals from one to the other positions. That 

is possible. That does happen. There is a play. 

SENATOR COSTA: I understand you are taking some of 

your caseworkers and putting them into management positions. 

Is that correct? 

MR. JOSEPH (not near microphone): No. What we have 

done is take a number of caseworkers, for two reasons, one 

having to do with the career ladder, as well as a commitment we 

had made earlier, but also as a commitment to the 

community-based participation process, .and placed them, by 

additional resources, in positions of field staff, against 

(indiscernible) practice issues of supplementing management, 

·essentially, so that there would (indiscernible). We haven't 

changed the numbers. 

SENATOR COSTA: Mr. Joseph, when you speak, would you 

please speak into the microphone, so your responses can be 

recorded? (Mr. Joseph complies) 

So, you are not taking them out of caseworker status? 

MR. JOSEPH: That is correct. We have not reduced the 

number of front-line workers. As you are aware, Senator, the 

507 was a mixture of 367 direct line caseworkers, the number of 

administrative support, and verbal supports. 
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SENATOR COSTA: Your high employee turnover-- We 
addressed-, ,that -- high caseload, burnout, too much work. I 
understanct;yo\.f .. -also'.:have·a: stress manage~ent -course.·_: · •.:·· ,:·.: 
\"Ii.. -;,,jtiMR. JOSEPH:~~ tes:t: ... ._!c(· •0,·,,,·; ;,-t-.•:-::, t-,; .·. ,·,··: 0 :··- '···; 

-·-· -· -· · ... ,:., SENATOR COSTA: From what I understand al so, those who 
are sent for stress management-- Their work keeps p~ling up at 
their desks, so they are getting more stressful, because they 
have to get back and do that work . 

. MR. JOSEPH: Well, again, that balance-- Some of that 
commitment, Senator, is because 
jointly worked out with the CWA. 

of the agreement that we 
There ought to be what is 

known as "a free day." One of the problems we have had with 
staff is, how do you juggle a free day a month, essentially, 
when stress management-- By free, I mean that no one goes 
home; people still work. That is a day that is set aside for 
staff to deal with that stress issue, as well as get some 
additional learning. 

That has had various responses in the 3·8 district 
off ices. It is a very• difficult issue our staff, and_ certainly 
for management, but . I think it is ·s-omething that we have tried 
to work out. I think Janet Cahill, when she presents, can 
probably resppnd.to that question from her experience. 

SENATOR COSTA: We have someone here from the union, 
who I am sure will address that. I will leave it up to them, 
since they handle it firsthand. 

You know, I have been in touch with DYFS many times 
because of things that happened in my district with children. 
This revolving door, as far as caseworkers are concerned, 
really concerns me, because-children have to have some kind of 
trust in somebody. Just when they get trust in a person, they 
no longer have that person to deal with. That person is gone. 
Looking at some of your cases here, even if you have -- as some 
of them here do -- 50 and 60 children per caseworker a month, 
they would not be able to see the same child twice. It might 
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be about two or three months before they might be able to get 

back to· see- a child. -- .. 

, Wllat,:happens · in :an·:- ~emergency·,:..:•·if·'.•that"chi-ld needs that 

person, and they,c. can·~t:- get to them? This is a real big 

problem, a:s-· ·far as your staffing is concerned. 

r'n speaking of your burned out-- In trying to get 

more people into the field, have you looked into recalling some 

of your former burned out workers who may be in a little better 

condition, because those people are the ones who were dedicated 

enough to have gone into social work to help kids? Too often, 

just as in some school situations, with DYFS, people who are 

really dedicated-- They didn't go into it for the money. They 

just wanted to help, but were burned out completely, and had to 

go. They just couldn't take it any longer. Would there be a 

chance of getting them back -- those kind of dedicated people? 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WELCH: Senator, that is certainly 

worth looking into. It is an idea we hadn't considered. 

MR. WALDMAN: I am advised that we have actually done 

th_at in a small way with_ our special services workers -- the 

hourly workers -- the ones who have left us from time to time. 

We have reached out to them to come back. I would agree; I 

think that is an excellent idea, and it bears looking into. 

I think there have been some improvements over time, 

and maybe the situation isn't as stressful as it was several · 

years ago. Some of our workers might consider it. 

SENATOR COSTA: It is still an unrealistic caseload 

you give the people working for DYFS an unrealistic 

caseload, and the paperwork that has to be done. - It's very 

difficult. 
I am just going to go to something that happened in my 

area, where I called in the troops from DYFS. I had them all 

in there. The former director was there, too. Working with 

one of the State schools in my area, someone saw something -­

an abuse -- in the school with the children. That person 
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reported it, and what happened was, the one who reported it was 
let·-go~ ·-=-,The :one,·who perpetrated the abuse -- and it wasn't 
only one time; :-i-;:;-;Was0 over:, and:::-ov~:r: ,,a-gain= -~:~ -stayed: .. ·: . I• -be:l ieve­
he:· knows wh-ich, case .L.,,am talking about,:·because he0 was there.!-;;,, 

In listening -- many times I had them over -- it came 
across loud and clear that the problem was with one of the 
people who worked for your. office, because she was very 
friendly with the perpetrator at this school, so she would take 
her part at all times, no matter what, and the kids were 
disregarded. ·we had a real big problem at that school. One 
child died. They called for a nurse, and she came in. She had 
no knowledge about what to do. She had to run for a book. By 
the time she got back with the book, the child had died. 

So, you know, these are the kind of things I hear in 
my area. I'm sure that some other people have some horror 
stories to tell, too. That is not your social work cases. 
This is something that DYFS is involved in the schools, the 
State schools. 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WELCH: That was the Division for 
the Developmentally Disabled, I am told by staff. 

SENATOR COSTA: Could you please speak a little louder? 
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WELCH: My understanding is that 

that was another Department of Human Services' _ division, and 
not DYFS. 

SENATOR COSTA: I had people from DYFS there. 
MR. JOSEPH: We did the investigation, but the 

facility which we discussed previously-- We can't talk 
about cases, but the facility was not -a Division-- We do the 
investigations. 

SENATOR COSTA: Okay. Senator Brown? 

SENATOR BROWN: Thank you, Senator Costa. I certainly 
commend you for calling this hearing today, and also for the 
fact that so many people throughout the State have taken the 
time to come here. Bi 11, you are certainly hitting the deck 
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running. Congratulations on your appointment. Mr. Waldman, 

Senator Costa,_ and- mys13lf.:.. _all. share· a::_strong background., in 

county government here in - New .Jersey,: ::so i't.-:·:is:.:nice t-0' .see: 

someone':-wbo, has,: served-.rso :well ::at' the. cbunty .. ,level.,·.progress. to 

the State il-ev.el:,t · ::, : ·:·-:-; --·· ;n._n,·-.: t i.m;._,:·'. , n;-1n r-t;.::,;,, ,.,,.·,.:,- 1 t- •:-",,·:-:··-

I. have three questions for you: One is in the area of 

salary; the second is in the area of working conditions; and 

the third is in the area of placement in the community. What 

is the starting salary for a social caseworker? 

MR. WALDMAN: It is about $20,000. 

SENATOR BROWN: Twenty thousand dollars. 

MR. WALDMAN: That is a Family Service Specialist III. 

SENATOR BROWN: ~hat is $2000 above the $18,000 which . 
is the minimum starting salary for a teacher, which is a 

nine-month job, as compared to a year-round job. After four 

years working for the Division, what could I expect to make? 

MR. WALDMAN: Let's see, the range would be--

MR. JOSEPH: That would depend on the Legislature, in 

p.art, but it_ would probably be approximately 20% off the first 

piece. 
MR. WALDMAN: The range goes from $20,327 to ·$28,454. 

I believe after four years-- I would guess about $26,000. Ted? 

MR. JOSEPH: Again, that would depend on-- It would 

probably be in the neighborhood of about a $4500 raise. 

SENATOR BROWN: The question is, obviously the 

starting salary is important. We cannot expect people to come 

to service our children here in the State of New Jersey, who 

have done a lot_of training and so on-- Obviously, it is not 

the type of job that is just off the street, like item pricing 

in a supermarket, for example. These people come with 

backgrounds, and we have to pay them. There is no more 

important resource out there than the children of our State. 

But, I am learning that salary at the start is one 

thing. Certainly, different professions escalate a lot 
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quicker. ·1f I am hired to be a policeman in some" town",. I may 
c:e ... hired .at- -the same "salary as· a caseworker,: -but after- .fout or­
£.ive: yea·:r:s-;,; i ~~may- be-: ~arning :·$33, o oo ,. · :which, is;_ a_,. big; idif ferenee 

f-rom ;:earning:-,.$24:.J·D.D·O::.:or:::$2·5-.,000·." c-Se, ->1_--~·:think .- if ~we .1ook at 

this total salary picture, Madam Chairman, not only do we have 

to consider what we are hiring these people at -- these people 

who have such an important job to do -- but also what sort of 
salary advancement they can .anticipate. 

Sec·ondly, not only have I visited the headquarters of 
DYFS in Morris County, which is a very pleasant new facility on 
Route 10 in Randolph, but I have gone to Newark. Obviously, 
the Division of Youth and Family Services is a tenant. I guess 
my question to you is, how do you feel the Division is doing as 

far as getting value for its rent dollar? Is the buildings and 

grounds operation here in the State really going to bat for the 

Division? Golly, when you want an elevator fixed, or when it 

is a question of freezing in the middle of the winter or · 

boiling in the swnmer, there is no reason why the landlords, 
who get- taxpayers' dollars for the conditions in which the 
caseworkers are working, do not just hop to_ it when al 1 of you 

call on the phone. I guess my question is, do the largest 
landlords, like Mr. Helmsley from New York-- Certainly, there 

is nothing better he needs to do than to make things absolutely· 
good for your employees in Newark. Those of us who are in an 
elected off ice are not going to settle for less than the best 
for all of you. 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WELCH: Senator Brown, just a 
brief response to that from me. I have visited the Newark 

offices, and I have to be candid with you and say that I was 

appalled. I was simply appalled. But, on the other hand, I 

have seen, in the short time I have been with the Department, 
some tremendous progress in terms of communication and 
cooperation with the officials responsible for conswnmating 

those leases. As Bill indicated earlier, we have relocated 
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certain of our offices. We have refurbished some of them. 

Some :progr.ess:.~is being·seen·.on·this~····'···· ,-_.__., ~"'· •": ,-, 

: : ... ~ .::·~:~;.:~. underst~d·:::there is:= .ai,,comm-ittee ,of :c,repr.es.enta.tives: 

from, the. ·~:DeP-,artmene:lfof ,-the Treas-ury tand coun_;-1Department working 

to correct -many; -· or ··most,,· of · the·, p-roblems- that '.have· been 

identified,· across the State really. So, your question, I 

think, was: "Can we expect full cooperation?" We will expect 

it. I think only time will tell if we will get it. 

SENATOR BROWN: Well, I'm sure. __ through the Chairman 

-- that this Committee would be most interested.to know if you 

are having any difficulties. ·As so~eone who has been involved 

in government for almost 20 years now, what tends to happen is 

that the person who is doing the contracting with government is 

isolated from the elected official. We cannot-- I mean, 

obviously, we have to go through the Division, and, therefore, 

to a certain extent, the landlord is protected. Therefore, the 

taxpayer does not get true value for the dollar. I think the 

day and age of this type of operation has got to cease. May 

. this be a message to all lan~lords out there who are housing 

State operations: We intend to get the best for our 

employees. Okay? 
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WELCH: I couldn't agree with you 

more. 
SENATOR BROWN: Lastly, let me just say as far as 

placement in the community is concerned, do we need more 

facilities out there to help to place some of our adolescents 

who are in trouble? 
MR. WALDMAN: Unquestionably. We believe so. 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WELCH: No question. 

MR. WALDMAN: That is one of our more serious issues. 

I know that as a county official, I faced that issue day to 

day. I think we need a spectrum of different types of 

facilities for adolescents. In our Fiscal Year 1989 budget 

request, we have requested to the Department, and I believe 
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they submitted it in their budget plan document, the sum of $9 
million to.· expand·.,:.prog:r;;ams. I think we are witnessing changes 
~n society and,: in· the :family, .structure ,-ar--ound- adolescent-st. 1 ,_,i:,r: 

have: heard•-'i_af,·, the·' situation, many- :--times~~ 1 • we~:·,are;•, facedu::with: 
what :_:i-s. referired-.,to as "throwaway ·children-.d~.-- --There are parents 
who relingu1sh their respo_nsibility for their kids, and we have 
the responsibility then to go out 'and place them. But, there 
is not just one type of faciltiy; there is a range of 
facilities. - We definitely do ·not have enough in New Jersey. 
We are hoping that with your support, we will get the 
additional resources to expand. 

SENATOR BROWN: Thank you, Madam Chairman. 
SENATOR COSTA: I would like to introduce Senator 

Donald DiFr ancesco, who has joined us . Would you like to ask 
any questions, Don? 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Ask questions? No, I just 
really-wanted to introduce myself. I am from Union County. I 
represent part of Essex County and part of Union County. I 
welcome you, and wish you luck. 

. . 

MR. WALDMAN: Thank you. 
SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Specifically, if you need 

anything from me, I am here to help you, just as I am here to 
help the people in my district, and in the State of New Jersey. 

I have one question, and that has to do with what 
steps you are taking with regard to the problems of teen-age 
pregnancy and teen parents? If you could summarize, you know. 

MR. WALDMAN: I would like to ask our Assistant 
Director· for Policy, Planning, and Support, Marc Cherna, to 
respond directly to that question. · He has done some things in 
that area, and I am glad you are giving him an opportunity to 
report on it. 

MR. CHERNA: As you know, adolescent pregnancy is a 
tremendous problem -- housing, education. Many of these women 
are dropping out of school. There is a lack of child care. 
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You have sponsored -some bills -which- will .. help to ameliorate the 

problem, .and .. we.,are,in ,to-tal support.:of. those bills. 

: ·: ;_::::::: ~r.-.. bill,; set." up,_ .. a: Governor;' s;·.Task.::.E'o:cce::oli-Adolescent 

Pr=egnan:ey; :' we ai:e working very·.:.clo.s-ely_ wi th·-=,·that-- Task -For.ca.~:. 

and are hoping to come up with a report with some real good 

recommendations to help to deal with the problem. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: I assume that DYFS is working 

with the Task Force directly--

MR. ·cHERNA: Yes, we are on the Task Force. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: --and has a lot of input . Do 

you have any idea when the Task Force will terminate? 

MR. CHERNA: I think within the year. I would expect 

the report within the next six months. There are public 

hearings coming up, and we will be getting community input. 

Then we will be writing the report. But it has been active. 

It has been meeting monthly. 

SENATOR COSTA: Senator Ambrosio? 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: Yes. I don't want to dwell on 

this, but we are here to talk about the caseload problem. I 

really don't completely understand the explanation you gave 

about the reduction in caseload at this point. My 

understanding is that you made a review of the active 

caseloads, and basically have closed out a number of cases that 

were really inactive. We are really talking about an internal 

auditing and accounting system. Is that right? 

MR. WALDMAN: In a sense, that is correct. Some of 

them may have been inactive, but some of them, it may have been 

determined, could be better served by another community agency; 

an agency, for example, that we had a contract with. So, it 

was case disposition. You're right, though. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: They basically weren't being 

serviced by your current staff? 

MR. WALDMAN: I wouldn't say that is exactly true. 

They may have been serviced, but we didn't need to keep them 
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a~y longer. They may have fallen into the inactive status. We 
may:have--- 0 ·,-,:--_, -_ · ... _..., .:_·, •. ·, ..•. ,· .•• ----= 

SENATOR • AMBRosio: ·; · .. :I Im. sorr.y. ; . :. What ... ]-:. am 0cmneerned 
abeut ,,~th tzhai;,,--;app-z;oach,; ,,is ,cthcit.:-awe.- really t· have•;:-,:notF'< dcone 
anything to: 0 affect caseload-, ,.j_f ithatr,is -thewcase;~:ibecaus·e wh-ati 
that means is, if an individual caseworker had 60 cases, and 12 
of them were really inactive, that person had effectively 48 
cases she was working on, and she still has 48 cases. 
Therefore, the stress and all of the other problems associated 
with a heavy caseload have not been alleviated in the slightest 
bit. Would that be true? I don't want to give the impression 
in this hearing that some reduction in the number of cases 
being serviced has really occurred. 

MR. WALDMAN: I think the only way to answer your 
question is to look at the Child Welfare League of America 
standard, which i~ a nationally accepted standard. I think you 
should judge us by how well our caseloads approach that 
standard. We have made progress. In a sense, it may be more 
of a paper review kind of progress, as you are indicating, to 
some extent, although I believe some of it was real, just 
knowing the pressure the Division was under in '86; that our 
actual counts did reduce. We ~re at one to 38 right now. 
Again, as Senator Costa · pointed out, they are equally 
distributed. We have to do a lot better with that, and look at 
the factors. 

But, when we went through this new Civil Service 
process, which I described-- If we staff up to vacancy, we 
will be at one to 36, which represents 95% of the CWLA standard 
we have in New Jersey. I mean, we are moving in that 
direction. If we are successful in realigning the cases to 
make them more even, to fill in the vacancies-- When yo? 
entertain our budget request, we have a shot at going close to 
100% of the standard over time. That is the goal we have set 
for ourselves. 
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I think it is important that we do that kind of a 

review~:..: I think our caseworkers' time is very valuable. There 

is no needc.,to,·keep.-,on a"aase ithat,:.we ,.are net,.·servi-cing, or one 

'Ehat couldi•bei better served somep1ace else .. :. "It.· is,.,.important.·.to, 

do· that-kind ~,C!>f• vigorous management review- ·from time to time -­

"This is the kind of case that we should be involved in. This 

is where our best skills can be utilized. Other cases can be 

served better elsewhere." But, your point is well taken. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: Just one follow-up question on 

that: For Fiscal Year 1988, you estimated an active caseload 

for children at 59,000. Would you change that projection, 

based upon what you have told me today? 

MR. WALDMAN: Yes, I would. I think about 52,000 was 

the latest number we projected, given that change. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: Would you make any change in the 

estimates in terms of active caseloads of families? You 

projected 31,000 for Fiscal Year 1988. 

MR. CHERNA: Yeah, it would go down the same way. 

MR. WALDMAN: It would go down the same--

MR. CHERNA: The same percentage. We usually talk 

about children, as opposed to families, when we do a case count. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: I penciled in 52, and we will take 

a look at how that looks, and what number you want to put in 

.for the family estimate. 

MR. CHERNA: Well, if it drops 12% -- a little over 

10% -- I would just do the same thing. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: I' 11 make sure I do it in pencil, 

though. 
SENATOR COSTA: There is one thing that concerns me 

greatly, and that is the kids who fall through the cracks. 

What is your system doing to see that that doesn't happen? We 

have had many times where children have been out in the street, 

and because they had been put into another fac~lity, they were 

under DYFS. Who is keeping in communication with each other? 
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Is that child followed, or does he get lost? This article here 
..,..,.. . ''How the System Failed a- New Jersey - Infant".-..:· This child, 
£ive,,_weeks~~ o-ld-~;. .. _;pffs rec:ommended that, the··ehi1d'. -be·l~ta_ken·,raway, 
f.tom ·the:'.. ~paEents; ,-.,-They,.-,took.::dt ·.away,~·~ and then·: _the·,:.:child,, was 
back with the parents again, after the collarbontil·was broken, 
the legs were broken -- everything happened to this kid. 

How do you try to see that this doesn't happen, that 
we don't lose these children through the cracks? Somewhere 
along the line, they are out in the streets, and we don't know 
about it. Where is the communication between various levels of 
government? Do you have a tracking pattern for these children? 

MR. WALDMAN: Not exactly perhaps a pattern. There is 
always a danger in this business, because of the complexity and 
the maze of human services, for people to fall between the 
cracks. I know we have established a partnership basis with 
the family courts throughout New Jersey. We work very closely 
with them. We still have a ways to go in coordinating services 
with the mental health system for kids, and with the system of 
developmentally disabilities. 

We have established within our Department an 
inter-divisional communication pattern which I think will go a 
long way to do it, and will also be a way to resolve these 
particular situations. 

SENATOR COSTA: In what way? Do you keep track? Is 
there a system whereby you keep track of the kids? 

MR. WALDMAN: Oh, you're saying that individually 
tracks? 

SENATOR COSTA: Is there something that we as 
legislators can do to see that the courts -- or whatever they 
are, or wherever they are placed -- make sure that the Division 
of Youth and Family Services knows about it, so that when they 
are out of there, somebody is there to catoh them, like a 
safety net? 
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MR. JOSEPH: It's clear that in this State when 

children are out of thei£. own homes_, no work .already exists. for 

the _CPR .:...""'." ·for the· Chile Placement ·Review Board; 'that :when" w~ 

move· a~-crhi;ld,,f.rom hi'St'.0_'.;r her·:home,,,th.e systerct,,kicks:·into··gear,. 

and ·-that •-:our,:~st·aff , is ~esponsH5le'., to.'i,get<backr-:,to- that :system 

and inform people as to where this child is, why this child has 

been removed, and what our plan of action is around· either 

returning a child, or not. 

So, for the kids who are at a home those 10,000 or 

11,000 -- that system exists. For children in their own home, 

whom- I tend to think -- in our previous conversations, we were 

talking about a number of them who might fall through the 

cracks in that way -- that system is a DYFS system. That 

system is one of a caseworker having to discuss his or her 

feelings about that case with assistant supervisors, and on up 

the line. A formal system -- a legal system -- exists for one 

set, and for the other set it doesn't. 

SENATOR COSTA: So, actually, we really don't have too 

good a system. I am speaking of - one child who was in a 

J.I.N.S. Shelter. You know that in· a J.I.N.S. Shelter -­

Juveniles In Need of Supervision -- they can walk out any time 

they want. This kid walked out. He was out on the streets for 

two weeks. The school didn't know he was out there. Do you 

keep in touch with the schools? They would have gotten after 

him. He was out in the streets for two weeks, and nobody even 

noticed. The school didn't know he was out on the street. He 

was gone from the J. I. N. S. Shelter. DYFS didn't know he was 

out there. Somehow he got lost. · 

MR. WALDMAN: One of the things that has helped and 

we do have a long way to go--

S;ENATOR COSTA: If you haven't got it, I would like to 

see it strengthened. I would 1 ike to see something done. If 

there is anything we, as legislators, can do, we want to do it, 

to strengthen that kind of a communication line, so that these 
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kids don't get lost; so that somebody cares ,enough to watch 
them ·as they go through life, until they can::.-.:.go. O\lt on. their 

... 
-·-. - - .. -•~.,., ... _." 

~c-':•.o ::; ,·~MR._' WALDMAN::- -That is -an issue ::-·I ·-wou1d· 0-like .. to~::get 
back to the·Committee·on, if that is okay. The one thing that 
did cross my mind, which I remembered from my experience in 
county government was real helpful, was the Youth Service 
Commissions that were formed by legislation that was approved. 
It required people from the different systems -- the J. I. N. s. 
Shelter operators, the youth shelter operators,· mental health, 
county governmen,t, courts, and others -- to sit down and open 
up lines of communication and coordination between agencies. I 
know we worked together. The Division, some time ago, required 
an out-of-home placement plan for kids, and also required 
that. Some of those eff arts have improved communications, so 
that a shelter operator seeing a kid missing would know who to 
call. 

. We have more work to do. I would like to look into 
that, and report back to you on it. 

SENATOR COSTA: Okay, good. Thank you, Commissioner, 
for being here. I know you want to leave, but I ask that.the 
others please stay. 

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WELCH: Yes, certainly they will. 
I appreciate the opportunity you have provided me to appear 
before you. I will be in my office; if you should have a need 
for me to return, I will be happy to do that. 

SENATOR COSTA: I would like to call--
SENATOR AMBROSIO: Senator, before you do-- I know 

there are a lot of people who want to testify, -and I don't want 
to ask any more questions.· I would like the opportunity to go 
through some of the quest ions I have. Maybe I wi 11 do it 
directly with you. But I would really like to hear the 
testimony of the witnesses today. 

SENATOR COSTA: Okay. Vincent Trivelli, Legislative 
Coordinator, Communications Workers of America. 
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VINCENT TR IVEL LI:· Senator, as we discussed, we 

have a f'ew:-wotkers 'who would: like to :testify:.; ::: · ,._. · ,.. · 

SENATOR COSTA: Yes. Will you please bring them up? 

I am taking the::.,~·l-ist out of O context,1_1,becaus:e.i.:.some· :-.of i -these 

people are under ~pressure to , leave,, and I want -to hear them. 

Who will speak first? Vincent, wil_l you speak first? 

MR. TRIVELLI: No, George Krevet will be first. 

SENATOR COSTA: George Krevet, please. 

G E O R G E · K R E V E T: Good morning. My name is George 

Krevet. I am a DYFS worker from the Elizabeth District Office 

on union leave. Some of what I am about to present is from 

personal experience, .and some from what has been conveyed to me 

by the DYFS workers whom I represent as a Staff Repre-sentative 

for CWA Local 1037. 

The intent of this presentation is to provide the 

Committee with some insight into: 1) The stressful nature of 

DYFS work; 2) how this is compounded by unworkably high 

caseloads which adversely affect clericals, supervisors, as 

well as front-line workers; and 3) the Division's historical 

response to systemic breakdowns caused by excessively high 

caseloads. 
Even in the abstract, the typical reactions to the 

term "child abuse" are those of revulsion, agitation, and 

anger. Unfortunately, for DYFS workers, child abuse cannot be 

an abstraction. It is a daily, sometimes hourly, reality. 

Unlike those of us who read the newspapers and see the words, 

"scalded arms and legs of an infant," the DYFS worker must 

examine the actual scalded limbs of the screaming infant. 

Instead of seeing the words, "multiple welts and bruises on the 

back of a seven-year-old boy," the DYFS worker must count the 

welts and bruises on the back of the frightened and whimpering 

seven year old. Instead of seeing the words, "fractured skull 

of a three-year-old girl," the DYFS worker must sift through 

the matted hair of the dazed child so as to determine the 
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approximate length and location of the injury. Or worse yet, 
instead of reading the .. words,_ "sexually abused five year old," 
the DYFS worker· must · try ·to break througn::. the, sullen wal-1 of' 

silence of,-·a little, girl ·.betrayed. by the;_.;grown"""ups she:, trusted 
most-.-:,_: And; unJ.d!ke,,the physiciah working in the· sanctuary of- a 
hospital -- who may eventually choose to either help or hinder 
confirmation of child abuse -- the DYFS worker must frequently 
conduct his or her investigation in the child's home, with the 
child's parents screaming at the worker that he or she has no 
right to be there, insisting that the injuries are the result 
of an accident, often threatening or actually becoming violent 
when the decision is made that removal is necessary. The 
adrenalin -- what's left of it -- surges again when the worker, 
upon leaving with the hysterical child in his or her arms, is 
greeted by the family's neighbors alerted to the situation by 
the previous commotion. 

This is but the beginning of a long line of stressful 
situations and hostile players encountered by the DYFS worker. 
There is then the judge, who publicly castigates the worker for 
failing to provide a foster home when no foster homes are 
available. And, of course, were the worker to place the child 
in a foster home already at capacity, this would be the 
individual to reprimand the worker for having done so. There 
is the Deputy Attorney General, who acts as if the case he or 
she is attending to is the only case the worker has. There is, 
in cases of removal, the defense attorney, who has a vested 
interest in calling the worker's competency, if not sanity, 
into question. There is the referent, who may, who may be a 
teacher, relative, etc., who demands to know why the worker 
hasn't implemented his or her recommendations, oblivious to the 
numerous legal constraints. There is the acting-out juvenile. 
who, after the worker, using smoke and mirrors because of 
funding cuts, spends months working on, and receiving approval 
for a particular residential placement, jettisons the placement 
by setting fire to his mattress. 
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There is the foster parent,- who holds the wo~ker 

personally responsible for a child's · renewed bed - wettfng 

behavioc .when:. the.;.,foster ,_parent:--;. speci-f,ioal.ly- agree~ to; - care 

for :-':a:=, toilet-trained-:" child. -.And,--· of · .. course, -~the.re is the'. 

hostile parent who, in the prelim'inary stages of the 

investigation; views the worker as an adversary. intent on 

dismantling his or her family, which sometimes means the 

cancellation of a public assistance check, thereby depriving 

the parent of ·two of the most important things in his or her 

life, ·i.e., family and means of survival. 

It's easy to conceive how, given such circumstances, 

DYFS workers frequently meet with resistance and hostility and 

how, contrary to the expectation of DYFS management, families 

sometimes render it impossible for workers to meet all the 

demands of the DYFS operations manual. 

What was cited in the above is undeniably the 

substance of DYFS work. It, in itself, is demanding, 

stressful, and unrewarding in the traditional sense- of a 

payback for; a job well done, in_ t,iat cb.ild abuse prevention is 

just that, prevention, i.e., maintenance. The worker 

continually waits and hopes for something "not to happen." 

There is no closure and, therefore, no sense of having 

accomplished something. The. caseworker and his or her 

supervisor sit on pins and needles, doing what they can with 

limited resources to prevent a case from exploding, until it is 

transferred from their responsibility or closed. As stressful 

as one such case may be, the tension level geometrically 

progresses as caseloads mount. 

"Standards for Child Protection Service,"· the 

nationally recognized state-of-the-art manual on protective 

services published by the Child Welfare League of America, 

states: "Workloads should be determined on the basis of work 

units in protective service, and should make it possible for 

staff to carry out the intensive social work intervention 
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required in situations of neglect and abuse. If effective 
service. is to.·.be. provided;·· a full-time. practlt-i-oner. is . .needed 
fo-.r:.~every 21>1;:.,families:,, ~ assuming the, ,rate :of ~ iI?,tak!!· ±s; not more­
-tthan one ,_new·, case.:.:for stx • open :.oases .. ~• = With~-, razt.e,::exceptioni 
the prescribed: limits c-i,ted · :in the· ~above, are:.. a,;,profe.ssiona.•l· 
fantasy of every DYFS worker. We have reports from DYFS 
workers that they deal with double and triple that number of 
families. By last official count, we understand that the 
average caseload is 42 families per worker. That figure is 
misleading, in that some casework positions actually attend to 
administrative functions or act as a liaison between the 
Division and conununity services involving no caseloads, yet are 
factored into the average . . 

Admittedly, this is down from the astronomical numbers 
operative two and a half years ago, when $12. 8 million was 
appropriated to fund additional clerical, professional, and 
supervisory positions. But caseloads remain at a dangerously 
high level with no mechanism in place to prevent them from 
g~ipg higher. . It is . precisely this unregulated fluctuation 
that concerns us most. History teaches that if 11 X11 number of 
children die of child abuse in a given year, and/or if the 
media climate is ripe for stories on sexual abuse, attention is 
paid to the subject of child abuse, money is allocated and, to 
some extent, caseloads decrease temporarily. 

Unfortunately, newspaper headlines determine the 
administration of DYFS, the agency charged with the 
responsibility of protecting the State's children. In my 
relatively short tenure as a DYFS worker, the agency's official 
policy went from "least intrusive," intervening only when 
tangible cause has been identified and only as long as it takes 
to remedy that particular problem, to a policy of "to err on 
the side of caution, 11 i.e., open all cases which are 
potentially abusive and address any familial problem found 
which could lead to domestic discord. 
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Needless to say, the newer pol icy initiated in 1982 

resulted _;_-in,_,an,,•avalanche. 0£ 'cases ,,·accepted- · by ·t:he· · agency-, 

swe11:ing. ,casel.oadS:.1,_,,While· politicaL:administra:t'ions:, and _DYFS· 

po;l:icies·· come and.:~g0,.,and, .icaseloads., fluctuat~ with the ·:.pol,i.tical 

winds·," the· workers·-·'in·-the- -offices· labor on, ·and the safety of 

the State's children hangs in the balance. One doesn't need a 

Master's in Social Work to realize that the more cases a worker 

has, the less time he or she can devote to any one particular 

case. With burgeoning caseloads, workers are forced to apply 

Band-Aids to the familiar wounds. Symptoms, rather than 

causes, become the focus, and the wor~ers jump from crisis to 

crisis, rarely initiating long-term solutions. 

Needless to say, new workers become frustrated, 

discouraged, and overwhelmed, leading to premature burnout, 

thus contributing to a staggering turnover rate. The whole 

approach is a prescription for disaster as the system is poised 

to collapse in upon itself. A far saner approach would be to 

establish an institutional mechanism by which caseloads are 

regulated, and such a solution is not without precedent. 

Copies are available of two court cases in which the courts of 

both Massachusetts and Missouri adjudicated caseload caps. 

What we are asking is that the Legislature in the State of New 

Jersey take the progressive step of legislating caseload 

limits. We at CWA would be more than willing to work with both 

the Legislature and the Division in order to formulate a bill 

encompassing components of the two court cases, Child Welfare 

League of America standards, and any other resource materials 

that would be helpful. 

Heretofore, the DYFS reaction to the systemic collapse 

which is inevitable when workers are too thinly stretched to 

adequately cover bloated caseloads, w~s to hold the worker and 

front-line supervisors responsible by disciplining them when 

cases blew up and children were injured. Elementary as the 

approach seems, it has fairly well . insulated management from 
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culpability, while scapegoating wor~ers and. leaving children at 
risk .. ;·.:: · · · · ·· ·· •·· • 
--:-_w.-:-, , : m1 Having· , . .'1;epresehted!·••. DYFS. ·workers·.-' at _: ·disciplinary; 
he:ariligs · for the -: iast' three ·.years, I:.., '·e.an :. :.attest --·to·- ·:the 
arbitrary, excessive, and unwarranted application of discipline 
by the Division of Youth and Family Services. Local 1037 has 
handled more disciplinary cases from this one Division than any 
other Department. Clearly, this is a symptom of 
mismanagement. ·Just to give the Committee a flavor of how the 

· Division administers discipline, allow me to briefly enumerate 
just a few c·ases I .have. been involved with in this last year: 

There was a supervisor in the Suburban Essex County 
Office who was disciplined for not having effected a removal in 
spite of the fact that three doctors, at the time, all 
concluded there was no abuse. When it later became evident 
that abuse had occurred, the supervisor was discipl~ned for not 
having known that the .doctors' medical opinion was wrong. The 
case was overturned on appeal. 

There . was the s_upervisor f~om Elizabeth who_ had over 
37 years with the State in protective services -- some with the 
Bureau of Children Services before DYFS even existed -- who was 
terminated for negligence. The decision was later modified by 
an OAL judge, who typified the Division's action as 
"abominable." 

There was the worker in the Hackensack District Office 
who received a 30-day suspension for having refused to continue 
working past sundown on a Jewish holiday after having received 
permission to leave. This decision was completely overturned 
at the Office of Administrative Law, with the judge admonishing 
DYFS for inappropriate issuance of discipline. 

According to DYFS' own disciplinary manual 
Administrative Code 4: 08 -- discipline should be, among other 
things, "corrective and not punitive." Yet, how could it be 
construed as "corrective" to issue an official reprimand to an 
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Elizabeth worker at five minutes to five on her final day of 

work? And the list goes on. 

Cl.early, :.. t:g.e Division•'·s :dis-cipc-1-inary ::c-.policy is . the 

prodtic~ of: ,_;;management':s 'refusal"·· to .. address: the - :-horrendous· 

problems -- one~ aaseload ~ ,siz:e:;· - worker'.: morale;, ; and-) ~~urtimately,-, 

children_' s safety within their own homes. A far more rational 

approach would be' to 1 imi t caseloads, whereby caseworkers would 

be freed up so as to provide genuine relief for families in 

need, and discipline would be reserved for those instances in 

which it were truly warranted. 

Hopefully, with the advent of a new Director in the 

person of Mr. Waldman, disciplinary policies will be reviewed 

and revised, and the Division will work with us to ensure that 

caseloads become and remain manageable. 

Thank you. What I would like to do now, is 

introduce-- Well, we will entertain questions at any time, but 

what I would like to do now is introduce workers -- hands-on 

workers -- who have personal experiences and knowledge which 

will augment what I just said. 

First, Robert Bowell, a Supervisor from Asbury Park. 

SENATOR COSTA: What is the name? 

MR. KREVET: Robert Bowell -- B-O-W-E-L-L. 

ROBERT B O W E L L: I am a Supervisor in the Asbury 

Park District Office. 

SENATOR COSTA: Please try to speak louder, so that 

everyone can hear you. 

MR. BOWELL: Okay. Excuse me, I am a little nervous. 

I don't do this every day. 

SENATOR -COSTA: The microphone is only for the 

recorder. 
MR. BOWELL: I understand. I am the Supervisor of a 

Generic Unit in the Asbury Park District Office. I have been 

employed by the State for 13 years, and have been a Supervisor 

in DYFS for 11-1/2 years. I worked in Newark; I worked in 
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Trenton; and currently, as I said, I am working in 
Park~- I ·also work as -a Special Response Worker, which 
after-duty..:.,hours' response-i p0rtion· of-: DYFS:;' ~ - c: ·-; __ _ _ _, 

Asbury 

is the 

L, ,s!,J :- There, a:re,c:.twot elements- -I' would Iike_:to deal with,c- and 
I. w'ill try to -keep this ·under -10 minutes. One is the lack of 
resources, particularly for adolescents -- teen-agers -- and 
the other is the difficulty of supervising a unit in a period 
of time when we have very few experienced workers left on the 
job. So, I will attack the resources first. It is easier, for 
me; at any rate, since I don't do this sort of speaking as a 
living, to give you examples of situations. 

In my duties as a Special Response Worker, I have run 
into several situations that are horrendous; they embarrass me, 
they aggrevate me, and they make it difficult for me to 
continue with my job. It is a job I really like. I think I am 
in the rare position of being able to do a job that I enjoy 
doing. However, the frustrations of what comes from above are 
what are interfering with me really accomplishing my goal. 

I would like to give one example of a situation that 
happened about two or three years ago now, under the direction 
of our farmer Director of DYFS. I was on emergency response, 
at that time, for Monmouth County. I was living in Ocean 
County at the time. I received a call which involved a case 
that needed the activities of both the Monmouth County worker 
and the Ocean County worker, because the individual was in 
Ocean County at the time. I called the Special Response Worker 
for Ocean County and we arranged to meet, which we did. As we 
were about to leave on this case, which was a rather serious 
situation concerning abuse, we were beeped by the central 
number in Trenton, and were told -- not myself, but I went with 
the other worker, since we were about to go on this other 
case-- She was ordered to respond to - a home in Br icktown to 
pick up an Easter basket -- this was the Saturday before Easter 
-- and deliver it to a child, because the mother was so 
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insistent about her 18-month-old child getting this· Easter 

basket. -:-
.'.·_::_so-t·.we ··proc!:!eded _to ·that -house-;-: along with two police 

officers. -:-:;-,~he Regional - Director at the 7time ! s-howed up at the! 

house, and we ·proceeded ··to · pick ,,.up· the Easter- baske~- ~~and 

deliver it, deiaying us from our attendant position. I think 

it was a terrible waste of money and our use of resources . 

There was a woman who was obviously emotionally disturbed, who 

was known to be so by the town. That is why the police 

officers were there. To respond to that sort of an issue on an 

emergency basis is ludicrous and a waste of everyone's time. 

That is one example. 

Just more recently-- I won't use names obviously; I 

will just call this girl Barbara. She is 15 years old. She 

ran away from her foster home, and put herself in a home of her 

own choosing. We were investigating that home as possibly 

opening it as a special, since we have very few foster homes 

that will accept teen-agers, and at this point we had none. 

While there, she ran away from that home. We finally located 

her with her 25"-year-:--old boyfr_iend, and we brought ·her back to 

our office. 

For the next three days, we dealt with trying to find 

this child a home to stay in. At this point, she was fairly 

cooperative with us, because she was desperate herself. We 

first started by checking with all relatives· and friends. We 

had no success, so we then attempted to find a foster home 

within our area, without success. We then did a statewide 

check of foster homes, but there were none available throughout 

the entire State, according to the system we have in place. 

We checked every shelter. We called every shelter in 

the entire State of New Jersey. No one would take this child. 

Some because they were out of county, and others because they 

were ful 1 . We then went to our county Project Open House, 

which is a replacement for the J.I.N.S. Shelter. We have no 
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J.I.N.S. Shelter. They couldn It take the child in either, 
hecause they were ful 1. That night, we talked an aunt into 
keeping the child,~foE-:-o:ae·night only,. but she,j.nsisted th~t-she 
be i out:·:the ·:next}>q.ay~:" 1 The,· ·next day,--.-- she ·:.came .. back into m:11:.· 

office and sat ~£or:·~,·the.: entire~. day:,.~-. as:-.. we :c,went through the 
process again, ·pushing it up the line, as it were, to higher 
levels. We still had no success. 

We went back to the aunt again, and she agreed to keep 
her for one more· night. The next day, we went through the same 
process again. Fortunately, a worker was able to go begging, 
and pleaded to the first foster mother to take her back. The 
child agreed to go there. That foster mother was an elderly 
woman, who had had difficulty dealing with this· difficult 
child. Again, it was another burden, and an inappropriate 
placement, because the child shouldn't really have been there, 
but there was nothing else. 

But, this since has had a happy ending. After three 
days of three different workers handling this case, so I could 
give the other ones a break to do their own work-- At that 
particular time, I had two workers out on sick leave for three 
weeks because of a car accident. I had one worker on vacation, 
and I had one worker who is leaving in the middle of next 
month, as a transfer to another off ice. Under these 
conditions, I had to switch workers around to try to give each 
worker an opportunity to do his or her own work, while working 
on this case. 

My_ last example is a boy I had, again on emergency 
response, who had been in dozens and dozens of DYFS placements 
prior to about two years ago, when he was transferred to Vision 
Quest in Pennsylvania. It is a residential program, and he 
seemed to be doing well there. He stayed for two years, which 
was really a record for this very disturbed child. He created 
a situation while he was out ~here that was beyond that staff's 
ability. It is an excellent program, so we knew it had to be a 
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pretty bad situation. He attacked several staff• members., -and 

he· attempte<t suicide. : :They ·insistE!d' that he be brought back to 

New·_ Je-r;:_sey·; · ·:r-. gbt the cal 1 .otf .a F-riday. night.- ·, "~- ; · ; ,-, . , ; · , ,_ .., · : 

... ~ =.About-==---.nine~~ .o'clock "I-·,.. went to ·:·the::::hospitaL. · '- _ They 

arrived at about ten o'clock -- at Jersey Shore Hospital -­

from western Pennsylvania, with the child. The child was 

evaluated by the medical staff and the psychiatr·ic staff on. 

duty there. They agreed, after some discussion, that they 

would admit him-~ not to the hospital, because that is the way 

the organization works-- · He was to be ad.mi tted to Rutgers. 

Rutgers had agreed to take him the Rutgers Adolescent 

Treatment Center. 

They, however, balked at the last minute, and said, 

"Let's wait until tomorrow. It is now two o'clock in the 

morning. Let's wait until tomorrow. We can pick him up in the 

beginning of the day, and get everything straightened out. " 

So, the hospital agreed to keep the child in the emergency 

room. Fortunately, he wasn't violent and acting out. He was 

fairly calm at the time. 

The next day it was no longer my involvement, but the 

worker who had the case continued with it. I found out that he 

stayed the .entire day in tp.e emergency room again, because 

Rutgers declined to take him. They then had to go directly to 

Trenton Psychiatric and get a court order to admit the child 

there. Again, that speaks for itself. I won't comment on it. 

We have no shelter in Monmouth County. We are using 

Project Open House, which is a county-run organization. It is 

not really something that DYFS can insist on using. It is only 

if it is available. If we have tried everything else, then 

they will let us use one of their homes. 

There are plans, I have been told, for a 10-bed 

adolescent placement center. - However, I understand now that 

that is not an emergency placement. That will be after the 

entire process of preparing a child for residential -- which is 
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very extensive -- is completed. That can hold a child up for 
another. month or, .two months be£ore he is prepared to go in. -
,·., •. >.: .:,=··, ~1 •I,· would: ]ika -:i to . "move·_·: on.- then_ . to the area of 
supervising,, my caseload ,~---::my ~wo,rkers ... -, I• :ourtren:t;_ly :have _ _,_six 
generic caseworkers. As'· I' sa-id, I ::have"had s·everal -;;out· due to 
car accidents; °I have one who is transferring soon. In our 
office, out of 28 workers, we have eight workers who have been 
there for more than a year. That means that the time I have to 
spend on training is obviously quite a bit. Many times, I go 
home very worried that something is going to happen. I go out 
in the field when I can, with my workers, to see how they are 
doing, but that is something that is frowned upon because I 
have to be available in the office for other emergencies, as !OY 
boss here can tell you. 

We have workers who do not know the basics because--
They have been through a very good training program. It is a 
big improvement over what we used to have. There have been a 
lot of improvements at DYFS, but we are still faced with a 
situation where there is no way you can train a worker about 
what to do until he. or she actually faces a situation. They 
need a lot of on-hands guidance and someone to work with. When 
workers come in,· they don't get a blank caseload -- a one or 
two caseload to work with. They get a full caseload, because 
someone else has left, and there are 40 or 50 cases that have 
to be assigned. In my unit right now, I have one worker in the 
low 30s. The others are in the high 40s to 50s. We just 
brought one worker from about 65 cases down to somewhere in the 
low 50s. There is some deadwood there, but it is not because 
workers have said, "Well, let's just not close this case. We 
will keep it open because it's fun." It is simply because they 
were dealing with other cases and couldn't get to closing it. 
That was not a crisis any more, so it 

However, there is not that 

cases. We have some very serious 
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getting the treatment they need -- the attention they need -­

because the ·workers. are stretched too 'thin;..=and they. :don't have 

the knowledge0 :arid. experience to, movenquickly -bn what needs to 

be. done.··->~ suspect: -that one:-· of·-.·the, reasons-·:we, have very few 

eocperienoed-;..workers left ·is" due ·to·- all these. pressures the 

workers are unde·r that you have heard some testimony about, and 

about which you will hear more. 

I think there is a tendency on management's part -­

although I am sure no one is going to admit to this -- to look 

at a balance sheet. If I worked for a private company, and I 

was experienced after working there for 10 years, and someone 

new started to work there, obviously the new worker is going to 

get paid much less than I am. I think the company would see 

the benefit of that. My experience would bring in more profit 

for the company. In DYFS, I think the same thing holds true. 

Obviously, an experienced worker generally knows better and 

does a better job. However, you have no measurement of that. 

We don't see a profit; we don't see anything concrete to show 

this is what they have done; this is what they have 

accomplished; this is what they have brought in. The 

measurement is simply looking at the balance sheet, that this 

worker, who is brand-new, makes $20,000; this worker who has 

been there for 10 years makes $27,000. And they are both doing 

the same job. Why don't we get rid of the one who is costing 

us $27, ooo, and just keep the new one? That seems a very 

simple kind of thing. That appears to be what is happening, 

because that is what we've got -- eight workers out of 28 being 

relatively new workers. 

I wanted to give a very brief -- I have a couple more 

minutes left here -- rundown on some of the things I have to 

require my workers to do~- some of the pressures. I won't go 

into details on them; I will just mention them. Obviously, 

abuse and neglect investigations. Those can be very extensive 

-- long running -- and can take you a week just to get the 
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initial problem- dealt with. Workers are also responsible for 
the. reporting of all that .. • There· are many, many •forms· attached 
to .. an abuse:-invest-igation, -that ,have to .be_ done after ,yo\1 go· 
out _and actuall~,-.::do .the work._· The- emotionaL_strain,- and ·-so 
on-- I am not going to deal with that. I am just listing 
these. CPR Child Placement Review Board: We have 
requirements to meet, reporting to them within certain time 
frames -- very short time frames. We have to get the stuff 
done. To CPR people, the most important thing in the world are 
their reports and their time limits. There is more than just 
one report. There are many things that have to be done. There 
are meetings that have to be attended to meet the requirement. 
Whenever a child is placed, he goes before the CPR Board, and 
then is reviewed every six months. 

DYFS workers have to do an agreement with every case 
they have -- a service agreement with every family they have -­
in order to lay out what the goals are and the time frames, and 
what the families have to accomplish to get DYFS off their 
back, in effect. 

Litigation -- court cases: Another tremendous area of 
time and, of course, to the courts and to the Attorney 
General's office, this is the most important thing DYFS workers 
have to do. Obviously, we also see it as a high priority. 

Supervision of cases involves making minimal visits, 
once a month to once every three months, depending on the case, 
or maybe once every six months. Most of them are once a month, 
because most of the cases we have left are serious cases that 
need constant supervision. That is a minimum of once a month. 
Obviously, they do go out more than that. We have to work with 
faster parents -- in partnership with fester parents. They 
demand a lot of time, because that is the most important thing 
to them, and understandably so. 

Day-care: We have to get children into day-care. We 
have to do all of the paperwork to get children into day-care. 
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We-have to find the day-care centers to get them into. We have 

to- renew th~ day~care ,_ because - if we -d9n' t '- r.enew it - we are· 

gc>ing, to;--.get; c:omp1aints from. the d-ay~care :center -- abcfu.-e why .the 

k,ids ,aren-'•t:••bei~g(:.paid-for~.: we:·:have .placements·, --to- make, of· 

children, · ·and .. 'that.; ,·runs,- the· gamut f1r0tn. simple fos=ter i ,home: 

placement, which.may-- I don't know how many forms we have to 

do. One time we had a meeting here, and we stretched the forms 

out from one end of the room to the other, to give you an 

example. We have· to do al 1 that, and everything concurrent 

with it. 

We have permanency planning requirements -- children 

who are going to stay under supervision for more than a year. 

We have to have a long-term plan ·for them. All of these are . 
absolutely necessary, good casework practice procedures, that 

need to be done, but they al 1 have to be done by one person. 

Permanency planning can include things like searches, which is 

an affidavit that may run this thick (demonstrates), of all the 

attempts made to contact parents and relatives who may want to 

take a child in prior to seeking .adoption.. All attempts to 

contact a person have to be documented. 

We have training issues, which our workers obviously 

need and have to go for, but it takes time away. We have the 

case file itself, which has a tremendous amount of paperwork in 

it -- contact sheets on a daily basis. It has to have a 

six-month evaluation of the case. You have to record and 

demonstrate that your MVR -- monthly visit requirements -- is 

being met. Service agreements have to be in there and updated 

every six months. Flow chart.s have to be done to demonstrate 

that you have done al 1 the things that are supposed to be in 

the file. And some other things that I can't remember right 

now. We have dozens of other responsibilities. 

Stress day is something that comes along once a 

month. Most of my workers do not attend the activities on 

stress day. They are trying to destress themselves by making 
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up all the work that they aren't able to do. the rest of the 
time. They:.~-.ofte~ ·s.tay. a.t ._their ,desks and :do;·•,that .work ... , I 
-t;:h-i~- I.i,h&Te seen/Len.et.or: two films:oon,_ st-ress--day over the, last 
si~ ': months·.r: Distr:ess, dayr ,-i- call· it; <because ·I' end _-up": doing 
more ·work -because· I• am try-ing· ,to· take some of it · off the 
workers. 

Lastly, I would like to say that I am very pleased to 
see that our new Director is President of a professional 
organization of social workers. I used to be a professional; I 
used to be a social worker. They.changed our titles, so I have 
no profession. I have no organization to go- to nationally to 
discuss the improvement of our professional standing, because 
we are not professional apy more. We are Case Managers, which 
in itself is a manager; it's a glorified clerical position. 
They gave us a little more mo11:ey with it to impress us, but 
basically we are no longer professionals. Personally, I would 
rather give back some of that money, and maintain the 
professional standards. 

I think they are suffering tremendous_ly at the expense 
of accountability: Everyone agrees that accountability is 
necessary, but there has to be a balance, and lac~ing 
professionalism--

I have one little fantasy to impart, and this, I 
think, _is DYFS management's ideal casework procedure plan. We 
have a little room surrounded by manuals, from one wall to the 
other. A client comes in, sits down at a table, and says to a 
worker, "Good morning." The worker picks out a manual related 
to-that and looks up the response to those words. I think that 
if something like that could be worked out, or if a robot could 
be put into our places, management would be very happy. You 
could just program in what you want to come out. You might 
also want to consider my favorite line: "W~ ought to change 
the name from Department of Human Services to the Department of 
Inhuman Services," because of the type of demand put on 
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caseworkers, and because of the effect it has on clients who do 

not get the~ services:• they _need . 

. My. invalvement~in'·the union,·comes- £-rom .. , ..... --·I ·am ,a shop 

steward in. the- ~union,, and my main ·:concern there :is· hot really 

financial increases, although I would· like that, but my real 

concern is the professionalism which I think is being lost. I 

am hoping that our union will address that as · much as we 

address working conditions. 

Thank _you: 

SENATOR COSTA: May I ask the Senators to hold their 

questions until we have listened to all of them, unless you 

really feel there is something you want to ask. If there is, 

please feel free. The next speaker--

MR. KREVET: Next will be Donna D'Andrea, from the 

Atlantic City District Office, who will speak to us about 

burnout and overload. 

D I A N :I) R E A: I am Donna D 'Andrea. I am a DONN A 

caseworker. 

1980. 

I have worked for the Division since December 1, 

SENATOR COSTA: Could you please speak as loud as you 

can, because not everyone can hear you. 

MS. D'ANDREA: I happen to be leaving the Division in 

December. I have set a resignation date of December 4. 

Basically, it is because of the-- I'm sorry. 

In January, 1987, I happened to be one of the people 

-- I'm sure statistics will show -- who had an exceptionally 

high caseload. I had a caseload of at least 200 children. 

SENATOR COSTA: How many? 

MS. D'ANDREA: Two hundred. I am not exactly sure of 

that count, but it was at least almost that .. There were 

services offered to bring down the caseload. That did not 

count for crises ~hat came up to take away from closing cases 

from January until June of '87. I had to give priority to only 

particular cases, which took away from everything else. 
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In June, 1987, there were special service workers 
hired, who were given a portion of my caseload. I had been 
taken out <-of .,rotation in J·anuary, ·when·· I :-was supposed :to. be. 
getting th-eSEt!,-cases·!closed.1!!~' In, June(1·0£·,. •'!87-T'-'Of cours·e,:·.:whem· 
1t:tie,.-1speciali nservice peopile•_•·-tiook ovett,1 a i portion · of ·my. cases;:• I 

was put back on rotation at the same time. My caseload has 
since gone back up again, which is basically why I have 
submitted by resignation. 

For three· and a half years prior to my resignation, I 
had been attempting to get my caseload down. I covered for 
eight caseworkers who had left the agency. We had no one in my 
unit to cover the cases. At this point in time, I don't see an 
end in sight. I mean, I don't see my caseload getting down to 
38 children. Basically, the demands of the paperwork take away 
from our ability to deliver services to a client. Our demands 
are 90% paperwork; 10% client contact. There is no way you are 
going to help someone when· you have to meet all of these 
paperwork requirements. The needs of the clients are not 
there. I see my job _ currently as a re_f err al 1;,ource. I am 
referring my clients to other places to get the services they 
need. 

I happen to 
degree is in social 
people. I wanted to 

be someone who went to college my 
work ~- to assist people and to help 
be a caseworker, or a counselor. The 

Division no longer, as far as I am concerned, provides a 
service. That is another reason I am resigning. At this point 
in time, I have submitted a medical leave request as well, 
besides my resignation. Because of the demands of the 
paperwork requirements and everything, I am unable to deal with 
the responsibilities of everything at this point in time, to­
even get things up-to-date. 

Since handing in my resignation, I have been informed 
that I am in the process of being disciplined for the fact that 
my casework is not up-to-date -- my paperwork requirements. 
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Again, I just see that the paperwork requirements .. affect 

everyone '·s- ability~ to· deal, with the clients. · I am not the only 

one in ,-my offiee-' who--is ~attempting, to:. get:. a '"medical leave;• te-

get aw~ ·£rom:c the•·stress _of· paperwork.. _;; _ _ •, -· ____ . 

SENATOR COSTA~ Do you write out all your reports? 

Can you dictate them? 

MS. D 'ANDREA: No. We have nothing to dictate with. 

We do not have a clerical staff that even works with a 

Dictaphone. We handwrite everything in our office, unless 

something is being transferred to another district office. 

~hen, of course, most of those reports are typed up. 

SENATOR COSTA: Would you have found it much easier to 

-use a recorder in the car as you were driving along, recording 

your case, so 'you could hand it over to someone else to type? 

MS. D'ANDREA: Oh, sure, because then you could be 

doing two things at one time. 

SENATOR COSTA: But it was not available to you? 

MS. D'ANDREA: No. 

SENATOR COSTA: It's unfortunate. We need good people 

-- good caseworkers. 

office? 
SENATOR AMBROSIO: 

MS. D'ANDREA: Yes. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: 

that office -- if you know? 

You are in the Atlantic County 

How many caseworkers are there in 

MS. D'ANDREA: About 50, but of that 50-- Full staff 

is 70, but we also have at least 10 special service workers. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: How is it that your caseload is so 

high, compared to the average, which from the statistics we see 

is about 30? 
MS. D'ANDREA: Okay, some of it is-- I can even give 

you an example. We are also covering-- For instance, in my 

unit, we are covering . a caseload for a worker who is on 

maternity leave. We were told we were going to get a worker to 
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replace that worker. We have not received one. That worker 
went :on maternity leave.- on July·· 19 .- , We have been covering that 
worker·' g,--:·_;ca:seload,.;l .. but; the :~:,statsc: and (the -computers wi.lk' ~not 
r,eflect::-;it~·::::~We'-·.are · covering., a•:caseload, but it is not being 
reflected · in · any caseworker' s name, ; other. ·than·: the one- :who I i si 

on maternity leave·. So, that person is not there--

SENATOR COSTA: So, you take on another person's job-­
MS. D 'ANDREA: Exactly. We are covering her cases 

while she is gone.- What is unfortunate is, she is actually 
going to be held responsible for what is late, if you read a 
computer sheet, not the worker who is doing--

SENATOR AMBROSIO: The cases are still assigned to her? 
MS. D'ANDREA: Exactly. Even though she is not there, 

and we are doing the work, there is nothing to reflect that we 
are working on her cases. 

SENATOR COSTA: How often do you see your clients 
within a month? Do you see t~em once, twice, or what? 

MS. D 'ANDREA: Samet imes you can only do it as a 
crisis come~ up. 

SENATOR COSTA: So, sometimes you may not see these 
children who you have as .cases for months? 

MS. D'ANDREA: And I have one case on my caseload who 
is only seen every six months. It happens to be an autistic 
child, who we are mandated to provide a service to through the 
Respite Care Program. In order for the family to even get the 
service of the Respite Care Program with Sunny Day, they have 
to be an open DYFS case. It is not abuse; it is not neglect. 
There are no problems in the family, but it has to be an open 
case in order to receive a service for this child, who we have 

· to carry until he is 18 years old. The case sat for two years 
until he could get into the program. We couldn't close the 
case once . the ref err al was made, because then it would become 
ineligible to be on their list. 

60 



SENATOR COSTA: You say you have to refer mostly. 

That means we are contracting out, right?L 

- MS. · D 'ANDREA: Exac,tly, £or ,:counse];.ing,, , = homemake.r 

se,rvices ,~- wnen you can get- them-- .·· At ·'this,: point·,'.· our, off ice 

does ;,not,-; have :-;a".;ccn:litract: with anyone,·' 'but day=~camps, · day-care, 

things like that. 
MR. BOWELL: May I say something else about statistics 

and caseload size? I can increase my caseload size or decrease 

it by about a third any given time that you want me to. We 

have done that, because we have been directed to do various 

things, depending on the moods of the moment. If we have, for 

instance, a family with seven children, and we are only 

actively servicing two of those kids because maybe they are the 

ones who are victims of abuse and neglect, we can either show 

all seven children as being open, or we can just show the two 

we are working with. I have been told to do both. Right now, 

I can't tell you which is in fashion, because I have lost 

track. After 10 years, I have been up and down with both. The 

last thing I remember was that we were to show only those we 

are actively working with. However, if a caseworker goes into 

a family where there is one child being abused, he is going to 

interact with the other children. He is going to talk with 

them about what is going on -- what's happening. 

SENATOR COSTA: So, actually, the numbers--

MR. BOWELL: :i:t is a game-playing thing. You can do 

it in many different ways. 

SENATOR COSTA: --can vary. Really, when we are given 

numbers, we really don't know if those numbers are accurate. 

MR. BOWELL: In our office, we have two aides who do 

not carry cases at all, but they are-counted in our complement 

of workers. They are counted as workers, and they are divided 

into the caseload size. People who are out on leave for. 

various reasons are also counted into the caseload size. They 

don't reflect what the worker actually has. 
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SENATOR COSTA: So-, even w.ith .your .caseworkers, . the 
number is;,~not aceurate •. 
C A R Y :c .u R- A,. T .Q;--"L A:,,- -The, number,_ that, .. is. ~accµrate ... is the 
increasing intake ·,_,statistic,• .. ,. whichi~.'- the•. :,new·, Director - -has 
testified to. Obviously, if intake is going up, a static 
caseload could go up too, just as we have done all along. 

SENATOR COSTA: Are there any other questions? (no 
response) We will go on to the next speaker. 

MR. KREVET·: The next person will be Diane Hobbs. 
Diane is going to speak about a personal experience she had, in 
terms of dicipline: 
D I A N E H O B B S: My name is Diane Hobbs. I have been 
with the Division since 1979. Currently, I work in the 
Elizabeth District Office as a Supervisor. I got that 
appointment in February of this year. Prior to that, I worked 
in Newark South for the past, say, seven years. 

Back in 1984, I applied for a job in the Foster Care 
Unit, and I got it. Prior to that, I had worked in intake for 
five years. When I transferred to the Foster Care Unit, I took 

. . -

an _intake caseload with me. Okay? I had to clean tha:t up and 
also do my foster care duties. During that time, we were low 
on staff, and my intake caseload was kind of high. I got it 
down, and meanwhile I was still doing my foster care duties. 

There were other people in the office who had been 
taken off of ·rotation, out· of the Intake Unit, and they were 
allowed to dispose of their intake cases by only doing one 
job. There were various time frames. With some people, it 
took up to two years. Around the latter part of '84, I found 
out that I may have had a major illness. It was something that. 
my mother died from also. 

SENATOR COSTA: Take yo~r time . . 
MS. HOBBS: I made my supervisor aware of it. During 

that time, they tried to discipline me. I contacted the 
union. I was able to get statements from at least five other 
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people who had been in the same situation that I was in, but 

who· -were· only doing.- one job, and it was al lowed to go on, you 

knaw ;:-: fbr •al!most~ two.-' yea.rs, in some-. cases, li-ke ·I:. said. i .:;They 

were~·-nev.er th;Jt.eatened -,with:, discipline,; hand ,,.they': were,·,,·never-

discipl ined·. .. ....... • - ' ' · '- ,,, •a ... , 117;. ci :..; l ;;_ t j_ :; 

SENATOR COSTA: So, actually, you were doing two 

jobs. You were working as a caseworker, as well as taking care 

of foster care. 
MS. HOBBS: · Yes, and 1 ike I said, they were never 

threatened with discipline, and were never disciplined. I was 

just singled out. All right? After that, I went to the union, 

and DYFS did try to provide supportive services through 

counseling with the Advisory Board. I had a medical problem; I 

didn't have an emotional or a mental problem, so the counseling 

really wasn't necessary. 

SENATOR COSTA: How many cases did you have at the 

time? 
MS. HOBBS: At . that time, I had gotten it down to 

maybe about 13 or 14. That district off ice manager was_ no 

longer with the Division, but I still felt that I had been 

treated unfairly, simply because there were other people who 

had gone through the same procedure that I had, who were only 

doing one job, and they did not have the medical problem I had. 

MR. KREVET: I think modesty also prevents Ms. Hobbs 

from mentioning the fact that, at that time, she would have 

been working, I believe, for seven years, and she had received 

five outstanding ratings and two satisfactories. At the 

hearing, it was also brought out that there were either five or 

seven letters of commendation· from various agencies, and from· 

the Division itself. She was 'clearly an exemplary worker, who 

was undergoing an incredibly trying time medically. There was 

a family history, so obviously there were mitigating 

circumstances, and there was disciplinary treatment -- clearly 

disciplinary treatment -- with five other workers having gone 

through the exact, same routine without having been disciplined. 
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SENATOR COSTA: Is there an appeals process for you? 
.. - MS.· HOBBS•:• .. • No, I couldn't ;appeal it. 
1: ._ •. MR~ , d<REVBTvL yWel 1, .there::T :-was-:,; a,~ f fr:si;-leve-1·, -~1appea·l·; · 

DYFS, ,:in·•:. '.its.: -inimicable . wisdom, , "sustained ' it>•·-· However·;. - we 
would .. be-glad to entertain any attempt to withdraw it from the 
record retroactively. 

SENATOR COSTA: Do you want to continue? 
MS. HOBBS: Yes. After everything was said and done 

-- like a month after I was disciplined -- there was another 
girl in that district office who was taken off rotation. She 
had been taken off shortly after I had initially been taken 
off. What they did with her was, they just took her caseload 
from her entirely.. They didn't even attempt to discipline 
her. I was just si~gled out. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: What was your discipline? 
MS .. HOBBS: An official written reprimand was my 

discipline. 

SENATOR COSTA: Could I get a clarification on what 
you mean when you say "rotation"? 

MS. HOBBS: Okay. When you are on rotation-- If you 
are an intake worker, that is initial response -- PRS. You are 
the person: who goes out first when you receive a call 
pertaining to abuse and neglect. There is a rotation system, 
and you go down. Once you are taken off that, you are no 
longer getting new cases. 

SENATOR COSTA: I am not following that too clearly. 
MR. KREVET: Okay. If, for instance, I was an intake 

worker in Elizabeth-- Different intake units may structure it 
slightly differently, - but basically what it is, is that it is 

your turn to go out 

paper which contains 

put that in your 

investigation. 

·on the response. A 97 is the piece of 
the referral. Now, you receive that, you 
hand, you head out, and you do the. 
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SENATOR COSTA: Is that oz:ie of the cases where you 

rotate from onei,social worker to another?. Is that what it 

means? :.; ,· ' ; - '~- -~ .-. 

, , MR.:_ KREVET:: - No. That' S. the.c£irst-7 - -

SENATOR COSTA: Or, an assignment that rotates? 

MR. KREVET·: It is the first step in the process. It 

is the investigation. In other words, she was in the batter's 

box. 

SENATOR COSTA: Okay. Anything else? 

MS . HOBBS : No . 

SENATOR COSTA: Thank you for coming before us. Next? 

MR. KREVET: Next will be Charles Cohen, who is going 

to speak about some of the procedures in his office in a more 

general sense. 

C H A R L E S C O H E 

Family Service Specialist 

County District Office, 

N: My name is Charles Cohen. I am a 

II, working out of the Suburban Essex 

located in East Orange, New Jersey. 

For the past close to five or six years, I have been the shop 

steward representing the professional unit out of that district 

office. I will give a brief overview as to my observations of 

the agency's overall disciplinary policy and accountability, 

what I witness, and what the manifestations are of this pol icy 

in my local office. 

I would like to start off by stating that the 

Division, over the past four years, upon the promulgation of 

the admission statement, has, in fact, fostered a high degree 

of accountability in the community and among its work force in 

combating child abuse and neglect. On the positive side, this 

accountability has heightened community awareness, and there 

have been some improvements in community resources, and some 

improvements in employee training. 

On the negative side, in fostering this 

accountability, the Division has often engaged in a harsh, if 

not reactionary, get-tough approach in both the community and 
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..... . , 
' . 

among the work force. In reaction to community outrage and 
indignation generated by accounts of the more horrid incidents 
of abuse and neglect, the _get-tough approach, with the court 
order, has caused both excessive and needless disruption in 
family life. As a result, a basic tenet of social work, namely 
that dysfunctional families are in need of treatment and 
rehabilitation, if often forsaken. 

In its get-tough approach with its work force, which 
is the focus of my testimony, Division management has fully 
equated "accountability with disciplinary action." As a 
result, the effective use of employee evaluation, employee 
counseling, and seeing to it that the lines of communication 
between worker and supervisor are open, are forsaken. The 
Division, as a result, forsakes professional personnel 
practices in general. 

At DYFS, the most comprehensive discussions between 
workers, supervisors, and management on controversial cases, 
take place in disciplinary hearings. This often occurs after 
tedious hindsight in a game of Monday night quarterbacking by 
local and regional management. This excessive dependence upon 
disciplinary action, ·in turn has become a crutch for 
ineffectual management, and has made the agency a sanctuary for 
martinets. This policy does not recognize the accountability 
the Division forsakes when workers have to supervise. close to 
50 families and supervisors are responsible for 
as has been the case at times around 1982-' 83. 
further explains why Local 1037 CWA, out of 

500 children, 
This policy 

northern New 
Jersey, now handles more disciplinary appeals from DYFS than 
from any other State agency, and why the relationship between 

the union and DYFS has soured. 

Let me share with you my observations and experiences 
as a shop steward in the SUburban Essex County District Office, 
located in the metropolitan region headquartered in Newark, 
where discipline has flourished. One instance out of my office 
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three years ago best reflects the failure of effective employee 

evaluation~-- -- Here, - an' employee with _ an ongoing _ .hi story·- of­

personnel .problems,;-•within the same: day,. within .the same hour,_ 
. 

rec·e-ived'"'both· a notice·of termination and- a- satisfactory· annual 

performance rating·. -

In a case two years ago involving an employee with an 

attendance problem, the district off ice manager was admonished 

by the departmental hearing officer for failing to refer this 

worker to the Employee Advisory Service for counseling. The 

district office manager, a martinet of the supervisor, bent on 

disciplining this worker, ordered the employee to return back 

to the job, regardless of whether she had a doctor ' s note or 

not, after she stayed off the job beyond an approved medical 

leave. The supervi_sor and district office manager, upon her 

eventual return -- the afternoon of her scheduled day back -­

wrote her up for the time she used in the morning to confirm 

her medical clearance with her doctor. She was written up 

again later that week, after she was denied leave to go to an 

administrative hea~ing on her diabetic son's SSI claims. She 

went anyhow, as a dutiful parent would normally do. 

In another instance, pointing to the failure of an 

employee evaluation, one employee who had consistently been 

behind in client contact during his running record for two 

years through two supervisors, continued to receive 

satisfactory annual ratings. But, two weeks before his 

resignation, he received a five-day suspension for excessive 

delay. 
As for the · insidious game of Monday night 

quarterbacking that is played, last year there was an employee 

and a supervisor· who experienced the tragedy of having an 

infant under supervision die of SIDS. This case came under the 

scrutiny of the regional office, which concurred w~th medical 

science, remarkably, that there was no relationship betweeµ the 

SIDS death and the casework. However, having engaged in 
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tedious hindsight, regional management trumped up charges of 

ineff.i.ciency. -Thi.s worker_j' i_n ---fact~ - had· problems in· -locating 

_1;his :conti:quaI1y"indigent: •family;-; .,and -:had tro~le ··ensu:id.ng 1,that 

the · infant. · and siblings·= go:t· ··pediatriC?··· eazre. 

extensively documented exhaustive involvement 

But, this-· wo,rker 

with extended 

family members to ensure proper care and supervision, 

accordance with DYFS' omission statement. 

This extensive documentation that this worker did 

in 

54 pages of a running record, the most I have ever seen of a 

worker's exhaustive casework efforts -- had its most practical 

use as State's evidence against this office. 

In another instance -- which George alluded to before 

-- after a hospital dropped a 72-hour hold, and a child was 

discharged when four doctors could not substantiate abuse, the 

Monday night quarterback second guessed .the supervisor's 

actions in not filing a court complaint seeking custody of the 

child. The supervisor received an official reprimand. The 

facts that were represented from the regional off ice concerned 

about_ the hospital's actions, stated in a conference that the 

supervisor acted properly, but this did not mitigate the 

discipline. Apparently, the district office manager had 

omitted mention of this conference in the request for 

discipline. 
Incidentally, when the worker on this case testified 

at her supervisor's hearing to the effect that there was this 
conference with the representative from the regional office, 

she faced a barrage of intimidation from the district office 

manager who was prosecuting the case, as if she were the one 

facing the disciplinary charges. As George indicated, in this 

case reason prevailed, and the discipline was dropped. 

SENATOR COSTA: May I ask you something at this point? 

MR. COHEN: Sure. 

SENATOR COSTA: Is it your local supervisor you are 

speaking of, or is it someone higher up in the Division of 

Youth and Family Services' office of the State? 
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MR. COHEN: As the chain of supervision goes in a 

request: _for discipline, disciplinary , . action. is • discussed 

betw.een.·_ the. locaL.· district office manager,· and - the .. assistant 

regiona1l2 • administr•atoir .and:· reg,iona1· supervisor. ; ,. Sometimes. the 

D:.O,:,•manager :...--•the; district. office manager,'°-'•.;... ..... wfll take the 

initiative; sometimes the regional office will take the 

initiative, and will tell the district office manager to send 

the documentation. It is reviewed by the DYFS Office of 

Employee Relations to see whether there is "just cause" for 

discipline and to proceed with--

SENATOR COSTA: Just let me get a picture of this 

now. It could be that someone is in charge in a local office-­

MR. COHEN: Right. 

SENATOR COSTA: --and that is his manner of handling 

people. Do you have any option of letting someone above that 

know -- an appeal -- that this one supervisor is not working 

properly with the workers? You can create a feeling in an 

office where everyone is unhappy. 

MR. KREVET: May I just jump in for a second? There 

is an appeals process commensurate with the charge. If it is 

an official reprimand, you have one crack at him. You have 

what they call a "departmental hearing." Beyond that, if it is 

any other minor discipline, up to and including five days, 

there is a departmental hearing, and then what they call a 

"joint union/management panel," which is a kind of arbitrary--

SENATOR COSTA: Are you speaking of just one 

individual who is doing this to all of the employees? 

MR. COHEN: Unfortunately, I think this is general 

policy, from my observations in my office, and from what I know 

of procedures in other offices. 

SENATOR COSTA: In other offices? 

MR. COHEN: Right. There is basically· no discussion 

es place. 
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SENATOR COSTA~ I'm sure,,, Mr.-.. ,~Waldman -.would,,. be 
int~rested .. to know ·-that the. people, who. are, supervis-ing· a., group. 
~ ... ' · how they~ :react.; : .. because .. that .. ma-kes . a,_":whoie-: wor-Id .. of 
d:tffererlce :in,· '.whether you are going . to get workers wha- are: 
happy on the job, who feel they are being treated right, and 
who will be able to do their job right. If the top is going to 
treat everyone ill, it sort o·f permeates. Everybody gets 
excited; everybody gets angry. They are all down, and the 
whole thing falls apart. I am sure this is an eye-opener for 
him. I am glad we have you here to discuss this. 

MR. COHEN: I would like to continue. 

SENATOR COSTA: Go ahead. 

MR. COHEN: Okay. I, too, have felt the passing 
attack of the Monday night quarterbacks . Last October, after 
securing an agreement from an abusive father and a mother to 
have a child placed with relatives, the father lied about this 
child's placement. When I discovered, six working days, two 
calendar weeks, two more crises, and 30 families later, that 
the child was back in his custody, I dutifully notified the_ 
liaison to the Deputy Attorney General and my supervisor that I 
had discovered that this child was back home. Nonetheless, the 
child remained with the abusive father for another three weeks, 
with the Division's full knowledge. In hindsight, I was made 
culpable for the father's lying for the initial two weeks, and 
was charged with endangering the child's welfare. As I stated, 
the State knowingly allowed the child to remain with this 
abusive father for another three weeks. 

SENATOR COSTA: Did anyone let you know that he was 
back? It was your case? 

MR. COHEN: Right. 

SENATOR COSTA: And no one let you know that he was 
pack with the father, or did you know about it? 

MR. COHEN: The father lied. No one knew, 
checked with the custodian who was named as the 
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caretaker, who said, "This kid was never here." I found out 

the .father- had lied.·,. ·c _ 

hrn.v SENATOR;::;COSTA: ,,: ·This : is, ~what ,we, discussed before ~about: 

the~,--nencommunica-tioa.- between-.:: one:,. gover~antal ·'::agency· and, 

another. Correct? , · ~· - •···- · ,,_.., , ,-. · . : -,; , ,-. ,- · · ·· -

MR. COHEN: ·Yes. By the way, as I touched on before, 

I was written up on this matter, without being conf idenced as 

to my actions or inactions on this matter. Incidentally, at 

the same time, I received a promotion, becoming a Family 

Service Specialist ·11, within a four-month working test period, 

when the norm is about six months. 

In sum, DYFS fails to realize that hindsight is always 

20/20, but that hindsight is not employed when one is involved 

in handling a crisis situation. 

I would like to go on to state that advocating as an 

effective shop steward in this atmosphere has been difficult, 

to say the least. Besides contending with disciplinary actions 

on their merits, I and the local unions had to also contend 

with disciplinary actions on procedural matters. Despite 

contractual provisions that workers being disciplined are to be 

given documentation being used against them upon their request, 

workers in my office have had to wait for over one month to get 

this information from the office manager. 

The supervisor on the issue of the hospital hold was 

charged 11 months after the incident, in the face of an 

internal memo from Program Coordinator Ted Joseph, who is 

sitting in back of me. That delay in timely discipline is 

being viewed as acquiescence by the courts. The hearing itself 

was scheduled three months from when the charges were 

preferred, when the union contract stipulates that a hearing 

has to be scheduled within 20 days of that receipt. 

When the employee, suspended within two weeks 

resignation, requested. that I, as his shop steward, 

receipt of the documentation being used against him, 
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rebuffed by the DYFS Office of Employee Relations, and it took 
this incident._,_ citation in an unfair labor practice filed with 
the Public; Empl-oyee: Relations · Commissien i and -· resolu'tiow in ,;a 

consent_, decree to ·resolve- the matte·:l!.. , ;,·, · .. -" " - · ·· 

Art:hough this d~d not involve discipline per se, I had 
to advocate for an employee after the local manager engaged in 
a serious breach of confidentiality, by disseminating a 
critical quality assurance report which mentioned his workers 
by name among the office's entire supervisory and support 
staff. My advocacy as a shop steward has had its personal cost 
to me. As such, my advocacy, I believe, as been perceived as a 
threat by the local manager. 

My district manager has gone so far as to set up a 
code of conduct for me as a shop steward, conduct which, for 
the most part, no other worker in the off ice is accountable 
for. Last June~ after years of workers getting on the office's 
public address system to announce the arrival of the coffee 
truck, or the winner of the 50/50 lottery -- gambling being 
illegal on State premises -- I received a written warning for 
announcing the informational picketi~g in front of the district 
office, during the union's contract mobilization. It took the 
picketing of the DYFS Centra_l Off ice during my grievance 
hearing to get the agency to back down. 

SENATOR COSTA: Mr. Cohen? 
MR. COHEN: Yes? 

SENATOR COSTA: You have given us a lot, but in the 
interest of time, because we have so many other people to 
listen to, is there anything else other than those cases you 
are stipulating? We have gotten the general idea of what has 
been happening. 

MR. COHEN: I just want to say that the patt~rn 
continues. 

SENATOR COSTA: The pattern is over and over again. 
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MR. COHEN,: . If l ,may- go on, "once: again,·. in--.my office, 

there ; ,is,, ·,no policy.,. ,restricting · exit-~·-a:nd: .. egress· :out~---: of.-' ~-a: 

su-perv.i,sor,' s c,,,o£f,i-ee,, ,,short, . of - going.: .. into.·:'_ the· - · superviso·r' s· 

desk- ...... ~. In• fact.-~-. . ~ -.. _-.. -. •-: -- . _ .. _ -

SENATOR COSTA: I do have to limit you, at this .point. 

MR. COHEN: Okay. 

SENATOR COSTA: We have . quite a roster . I was told 

that each one would speak no more than three to five minutes. 

MR. COHEN: Okay. I will conc.lude by saying--

SENATOR COSTA: I think you have cone 1 uded. May we 

have the next speaker, please? 

MR. KREVET: Next will be Alice Stinson, from Atlantic 

City, who is going to speak about the impact on the clerical 

staff. 
AL ICE STINSON: I am Alice Stinson. 

SENATOR COSTA: Could you please get close to the 

microphone, and try to speak loudly so people can hear you? I 

would appreciate it if you would keep it short, because we have 

had six people now from your group speaking already. How many 

more do you have? 
MR. KREVET: Two. 

SENATOR COSTA: I really would appreciate it if you-­

In fact, we are not going to take a lunch break. Since there 

are so many people, you wi 11 see us walking in and out here, 

but we are just going to continue, so we can get to hear 

everyone. If anything has already been said, I would 

appreciate it if you would not say it again. All right? 

MS. STINSON: My name is Alice Stinson. I am a 

Principal Clerk for the Division of Youth and Family Services 

in Atlantic City. I have been employed there since 1979, and I 

have enjoyed my job and the people I work with. 

However, since I have been with the agency, the 

demands on the clerical staff have increased about three 

times. As you know, there was a bill passed in the '70s, which 

73 



permitted the Division to remove children at risk. Work for 

clerical . personnel .,increased in accordance"· with-_ ·_the children 

1:eIJ1oved.-.. _,. We had ·.to_ prepare cl'osiµg checks· and:· arra~_ge foster 

care. Whe:n-.. the new SIS system was introduced in 1980, all of 

the availab'le:'e-a.ses::',that; weret,.open-- at: the °'time ,were, =c::-on.verted 

to the SIS system. The paperwork has been tremendous, but no 

new clerks have been hired. 

In 1981, when the Legislature enacted the Child 

_Placement Review Act, requiring the local board to review the 

children in our home placement every six months, extensive 

reports were required. They must be redone every six months, 

and no new clerks have been hired. 

Our client population in Atlantic City has steadily 

increased over the last few years. The clerks are anxious to 

help the social workers with their paperwork. We have been 

trained on PCs and word processors. Recently,- we went back to 

dictating machines. We had done that in the past. It had been 

stopped because no new clerks had been hired. People in our 

office who are on maternity leave, or leave for other. reasons, 

have not been replaced. We have always been short-handed. 

There is just so much we can do. We try to do the best we can. 

Recently, with this mandated case ~eduction, special 

workers were hired. The same clerks who have been there were 
required to perform work for them also. I believe we are 

supposed to have a ratio of one clerk for five workers. The 

special workers are not included in that ratio, and our staff 

has not increased at all. Therefore, we are not always able to 

give the social workers the support they require. 

SENATOR COSTA: I see. In other words, al though the 

caseworkers have increased, the people who do the typing have 

not . Thank you. 

May we have the next speaker, please?. 

MR. KREVET: Our next speaker will be Gary Curatola, 

from Asbury Park. 
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MR. CURATOLA: The first statement - I .would .like .to 

make • -_is~ that · the presentation that.· was- ·:maae•_ ;by;_:~he'. :;Deputy 

C?emmissd.oner-' and~ by• cur-::.n-ew :Director·/ ··highlighting~ what.::- .they 

s.ee·.-as the,:problems in'DYFs,· I have tobasically·agr·ee with· .. T 

am •·glad to see that WEfall agree on what the problems are. 

I, as a Casework Supervisor in the Asbury Park 

District Office, have been employed by DYFS for · 17 years. I 

think I have a rather unique view of how DYFS operates, because 

I also do the after-hours Special Response Unit work. I have 

gone out on literally over a thousand cases in my DYFS career, 

and I think I have seen what DYFS does from all angles. 

Basically, what DYFS has done is present a mission 

statement in the past few years that is an undoable job for 

DYFS caseworkers. It_ is too encompassing. It says basically 

that we are supposed to do everything for everybody, and if we 

can't do it directly, network it with somebody -- find somebody 

to do it with. Unfortunately, we have de-networked iri the 

past, not added networking. In Monmouth County, we recently 

had a merged situation with the _county welfare agency there, 

where county welfare workers were doing. a DYFS job. - We have, 

in fact, cut down on duplication of services to clients. Since 

the demerge, they are going back to a DYFS office. We have 

less staff in the Asbury Park off ice than we did when we were 

in the merged situation. The caseload is higher. 

As has been testified to by management, there are 

increases in intake statistics. That is the statistic you 

really have to look at, if you want to look at what kind of 

case flow DYFS is working with, Obviously, a static case count· 

can be manipulated, and often is, as has previously been 

testified to. We can manage that static number in any number 

of diff~rent ways, from what you put into the computer to what 

you actually identify as a service. I, as a casework 

supervisor, supervise the supervisors supervising the workers. 

My main job is to make sure that all of the cases that are 
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under supervision .in the Asbury Park office need to be serviced 

by·.DYFS-~ ·· I .. doil;'·t want ca-ses there that , can be handled:..· by 

anothe.r. '.office:.:.·_:-_ However, we sometimes ha:ve,"itio,c-lose· c•a'ses, •and· 

as our manu_al. ·:states:,-· recidivism is· -·not--: to· :oe· -looked-,~ at . as 

failure. I don't think· necessarily that· it --:is·;·,·,but, · at any 

given time, if we are· down staff, like we are now-- We have 

five vacancies out of 28. Two of our allocated 28 positions 

are case aides who have been long-time employees with the 

Division. We can't inhumanly fire them, but they are counted 

as management as social workers. They cannot· carry caseloads. 

They cannot do protective services. But management says that 

that is two social workers we have in our off ice. 

have them. 

We have had to increase intake lately. 

We don't 

We didn't 

increase our intake staff. We have five units in Asbury Park. 

There used to be one Intake Unit and four Generic Units. 

Because of the manipulation of caseload sizes the 

ever-i~creasing intake statistics -- but the need to decrease 

our static count with fewer bodies, we now have two Intake 

Units and three Generic Units~ The three Generic Units right 

now are supposed to -have 18 bodies in them. We only have 15 

bodies in them. We are down two in intake. We are down five 

in the office. 

The average generic caseload is still around 50 kids 
in the Asbury Park office. After it gets out of intake, after 

the initial response, it is passed on to a worker for continued 

DYFS services. We are still averaging about 50 kids per 

worker, although the computer's snapshot will show Asbury Park 

with 800 kids and 28 positions, and that will come out to a 

nice 32 or 33. That is not the fact. 

SENATOR COSTA: Why don't you have a full complement 

of people? 

MR. CURATOLA: It took us five months to clear one 

worker's position to the union who went on leave, to get what 

76 



they call an "X" position. It took five months. We finally 

got the okay, I think·a week and a·half ago. . .... --

SENATOR 'COSTA·:- If the. position .... was .... there,,, why 

couldn'.'t;·you fil-lr·it,-immed-iately?··• ,::- ····"- t- '>~" 1:,·:-:~---· 

.= :-, , , , .r ~. MRi CURATOL11r:, ,- ::Position : numbets;, donr' t , 0 clea1?,.. through' 

the personnel system. That is. what I am told. The actual 

vacant bodies are there for months. We have had one vacancy 

for over a year, because the only names we have been given to 

fill the vacancies~- we· get resumes sent to us by our regional 

personnel off ice, people responding to ads in the newspaper. 

We don't get responses f ram anyone on the Ci vi 1 Service 1 i st . 

'.!'hey won't work in.Asbury Park. Asbury Park is not a desirable 

area for people to work in, and at the rate of $11 ·an hour --. 
which is what they are paying some of our staff as hourly 

workers-- You talked about what the starting salary was,· and 

management said, "$20, ooo a year." Eleven dollars an hour does 

not come out to $20,000 a year. They expect us to have people 

working for $11 an hour, with no benefits, and no overtime. 

So, when they are there seven hours pe;r day-- When t:t:iey put in 

seven hours, they have to leave. If they are in the middle of 

a crisis, they don't get paid overtime for it. 

SENATOR COSTA: Why are there no benefits? Aren't you 

with a State organization? 

MR. CURATOLA: Hourly employees means that they get 

paid $11 an hour. They do not get any other benefits, no time 

off, no sick time, no vacation time. That is what we are told 

by our management and by our personnel office. I was told that 

just yesterday when I interviewed someon.e from an existing 

Civil Service list. This person is ranked twentieth on the 

list. I was told that I could not hire this person as a 

provisional with full salary and benefits; that I have to hire 

him as a special. This person is working right now in another 

State agency. He does not want to leave that job with his 

benefits, to come to work for DYFS with no benefits, at $11 an 
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hour, even though he is on _ the existing • list 0 that. - is 
promulgated ~right -riow. · Personnel can.'.:.t move it. 
G W E N ...::Jt.'·1t· M s ;-T R o N G:.' senato:r;:. Costa.,. af:-t.e:r Mr,,,. Curato,la 
ftn-is'hes with'"·hts ·statement, I have like a minute and a half 
presentation, which will address some of your concerns about 
why these positions are not opening, and why we have these 
vacancies. 

SENATOR COSTA: Fine. We will get to you. Thank you. 
MR. CURATOLA: -I think people have gone over most of 

the problems. I would like to offer a few suggestions on 
things that I have seen from my 1 7 years experience. Number 
one, you probably need to create another division. The 
Division of Youth and F-amily Services is too big, too 
all-encompassing. There is a real big difference between 
providing direct protective services regarding kids who are 
abused and neglected, as opposed to the kinds of other cases 
that were mentioned -- the throwaway kids. Our caseloads-- We 
get a lot of parents calling up and saying, "I don't want my 
kid any more. " We' re talkip.g about a. 15-year-:--old kid. They 
had this kid in their family for 15 years. Now the 15 year old 
decides to go out until midnight, has a boyfriend, smokes, 
whatever, and the parent calls DYFS, and says, "I don't want my 
kid. II 

We are not allowed to respond to that parent. DYFS 
management, and the courts, I might add, look at that as a kid 
in need of protection. It probably is a kid in need of 
protection, but the services you need -- both the expertise of 
the worker and the res~urces you need to deal with that -- are 
quite different from working with the abused and neglected 
kids, the smaller kids. 

I really feel that right now we need more expertise in 
that kind of a division. There is also the adoption services 
-- kids in foster care who aren't ·really being abused and 
neglected. 
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Another suggestion I would make and you have 

~•I-ready .. -kind . of touched· on -it with the -paperwork problems-­

Somebody mehtioned 901 <papei.wor-k"-;'. ;];10% f ieldi .wo:rrk ., .·I•. would. -say 

it·• is"-·more~-!fike· 0 75%; -paperwork~ but in, :some offices-=!:' can :see 

where it-might be that·;· You·made some suggestions:·:~~t por't·a.b-la 

Dictaphones, 

Park office. 

dictating· machines. We have one in the Asbury 

We have no clerical people who would be able to 

transcribe it, however, · into the case records. We need more 

clerical staff. We also·need computer technicians, which would 

relieve a lot of the computer work the caseworke~s have to put 

up with now. As it is now, a DYFS caseworker had a caseload o·f 

40 or 50 kids, representing maybe 18 or 20 families. They have 

to go out and do continued monthly MPRs and all the casework 

that is needed to handle all the descriptions you have heard 

about of abused and neglected kids. 

They_ have to go out and do the field work. They have 

to come back into the office, write up the written paperwork, 

do all of the written reports, and then, on top of that, they 

have to translate i.t into computer la_nguage to g~t it into the 

computer. The only earthly good it does to the DYFS 

caseworkers -- the people in the district off ices-- The one 

good thing the computer does is, when we get a referral, we can 

look it up immediately to see if the case is known somewhere in 

the State. That is helpful. The. rest of the stuff in the 

computer is a management tool, 

personally, on a daily basis, 
to which I can attest. I, 

get printouts on everything. 

They are in love with their printouts. They have printouts 

showing left-handed, eight-year-old, blond-haired, blue-eyed 

kids, I think. In reality, we have printouts for kids ·who are 

in placement over "X" amount of months. We have printouts for 

forms that are not completed. A worker and DYFS management in 

a district off ice-- We have to spend a lot of time just to 

fill out forms correctly, just to answer the computer. In 

fact, it gets so bad that the computer doesn't even compute if 

you don't have all the forms filled out. 
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So, caseworkers are spending a lot of time doing 
paperwork and computer work. -,·· If we--=- h-ag.·c., compu'ti_er -. input 

technicians.,.~. where .a... :,D¥]:'S. social -worker:-~; could·,; simply· Y.say :0 .in· 

English,.,.ta~ a ·i computerp:,person, .,.~h-is i.·,is--·what.:.:..you:, :need to• put . 

into s-:-the c0mpllte0li'7 ",_ and let··them·a.o ::it:,~ r:,tnink ~that would ·go ··a­

long way toward helping.staff morale. 

In general, what I see is a deep professionalization 

at the DYFS level. That is basically the result of 

accountability. This is· the last thing I would like to touch 

on. I think the amount of accountability that DYFS 

administration requires from each worker and supervisor in the 

district off ices, in terms of being told not only what to do, 

but how to do it, when to do it, and the forms to do it--. 
There is no creativity_ allowed at all at the local level. We 

have developed several forms at the local level that were 

working qu~te well, but only months later we had the regional 

office or the central office come along with the form they 

wanted to see standardized and used throughout the State. It 

i~ not as good as the one we were using, but we are forced to 

use it. We still have to use our old stuff. We still have to 

use manual handwritten records to keep track of cases, because 

at any given time the cc;>mputer picture they take is never 

accurate. 
I am here basically to entertain any questions you 

might have, or that you have asked, because I feel that at the 

direct service level, I would be able to answer them. 
SENATOR COSTA: I appreciate what you have said. It 

has been very instructive. I know that with Director Waldman 

here, he will take what you said into consideration, and we 

·will prod him a little bit. Yes? 

SENATOR BROWN: I just have . a quick question, as far 

as inputting the information. I have been very much impressed 

with how much members of the press go around with their 

portable computers, and it just seems to me-- Obviously, one 
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does not know how expensive they are, and so._ on._ But" . do 

almost·.-all .-of: you•;,.,as part ,of the, jolr.-rel0ated-··requirements; 

'type,?• .... :• .. ••,!\.J/ VV'llr;;:l_f"= T_1 ' ''!I': ,:, •• :~_:t.1: ;r,i)ii,;_~•; •.,'\••:=~ •••••~ • •• 

---_,-··-·· MR ... CURATOLA: pa .. we type __ ..: the worker.s? NoA.- Ple~se 

don't make us do that. 

SENATOR COSTA: That's why they need clerical workers. 

SENATOR BROWN: We talk about how times are changing 

out there, and I think you will find many-- I think a lot of 

us, years ago, used to think that that was sort of a degrading 

question to ask, but I think you will find nowadays that 

everybody has a relationship with a PC. It just seems to me 

that as times change, and so on, certainly rather than 

transmitting the information 1000 times, you know, if all of us 

could learn how to-- I even went back to Kean College to try 

to understand how--

MR. CURATOLA: The problem, I think, with that, is 

that trained social workers might not only have a slight 

aversion to doing that, but they are. still going to be spending 

more time working with the computer -- time they could be using 

working with the clients. If we had people who wanted to work 

with the computer employed to work with the computer and take 

the information from the professional workers, I believe that 

system would-work out a lot better. 

SENATOR BROWN: My reaction to that, frankly, coming 

to you as someone who serves on -the Finance Committee, is that 

it is just one more layer of bureaucracy. I would much rather 

have you able to go directly into a recorder, or directly into 

a computer. But let's not build on that. 

MR. KREVET: There are title considerations, also. 

You know that is an additional skill, which would require more 

pay. 
MR. CURATOLA: Yeah, definitely. 

SENATOR COSTA: We realize that. 

name, please? 
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MS . ARMSTRONG: My name is Gwen Armstrong. I am a 

DYFS worker ,from• the. Asbury Park_ District Office~ .on· union 

leave·. You have now heaz:d a myriad of reasons why there 

continuesi•i,to ,~:be·,21ow · morale:· and·. a cont-inuing· · massN-.exodus of 

workers from-DYFS/'"-resulting in understaffing. I would like to 

cite a major contributing factor, which is the personnel 

management information system, commonly known as PMIS. This 

computer system was installed, and it was to be able to address 

the many complex personnel issues in DYFS, in an expeditious 

and systematic manner. 

Sadly, :what we have discovered is a system unable to 

begin to address the multitudinous needs of the employees of 

DYFS, and as a result of the malfunctioning of this system, it 

is unable to release X and Y positions. Now, the significance 

of this, is that if you are unable to release X and Y positions 

of workers who are on maternity leave, union leave, or leave of 

absence, for whatever reason, you are not· able to hire and 

bring in new social workers at the provisional status level. 

Many workers who have received career ladder positions 

and are serving in 

commensurate with 

Naturally, if they 

these positions, have not received salaries 

these positions, nor retroactive · pay. 

haven't received the salary, they haven't 

received their retroactive pay. 

the statement that the career 
place. They are in place, but 

That statement is to address 

ladder positions have been in 
none of the people-- Some of 

the people have received money, but there are many people who, 

for over a year now, have not received their commensurate 

salaries with their promotions. These things are al 1 

attributed to this PMIS system, which is not functioning 

properly for all employees. 

The PMIS system is accountable to management. Even 

though memos, letters, and phone calls have been made to 

various DYFS personnel . staff, · PMIS continues to malfunction. 

It is our suspicion that the malfunctioning of this system may 
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be correlated with the computer fiasco within the Pivision of 

Moto,r -Vehicles._,_ It·- -is ---no . small wonder : that:. low .. · mor-ale 

per-me.ates·D¥FS1.workers. ,-,> •: : ,,-·. · ·.,,~ _ · :. , ___ ,, .. _ 

, ·.- .,· .. - · "·· we, __ -appeal !.to you for any· assistance ;or- support ·you cart 

give·us· in reso·lving this ·issue. 
SENATOR COSTA: Are you a social worker also? Do you 

work in the field? 
MS. ARMSTRONG: Yes. I am a generic, which is 

different from--
SENATOR COSTA: What is generic, in this instance? 

MS. ARMSTRONG: A generic worker is a worker who works 

directly with the family after the problem has been identified. 

SENATOR COSTA: I see. You know, it ' s so simple. I 

hate to say this, but why can't each county -- each DYFS group 

of social workers -- hire just one more person to be there to 

take over when someone is out on maternity leave or vacation? 

Is that too simple? 
MR. JOSEPH (speaking from audience): It's too simple 

for PMIS. 
MR. CURATOLA: It's not too simple for DYFS. 

SENATOR COSTA: I mean, instead of loading them, when 

_they already have a load, just get one person who can· pinch-hit. 

MR. JOSEPH: In fairness to (indiscernible), it has 

taken over a year and a half to straighten out what is known as 

an XY position with the Department of Personnel, and that is 

not particularly--
SENATOR COSTA: 

being here. 
you. 

That's it, 
Well, 

right? 
I want to thank you all for 

( affirmative response) Thank 

I would now like to call Joyce Munkacsi, Governor's 

Task Force on Child Abuse ~nd Neglect. Then we wi 11 go on to 

the list of witnesses. 
SENATOR AMBROSIO: Madam Chairman, before you go on, I 

would 1 ike to thank al 1 of the workers. They have al 1 taken 
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time off. - They: . have .either taken vacation days, or whatever, 

t·o--be hlfr8',td testify., and 1:::want to· than-k~-them;all for. .coming .. 

,_ . .,.,-,., -- -S~TOR:: COSTA: George, I did . want to ask one more 

question.,,._ I - understand the ·elllPloyees •-,- feelings:·,now -_--· ·, the­

social workers -- but what is your feeling on the clientele -­

the children you are serving? 

MR. KREVET ( speaking away f ram 

obviously, they are our paramount concern. 

focus of trying to establish caseload caps. 

microphone): Well, 

That is exactly the 

Quite frankly, the 

situation is a no-move situation. Either caseloads will remain 

at a stable level, in which case the caps will be 

inconsequential -- but they will be there -- or the caseloads 

will spiral, in which case there is an obvious need for 

caseload caps. So, our concern, obviously, is that the workers 

all service the clientele. 

SENATOR COSTA: Thank you very much. Ms. Munkacsi? 

J O Y C E E. M U N K A C S I, E S Q.: Thank you, Senator 

Costa. I believe it is afternoon, so good afternoon Senator 

Brown, Senator DiFrancesco, Senator Ambrosio, and staff. Thank 

you for this opportunity to testify before- you concerning an 

agency that I have worked with, fought with, and had an intense 

professional and personal relationship with over the years, 

both in my capacity as an Assistant Prosecutor in Middlesex 

County for 17 years, which I am Chief of the Sex Crime and 

Child Abuse Units, and also as Co-Chair with Commissioner Drew 

Altman of Governor Kean's Task Force on Child Abuse and Neglect 

for the past four years. 
I am known both in my county and without , as someone 

who publicly and privately speaks out on behalf -of DYFS 

workers. They are some of the brightest, most dedicated people 

I know in public . service. They are professionals in every 

sense of the word, no matter what they call them. They work 

hard at an impossible job, suffer great stresses, and they 

deserve whatever _help this Committee, DYFS management, and, 

indeed, the public can give them. 
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In all candor, I have listened very carefully to what 

the .workers have just said previous to my coming up here; and I 

h;ave heard.::nothing ·-new;; r=·-hav~ heard·' these complaints over ·:the · 

years::· :·: I applaud--·· the:, ne~,,- · ini~iat:ives that! , D~S r~management 

under: Tomr kBla~ner ;;,: and:,.now. '. Bi·ll'. Waldman:, uhast1c-unde"r.takeh· to 

increase supports to the caseworker. In particular, I have 

personally seen the morale of Middlesex County DYFS workers 

improve when they recently moved from crowded, dirty offices in 

New Brunswick to a new facility in Edison. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: May I interrupt you? So,· things 

are better than they were before? Didn't you just say that? 

MS. MUNKACSI: A qualified yes. Yes, I think they--

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Didn't the other people 

basically say that, but with a lot of--

MS. MUNKACSI: . Yes. They are saying basically, 

Senator DiFrancesco, "We have problems, but it is better in 

some areas." The DYFS workers feel that their problems are not 

being addressed in other areas. I have found, certainly, DYFS 

management to be very, very sincere in att~cking the problem. 

I work with both J:?YFS management and the average DYFS ··worker. 

I may go a little far afield from my prepared remarks--

SENATOR COSTA: I would appreciate it if you could 

summarize your remarks, rather than read them al 1, because of 

all of the people we have here. 
MS. MUNKACSI: Okay. 
SENATOR COSTA: And then take questions instead. 

MS. MUNKACSI: I can certainly appreciate that. I 

think what you want to know, and what this Committee wants to 

know is, has the situation improved since 1984, when there was 

a massive influx of money into the system, because you hoped it 

would improve? I think it has improved. As I ~aid to Senator 

DiFrancesco, a qualified yes, I think so. Certainly the 

caseload has decreased. I have found that in our county, and 

from what I hear from DYE'S workers throughout the State. 
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Although the numbers vary, you can shift cases. around-; and -you 

can ·.shift.;. numbers . ., .around. ;._" •It·, -depends·/ on~:::whet~er:~; you.; .. are 

work·ing-:witbtfa,mi,lies. m:: whether :you are-:- working;-.wi th, chi-ldren ;;~ 

,_,_:__-_ • If you· ·s·ay the average DYFS' ·worker's case.load- i$- -now 

40 · ca_ses, I still think that is .way, way too high. In 

Middlesex County, where we have three district offices, we have 

a higher caselo·ad. I believe in the New Brunswick office, the 

ratio is one caseworker to 49 children. In the ideal world, 

the caseload, in my opinion, would be half of that. And I am 

not sure how to accomplish that, other than by money, money, 

money. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: More money, right, to hire more 

people? 

MS. MUNKACSI: Money, money, money. Insofar as the 

problems of DYFS workers containing paperwork, I, personally, 

as an Assistant Prosecutor, am grateful for the detailed 

reports I get from DYFS. I work with them every day. Clarity 

leaves something to be desired, because they are all 

handwritten reports~ But I can certainly attest to the need 

for documenting· everything that a caseworker ·aces. Those cases 

are often going to wind up either in the Family Court or in 

criminal courts, and it is very important. We just can't throw 

out paperwork, and say, "It takes too much time." 

One suggestion, because Director Waldman has referred 

to the transportation problem-- DYFS workers have to spend 

time taking clients to therapy, for physical exams, etc., etc. 

Why not have a transportation aide, or several transportation 

aides in each district office, to alleviate that one small 

responsibility? 

On the plus side, DYFS workers, I believe -- and I 

think this can be borne out -- are far better trained today and 

have _a good knowledge of what constitutes a thorough and 

competent investigation. I think that has come about in part 

because of the alliance between law enforcement and DYFS .- That 
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was encouraged by former Commissioner George Albanese and 

fo-rmeE:·., •Attot:ney. ,Gene.ral Kimmelman, ·,back. in _ 19·83. This 

Commit~_ee may remember that. lO··childicen, died::i:q 1982, who·~ were 

under the·· direct · stipervis-ion-' of·:.-·•-:DYFS .<.": 'l'hen~.::·Comm.issioner 

Albanese said that that was unconscionable, and that that: would 

never again happen. He sought the help of law enforcement to 

help with the training of DYFS workers. I say, with no pride 

whatsoever, that law enforcement, up to that time, had 

abdicated a great deal· of their responsibility in the 

investigation of child abuse cases. Everybody was shoving 

everything off on DYFS, as they are still doing today in great 

part -- other agencies. But law enforcement, I think, since 

1983, when we had the working group, which eventually evolved 

into the Governor's Task Force, has accepted its responsibility. 

We have joint training between DYFS workers and law 

enforcement. In Middlesex County, for instance -- and this is 

true in other counties -- we are holding seminars to make sure 

that law enforcement officers -- the officers out in the street 

-- gets to meet DYFS workers, listens to their problems, and 
' . 

develops a rapport. DYFS workers, to them, were always those 

crazy women who went around taking kids out of their homes when 

you didn't want them to, and leaving kids to be abused when you 

felt they should be taken · oiut. So, I think we have come a 

long, long way in those four years. 

I just want to say in conclusion, that Governor Kean 

has charged the Task Force, first of all, to promote awareness 

of the extent of the problem of child abuse and neglect in New 

Jersey. I think we have acc:ompl ished that, perhaps too wel 1. 

Everybody is aware of the problem, and this is reflected in the 

increase in reporting that has come about each year. I believe 

it was you, Senator Costa, who asked whether, in fact, the 

caseload is· going to decrease, or if the reports are going to 

decrease? Not on your life! I just heard this morning on the 

radio that New Jersey is experiencing an unprecedented growth 
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in population. People are coming in from out-of-$tate. You 

are going to see increases each and every .year .. - I • do not ·.see 

the end -of'.::t;he-"'"'increase· .in the .repor.ts,; of.: child:-,abuse,,, oir_:;:oj 

dec:rease •i-n the·,need fo~;·DYFS services::".'F:; •:·'. ___ ;-:,.,_, '.: :,__;.1 .. ···•':' 

A,,:::· .;;·: One:.: o:fi,_;the1,.~other~ mandates•···-that•. the-': Governor''S '.Task: 

Force has, is that we mobilize citizens and community agencies 

in a strong prevention-oriented pr_o-active effort to address 

child abuse and neglect. We have been doing just that, and we 

are committed to continuing our best efforts. We believe, as 

Director Waldman does, that DYFS cannot do it alone. They 

can't possib°Iy solve the problems of child abuse and families 

in crises. There must be . community-based services that will 

take over, and provide homemaker services, day-care, mental 

health therapy, medical care, crisis nurseries, teen-age 

facilities which has been mentioned and affordable 

housing. That is half of the problem right there the 

housing situation -- which nobody is addressing in New Jersey, 

and which DYFS lives with every day. All the things that 

famj.lies in crisis must have, so that the children in tho~e 

families can grow up to. be strong and healthy. 

Thank you for your time and attention. I would be 

happy to answer any questions from my perspective. 

SENATOR COSTA: You spoke about needing more services 

and more organizations, and that means more money. I have a 

little note here to myself, which I put down a long time ago 

during this hearing. Regarding a volunteer corps, would the 

agency consider that kind of an arm to DYFS? You know, people 

who care, such as people from church organizations. T~ey have 

their various societies that might be interested in doing 

work. There are the service organizations -- the VFW, the 

American Legion, all of those. They have people who like 

heiping other people. It is part of why they get together. 

You know, government will never have enough money to 

take care of all of its_ ills, and if we could get volunteers to 
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come in and assist-- I know that when I worked as a Welfare 

Director for just three short months -....,. I, ,was 6n the local 

Assistance-Board and we lost our Welfare Director, so I did it 

gratis for three months --- I was called in on a case where I 

walked in and there was no one there, and I didn't have anyone 

to call upon to take care of those three kids. The baby was 

blind, and was running a high fever. I called my husband, and 

said, "I can't come home. I am going to take care of these 

kids." But, there should be something we can tap into -- a 

volunteer corps -- and I wish the Director would consider that. 

Unless there are other questions, thank you very much. 

MS. MUNKACS I: Just one thing: I would 1 ike to see 

DYFS, through their public relations, educate the public to 

exactly what DYFS does. I find that the average citizen has no 

idea of what DYFS does. They have a lot of misconceptions. I 

think we ought to start off with a statewide DYFS--

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: They don't know what we do. 

MS. MUNKACSI: I'm sorry? 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: They don't know what we do. 

MS . MUNKACS I : Well, let's start off with a DYFS 

worker appreciation day, and let's inform the public of what 

DYFS does. 

SENATOR COSTA: Perhaps your Task Force could go to 

these various agencies and try to get volunteers. 

MS. MUNKACSI: Well, maybe you will get volunteers, if 

people understand what DYFS is all about. I support them. 

They need us; they need all of us. 

Thank you very much. 

SENATOR BROWN: I am sure one of the prime targets of 

the new Division Director, Mr. Waldman, is going to be to 

showcase the positive side of the Division of Youth and Family 

Services. I happen also to have a bill in that would talk 

about having an ombudsman for children, to be in, but not of 

the Department of Human Services, because, again, I think we 

have to emphasize some of the positive things. 
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One quick question for you: I am a little concerned 
about your summary. I am wondering, do you see any more 
emphasis being placed by all of these various agencies, whether 
it is the mental health worker, or whoever -- or the dat-cars 
teacher on trying to emphasize the ,importance of· the 
responsibility of the parent? 

MS. MUNKACSI: No. I am interested that you asked 
that. No, I have not seen that and, you know, al 1 these 
agencies the local agencies -- rely on DYFS. They look to 
DYFS for money; they look to DYFS for direction. 

SENATOR BROWN: Well, DYFS, with all due respect, did 
not create the children. I mean, the children were born from 
the mother and the father. So, I think we are misguiding 
people. I wi 11 back up what the Chairman said. You know, 
there are volunteers out there. I think, also, that we have to 
start making it crystal clear that when mothers and fa the rs 
bring young ones into the world, they have a major 
responsibility. To think that we are going to build any sort 
of governmental system that will replace mothers and fathers, 
frankly, is nothing that I want to see. 

MS. MUNKACSI: I would second that. As a matter of 
fact, in New Brunswick, the Police Athletic League is running a 
program for adolescent males I believe it is called 
Responsibility for Adolescent Males RAM insofar as 
pregnancy is concerned, insofar as bringing children into this 
world, and what, in fact, that means. They have created a 
great deal of controversy. They have their supporters I 
among them -- but they also have their detractors, who say, "We 
don't want you telling young boys about contraceptives and that 
type of responsibility. We want you to teach them morality." 
So, any new initiatives come up with people who are frightened 
by some very practical solutions to it. 

SENATOR BROWN: I was just appalled to learn that 
about 74% or 75% of the young people who, you know, are coming 
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before Division workers for one reason or another, are brought 

by mothers. It just seems to me that we have to make the 

fathers realize-- You know, Donny can afford to lose a·day or 

two from·work, 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO:- Weeks. (laughter) See, she 

hates lawyers. May I just.say--

MS. MUNKACSI: You're absolutely right. Maybe it has 

to start in the schools. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: I just want to say that I have 

heard a lot about you from Prosecutor Stamler. You have done 

great work, and I appreciate your coming today. I appreciate 

your input. I read your statement before you spoke, and I 

certainly know that you have waited patiently. So, thank you 

very much. 

MS. MUNKACSI: Oh, thank you; my pleasure. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: Thank you. Next we will hear from 

Ciro Scalera and Cecilia Zalkind, from the Association for 

Children of New Jersey. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: Is this a double-barreled 

approach here? 

CECIL I A ZALK IND: That's right. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: He who comes up here without any 

notes-- Can you imagine? He comes up here without-- He has 

it all up here. {demonstrates) 

MS. ZALKIND: That's because I have the notes. 

C I R 0 

here this 

A. S C A L E R .A: 

afternoon, and to 

Senators, it is a pleasure to be 

be able to discuss what is an 

important issue facing children in New Jersey. 

Cecilia will be making the presentation of our 

testimony, which you have in front of you, but I would like to 

take the 1 iberty of at least two comments. First, I think I 

attended the first hearing on DYFS in 1977, before this 

Committee. I think to answer your question, Senator 

DiFrancesco to look at whether things are different today 

91 



from then, I would think you would have to look at two 
factors:. First, we have to understand that· DYFS -- that a DYFS 
-- will always be a Band-Aid on what is, in effect, a broader 
societal context. Today, we have far more families living in 
poverty and facing an economic and social situation that is 
radically different than perhaps several years ago. We don't 
have to go into the causes or anything else, but the facts and 
the census tell us that there are far greater numbers of 
children living in poverty today, than were four, five, six, 
seven years ago. 

That is something that has an impact on what any 
social service agency attempts to try to do. And it certainly 
has an impact in terms of resource levels, staffing levels, and 
other issues that have been discussed this morning. 

The second factor is, I think what Cecilia will be 
covering will be that in certain areas of DYFS _ operations, 
despite meaningful, well-intentioned, and important efforts by 
various people, inside and outside of government, for certain 
aspects of its operations, things have, in fact, not gotten any 
better for children. In fact, they have gotten worse. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: So, it is not just money? 
MR. SCALERA: No. I do not believe it is absolutely 

money. I don't believe that. We did support the appropriation 
two years ago for more caseworkers. There was a val id reason 
for that. I would have to tell you, that if that were a 
recommendation today, I don't know that we would, per se, 
support that, unless it included other aspects of 
accountability for children, which Ceil will cover in a 
minute. I don't think that in certain areas things have gotten 
better for kids. I think we will point out some ways in which 
we feel that to be the case. Cecilia? 

MS. ZALKIND: Thank you. I will start with what I 
always say when I come before this Committee, which is, "I will 
be very brief." We have pretty extensive written testimony, 
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which we have included for the Committee. We have also 

included a letter -- some correspondence -- that we had with 

the Division almost a year ago -- last October --- that resulted 

partly fr.om Senator Brown's interest in the child, welfare 

system, and· f:rom her. resulting visits · to · a number of Division 

offices in the State. 

As you know, we are always interested in child welfare 

issues. We have a very strong comrni tment to children in the 

child welfare system. WE~ have exercised that commitment a 

number of different ways --- on the legislative front, through 

the budget process, and in a number of task forces and 

committees, on which we have worked with the Division to 

improve the delivery of services in the child welfare system. 

Our agenda before you this afternoon is really a 

nonpolitical one. We want to focus on children, and the 

well-being of children in the child welfare system in our 

State. We feel that is a very urgent and important agenda for 

us and for you to look at, at this time. We are interested in 

caseload size and staffing level, but we are interested in 

those issues not just in terms of the overworked caseworker 

which you heard a great deal about this morning -- but also in 

terms of the impact that that problem has on children and 

families within the system. 

What happens when a child has a number of different 

caseworkers in a year? What happens when the continuity of 

services to a family is not there because of staffing issues? 

So, we addressed that issue. But we also felt obligated to 

look at two other issues that we feel are very critical right 

now. One, we feel very strongly that the time has come right 

now to look at what is going on in practice. The Division has 

wonderful policy in the child welfare area terrific 

philosophy. A lot of that has been incorporated into the 

underlying basis for practice. But we have some serious 

concerns as to whether those practice issues are carried out. 
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Is there a system in place that carries out the policy that the 
Division espouses? 

Secondly, we think ·it is very - important ·_to direct a 
look at what · ts going on in terms of developing and funding 
community services. One of the strengths, we believe, of the 
Division over the past few years, is the commitment they have 
made not only to promoting community services, but to providing 
the funding for those services. As a number of people have 
acknowledged this morning, the numbers of children and 
families, and the problems they face, are so strong that one 
State agency is not going to deal with al 1 of those problems. 
It is going to take a community response. We feel the Division 
has put some commitment toward funding some of those programs. 

We also feel that the time has come to take a look at 
what that money is buying. Are those services the most 
appropriate services? Are they being used? Are they directed 
toward the most needy families? And that is the other issue we 
are going to address. We also believe very strongly that those 
two issues do have an impact on staffing, on caseload size --

the very issues you have heard about this morning -- in terms 
of vacancies and workers who leave the agency because of 
burnout. 

Let me begin with our look at pol icy, as opposed to 
practice. In preparing for this hearing today, I think we 
believed that if the efforts and success of the child welfare 
system right now were to be judged on the basis of philosophy 
and policy, there wouldn't be any need for this hearing today. 
However, we want to look at what is going on beyond that 
policy. What are the systems in place? When we talk about 
systems, we are talking about standards. Are there standards 
in that system for day-to-day practice? Are there time frames 
in the system? Does every worker in the Division know when 
goals are to be accomplished, what time frames are to be met? 
And what is the monitoring and evaluation system in place, that 
evaluates whether those standards and time frames are being met? 

94 



I am going to briefly just outline what we have put in 

our testimony about areas that we think should be looked at. 

The first:· is the entry -- the point of entry -- for children 

into the child· welfare system -- protective services·. Are 

there clear standards in terms of how abuse allegations are 

dealt with, not on the State level, but on the individual 

district off ice level, by individual workers? Would a family, 

for example, which is brouq-ht to the attention of the Division 

in Bergen County, have the same response from the Division that 

a family does in Camden County? Over the last 18 months, we 

have received many calls from parents, who are very concerned 

about this very issue. They have told us that there are a 

number of abuse cases that the Division does not like to 

investigate and has, in fact, refused to investigate, primarily 

where parental custody is an issue; where there is a parent who 

does not have custody who is visiting, and there is an 

allegation of abuse made. We find a number of parents who have 

told us that it is very difficult to engage the Division in 

taking these types of complaints seriously. We have also heard 

from parents who have said that it takes a long time parents 

and child placement review board members -- who said it takes a 

long time for abuse allegations to be investigated. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: May I interrupt you for a minute? 

MS. ZALKIND: Sure. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: That particular problem that you 

address-- Doesn't that become a matter of resources available 

to DYFS, where there is a marital dispute, and the children are 

involved? Generally, therE~ are other court agencies, or other 

social service agencies, that are also available, so that DYFS 

-- I am not saying they should -- probably says, "Wel 1, there 

are other agencies, and with the demands on us, we would 

probably let that go, and let others--" 

MS. ZALKIND: I think that is very true, but I think 

what happens is, the other agencies are saying the same thing. 
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If the court is saying, "Well--" We have had at least five 
parents over the last three months who have told us about this, 
where the court says, "Well, there is an allegation here, but I 
don't know if we should take it this seriously. We can look at 
it-- in the context· of a· personal dispute- between· the parents, 
because, look, the Division has not gotten involved in this 
case." 

MR. SCALERA: I would say that that is a response that 
is made, Senator. The point is, the law says, "If there is an 
allegation of abuse, it must be investigated." It is not for 
the worker to decide, "Wel 1, there is another custody matter 
pending on the matrimonial side; therefore, we are not--" You 
know, "It is a matrimonial case; it is not our responsibility 
to investigate." 

Now, I think we have also had some evidence -- I don't 
know how widespread it is, but it is something we learned from 
case managers and some of the courts -- that there have been 
some efforts by certain parents to unscrupulously allege child 
abuse in a pending custodial matter, to gain some advantage in 
that action. We are aware of that problem and that issue. To 
us, the response should be to deal with that in an appropriate 
manner by, in one way or another, having our laws sanction 
against that practice, so that it does not become a practice. 
That should not cut against, though, the bona fide 
investigation of an abuse allegation in the context of a 
custody. I think that is our position on that. 

MR. CHERNA (from audience): Senator, I would just 
like to respond for a second. The law does clearly state that 
if there is now a (indiscernible) case of neglect, that we go 
out and investigate, and we do that. If there are any specific 
cases that people know about where our workers have not gone 
out, we certainly would like them to basically follow that up, 
because the policy is clear, the law is clear, that if there is 
an allegation of abuse or neglect, we must go out and 
investigate. 
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MS. ZALKIND: We have made those referrals to the 

Division. 

MR. SCALERA: In fact, on just about every one those 

cases, · I have called the DYFS 800 complaint line, and made 

those cases-- Because the people call us, and we refer them to 

the agency, and tell them that this is the problem. 

MS. ZALKIND: To go on, we are also concerned about 

services to families once the family is accepted for Division 

intervention. What kind of services are being offered to 

stabilize families and to keep them together? Is out-of-home 

placement truly a last resort? Are efforts made to keep the 

family together before out-of-home placement occurs? 

Secondly, once that child comes into placement, what 

efforts are being made to ensure that the child returns home in 

a timely manner? This is not a new issue. This is the whole 

focus of the idea of permanency for children; that children who 

do need out-of-home placement should be in placement 

temporarily, and that decisions be made to either return them 

home, or to place them for adoption without further delay. 

A last concern, which is a very serious one of ours 

which we have expressed repeatedly to the Division -- is what 

we see as the quality of care for children in out-of-home 

placement. We believe that despite the best efforts by 

excellent foster homes -- and there are many good foster homes 

in our State -- and other placement alternatives, the children 

in New Jersey are suffering in the out-of-home placement 

system. A look at some of the very common effects of foster 

care: Repeated moves from one placement to another. The child 

is not only separated from its family, but is separated from 

subsequent foster families. Infrequent visits with his 

parents, almost complete separation from siblings at the time 

of placement. So, the child does not only leave his parent; he 

leaves his brothers and sisters as well. 
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Risk of physical and sexual abuse while in foster 
care, infrequent visits with siblings, placement in a county 
very far from· the county that the case originated in, because 
of lack of' resources or faster homes-- All . of these are very 
serious issues to us, that suggest that the system· that is 
designed to protect these children, is resulting in more 
serious harm to them. We feel very strongly that the time has 
come to take a look at this practice. What is going on in the 
system? What are the standards? What are the time frames? 
What are the monitoring roles of the Division in looking at 
this? 

We also believe that the community has a role in 
assessing some of this, too. We have, over the last few years, 
received some data from the Division. We are also aware that 
the Division has, through its quality assurance reviews, 
assembled this very information. We believe it is very 
important that this information be open to public scrutiny and 
legislative oversight. The input of all of us is needed to 
ensure that the right questions are asked, and to ensure that 
the findings are followed up on, to improve the quality of care. 

In terms of the staff allocations and caseload size 
issues, as I mentioned, we participated in a number of projects 
looking at delivery of services in the child welfare system. 
These issues have come up continually. There are always issues 
of caseload sizes being too high, of staff vacancies, and 
constant turnover within the Division. We are very concerned 
that this has a tremendous impact on services to children, and 
on the wel 1-being of children within the system. We have not 
done any independent analysis of this. We have no data to 
offer you, but one of our research projects we are working on 
now deals with two particular district off ices in our State. 
We have been asked by the committee we are working with to 
assemble some of this information, which we should have when we 
complete our report in March. 
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But, what we have seen, in looking at one of the 

offices in Middlesex County, is that they have operated for at 

least two years at a capacity below their allocation. They 

always have less staff than they should have. In fact, looking 

at -the year l-986 ~ · they suffered a loss of 50% of their staff. 

So they had staff turnover· of at least half of their direct 

services positions. This has a tremendous impact on children 

and families. Even if you can plug in these positions, filling 

vacancies quickly, workers have to be trained. And what 

happens is, cases move from one worker to another, or worse, 

are left uncovered, while these vacancy issues are handled. 

The second issue in this area that we are very 

concerned about is staff resources to the adoption offices. In 

the Division, the adoption services are offered through four 

regional offices in the State. They are separate from the 

county district offices. We have worked very closely with 

these adoption offices, primarily through the American Bar 

Association's project, which we began with the Division in 

1984, to look at improving· the adoption system in the State. 

This has been a tremendously successful project in terms of 

moving children through the adopt ion system faster, not only 

within the Divis ion, but within the court, and the Attorney 

General's office as well. We feel that not only has there been 

an improvement of time lengths, but there has been a tremendous 

improvement in quality. We are very concerned that over the 

last six months there have been increases in cases moving to 

the adoption offices, that are going to impact on how well 

those offices carry out their role. 

For example, from July, 1986 to July, 1987, the four 

adoption offices experienced an increase of 423 cases, which is 

quite a big percentage of their total caseload of 2000 or more 

cases. We are very concerned that there be a look at staff 

resources for these offices, so that this system, which is 

working well, will not break down. 
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Lastly, one of our issues is directing a look at what 
is · going . on· in the . area 0-f comrnuni ty-based services. Again, 
this is the strength of the Division. They have put a lot of 
money into cornmuni ty-based programs. But,_ we would 1 ike to 
know what that money is buying. What kind of services are 
being provided in local communities? Are workers aware of 
those services? For example, if a local district office has 
developed some resources, are they utilized by district office 
staff? I think that would be a very basic question to answer. 

Secondly, are they services that are directed at the 
most pressing problems within our State? The Division, as well 
as many other groups over the last two years, has documented 
the link between homelessness and out-of-home placement. What 
services are being developed to address those families who face 
a lack of housing, or loss of housing, beyond placement into 
foster care? I think the time has come to look at what is 
needed and what is being provided. 

Similarly, we are very concerned about the 
availability -- and this was brought up at the hearing earlier 
-- of facilities for children who need more treatment-oriented 
placements. There will be other speakers. The New Jersey 
Association of Children's Residential Facilities will address 
this more fully, but we share their concern that children 
needing out-of-home treatment services, are instead being 
placed in detention shelters or correctional facilities. 

We are also very concerned because there seems to be a 
growing population of children who need these treatment 
facilities, who are being sent to treatment alternatives out of 
New Jersey. This is costly, and it does not result in the 
monitoring of what happens to these children. 

Again, I would like to just say that we are not 
saying, "Take a look at this," because we don't believe there 
is anything positive there. Quite the opposite is true. A lot 
of positive initiatives have developed from this community 
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alternative initiative. We hope that a look at what is going 

on, what services are provided, and how they are being used 

wi 11 result in the expansion of some of these programs and 

support • for . the caseworkers who have diff icu1 ty with caseload 

size, with the practice issues we are··-raising. 

I will close brieflj by just acknowledging some of the 

recommendations we would like to make before you today. We 

tried to be very specific because, as we all know, this is not 

the only hearing that has ever occurred on the Division. We 

really made an effort to try to be concrete and specific, and 

to look at some suggestions we could make to move the process 

along. 

First, we think the Division should release its data 

on services, practices, and outcomes for legislative oversight 

and public scrutiny. Again, it is very important to have some 

public dialogue on this information. 

Second, we believe there should be an immediate 

implementation review of Division practices with respect to 

standards, time frames, resources, and monitoring, to gauge the 

overall condition of case practice in the district office. 

First, we believe that this information already exists in the 

Division, and that it should be reviewed, and that the Division 

should then make any necessary administrative changes designed 

to implement recommendations. 

Third, again, we believe that special emphasis must be 

directed toward children in the out-of-home placement system, 

foster care, and all kinds of treatment alternatives, not only 

on the avai labi 1 i ty of such resources, but on the quality of 

care as well. 

Fourth, we believe it is time for an evaluation of the 

availability, effectiveness, and appropriateness of 

Division-funded community-based services, as I have spoken 

about a little more at length. 
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Lastly, we also want to look at the availability and 
adequacy of programs for. children who need inter-.-divisional and 
interdepartmental"· services.· ··A lot of older ·children in the 
Division'~ system· also are children who come up in the 
corrections system, or in the mental health system, or within 
the Divis ion of Developmentally Di sabled. We think the time 
has come to look at how these services are being coordinated, 
and to review some formal agreements to clarify the roles of 
these divisions and departments. 

Thank you. We will be glad to answer any questions 
you might have. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: Thank you. Senator Brown? 
SENATOR BROWN: Mr . Chairman, thank you. As usua 1 , 

the testimony from the Association for Children in New Jersey 
has been very well-thought-out and executed. I would just like 
to make an observation as a result of listening to the two of 
you. 

As you know, I have Senate Bill 2044, which would call 
for establishing a commission to look into the Division of 
Youth and Family Services. Obviously, this has met with mixed 
reviews, because there have been many studies of the Division 
over the last decade. Many of those reports are in my office. 
But I think hearing you today, I certainly wi 11 talk with 
Senator Costa, and others of my colleagues, to see if we can't 
expedite S-2044 to see whether we can, you know, help to 
support the work of the new Director by again bringing more 
talent to the overall picture. 

MS. ZALKIND: As you know, last summer when this bill 
came up for Committee discussion, we strongly supported it, and 
spoke to you at that time. Our support came because we believe 
this is the largest system in our State that has the greatest 
responsibility for the greatest number of children. Even if we 
came before you today and said that everything was fine, that 
we had no questions, it is still a system that deserves public 
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scrutiny. We supported thei commission for that reason. But we 

also felt, and we had some discussions. with you, about how 

important it would- be in any initiative to take on any more 

review and study, to make it short term, very specific, 

time directed, and geared toward implementation, not 

very 

just 

recommendations. We can show you many publications, from the 

Division and from our own organization, which have wonderful 

recommendations. The question would be: What has happened to 

all of them? 

SENATOR BROWN: Thank you. 

MR. SCALERA: Thank you very much. 

SENATOR COSTA: Thank you. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: Next on the list will be Julie 

Turner, Executive Director, New Jersey Association of 

Children's Residential Facilities. 

JUL IE TURNER: Right. I would like to introduce the 

President of the Association, Mr. Peter Kurtz, who is also 

Executive Director of Bonnie Brae. I am delighted to have the 

opportunity to testify before you. 

I want to start with a child story I heard last week, 

because sometimes I think that as we talk about numbers, we 

forget that there are children behind them. This was a 

youngster who is a victim of severe physical and sexual abuse. 

Lisa -- not her real name -- entered a residential treatment 

center acting like a dog. She crawled; she would not walk. 

She growled, and she woofed. After some years of very devoted 

treatment from a dedicated staff, Lisa rejoined the human 

race. Recently, she became part of a loving adoptive family. 

I felt rather terrific about that, as I think you all 

may. I wish I could say that was true for many of the children 

in New Jersey, who are so troubled that they require 

out-of-home residential treatment services. But, that is not 

the case. Our Association represents both the private group 

homes and residential treatment centers that serve the majority 
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of these troubled kids placed by DYFS. The kids range: They 
are young. They can be as young as five or six, up through 
adqlescence. They-have a·variety of difficulties. They can be 
autistic; they can be hyperactive; they can be agg.ressive; they 
can be arsonists. '·:·:·They · are a whole: range, ·.of. kids in a lot· of 
trouble. I would invite e~ch of you to visit any of our 
facilities to meet the kids and know the reality behind the 
numbers. 

Unfortunately, New Jersey has not, over past years, 
made the necessary commitment to provide the resources to treat 
these children. There is much information in the packet that I 
have provided you, that will document this. I know you don't 
want to spend all afternoon, so I would like to just highlight 
a couple of the issues, and invite you to read the rest of it. 

One of the key components in treating children, is the 
child care staff. I was interested in hearing the DYFS 
testimony when they were talking about an 18% turnover. In our 
child care staff, we have had a 100% turnover in one year. It 
is somewhat understandable. The salary that the Division has 
been willing to provide for the facilities to pay-- The 
starting salary is $12,500. Similar salaries that they are 
willing to pay State employees doing the same job are $2000 to 
$3000 a year more. They talked about caseworker salaries at 
$20,000-plus for DYFS employees. In our agencies, it is 
$18,500 for Master's-level social workers. This is an example 
of the lack of commitment and involvement, in terms of being 
able to get the quality staff. 

Now, what it means-- Well, it has a lot of impact. I 
think Senator Brown, at one point, mentioned the question of 
stability or consistency in terms of caseworkers. Many of the 
kids who come into residential treatment have gone through 
multiple placement. They have come from what is 
euphemistically called "highly dysfunctional families." That 
means incredibly abusive, rather crazy, and things like that. 
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These kids need to have the stability and consistency of people 

to take care o.f them who can really provide the- right k.ind of 

models._ _ They may _ go through, in a year, three - or· four 

different child care workers, and riev_er _ be able. to make the 

kind of movement and development they need. 

In a recent child weifare magazine article, which was 

looking at the issue of in:stitutional abuse, they identified as 

one of the primary reasons for institutional abuse the lack of 

qualified and trained child care staff. We are in the position 

of having to say, "We cannot provide the degree of training 

that child care workers need." They are not there long 

enough. We cannot guarantee the quality of care that we would 

like to be able to. This has been brought to the attention of 

both DYFS and Commissioner Altman. We desperately need your 

help. I know, Senator Costa, that you are aware, and have been 

very interested and supportive in this area. As I said, this 

is one example of a very lengthy history of essentially a 

pervasive neglect of the most troubled kids in our State. 

Over the past 10 to 15 years, half of the residential 

treatment centers in the State have closed. At the same time, 

we are now sending over 500 kids out-of-state. As we look at 

where children are and what has been happening recently, there 

are increasing numbers of troubled children who are not in 

treatment facilities. They are in shelters, in detention 

centers, and in corrections, and the numbers are increasing 

dramatically. In detention centers, they are over capacity. 

The average population has increased 32% in two years. The 

shelters are near or over capacity. I think one of the DYFS 

caseworkers talked about his efforts of trying to find a roof 

for a child. Their population has tripled in two years. 

The State psychiatric hospitals are at, or over 

capacity. I think you are all well aware of the problems the 

State psychiatric hospitals have had. Part of that is a result 

of too many kids, and no place to put them. The CCIS units --
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the short-term psychiatric units are at capacity, with 
waiting lists, I was at a meeting with the heads of the CCIS 
units. One of them said, "I am in the position, on a daily 
basis, of triaging kids; triaging meaning, "I don't know which 
one is the most likely to commit suicide, but I am going to 
have to make a guess and live with it." 

I have documented in-- It is a fairly lengthy paper, 
but I would ask you to look at it, read it, and study it, and 
ask some questions. We have let this system go downhill, so 
that essentially we are a disgrace. I met with my counterparts 
in other states. I took this job a little over six months 
ago. Having come from a very strong volunteer child advocacy 
background, I thought there was no better place for me to be 
than this. But when I met people from other states, I was 
really impressed with the systems their states had in place. 
They knew the kinds of kids they had. They had developed 
programs to meet those children's needs. Actually, they were 
meeting our children's needs. 

SENATOR COSTA: What made the difference? 

there was a MS. TURNER: I think philosophical 
background 

treatment." 

DYFS list. 

of, "We just don't believe in residential 
I think it has taken a very low priority on the 

It has been a "penny wise, pound foolish" approach 
of, "Even though we pay an awful lot of money out-of-state, we 
don't want to develop the programs and fund them adequately 
in-state." I think the examples I have given you around the 
salary issues are classic. The cost of running a similar State 
facility is about double -- from their budget figures -- what 
it is for the private facilities. No wonder half have closed 
in 15 years. 

If you have some questions, I think Peter can give you 
some hands-on experience of what it means to try to treat kids 
without the necessary resources from the State. 
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I would ask you specifically for your support on the 

immediate crisis situation the child care salary issue. 

That is really as critical .as I have encountered. 

For the long term, I think we really have to be 

looking ·at the fact that we are spending money for kids in 

shelters. We are spending a lot of money for kids in shelters, 

who may wait six months or more, and deteriorate. Should we 

not be relooking at developing actual treatment programs that 

can serve those kids? 

P E T E R K U R T z: Just to clarify our member agencies' 

connection to DYFS, we are all contracted with the Division of 

Youth and Family Services for a certain amount of beds. They 

pay us a daily rate, based on the severity of the children 

corning into our facilities basically and the nature of the 

services provided. We represent cornmuni ty-based group homes 

for eight to twelve children, and large residential treatment 

centers with anywhere from 30 children up to 75 children. 

The residential treatment centers get paid for only 

the children who are there. Our group homes rate is based on a 

yearly rate split up into 12 equal portions. We could pay our 

child care workers, in fact, anything that we cared to in order 

to attract qualified people. The problem is, the rates that 

are paid to us for the children in DYFS' care to be treated at 

our facilities, remain consistently below our costs, so that 

our ability to raise our salaries independent of the DYFS 

rates, is almost impossible. Bonnie Brae is the worst case 

example, perhaps. We are also the best case example, from my 

point of view. I put up over a half a million dollars a year 

towards the cost of providing services for DYFS children, above 

and beyond what the Division pays me to care for those 

children. Each of our facilities puts up money. None of them 

can quite put up the amount of money that Bonnie Brae does, but 

each of us puts up money towards that. 

SENATOR COSTA: Where does the money come from? 
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MR. KURTZ: Well, in Bonnie Brae's case, 
comes from having managed our land well, and sold a 
and bui 1 t up our. endowment, taking interest 

the money 

lot of itr 

from that 
endowment, and also from an enormous fund-raising effort. I 
have a full-time development record. 

SENATOR COSTA: Do you have other children other than 
DYFS children? 

MR. KURTZ: No. All of our children presently are-­
Well, I should not say that. On occasion, the Division makes 
the decision to discontinue services to a child who has been on 
their caseload for a long time in a variety of services, and 
occasionally a local school district, not wanting to see that 
child back in that district, and/or supportive of a parent who 
is asking for residential services, or responsive to a parent's 
suit against them for residential services, places a child with 
us and pays the entire tab. That is an exception. 

I would also like to point out that our workers are 
not represented by any union; that, in fact, they depend on us, 
as managers of the facility, to both advocate for them among 
our Board of Trustees, who have the final say as to what we can 
pay our workers, in fact, and how much money they feel they can 
raise to support these services, as wel 1 as to advocate for 
them with DYFS, with respect to our contract raise, which would 
allow us to again pay these workers more money. 

Because of the severity of the children coming into 
our system -- we are talking about children who may have had 
many, many years of abuse, of suffering in a foster care system 
that has let them down-- We are talking about children, 
really, who feel that the world around them is not a loving 
place. This is not a place in which they can be cared for. It 
is not a place where they can return their feelings of caring 
and love. Their disturbances are many and varied, but they 
need programmatic-- They need a program that can take care of 
the severity of that illness. They need a safe and caring 
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environment. They need workers who can give them consistent 

treatment; who can reach out to them, even when they are being 

abusive to our workers; even when they are attempting to kill 

themselves. , Suicide is a common -- or suicide attempt is a 

common thing that happens in our agencies. They need workers 

who can feel confident enough in themselves to extend 

themselves under these conditions. 

As Julie mentioned, we have about a 100% turnover rate 

in our child care. That is correct. That does not mean that 

all of our workers are new. It means that three-quarters of 

our workers are new, and it means we are turning over half of 

our positions four and five times a year. So, workers are 

staying less than three months in those positions, because of 

the difficulties of the job and the payment we are giving them. 

At Bonnie Brae, we only hire people at the B.A. level 

for that $12,500. We also have a school. Because of the 

Governor's initiative, and our ability for the first time this 

year to charge back our actual school costs to local school 

districts, we are able to start our teachers at $18,500 for a 

10-month job. But our B.A. child care workers we can only 

start at $12,500 for a 12-month job. So, there are enormous 

inequities within our institutions. This is the problem we 

have. 

MS. TURNER: I would add that a few of our agencies 

also serve children from DMHH or DOD. Although they are part 

of the same Department, each of the divisions established 

different salary levels, so that an agency can be in the 

position of having two child care workers doing essentially the 

same job at a salary differential of $3000. 

MR. KURTZ: I would like to add just one more thing: 

I think the Division, over the last couple of years, as has 

been mentioned here, has moved toward community-based 

programs. In fact, I think what we are seeing is a trend to 

referrals to our group home facilities in the community that 
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are community-based, of our more severe population of kids -­
children with more severe problems. . Unfortunately, along . with 
the.referral to the community-based programs, •there has been no 
initiative to make those programs responsive to the needs of 
those children with more severe problems. So, basically, with 
contract rates that are increasing at small rates a year -- 3% 
and 5% -- and no initiative to enrich those programs so that 
they can take care of the more severely disturbed child, our 
group homes have been left in the more and more frustrating 
situation of having to care for children right out of State 
hospitals, right out of the 28-day facilities, who they do not 
have programs for. That puts them in the position of working 
harder, essentially, to provide -- from whatever resources they 
can take -- from the communities that will give them money, 
from individuals who will give them money an enriched 
program, without really being encouraged by DYFS to increase or 
enrich or fortify their programs so that they can actually meet 
the needs of the children being placed. 

SENATOR COSTA: I have been in touch with Julie in my 
area on the same issue. We see a great need here. A lot of 
children are just not being helped in the State. 

Senator Brown? 

SENATOR BROWN: How do you feel about the State 
contracting out for residential services, as opposed to getting 
into the business of residential services directly, for young 
people? 

MR. KURTZ: Well, anything I say at this point would 
be self-serving, because I run a private, nonprofit facility. 
I happen to feel that with local control of a board of 
trustees, an individual facility that is nonprofit can provide 
a more caring, a more responsive -- an environment that changes 
according to the needs of the children more quickly, than if we 
were tied into a State bureaucracy. So, my feeling is that 
contracting is the only way to go; that the State should not be 
involved in the business of opening its own facilities. 
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What we need from the State to help us provide those 

services is really encouragement to· do so. • My Board of 

Trustees, at this point, would be very reluctant to open 

another cottage, simply because if we open another ·cottage, we 

lose another $150,000 to $200,000 a year, because the program 

we want to provide for those children is simply not being 

supported to the extent it needs to be supported by the 

Division of Youth and Family Services. 

So, we are not encouraged to expand, or to provide new 

programs, at least to Division of Youth and Family Services 

children. That is one of the problems we run into. 

time to 

although 

SENATOR BROWN: Let me just thank you for taking your 

come here today. Julie made an observation that, 

it is not directly related to the hearing, I don't 

want to have go unnoticed. I have been very much concerned, 

over the years, with the operation of the Juveniles In Need of 

Supervision facilities -- the J.I.N.S. Shelters in the various 

counties. If you are talking about possible changes that need 

to be made and where we can get some funding, certainly I think 

if anybody did the map on how much it costs to have a young 

person in a J.I.N.S. Shelter in Camden, or whatever -- not that 

I begrudge that young person in Camden-- But certainly to have 

so much of the public dollar, whether it is at the county level 

or the State level, in so few of these children, when there are 

so many out there who nee~d to be helped, is a cause of real 

frustration. I hope sometime we will get a handle on it. 

It is my understanding that the J.I.N.S. Shelters were 

going to be out of business with some of the changes in the 

Family Court system, but that has not happened. 

MS. TURNER: It has tripled in two years. 

SENATOR COSTA: Thank you. We would like--

MS. TURNER: I think one of the issues is the length 

of time it takes to get a child placed. 
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SENATOR COSTA: I have just one question: When there 
are children in your shelters who come under the Division of 
Youth and Family Services, are these chcildren part of what we 
speak of as a social worker's amount of children?· Are they 
included?' ",-, ·, 

MR. KURTZ: Yes. 

MS. TURNER: The shelters are not part of our 
Association. I think they have their own. 

SENATOR COSTA: Pardon? 

MS. TURNER: The shelters--

SENATOR COSTA: Your home -- the residential home. 
MR. KURTZ: The residential homes, yes. Each of the 

children who are in our residential homes, and are considered 
part of the DYFS caseload, are one child on a particular 
caseworker's--

SENATOR COSTA: Oh, I see. The reason I · ask that is 
because before I was speaking of 60 to 80 children per 
caseworker. Is that part-- They could be part of that 60 to 
80? 

MS. TURNER: Yes. 

MR. KURTZ: 

with that. 

Yes. We, of course, have major concerns 

SENATOR COSTA: So, see, these figures really don't 
give us an accurate picture, because if I am thinking of 60 to 
80 kids, I am just thinking of them going to see 60 to 80 kids, 
but if they are in your shelter, when they come over there, 
they are seeing, say, five, six, ten of their own children 
under their purview? 

MR. KURTZ: No. It doesn't work that way. 
SENATOR COSTA: See, I am trying to get that 

straight. I am trying to get a picture. 

MR. KURTZ: We may have a worker who has more than one 
child, and possibly two, and maybe even three children in one 
of our group homes. It is unlikely that that would happen in 
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one of our group homes, but in one of our residential 

facilities. Ther.e is an enormous amount · of · work the DYFS 

worker needs · to do with us, in order to ensure that: The 

placement in our facility gets the most productive results" 

because we need that DYFS worker to keep in touch with the 

family and with the community _.__ we do not have the resources 

to do it -- so we can treat that family. We al so need that 

worker to help us with planning for the child once he or she 

returns to the community. There is still an enormous amount of 

work the worker has to put in, even though the child is in the 

residential facility or the group home. 

SENATOR COSTA: Thank you very much. 

MR. KURTZ: Thank you very much. 

SENATOR COSTA: I would now like to call on Sue 

Dondiego. She was the first one to call us, and somehow she 

got left off the list. Sorry about that, Sue. Sue is from the 

New Jersey Foster Parents Association. 

S U E D O N D I E G 0: The good thing about testifying at 

this point, is that someone has already said almost everything 

we were going to say. So,, with your permission, I would just 

like to highlight a few things. Okay? 

We were one of the groups that supported the extra 

caseworkers. I think our point back then was the same as 

everyone else's; it was because of child abuse. I don't think 

we realized, and I don't know if anyone else did, how much of 

an impact substance abuse, AIDS, and homelessness were going to 

have on families. So, while the child abuse did not go away, 

we just feel that all of these other things have impacted 

negatively on families and children. 

I have certainly been before this Cammi ttee a number 

of times, and you have supported our efforts because of the 

problems foster parents were having dealing with children from 

these types of families, or children who had the problems 

themselves. 

113 



When we talk about numbers of caseloads, our point is, 
should we really be talking about numbers? I know you need to 
eventually, but shouldn't we be looking at what -the families 
and children need, rather than saying, "X"· number of workers to 
"X" number of families? It is very, very difficult with little 
or no housing. It is very, very difficult dealing with either 
the parents or a child with AIDS. That is not something you 
can do over the phone. They need the time to get out and work 
with families, whether they are birth families, foster 
families, or adoptive families. That is really what we would 
like people to maybe relock at -- how they assign cases and how 
they count cases. 

I wrote down a couple of things which other people 
mentioned, or some of the Senators had asked about. One was in 
relation to schools, when the child was missing, and no one 
told them. As foster parents, we have had a lot of trouble 
with schools. Some districts are very good; other districts 
give you a very bad time about having a foster child in their 
district. I just wanted to mention, they would probably be the 
last ones to tell anyone a child was missing, especially a 
child who they had already labeled as being a problem. They 
would probably be glad that that child was not in that school 
for two weeks. So, schools are a real problem when you are 
talking about DYFS children. 

The other thing I wanted to mention, you are already 
aware of, because I have been here so many times. The Foster 
Parents Association is doing in-service training, which helps 
DYFS; we are doing recruitment, which helps DYFS; and we are 
doing a couple of other things. I think another thing DYFS has 
to look at, is kind of your suggestion about the volunteers. 
In Essex County, there is a formalized buddy system. It is 
made up of foster parents. They are reimbursed for their 
telephone and their mileage, but they are trained before they 
can become a Buddy Captain. They contact either new fester 
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parents or stay in touch with existing foster parents, and 

answer so many questions that do not have to· take up a real 

social worker's time, which frees them for; social work. 

We will also be beginning, in Union County, a pilot 

project, where a foster paremt is actually hited to work out of 

the district office as a foster· parent advocate, again working 

with the buddy system forme~rly in that county. I think those 

are the kinds of things that maybe we can look at, so social 

workers can really do social work. 

SENATOR COSTA: That's right. Where do you get your 

volunteers from? 

MS. DONDIEGO: 

to me, they are-­

SENATOR COSTA: 

service organizations? 

MS. DONDIEGO: 

Anybody I know. Once they say "Hello" 

Did you go to churches or some of the 

Yes, other organizations I belong to; 

other things I have done. 

many different hats. 

A lot of people in this room wear 

SENATOR COSTA: You're doing your own salesman's job; 

that's what you're doing. That's great. 

MS. DONDIEGO: Yes .. 

SENATOR COSTA: That is what we need more of. 

MS. DONDIEGO: I think the only other thing I wanted 

to say is, I think we talk about numbers of caseworkers. I 

have also said this about foster parents -- it is the quality. 

I think it needs to be the qua 1 i ty, as much as the numbers . 

All the numbers in the world aren't going to help you if you 

don't have quality workers. 

SENATOR COSTA: Well, we've seen that. You know, you 

can have one person taking care of one child, and then you can 

have one person taking care of 10 children. But the quality of 

that individual, and that person knowing how to care for the 

children, is of utmost importance. That is what we are 

speaking of, trying to attract that kind of person. 
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This is a question that just popped into my mind, so I 
might as well ask it right now. Director Waldtnah, regarding 
getting people_to help in caring for children, do they have to 
have a degree, or can it be someone who is just the motherly 
type who can do so much good? 

MR. WALDMAN (from audience): For foster care? 
SENATOR COSTA: Foster care and with DYFS? 

MR. WALDMAN: No degrees are required for fostering, 
just a loving person. 

SENATOR COSTA: A degree is not needed. 

MS. DONDIEGO: What about DYFS? She is asking about 
DYFS. 

MR. WALDMAN: But a degree is required for certain 
positions in the Division. 

SENATOR COSTA: Because there are some people who are 
just naturally born good with children. 

MR. WALDMAN: You know, there is one program you might 
be interested in, because it has both that aspect and it has 
the volunteer aspect. There are several of them throughout the 
State. It is very similar to the retired executive business 
corps, for example, that you hear about. In this concept, 
retired families-- If someone has had experience in raising a 
family, he or she can volunteer with a younger, more troubled 
family. It is on a voluntary basis. 

SENATOR COSTA: You're doing that? 
MR. WALDMAN: We have it on a small scale. It is 

appropriate for some families, and we have foster grandparents 
programs. But those are helpful approaches to case practice. 

SENATOR COSTA: Thank you so much, Sue. We appreciate 
it. 

I am now going to cal 1 on someone who said she was 
only going to take four minutes -- Pat Stanislaski. Just four 
minutes, okay? 

PAT ST ANIS LASK I: Okay. Wait until I sit down, 
though. Don't start timing me yet. 
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SENATOR COSTA: All right. 

MS. STANISLASKI: Actually, I eliminated about 20 

minutes. I figuEed that if I said four minutes, you would take 

me right away. 

I represent the Child Assault Prevention Project. I 

notice that most of the testimony you folks are hearing today 

deals with caseloads and level of service. Although we 

certainly believe that the caseloads are high, and advocate for 

additional personnel to increase the level of service to 

families, I am really here today to offer support, as well, for 

an aspect of DYFS that I feel is oftentimes not given the 

commendation and recognition, I guess, that it deserves, and 

that is its prevention work. 

For three years now, DYFS has joined forces with the 

National Assault Prevention Center in Columbus, Ohio, to offer 

New Jersey's children one of the most comprehensive and 

innovative prevention programs in the country. With support 

from the Legislature, DYFS has funded the CAP Project in all 21 

counties. During this time, CAP has reached over 150,000 

children, and thousands of parents and teachers with 

strengthening information. 

Based on a community approach to prevention, CAP seeks 

to end the vulner abi 1 i ty of children to verbal, physical, and 

sexual assault. Using public schools as its primary vehicle, 

CAP offers workshops for teachers, parents, and children, 

encouraging assertiveness, peer support, and communication with 

a trusted adult. 

Although our primary focus is on prevention, certainly 

cases of abuse and neglect inevitably come to light during CAP 

presentations. I guess that is why we are here today, because 

we do, indeed, affect the caseload. It is at such times that a 

real close working relationship between DYFS and CAP is really 

so essential for the successful resolution of the problem, and 

for the well-being of the child and the family. 
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In some counties, this relationship between CAP and 
DYFS begins with a staff in-service meeting presented by a CAP 
person, designed to familiarize district office personnel· with 
CAP' s . philosophies and procedures. It sometimes ends with a 
district office actually sending a caseworker out to a school 
where we are doing a CAP Project: This kind of a relationship 
between these two agencies maximizes the effectiveness both of 
CAP's prevention efforts and DYFS' intervention. 

I guess I am sitting here today before you to help you 
to understand what I think is some of the real wonderful work 
that DYFS is doing, and to encourage your continued support of 
that very necessary work. Despite the fact that their 
caseloads are just absolutely phenomenal and their offices 
understaffed, they continue, overall I think, to make a 
positive difference in the lives of the families they service. 
We who work so closely with them are oftentimes painfully aware 
that because of these problems, there are times when individual 
caseworkers or district offices are unable to render the level 
of service that they would 1 ike to give, that we al 1 expect 
them to give, and that certainly the children and their 
families so desperately need. 

I would 1 ike to ask you to do two things here today: 
to strengthen DYFS and to increase its level of service. I 
think you need to support DYFS financially to provide more 
workers, to increase their support staff and their support 
services, and to help them to maintain a high standard of 
service. I think it has been pretty clear, listening as we all 
have today, that the meetings you held in 1984 did, indeed, 
make a difference in improved services to children. 

I think of equal importance, to me at least, is that 
you need to believe in the work they are doing. I think you 
need to--

SENATOR COSTA: I am going to cut you off now. 
MS. STANISLASKI: Pardon me? 
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SENATOR COSTA: I am cutting you off; your four 

minutes are up. 

MS. STANISLASKI: Are they? I only have 30 seconds 

left. 

SENATOR COSTA: We have so many people here who want 

to speak. We are trying to find out what is wrong and what we 

can do, rather than just pat anyone on the back right now. I 

appreciate your patting, and I am sure they do, too, but I 

would like to listen to the remaining speakers. 

MS. STANISLASKI: Okay. Thanks. 

SENATOR COSTA: Thank you. Dianne Robinson, 

Chairperson, Advisory Council, New Jersey Child Placement 

Review Boards? 

DI ANNE ROBINSON: Good afternoon, Senators. I am 

the new Chairperson of the Advisory Council, so Mr. Waldman and 

I are having a similar day. We very much appreciate this 

opportunity to speak with you on behalf of New Jersey's abused 

and neglected children, who are so terribly dependent on the 

voices of others. 

I have just returned from the second annual conference 

of the National Association of Foster Care Reviewers, where I 

was made aware again of just how enlightened New Jersey is in 

its approach to foster care and, in particular, to child 

placement review. 

The recent passage of S-2028, legislation of which 

many of you were so supportive and on which you worked so hard 

with our past chairperson, Corinne Driver, will do much to 

ensure further the rights of foster children. 

Let me begin by saying we, as volunteer reviewers, 

have been impressed by the willingness of the Division of Youth 

and Family Services to listen and respond to our input. 

During the past few years, in particular, we have seen 

substantial improvements and cooperation between review boards 

and the Division, especially on the State level. Great strides 

have been made in many areas. Among them are: 
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1) Statewide, as well as regional meetings are being 
held on a regular basis between county C.P.R. coordinators and 
Division 11:a.isons- to address areas of·mutual concern. 

2) The Unified Review System, a joint effort of the 
Advisory _council - -and the ·Division .. to :improve the review 
process, resulted in: 

a. The writing of a manual addressing policy 
regarding children in placement; 

b. The establishment of -a Division position to work 
specifically and personally with each board; 

c. The standardization of forms to increase the 
quality of case recording; 

d. The joint training of caseworkers and review board 
volunteers; 

e. At this point, there is a plan to share 
statistical information through a joint data base, which would 
improve our ability to follow children through the system. 

The accomplishments I have just listed were a direct 
result of hard work and cooperation by the Division and those 
representing the review system. It would, however, be unfair 
to the children not to discuss areas where further improvement 
should be made. The following issues have been brought to our 
attention by board members, coordinators, and staff, relative 
to the caseload and staffing issues that are of particular 
interest to this Committee, and remain concerns shared by 
ourselves, and I am sure also by Division representatives. 

There are caseworkers who are reporting to us, as 
reviewers, that their caseloads are simply too heavy. We are 
concerned that there are district off ices that appear to be 
understaffed and/or have a high turnover of staff, an often 
heard complaint from both coordinators and review board members. 

There are still children who are not being provided 
timely reviews. Reviews that should be done within 45 days of 
the initial placement have, at times, been delayed for months. 
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Placement conference reports, which should be done six 

months after the previous review, are, at times,• not received. 

There is a lack of consistency in the provision of 

services to some children; several changes in caseworkers in a 

year; no caseworker for· varying - lengths of time; or many 

different placements in a short period of time. 

The difficulty and time involved in obtaining reports 

from psychologists, schools, residential treatment centers, and 

other service providers result, often, in delayed reviews. 

Visitation, a vital ingredient in reuniting families, 

simply cannot take place in the way in which it should in 

situations where caseload or staffing is a problem. 

Review board members in some heavily burdened urban 

areas, report more severe problems. In order to speak more 

directly to local issues, we would suggest consideration be 

given to regional hearings, like this one today, to more 

adequately address issues specific to an area. 

We, as reviewers, are seeing greater numbers of cases 

and, most disturbing, we are seeing more severe cases. More 

than ever, we must ensure the emotional and physical well-being 

of these children by providing them caseworkers with manageable 

caseloads, who have the time and the training to enforce the 

phrases "in the best interest" and "time is of the essence." 

them. 

If you have any questions, I would be happy to answer 

SENATOR COSTA: Any questions from the Senators? 

SENATOR BROWN: May I just--

SENATOR COSTA: Senator Brown. 

SENATOR BROWN: 

chairperson, Mrs. Driver, 

excellent work of the 

As a classmate of your former 

I have followed, over the years, the 

review boards. I am glad you are 

continuing in Corinne's good shoes, by coming here to give us 

your input, which we will seriously consider. 

MS. ROBINSON: Thank you. 
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SENATOR COSTA: Thank you very much. Allison Jackson, 
President,. DYFS Board of Trustees?-

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:· She is·not here. 

SENATOR COSTA: She's not here. Okay. Janet Cahill, 
Consultant, Labor Management Stress Committee? 

What we are noticing as you are coming here before us, 
is that there is so much to be heard, that we really should 
have made this into two hearings. There is really such good 
input. 

D R. J A N E T C A H I L L: I am going to try to be 
concise and just speak to my particular area in this my 
particular area of expertise. Let me first tell you some 

background, so you will know why I am here. I am an Associate 

Professor of Psychology at Glassboro State College. I am also 

the Consultant to the DYFS CWA Stress Management Committee, 
which has been alluded to a couple of times during tnis hearing. 

What I want to do today is twofold. I am going to 
summarize my written testimony to hit the highlights, and I 
would be happy to answer any questions. I want to first 
explain to you what the program entails, so you can understand 
what pro-active efforts are being made along these lines. I 
will not go over in detail why this has come about. I think 
prior witnesses have done that. Then I am going to tell you 
basically what the program can do, and what it can't do; what 
it is useful for, and what it is not useful for; and what other 
steps should be taken to really address the problem of stress 
and burnout in the agency. 

A quick history on how this came about: As you can 
see, there are areas in which labor and management do not 

agree. I think that is a fair summary of some of the stuff 

that has gone on before. We have found, however, that there is 
an area that labor and management can agree on, and that is 
that the stress levels in the agency are unacceptably high. I 
have been brought in because my area of academic and 
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professional expertise is in occupational stress, particularly 

in human service agencies. I do a great deal of research in 

this area,· and I professionally consult to other human service 

agencies. 

So, ' my role has· ·been· ·to ·find· out· what common ground 

exists between labor and management to address this issue; what 

is doable; and how we can develop some pro-active strategies. 

We have been doing this for about two and a half years. This 

is what we have so far and, as I say, I will try to summarize 

what I think it does, what it can't do, and what else needs to 

be done. 

Basically, the package consists of this -- there are 

several components to it: When we go into a district office, 

we first go in and give them an initial stress management 

training program. What this is good for is to give workers 

some personal techniques on how to deal with stress, and also 

to talk about, and to help them to understand, how working for 

a human service agency virtually, by definition, is starting to 

make them crazy. So we go at it from both the structural 

component and also the personal component. That is critical to 

the success of the program. 

After that, each district office enrolled in the 

program can have one day a month -- called an in-service day -­

the goal of which is to provide more training, and also to give 

them some protected time to catch up on outstanding tasks. One 

of the real problems of the agency is, they can't finish 

anything. It is too busy; it is too noisy; there are too many 

demands on their time. 

The in-service days are the most visible part of the 

program. In my own view, it is the least powerful thing we are 

doing. Workers are often concerned with, "Is this all we get?" 

but there is more coming behind it. What it is useful for-­

The in-service days are useful to take some pressure off, to 

give them some additional training, and to help support them. 
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It, in no way, 

problems in. the 

After 

however, addresses the longer, more difficult 
agency. ·It is· important to understand that.· 
the in-service days, they have also been 

provided some supervisory training from the Stress Cammi ttee. 
This, I think, is an important piece, and I am going to talk 
more about that in a couple of minutes. There have been two 
programs -- one of which is being implemented, one of which is 
being discussed now to give them increased flexibility 
around work schedules. You have heard, at some length, the 
problems of turnover and maintaining good quality staff people 
in the agency. The demographics are very straightforward. It 
is a heavily female, young work force. The majority of this 
work force is below the age of 35. Thirty-five-year-old women, 
and younger, tend to have children. We can predict that with 
some certainty. There is a problem in keeping those people in 
the work force. There is also a problem, in that about every 
seven years, with some certainty I can tell you, workers tend 
to burn out. The clearest risk periods are the first two years 
in a worker's life cycle in a human service agency, and about 
seven years later they have a crisis of some kind. We tend to 
lose those more experienced workers, and we tend to lose, 
disproportionately, workers in the first two years, for lots of 
important reasons. 

The effort on the agency's part and on the Committee's 
part to find ways to give these people more flexibility with 
their work schedules, I think is important, to try to retain 
experienced workers and to allow people to meet their own 
family needs, while they are responding to other people's 

family needs as well. 

I should mention that the in-service day also includes 
a recreational component that I think the staff has found very, 
very useful. We seem to get quite a lot of positive feedback 

about that. 
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Perhaps the most, not perhaps-- The most innovative 

and-I-think potentially important piece of this project, is the 

paperwork computer project. You have heard a great deal of 

concern about the amount of paperwork the staff does, as well 

as the redundancy involved. My own estimate is that the staff 

spends about 50%, and up, of its time and I mean the 

professional staff, the caseworkers on paperwork. The 

clerical people, I think with some accuracy I could say, are 

overwhelmed with paperwork. The existing computer system has 

been something we have been looking at. What we have done in 

Long Branch is, we have set up a pilot project which is 

attempting to do several things. The main thing it is trying 

to do is-- Some of you have suggested, "Wouldn't it be a good 

idea if we carried forward information, as opposed to making 

people do it over and over again?" That is precisely what this 

project has been able to do. The other thing we have been able 

to do is develop applications, which gives the workers and the 

clerks access to their own information, the theory being very 

simple. You are more motivated to put the information in, if 

it comes out in a useful form. 

We have given the clerks incentives to learn skills. 

In other words, the computers make their jobs more interesting, 

rather than less interesting. We think that is critical for 

the career ladder development and for the efficient use of 

paperwork within the agency. We have managed to bring the task 

-- or we hope we have anyway -- of entering information that 

the agency must have-- We have made it easier for the clerks 

and for the social workers. The day is not yet here where 

every single social workers is going to sit down with a word 

processor and enter the information. However, I think this is 

an example -- and I think the Committee is to be commended for 

this where for once a human service agency is taking 

existing technology -- microcomputers -- and using them to make 

the job easier, rather than making the job more onerous. I 
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think this is tremendously cost-effective in the long run, for 
the agency and also for staff morale. However, }t takes a long 
time to do this sort of thing. You have to buy the equipment. 
We have only been able to bring it to one or two offices so far. 

· On balance, I have to say that I think the Stress 
Program represents significant effort on the part of both labor 
and management. It is a sustained effort. They have done this 
for two and a half years. There is a clear commitment to bring 
this program to all of the district offices. While that seems 
like a simple task, if you think about 42 district offices, 
plus al 1 the adoption resource centers, simply to get out and 
educate all the workers is very difficult, and then they leave 
before we can get back to them again to really straighten them 
out. 

We have done an empirical evaluation of this with Len 
Feldman of the Bureau of Research. What it seems to show is, 
in the off ices we have been involved in, the amount of work 
load that people think they have, has increased over time. It 
is called "perceived work load." Where we have been involved, 
it seems as though their symptoms -- the symptoms of stress -­
have not increased. Where we have not been involved, they 
have. So there is some empirical evidence -- for whatever that 
is worth -- that this program is helpful. Okay? 

There are other things we are planning, but I can't 
speak in detail because they are in the planning stage at this 
point. 

Now, that is what I think is useful in terms of this 
program. I think it is an example of labor and management 
cooperating to the extent they can. The down side is this: 
None of these efforts, with the exception of the paperwork 
project, address the structural sources of work load. By that 
I mean, none of this takes off what people have to do, with the 
exception of the computer project. I think the caseloads 
remain very high in the agency. I think that is an ongoing 
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problem. Certainly the workers and the clerks report that the 

work -1oad is too high. We qet back to pe'rceived work load. 

The vacancy rate has already been talked about. I am 

not going to add to that. I think that in addition to the 

efforts we have made on the Stress Committee, some specific 

suggestions I have made, certainly ~o management and to labor, 

are along these lines, and I am hopeful that some efforts will 

be made. There has to be some serious look at caseload size. 

I know that is ongoing. I think that supervisory training has 

to be upgraded, even further than what we have done in the 

Stress Project, for this reiason: If you want to hang onto your 

younger workers -- the litE~rature is very clear -- the single 

best way to do that is by upgrading the quality of supervisory 

support. I also think that first-line supervisors in the 

agency are particularly at risk for heal th-related problems. 

They are caught between the rock and the hard place. So, 

targeting supervisory training, I think, is one of the key 

things that has to happen in the agency. I see no reason why 

the agency won't do that, or isn't intending to do that. 

I also think there needs to be an ongoing eff art to 

professionalize the workers 

skills and case management. 

can't be done. 

-- increase training around basic 

Again, I see no reason why that 

The Stress Program, to summarize, is useful in helping 

workers cope, in supporting them, in giving them a chance to 

develop some additional skills, but, in and of itself, it is 

not sufficient to decrease the work load problems we see, 

except for the paperwork project. So, some balanced approach 

to those two things, I think, would have a powerful impact on 

the agency. 

SENATOR COSTA: In your talks with the employees who 

have taken the stress management, how have they responded to 

you? I have gotten that they have to take time out, so they 

are putting aside their work, which increases while they are 
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there. They would rather be back at the office taking care of 
their work, so· they wouldn't have that much of a work load to 
go to. It's a vicious circle. They are trying to get rid of 
stress, but they are adding more. 

DR. CAHILL: Right. It is a · legitimate concern. It 
is something I have given a lot of ~hought to. The program is 
voluntary. No one has to go to it. We. have gone back several 
times, and said, "Are you sure you guys want this? We' 11 take 
it away if you don't want it." We get 80% of the staff saying, 
"No, don't take it away; we want it." 

SENATOR COSTA: I think it is a good program. 
DR. CAHILL: Okay. I don't want to dismiss their 

concerns, though, because my argument to them is, you need 
this. If you don't do this, I am fearful that you are going to 
leave the agency in a shorter time period. They say, "But I've 
got all this other stuff going on." And that is my major 
point: It is a useful program. Obviously, I am biased, but--

SENATOR COSTA: Perhaps the office itself can do 
something to alleviate the pressure. Rather than them going 
back into a steaming pot, they could just normally go back to 
their work, rather than having it double just because they took 
time out. I'm saying these things for Bill's benefit. 

Are there any other questions from the Senators? (no 
response) Thank you very much. 

DR. CAHILL: You're welcome. 

SENATOR COSTA: The next person to speak will be Kate 
Quinn. 

KATE QUINN: Good afternoon. My name is Kate Quinn. 
I am a professional social worker. I have a Bachelor of Arts 
degree in Social Work from Kean College, and I am currently a 
Master's Candidate at Rutgers University for my Master's in 
Social Work. I am a farmer DYFS employee. I was employed by 
DYFS from June, 1974 through September, 1987, as a direct 
service social worker. 
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I first became involved with the Division in September 

of 1973 as· a student intern. Upon graduation from -Kean 
College, I became employed by the Division. For eight months, 
I, worked at a- district office in New Brunswick with a generic 

caseload. I was responsible for more than 80 children. That 
was a high number, but the paperwork demands then were less 
than now. 

From March, 1975 through September, 1987, I was 
employed by the regional Adoption Resource Center in 

Princeton. My case work responsibility was to terminate 

parental rights through thE! court system, in order to legally 

free children for adoption placement. When I resigned from the 

Division, I was responsible for 28 children, which was slightly 
less than the norm for the office. 

During my years with the Adoption Resource Center, I 
saw many changes. In the early 1970s, the office was a pilot 

office, and I had the opportunity to see the office evolve. 

The caseload size at the .P.doption Resource Center was lower 

than those in the district offices, but the paperwork demands 

were always greater. 

In order to work for the Division, one needs to 

maintain a commitment to the job and a high energy level. The 

nature of the job is difficult, and at times overwhelming. The 
turnover rate is very high. Occupational burnout is an 

occupational hazard. There are two significant ingredients of 

burnout -- dedication and commitment. I believe that most 
direct service social workers for the Division have both 
dedication and commitment. One becomes worn out by excessive 
strivings to reach unrealistic expectations imposed by the 
excessive bureaucratic demands. 

benefit. 

too high. 

I believe that bureaucratic demands far exceed client 

There is too much paperwork, and the caseloads are 

Stress caused by the job will remain, unless the job 

is redesigned and the pres:sures of the job are diminished. 
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There is low morale, job dissatisfaction, high turnover, 
apathy, disillusionment, feelings of being -overwhelmed, anger, 
resentment, . discouragement, indifference, and negativism. 
Being a direct service social worker for the ·oivision is, 
indeed, a difficult job. 

The most important issue here is the services provided 
by the Division to its clients of children and families. In 
order to best serve the children of New Jersey and to preserve 
and strengthen family life, Division staff are entitled to the 
necessary support systems in order to effectively do their jobs. 

Assembly Bill 4030 provides for additional moneys in 
order to hire 500 additional social workers as direct service 
staff in the Division's district offices. I firmly support 
such a bill, in order to alleviate the high caseloads of the 
Division staff. I believe the caseload size in New Jersey is 
far higher than the national standards. 

Thank you. 
SENATOR COSTA: Thank you very much. Do we have a 

copy of your testimony? 
MS. QUINN: Yes. 
SENATOR COSTA: We appreciate it. Nicholas Andrian, 

President, Coalition for the Unjustly Accused? 
NICHOLAS J. ANDRIAN: I hate to add to your 
paper burden, but I have copies of my testimony; also copies of 
Mr. Shanahan's testimony, because he had to leave. May I leave 
these with the clerk, or would you like a copy now? (Mr. 
Adrian gives copies of testimonies to Committee) 

SENATOR COSTA: Fine. 
MR. ANDRIAN: Madam Chairman, I think we are known to 

each other. You and I have corresponded in the past. As one 
entrusted with teaching children of this State the democratic 
heritage which we all share, it is indeed with great respect 
and pleasure that I appear before this honorable Committee -­

an example of democracy in action. 
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Tomorrow is my forty-fourth birthday and, like others 

of my age, I can scarcely believe that figure. I can believe 

even less the role that has been thrust upon me· at this ·stage 

of my life·, as a result of my having gone· voluntarily· to the 

Division of Youth· and Family Services, in the summer of 1983, 

for guidance in the care of an 18-morith-old child, who had been 

left--

SENATOR COSTA: May I interrupt you for just a moment? 

MR. ANDRIAN: I'm sorry. 

SENATOR COSTA: This is so lengthy, and we do have a 

copy. Would you shorten it'? 

MR. ANDRIAN: Oh, I timed it. It is less than five 

minutes. 

SENATOR COSTA: Okay, thank you. 

MR. ANDRIAN: Thank you. I went to DYFS for guidance 

in the care of an 18-month--old child who had been left with my 

wife and me by her mother. The ensuing custody battle and 

viciously false accusation of child abuse lodged against me in 

early 1984 were the subject of a front-page story in The 

Star-Ledger, written by the late, and very lamented, Linda 

Lamendola three years ago this very week. 

Our story has become widely known since then as we 

continue to battle, on several fronts, the gross injustice that 

has been done to us. Only our faith in God, my innocence, and 

the credibility I have worked hard to build -- a credibility 

which prompted Congressman Dean Gallo to tell a major newspaper 

that the accusation made against me was, "beyond the realm of 

possibility" -- have allowed us to fight on, and we intend to 

be victorious. 

As a result then of this experience and because of the 

countless cases of false allegations of child abuse handled by 

the organization which we founded -- the Coalition for the 

Unjustly Accused, Inc. -- and as one who has taught in the 

schools of this State for almost 20 years, and who graduated 
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from a nursing program at our State's premier medical facility 
-- the. University of Medicine and Dentistry-~"'."" thereby having 
a-ad firsthand experience with bona fide. child abuse, I am in a 
unique ·position to reveal to you just exactly what is . being 
done to many families of this State, under the guise of 
protecting our children from abuse or neglect, in itself, 
certainly a most worthy and laudable cause. 

I must tell you that I have not come here to engage in 
DYFS bashing. There is no doubt that, as with any 
organization, there are many hard-working, sincere people in 
DYFS who, like teachers and nurses -- two careers I have chosen 

are underpaid and under-appreciated. I might add 
parenthetically that I am very happy to have been able to hear 
individual caseworkers describe their problems and receive 
insight into them. We have had surprisingly little dialogue 
with the other side, except for shouting at each other on 
confrontational television and radio talk shows. 

Nevertheless, the unheard voices of the unjustly 
accused whom I represent tell me that I must not mince words, 
for in the Division of Youth and Family Services, such as it is 
currently constituted, we have nothing less than a State agency 
consisting of unelected officials without true accountability 
to the people, and with police powers that even the police do 
not have -- powers that have caused the wife of a State Senator 
-- one of your colleagues -- to tell members of CUA that she is 
afraid to touch her children in her elementary school class, 
for fear of being accused of molestation. 

Please allow me to enumerate what some of those powers 
are, as seen by people who have been unjustly accused. Now, we 
are not talking about people who have abused or molested 
children. This is a whole different ball game. We hold no 
brief for those people whatsoever. DYFS can: Remove your 
children from your home at any hour of the day or night without 
a court order, solely on the basis of an alleged anonymous 
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phone call; requisition police assistance to kick in your door, 

should you refuse to give up your kids; subject your children 

to intimate phy_sical and psychological exams, without your 

permission, or even knowledge; hold your children hostage, and 

keep their whereabouts secret from you for long period of time 

-- this is before you have~ been found guilty of anything -­

force you to place your children in State-run day-care centers; 

force you to submit to psychological examinations by experts, 

who happen to be on the State payroll, in most cases; force 

you, and every member of your household to undergo 

State-sponsored counseling and family enrichment programs; and, 

in some cases, even -- unfortunately, I hate to say this -­

doctor files, manufacture evidence against you, suppress 

evidence in your favor, commit perjury, deny you witnesses, and 

otherwise violate your constitutional rights, without fear of 

punishment. Finally, they can put your children up for 

adoption, without your ever being charged with a crime of any 

sort. 

Unfortunately, DYFS also operates in total secrecy, 

for the most part behind closed doors, and appears to us -- in 

our opinion -- to control and intimidate vast numbers of Family 

Court judges and politicians, with some honorable exceptions. 

The Division has an annual budget of around $300 million, as we 

have been told -- twice that of the Peace Corps, for example, 

which fields four times the personnel in 63 foreign countries 

and it is New Jersey's largest adoption agency. 

But, the question is-- This would all be valid, but 

is DYFS at least using its vast unconstitutional powers to 

protect our children, from what it tells us is an epidemic of 

child abuse and neglect? By doctors' own statistics, the 

annual substantiation rate of sex abuse versus allegations of 

sex abuse, is just under 30%. When taken as a portion of all 

allegations of abuse or neglect, the sex abuse substantiation 

rate falls to less than 4%. When taken in terms of the total 
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population of children under the age of 16 in this State, the 
substantiation rate of sexual abuse falls to . 00064%. Even if 
one consideEs that for every case substantiated, nine others go 
unreported, the· rate· is still . 0064%.. . I do not make light of 
even that ·figure. If even one child is ·sexually abused, it is 
a tragedy, and that child must be prot"ected. 

There are ways, however, in which to do this, without 
violating the sanctity of the family structure, and without 
resorting to unconstitutional means which violate the civil 
rights of both the parents and the children _involved. To that 
end, we offered to Governor Kean, in 1985, an 11-point proposal 

a responsible 11-point proposal -- which would allow the 
State to prosecute child abuse in a manner to protect children, 
while assuring maximum support for the rights of the accused. 

In addition, we are currently working with experts and 
organizations from all over the United States -- the country -­
to prepare proposals for various state legislatures, including 
our own, which would allow for volunteer community involvement, 
in conjunction with DYFS type agencies and the courts, within a 
troubled family unit -- proposals which would save millions of 
dollars, while allowing for a more balanced intrusion into 
citizens' lives while protecting the children involved. In 
that capacity, Madam Chairman, I was extremely pleased to hear 
you refer to volunteer involvement by churches, synagogues, 
VFWs, and other service groups. I was also moved by Senator 
Brown's statement that she doesn't want to see government 
replace mothers and fathers. We at CUA certainly share that 
view, and reject the Swedenization (sic) of our State, where 
normal parenting may be twisted into constituting physical, 
verbal, and sexual abuse. 

Just two more minutes and we wi 11 be finished. I 
appreciate your patience. 

Again, the question of substantiation. As long as 
vast powers are vested in defiance of the Constitution -- which 
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we so jubilantly celebrate~d just last week -- in a closed, 

secretive organization whose funding· ahd existence depend on 

the numbers it can produce, we can be sure that, human nature 

being what it is, and bureaucracies being what our founding 

fathers knew them to be and we know them to be -- there will 

be untold damage done to the parents and children of this 

State. Furthermore, the day wi 11 come when parents and other 

citizens, seeing that the system in which they have been raised 

to believe is close to justice, will storm the bastille. And 

believe me, Madam Chairman, I have my finger on the pulse of 

the anger of some of these people. We are talking again about 

unjustly accused, not legitimate, bona fide child abusers. 

There is a vast difference. 

There are already reports in the press of threats and 

assaults against DYFS personnel, some of them young women 

caseworkers and cases where they have actually been held at 

gunpoint. It is not enough now for officials such as Mr. 

Blatner -- former DYFS Din~ctor -- to trot out catch phrases, 

and I quote some of the things we have culled in the last 

couple of years from the press: "All that abuse has been there 

all along in America." In other words, we have been a nation 

of degenerates since when, since 1776? "Due process must be 

accorded, but the bottom 1 ine must be protecting the kids" 

and I heard this here today, unfortunately -- as if due process 

is inimicable to the protection of children. "One out of every 

four girls is the victim of sex abuse" -- a statistic which has 

materialized out of thin air, and which is disputed by Dr. 

Besheroff (phonetic spelling), former Director of the National 

Center on Child Abuse and Neglect. "The abuser is usually a 

white male, 35 years old, and respected in the comrnuni ty" -- a 

category which takes in, I'm sure, a couple of the gentlemen 

sitting up there, as well as Mr. Blatner a very large 

segment of the population. "Abusers do not match a 

stereotype." So much for the 35-year-old white male. 
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By far the most frightening and arrogant quote of 
all: "The -American home is the most dangerous place for a 
child to be. !.-,,am protecting children's rights over the 
possible- infringement· of their parents' liberties.". Wei cannot 
see why the rights of parents and children· are diametrically 
opposed to one another. 

"We are only able to find a third of the allegations 
substantiable, but that doesn't mean that those other people 
didn't sexually molest their children. It just means we 
couldn't prove it." I don't know what constitution Mr. Blatner 
operates under, but it is not the same one that the founding 
fathers put together 200 years ago. 

We feel that because of Mr. Blatner 's feelings about 
some of the things -- and he set the agenda for the last four 
or five years -- it is no wonder that under his tutelage, DYFS 
management has turned the organization -- according to what we 
have heard from both sides of the aisle into a rogue 
elephant of an agency, insensitive to the needs of its very own 
people, not to mention those of parents and children. The fact 
of the matter is that although DYFS likes to lay the blame on 
the Family Court system for its heavy-handed tactics, fully 80% 
of DYFS cases are handled in-house by DYFS, following what we 
have discovered to be the ultimate strangle hold that DYFS 
uses. "Sign this voluntary agreement for our services, or we 
will go to court and take your kids." 

It is true that those who play--
SENATOR COSTA: I would like to stop you at this 

point, because we have your written testimony, and most of us 
have read through it anyway. We would rather ask you questions. 

MR. ANDRIAN: Yes, Ma'am. 
SENATOR COSTA: Basically what you are saying here is, 

there is an injustice toward people who are not guilty, because 
of the actions of DYFS, and taking the children out of the home 
just when the parents are accused, whether it is true or not--
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The parents don't have any rights. Your rights are being taken 

away from you. 

MR. ANDRIAN: Yes, ma'am. It is a myth,· -- · as I heard 

this morning -- - the notion that adults have access to due 

process under the Family Cc::mrt system, as described in, let's 

say, the Fourth, Fifth, Sixth, Seventh, and Eighth Amendments 

to the Constitution. It is simply not true. As part of our 

11-point proposal to Governor Kean, we have set up a system 

whereby the children, wherever possible, can be put with 

relatives. Often, this is not done. DYFS does not investigate 

other possible placements within the family structure -- the 

extended family structure --- whereby the alleged perpetrator, 

if it is deemed necessary, is ordered to be removed from the 

premises, so that the child's life is not disrupted. 

SENATOR COSTA: I understand, also, that at times this 

is one means being used by either parent in trying to get rid 

of a spouse, by saying they have sexually abused the child. 

Immediately the offending parent -- the so-called, the alleged 

offending parent -- is taken away from the home, and cannot see 

the child. I had someone come to see me who hadn't seen his 

child for over two years. He said he would stand across the 

street from the school just to be able to see the child. Then, 

after two years, the court said he was not guilty. But, in the 

meantime, what did that do to him? What did it do to the child? 

This is a very, very serious problem. 

MR. ANDRIAN: This is part of what we are working on. 

SENATOR COSTA: If you have ways of ameliorating this 

situation and you have given them to Governor Kean, I would 

suggest that you also give them to Director Waldman. 

MR. ANDRIAN: I would be happy to, as well as the 

programs we are working on with other states. 

SENATOR COSTA: I think all of us are aware of an 

injustice, and it has been a tremendous injustice. In fact, we 

are working on legislation that will penalize the individual 
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who would use such a means for getting rid of a spouse, because 
they should not walk away free. If the accusation is true, of 
course, everyth-ing -should be done. But when something is said 
that is not true, ~hey should not walk away free. They should 
know this to begin with, so that the accusation is not made. 

MR. ANDRIAN: About 80% of our cases are the result of 
custody disputes. 

may. 

would 

I have been 

be okay. 

I would 1 ike to read one more page, if I 

waiting since 10:30 this morning -- if that 

SENATOR COSTA: Well, if it will make you feel better, 
all right. 

MR. ANDRIAN: Wel 1, I appreciate it. It will be a 
nice birthday present. 

Getting away from all the statistics and 
substantiation and so forth, what we are really concerned about 
is the termination of parental rights proceedings. We are 
concerned that there are 1000 children in DYFS' care who are up 
and ready for adoption. We find that the great majority of 
these terminations are of the rights of single mothers, usually 
women on welfare who are defenseless before this onslaught. 

Another thing that bothers us very much, and has 
caused us to actually petition Governor Kean for a special 
prosecutor, is the fact that these adoptions these 
terminations of parental 

handled by a very smal 1 

They are not equitably--

rights proceedings 

percentage of judges 

are actually 

in this State. 

SENATOR COSTA: Mr. Andrian, are you saying that this 
is done against a welfare mother; that she is being accused of 
sexual abuse? 

MR. ANDRIAN: Oh, no, no, no, not necessarily sexual 

abuse. It could be neglect, or whatever. But we have had 
instances where we had evidence that the child was not abused, 
yet the child was still taken away. We have evidence where 
parents were subjected to a criminal proceeding and were found 
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not guilty by a jury, but still had their children taken away 

in Family Court, at DYFS' insistence, which to us seems to 

constitute double jeopardy. So, there are some abuses here. 

The bottom line is that the children are the ones who suffer. 

You probably know of the famous case · that developed 

over the summer, where the parents snatched two children back. 

They had evidence that the children were being sexually abused; 

evidence which they sent to us, which we then, at the request 

of the Attorney General, sent to him. I have the return 

receipt somewhere. They were very anxious to get this evidence 

from us in the form of a tape recording, but when it came time 

to doing something about it, we have the return receipt, and 

that is about all we have. We don't know what has become of 

the case. 

But the fact is, DYFS knew these children were 

sexually abused. They knew that the little girl in the case -­

a seven-year-old child -- had been placed in a home with seven 

incorrigibles. This is part of the problem of trying to place 

children when there aren't enough foster families. The fact 

is, this child, and her younger sibling, were placed with seven 

incorrigible boys, al 1 of whom had pol ice records. The child 

was a sitting duck for continued vaginal, and anal -- if we are 

going to be frank about it -- violations by a 17-year-old boy, 

who also broke the child's arm in the midst of a rage because 

she had dropped something on his food. All of this has been 

turned over to the Cumberland County prosecutor and to the 

Attorney General. 

SENATOR COSTA: Is this a foster home the child was 

put into that you are speaking of? 

MR. ANDRIAN: Yes. The unfortunate thing is that the 

DYFS caseworker knew that this child was abused, and turned the 

child back to the very arms of the person who was abusing her. 

This is wrong. I hardly think that the honorable members of 

this Cammi ttee, or anyone in State government, most of whom I 
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still-- I am not disillusioned; I haven't given up on the 
system. I st i 11 feel that most of the people who go into State 
work are honorable people, such as teachers and DYFS 
caseworkers. I am certainly not a teacher for the money, nor 
are these DYFS caseworkers in it for the money. You have a 
certain cal 1 ing. Okay? And certainly you can't countenance 
this. 

Now, we are not saying, "Take DYFS and scatter it to 
the winds." There is a necessity for DYFS. There is child 
abuse. I saw it firsthand, both as a teacher and as a nursing 
student in the inner city. But the fact of the matter is, we 
can't just use an elephant gun to shoot at a flea, and have 
scatter shot. You have to have certain guidelines, and people 
must know that they are accountable. I shouldn't even have to 
sit here and say this. It is under our Constitution. 

SENATOR COSTA: Director Waldman would appreciate the 
material you have. 

MR. ANDRIAN: Just one paragraph and I'm finished. I 

am grateful for the system that allows me to come before you to 
speak my mind, and I am indebted to you for your attention. 
Rest assured that the Coalition for the Unjustly Accused will 
stand firmly with those individuals, both private and official, 
who seek true justice for the children of this State. As a 
foster father who lost a child to a false accusation, as a 
biological father whose own inf ant son died of birth defects 
during the same period, and as an adoptive father who lost one 
of a set of twins my wife and I had come to know and love 
during the adoption process -- the surviving twin and my wife 
were at an undisclosed location for what must be to you very 
obvious reasons -- I know the value of children. They are a 
gift from God, and as Christ exhorted us in Mark IX:42, 
"Whosoever would cause one of these little ones who believe in 
me to sin, it would be better for him if a great millstone were 
tied about his neck and he were cast into the sea." That is 
what we believe at CUA. 
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I thank you for the extra time I managed to steal. I 

appreciate it. 

SENATOR COSTA: Thank you. Mia Andersen, Board of 

Directors, New Jersey PTA. 

MI A ANDERSEN: I am awed by your stamina; absolutely 

awed by your stamina, and your indulgence, and your tolerance. 

I applaud the Committee for focusing its attention on these 

important issues. I wish I had realized that we would be 

discussing other things besides things that directly touch on 

staffing and caseload issues, because had I realized that, I 

would have brought additional and different kinds of testimony, 

and perhaps--

SENATOR AMBROSIO: We're glad you didn't know that. 

MS. ANDERSEN: Are you? I can't imagine why. You 

don't want to be here until a week from Monday. 

Let me begin by introducing myself. I am a full-time 

volunteer child advocate with New Jersey PTA. 

SENATOR COSTA: And we thank you for that. 

MS. ANDERSEN: I enjoy it very much. I wanted to just 

reiterate that New Jersey PTA's first and primary concerns rest 

in considerations of the best interests of the child. It is 

for that reason, and from that base, that we advocate. 

Let me also say that we support everything that ACNJ 

said here today, and would like that to be on the record. 

We believe that staffing and caseload concerns must be 

viewed in the context of the policies of the Division of Youth 

and Family Services. In order to successfully meet its charge, 

DYFS must have policies that are appropriate to that charge, as 

well as sufficient and appropriate resources to support its 

staff. 

And when we talk about resources, we must talk about 

salary issues, which were very appropriately brought up here 

today. I guess one of the big questions about salary is, what 

is the Legislature willing to provide for the care and support 
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of its most vulnerable children? That is something I urge you, 
as a Committee, to look into and to, perhaps, reevaluate the 
kind of salary ladder that DYFS is forced to offer its staff, 
as a result·of its level of funding. 

·Recognizing - that child abuse and neglect are problems 
rooted in the community, it is essentia·1 that the community be 
included in forging solutions to their problems. Including the 
community in the decision-making process is cumbersome, it is 
time-consuming, and it takes longer rather than shorter. There 
is no question about that. But, we are convinced that the 
solutions that result from that process have real and 
long-lasting benefit, rather than the superimposition from 
above an agency saying to a community, "This is your 
problem, and you will do such and such." It is, we feel, much 
more productive to take that time, so that the community begins 
to accept respons ibi 1 i ty for its own problems, and becomes a 
part of the solutions to those problems. 

We urge you to press your colleagues to appropriate 
the funds necessary for DYFS to attract and retain sufficient 
number of staff to meet caseload needs and program 
requirements. The current average caseload of 38 per social 
worker is close to the caseload recommended by -- I think it is 
the National Association of Social Workers. I think that's 
right. However, we believe that accountability and 
productivity requirements must be required of the Division and 
its staff. 

From the PTA perspective, accountability means 
responding to abuse reports and referrals efficiently and 
effectively. It does not mean: Minimizing the reporters' 
concerns; ignoring repeated al leg at ions of abuse or neglect; 
stopping by an abuser's home -- or an alleged abuser's home -­
and leaving a social worker's business card, with a note saying 
to cal 1 when they get back -- they being the alleged abusers; 
or scolding or ignoring teachers who are reluctant to give 
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their names when reporting suspected abuse. Just tangentially, 

I would very much like, at one point, to have the opportunity 

to focus on the kinds of barriers that schools and other 

institutions place in the way of their staffs with regard to 

reporting abuse and neglect. It is very serious. Some of it 

was mentioned a little bit here today. That is a systems issue 

that I think we need to address -- yesterday. 

We have instances of giving the name of the teacher 

who reported the alleged abuse to the alleged abusing parent. 

The ramifications of that are obvious. 

To us, accountability does not mean notifying a client 

or a potential client as to the specific day and time an 

inspection is going to be made, or supervisors putting the need 

for the completion of paperwork above the needs of the 

children, so that social workers must be insubordinate in order 

to respond to a child in need. 

To us, accountability requires a strong central 

administration which will hold district and regional offices 

responsible for the correct and appropriate implementation of 

Division policy and procedure. It means that the 

confidentiality of the reporter will be protected at all 

times. It means that the best interests of the at-risk child 

will be considered first and foremost. 

We recommend and we urge that DYFS -- I have added 

this to my written statement -- as an agency, and its staff, be 

accountable to the community it was created to serve, and that 

the Legislature authorize and mandate that accountability. 

Foster parents must be included in any discussion of 

staffing and caseload issues. The foster care system is 

essential to the State's ability to meet the needs of our most 

at-risk children and families. Even if all of the national 

standards as to working conditions and caseload ratios are met, 

the Division and its staff will not be successful if they do 

not have the programs necessary to meet the needs of the 
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children and families they serve. Appropriate out-of-home 
placements are one of the most important responsibilities 
delegated to DYFS. • But the foster case system is saturated. 
Every we~k; the system has to scurry, beg, plead, spend hours 
of caseworker time, trying to locate an emergency placement for 
an allegedly abused inf ant. It is those kinds of drains on 
time -- those kinds of constraints -- that we, as a society, 
and you, as a Legislature, must do something to address. 

There are not enough faster homes. Currently, there 
are approximately 7000 children in out-of-home placement, with 
hundreds of others who are in shelters awaiting placement. The 
7000 figure, you know, goes up and down, depending on the week, 
and depending on what statistics you want to include. I will 
let DYFS explain why. There is a serious crisis in emergency 
placements of infants. Many of the children now in foster care 
are not in appropriate placement because there are not enough 
foster parents in the State. Part of the blame for the lack of 
enough foster care lies with the Legislature; part of the blame 
lies with the community; and part of the blame lies with the 
Division. New Jersey PTA must work harder to educate and 
motivate the State's parents to accept the respons ibi 1 i ty of 
being faster parents. DYFS and PTA must work harder together 
to recruit foster families, and the Legislature must see to it 
that DYFS has the resources in order to initiate a foster care 
recruitment campaign to attract and retain additional foster 
parents. 

We believe that one of the major factors acting as a 
barrier to increasing the number of foster families in the 
system is low reimbursement rate. Too often, it is not that 
families don't want to be foster parents; it is that they 
cannot afford to be. Economic pressures force most parents to 
work. Only 11% of our children now live in two-parent families 
where one parent is a full-time, at-home parent. Most of the 
children who require out-of-home placement need full-time, 
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skilled, at-home parenting. It is certainly understandable 

that these at-risk children have problems as a result of the 

troubled homes from which they were pulled. 

New Jersey PTA believes that. it is good public policy 

to provide reimbursement rates which will permit DYFS to 

attract and retain sufficient foster families to meet existing 

need, as wel 1 as to al low foster mothers to remain in their 

homes as full-time parents. We believe it is our obligation -­

yours and ours to make good our promise to help these 

at-risk children by providing them with foster care homes where 

they can benefit from the care of a full-time parent. It is 

good parenting that allows children to grow into capable, 

competent, functional, and productive adults. It is good 

parenting that prevents the kinds of dysfunctional behaviors -­

and that is euphemistic for really messed up, miserable, 

acting-out kids -- which result from child abuse and neglect, 

which result in the need for out-of-home placement. Providing 

these at-risk children with skilled, full-time parenting may be 

the most cost-effective investment in prevention that this 

State can make. 

Another issue I haven't heard today, which I would 

like to bring up, is alcohol and drug abuse, as they affect and 

contribute to the abuse and neglect of New Jersey's children. 

There is an enormous tie between alcohol abuse and child 

abuse. It is a tie that is wel 1-recognized. The ref ore, in 

order to properly identify and protect abuse and neglect 

related to drug and alcohol abuse, it is necessary for social 

workers to have adequate training. We urge the Division to 

implement training programs for their social workers and 

district and regional office staffs, so that they have the 

skills necessary to meet the challenge to that responsibility. 

The Division has developed and recruited some of the 

nation's most innovative and effective programs. The Family 

Prevention Services, modeled after the Homebuilders Program, 
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recently implemented in four of our counties, holds great 
promise to providing troubled families with the skills and 
supports needed to keep them together and healthy. Such 
programs, however, require sufficient, adequately trained 
staff. The Foster Parent Training Programs deserve recognition 
and support. These and other programs· require oversight and 
evaluation, as well as funding, to·be successful. 

Many cases hang in limbo without proper disposition 
because of caseworker turnover -- an issue you have heard a 
great deal about today, and which I, as a representative of my 
organization, must underscore the importance of. Being a 
caseworker is hard. It requires extraordinary skill, energy, 
and control. It is a profession with a high burnout rate, but 
in the best interest of children, it is essential for the 
Division to exert every effort to support its caseworkers. We 
applaud the Division for the development and implementation of 
the Stress Management Program. We urge the Division to 
recognize that it must do much more to reduce the high turnover 
rate of the caseworkers. 

In summary, New Jersey PTA urges the Division to 
develop and maintain a partnership with the community it was 
created to serve. New Jersey PTA recommends that the 
Division: Require district and regional offices to implement 
the policy and procedures of the Division; monitor and oversee 
district and regional office compliance with Division policy 
and procedures; implement drug and alcohol abuse training 
programs for staff; develop and implement employee assistance 
programs for staff suffering from drug and/or alcohol abuse 
problems; assure social workers manageable caseloads; and 
initiate a major foster parent recruitment campaign. 

We urge the Legislature to support these 
recommendations, and hold the Division accountable for their 
oversight and implementation. 
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Every day, a child cries because of abuse and 

neglect. The world of the abused child is a nightmare without 

end. DYFS is the only hope for most of these victims. In 

order to stop the pain and start the healing, the Division must 

be given the support and - resources necessary ·to· support its 

efforts. 

Any questions? 

SENATOR COSTA: Thank you, Mia. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: Thank you. 

SENATOR COSTA: I would like to call on Verlan 

Kliewer, parent. 

VERLA N J. KLIEWER: I want to thank you for the 

opportunity of appearing here before your Committee. Thank 

you, Senator Ambrosio, and Senator Costa. 

Many different people have testified today, and 

brought out a wide variety of different problems and 

difficulties with the Division of Youth and Family Services. 

Almost invariably they have brought out, as a panacea, that the 

answer to the problem is more money. The only good suggestion 

I found that didn't say "more money," was the one from you, 

Senator Costa, suggesting some form of community involvement. 

I like that idea. 

Some of the problems that have been noticed-- The one 

you raised, Senator Costa, was that children are lost in the 

cracks in the system sometimes, and the inability to provide 

foster homes because there just aren't enough available. I am 

going to give some very constructive ideas on how to solve 

these problems, as we go along. 

Dealing with hostile parents, heavy caseloads, and 

nothing to prevent the caseloads from rising, workers are 

overwhelmed with the heavy loads, and there are staggering 

turnovers. 

management. 

and I quote: 

There is also some disciplinary action from 

A social worker from the Elizabeth office stated, 

"Clearly, this is a symptom of mismanagement," in 
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connection with the disciplinary problem. There are few 
experienced workers left on the job, there is a lack of 
resources for. adolescents and teen-agers, and there is an 
extremely high· ·turnover. One off ice reported a 100% turnover; 
another one, out of 48 workers, only eight have been there over 
the past year. 

There are reasons for this, and I will go into those 
reasons and what can be done about it. Workers are denied 
leave for important hearings; absent employees receive 
satisfactory ratings; and employees receiving an annual 
satisfactory rating at the same time they receive a termination 
notice. Rules prevent them from using social workers. They 
have people in there who are social workers. We heard one 
person testify that he couldn't use them as social workers, 
because they were classified some other way. 

There, you do have some problems. These do not stem 
from a money problem. If they had more money, they would still 
have the same problem. You mentioned a computer problem. More 
money, and you would sti 11 have a computer problem. It takes 
five months for vacancies to register. That is not a money 
problem. Seventy-five percent paperwork, 25% field work. 
Would money change that figure? I don't think so. 

There is another problem: Computers and software not 
working properly. In my profession, I work with computers. In 
the computer industry, I happen to know that computers are 
programed. I think all of us are aware of that. In the 
business world, if a computer doesn't work properly, that hurts 
the business. You do one of three things: You throw the 
computer out, and start doing things manually -- if that is a 
good alternative; you reduce what you put into the computer; or 
you can throw out the software and rewrite it, or get some of 
the packages. There are many packages -- personnel packages 
and human resources packages -- on the system that would solve 
the very problems you have today, without a large expenditure. 
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But, there is no excuse for a computer causing a 

heavier caseload, or causing a heavier load for people. That 

is. easily solved. If it causes a heavier load, obviously; 

don't use it any more. 

Now, the ideas that you suggested, Senator Costa-­

One of them was using church and civic organizations, and that 

is a good idea. But, one of the biggest problems--

SENATOR COSTA: I am looking at your package there. 

Are you going to read all of that? 

MR. KLIEWER: No, by no means. 

SENATOR COSTA: Are you the one who has been working 

on the computer as you were sitting here? 

MR. KLIEWER: It ' s a typewriter . It's not really a 

computer. 

SENATOR COSTA: I notice that you are referring to 

what people said, and it's all typed out. 

MR. KLIEWER: No, these are all copies of the same 

thing. 

SENATOR COSTA: Oh, I see. 

MR. KLIEWER: I am not going to be reading this to you 

either. 

SENATOR COSTA: Oh, okay. 

MR. KLIEWER: It's not going to be that long, but I 

think you will find what I have to say interesting. 

SENATOR COSTA: Oh, I found it interesting that you 

typed away there. 

MR. KLIEWER: Well, this is in order to give some 

background to some very real problems, and to offer some very 

real solutions to them. 

Now, we have numerous problems in management. The 

problem is, if you involve church organizations, if they are 

answerable to DYFS, that is a problem, because DYFS has a hard 

time even managing itself. You have seen that throughout the 

testimony of the DYFS workers. Another problem, too, is -- you 
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had the testimony of Nick Andrian -- false accusations. If you 
spread out and work to have a church provide services, or 
different charitable organizations provide the services that 
are now covered by DYFS, if they come under DYFS authority, 
they wi 11 ·· be under DYFS '· · thumb. They would receive the funding 
from DYFS. I have seen it happen in the case of a day care 
center, too. They are under the thumb there, and to get their 
funding they cooperate with DYFS, which means that they will 
not take the side of the parent, if DYFS feels there has been 
abuse. 

You don't need that kind of liberty restriction in 
America. You do have a problem where DYFS does make false 
accusations. So, if you are going to work with something like 
this, a good alternative would be to have a publicity campaign, 
saying: "We need organizations willing to take on the task" 
entire organizations -- and then make them not answerable, or 
not associated with DYFS. They don't even have to be 
State-funded, but just open a channel like that, where DYFS no 
longer becomes the legal agency solely responsible for this, so 
that these can be referred to State agencies, and a parent 
could even have a choice of agencies that might be available. 
That might be an option that could be considered. 

But, certainly it would eliminate the paperwork, 
because a charitable organization can't operate with the 
inefficiency that Federal organizations, or State organizations 
are at liberty to do. 

Because of all the pressure on social workers, one 
witness testified that perhaps the name should be changed from 
the Department of Human Services to the Department of Inhuman 
Services. I would have to agree with that, but for some 
alternate reasons. I would like to quote one of the social 
workers from Elizabeth: "The safety of the children hangs in 
the balance -- our children, our most precious resource." It 
was brought out -- I think by Senator Brown, I'm not sure 
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that DYFS doesn't make children. It's parents. In the process 

of childbirth, you have the child there, _and there is a bond 

that is developed between the child and the mother that can't 

really be torn apart or broken -- that isn't severed. 

Now, I would 1 ike to go into a case of child abuse. 

You have heard a lot of cases. People have brought up 

different situations, and things. This one is different. It 

is different for several reasons. For one thing, it highlights 

some areas, not just sayinq, "Look, isn't this awful. We need 

more funds. " It shows some areas where we can put in some 

constructive work -- some constructive changes. By no means, 

do I have listed here, nor will I present to the Committee 

here, everything that really needs to be done. I have other 

ideas that can be done to change the laws in the State, to help 

to make things a whole lot better. 

In this case that I am going to present_ before you 

today, the father and the mother of the child were accused of 

sexually molesting the children. It was a bitter battle for 

the State, and a very long battle. It took a period of several 

years. Finally, in the end, the State won, and the parents 

took it up on appeal. Well, it looked to all appearances that 

DYFS did their job; they won the case. For one thing, the 

parents were brought up before a criminal trial, which the 

parents won. The jury acquitted the parents. But still DYFS 

was able to get the children out of the home. It wasn't 

right. Let's hear something from the other side, too. 

We have heard a lot of cases from DYFS' side. Let's 

hear from the other side, and see what effect it had there, 

too. The children were aged eight and nine. They were born in 

1977 -- December of 1977 and the spring of 1979. They were, in 

fact, removed illegally from the home. The documents prepared 

and this will be proven in the appellate brief-- The 

documents prepared for the removal of the children were falsely 

sworn. When you have a document for the children, the law 
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requires that it detail explicitly what the charges are, and it 
can't be by way of inference. Wel 1, the charges were very 
explicit. · They said, "Here is what happened," and there was 
very specific sexual involvement. But when 
testimony on the stand, no. The testimony was 
never made any such accusations. These were 
inference, clearly against the law. 

you heard the 

that the child 

al 1 gained by 

The accusations were gained from information-- They 
were obtained by improper inference from the use of sexually 
explicit dolls. At the time of the removal of the children, 
the children had not made any accusations of sexual abuse. The 
little girl, aged four, I believe it was, was given dolls -­
sexually explicit dolls -- and was told, "This desk is a bed. 
These dolls represent members of your family." The child was 
told to play with the dolls. The child refused to play with 
the dolls. She was forced to play with the dolls;. was forced 
to play with them on the desk, which represented the bed, and 
as a result, there was no alternative for the child, except to 
show them in a way where a social worker would look at it and 
determine it as a sexual configuration. This is all clear from 
the transcript. 

On the day of the removal, you had six-- Not on the 
day of the removal, but there were six different physical 
medical examinations of the children -- of the two children. 
Out of the six individuals--

SENATOR AMBROSIO: Mr. Kliewer, may I interrupt you 
for a minute? I would just like to know where you are going 
with this example, because the hearing is really dealing with 
the staffing of DYFS and the caseload problem, and I don't know 
what relevance -- even though the report you are relating is 
very interesting -- it has to our function as a Legislature to 
make recommendations to change the law. Maybe you can 
enlighten me as to where you--
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MR. KLIEWER: Thank you for that information. Yes, it 

has a great deal of relevance in this case, because this 

problem is not a single example. Nick Andrian brought up other 

example~ that exist _ in the State. The problem·- -is, · when you 

have an agency that has so grossly abdicated its 

responsibilities and turned the other way around with them-­

See, these children were molested under DYFS' custody. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: What I don't understand is, what 

you are relating has nothing to do with DYFS. It has to do 

with the prosecutor's office or the individual--

MR. KLIEWER: No, it is DYFS, because this is all 

under DYFS' auspices. DYFS knew these things were going on. 

They knew about the problems in the case. They kept the 

children in an environment where they knew the children were 

sexually abused. 

SENATOR COSTA: Are you with the Coalition for the 

Unjustly Accused, Mr. Kliewer? 

MR. KLIEWER: 

is, after--

SENATOR COSTA: 

I am a member of it, yes. The problem 

In the interest of time, though, I 

would appreciate it if you would get right to your point. 

MR. KLIEWER: I will get right to the point. I will 

skip over as much as I can, because it is reviewed here. 

SENATOR COSTA: Fine, very good. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: Are you going to give us a copy of 

your statement? 

MR. KLIEWER: I am going to give you a copy of this, 

but the thing is not related to the case I have over here, and 

I don't have a copy ready. This case is a lot of notes. 

SENATOR COSTA: We have heard about cases where people 

have been unjustly accused. We have heard what people have 

said about DYFS, and I understand what you are saying. The 

inference is, when you are questioning children, and putting 

something into their minds-- That is what you are getting to. 
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I am just trying to-- We do have someone else who has to 
speak, so I would appreciate it if you would get right to it. 

MR. KLIEWER: I will say this much. -
SENATOR COSTA: Tell us what you feel we can do right 

now, as far as DYFS is concerned. 

MR. KLIEWER: See, this is relevan·t to the case. I am 
going to go into that to give some other suggestions. First of 
all--

SENATOR AMBROSIO: Maybe I can shorten it by asking a 
question. What I am concerned about is, DYFS has 23,000 
employees, as I understand it. 

MR. JOSEPH (from audience; no microphone): No. 
SENATOR AMBROSIO: It does not? 
MR. JOSEPH: It has 3400. 
SENATOR AMBROSIO: I'm sorry. DYFS has 3400 

employees. The individuals you are talking about -- and I have 
no reason to doubt that what you are relating happened-- My 
question is, is that systematic -- is that a problem that is 
system-wide -- or is that a couple of individuals? 

MR. KLIEWER: Oh, no, it is a system-wide problem. In 
fact, it is not only statewid, it's nationwide. There is a 
national organization -- VOCAL -- with chapters in, I think, 
every state, dealing with this very specific problem. It is a 
problem built into the system. What I want to get at is--

SENATOR AMBROSIO: May I ask you, Mr. Kliewer, because 
I don't want to cut you short-- We are aware of exactly the 
problem you are talking about. What I am looking more for are 
suggestions for solution to the problem, rather than examples. 
I can give you, probably, more examples than you can give me, 
in terms of those things that have happened. 

MR. KLIEWER: I' 11 tell you what then, from what you 
have said, I already have a copy of the examples on the case. 
I am going to mention practically nothing left from that -­
maybe one or two points -- and then go into the rest of the 
testimony, where I have some constructive suggestions. 
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SENATOR COSTA: Good. He has his testimony, and he 

will give it to us. (in response to question from aide) 

MR. KLIEWER: If you will promise to read it. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO:• Sure. I have a whole pile here 

ready to read. 

MR. KLIEWER: I will need about 15.more seconds. 

SENATOR COSTA: In fact, it will all be made part of 

the record. 

MR. KLIEWER: Okay. I'll say this much: I am the 

father of those children.. I was the one accused. They 

molested my son to the point where his penis was black and 

blue. They ruptured my daughters hymen under DYFS' care. On 

the day of their removal from the home, they found nothing 

wrong with the children physically. And there have been 

numerous instances of sexual activity imposed upon my children 

under DYFS' care. The judge has not addressed this properly. 

I am appealing it myself. I learned what it takes to be an 

appellate attorney, and I am going to win that case. 

SENATOR COSTA: Mr. Kliewer, are you the falsely 

accused parent? 

MR. KLIEWER: Yes, I am. 

SENATOR COSTA: And you're saying they put your 

children into a foster home where they--

MR. KLIEWER: Into a foster home. 

SENATOR COSTA: --were sexually abused? 

MR. KLIEWER: Yes. They keep them in those kinds of 

homes. They do not address the problems. The child was abused 

to the point where his penis was black and blue and red. They 

testified that a four-year-old boy could ejaculate, and had 

ejaculated in the faster father's hand. But the problem is, I 

could go on and on and on with horror upon horror, that would 

just turn you--

SENATOR COSTA: May I ask something? Were you accused 

by your wife? 
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MR. KLIEWER: Pardon? 

SENATOR COSTA: Were you accused by your wife? 
MR. KLIEWER: No, I was not. Both my wife and I were 

accused. . We are, both innocent. We were acquitted before a 
jury trial. There is, in the New Jersey Constitution, a 
provision that once you are acquitted, you cannot be tried a 
second time. That provision was ignored by the judge. 

SENATOR COSTA: I understand that if it is pending, we 
cannot discusss your case. 

MR. KLIEWER: Okay, but you may have a review of the 
material. When the appellate brief is available, I can make it 
available to you, if that would be of any help in some of the 
legislative matters, or in any investigations of DYFS. 

Let's get into some business, things that could make a 
tremendous difference to DYFS; reducing the amount of funding 
necessary for DYFS, and come up with some alternative 
suggestions. I have already mentioned some before the 
Committee. I have already mentioned two, and I may be wanting 
a transcript of this. 

Robert Bowell, the supervisor from Asbury Park, 
testified that he has no way to evaluate his workers. Now, 
that is unheard of in a business environment. In a business 
environment, you don't have that. If you don't have a way to 
evaluate your workers, you don't really have a department. You 
can't run a department that way. There are ways that could be 
built in to evaluate workers. Like in the case of accusations, 
you can get a red-light type of indication when you have a 
problem with a social worker. For example, you can take a 
ratio of the number of accusations made, and I think DYFS 
should have these statistics for the State -- the number ratio, 
and they should be by social worker, too. The number of 
accusations made where you have physical evidence, and those 
made where you don't have physical evidence. But you should 
have that kind of a ratio, for a trend, if nothing else. 
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SENATOR COSTA: Mr. Kliewer, I am going to stop the 

hearing at f--0ur o'clock, and I do have .one more person to 

speak. So, I would appreciate your making yoqr suggestions and 

leaving your transcript with us. 

MR. KLIEWER: I'll do that. It is my suggestion that 

children would not benefit from addi tiona·1 funding to DYFS. 

The overload in the caseload comes heavily from false 

accusations, like you have here. I have heard many of them. A 

reduction in funding would well be in order in a case like 

this. It would allow DYFS to concentrate on cases that are 

valid, and not get into cases where evidence has to be 

fabricated. From that standpoint, it is my strongest 

recommendation that the funding be cut back, and perhaps some 

alternate situations, totally independent, not answerable to 

DYFS, be given some legal authority, as I discussed earlier, 

and similar to the ones you brought up, Senator Costa. 

SENATOR COSTA: Thank you very much. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: Thank you, Mr. Kliewer. 

SENATOR COSTA: Leslie Pallard, shop stewardess? (no 

response) 

MR. KLIEWER: 

written material) 

SENATOR COSTA: 

Committee Aide. 

Where do I leave this? ( referring to 

Right here with Amy Fischer, our 

If Leslie is not here, I think I have had everybody. 

We have a few people who were going to be here today, but they 

said we could call them at their office for some information. 

One was Muriel Brantley from the Newark Central District Office 

of DYFS, William Ulrich, the County Manager of the Monmouth 

County District Office, Daryl Bender, of Camden, and Eileen 

Crummy from the Middlesex/Perth Amboy District Office of DYFS. 

Other than that, I don't think we have anyone else. 

Are there any comments you would like to make, Director Waldman? 
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MR. WALDMAN: Senator Costa, I would just like to 
express my personal appreciation to you and the Committee for 
h~ving the hearing -today. I listened a great deal. I believe 
I--have.learned a.lot; .. and ·have had a lot of issues identified. 

I would like to reiterate the statement that I made at 
the opening of the hearing: If you would li"ke, I would like to 
get back to you in a number of months, and give you an update 
on the progress of my early tenure, and what accomplishments 
and issues remain over time. 

SENATOR COSTA: I hope this has been fruitful, as far 
as your coming on board 
as people have seen them. 

now and seeing what the problems are, 
I guess we can't stress enough, to 

DYFS workers, people with compassion in try to have as our 
caring for children. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: Mr. Waldman, if I might-- One of 
the things that has come to me loud and clear through this 
hearing, is the dichotomy between social workers and off ice 
workers. I have some experience in that, because I was 
involved in a mental health center for some 15 years. Social 
workers, by nature, are not people who get involved in 
paperwork. They want to serve people; they do not want to fill 
out forms. 

I have seen, firsthand, the State's overburdening of 
State agencies, and other organizations which have to respond 
to State agencies, by the reams and volumes of paperwork they 
must complete. Do you see that as a problem? 

MR. WALDMAN: I definitely see it as a problem. I 
think it is a challenge to us to minimize the amount of 
paperwork, to get the most professional service out of our 
social workers. It is an issue I really do want to look into. 
My staff has advised me that there are certain legal 
requirements, certain statutory requirements 
that if we didn't do them in certain instances, 
liable to lose some Federal funds. 
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As was mentioned here earlier, I think there are some 

innovative ways whereby we could combine some of the efforts, 

using some of the latest technology that is "available. There 

were some good suggestions made today by the Committee about 

having dictating machines available in cars, for the workers 

who are able to do it. I think we have to iook at all of those 

things and, again, try to achieve that delicate balance of 

accountability and maximizing the professional time of our 

staff. 

SENATOR AMBROSIO: Thank you. 

SENATOR COSTA: Just to go on a little about that, I 

made that suggestion because I feel since they have to travel a 

lot, and since it is right in their minds at that time -- they 

have just left a case -- they could give the report right then 

and there. But, you know, I asked the question here, and I was 

told they do have these recorders, but if you don't have the 

follow-through -- the person on the other end to do the typing 

-- what good is the recorder? 

I hope you will follow through on that, because I 

think it would be a big load off the caseworkers, and they 

could do their job much more efficiently. I would like to see 

a reversal of that ratio, where some spoke of 90% paperwork and 

10%, and somebody else said 75% and 25%. I would like to see 

that reversed -- 10% on the paperwork and 90% on the casework. 

With that, I appreciate everyone coming today. I 

appreciate your patience. It has been a long day, and thank 

you very much. I hope we have all learned something. 

(HEARING CONCLUDED) 
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JOYCE E. MUNKACSI 
CO-CHAIR, GOVERNOR'S TASK FORCE 
ON CHILD ABUSE & NEGLECT 
AND ASSISTANT PROSECUTOR, 
MIDDLESEX COUNTY 

NEW JERSEY SENATE COMMITTEE ON 

CHILDREN'S SERVICES 

PUBLIC HEARING ON DYFS 

SEPTEMBER 22, 1987 

THANK YOU FOR THIS OPPORTUNITY TO TESTIFY BEFORE YOU 

CONCERNING AN AGENCY THAT I HAVE WORKED WITH, FOUGHT WITH, AND 

HAD AN INTENSE PROFESSIONAL AND PERSONAL RELATIONSHIP WITH OVER 

THE YEARS, BOTH IN MY CAPACITY AS AN ASSISTANT PROSECUTOR IN 

MIDDLESEX COUNTY FOR 17 YEARS AND AS CO-CHAIR OF GOVERNOR KEAN'S 

TASK FORCE ON CHILD ABUSE AND NEGLECT FOR THE PAST 4 YEARS. 

I AM KNOWN BOTH IN MY COUNTY AND WITHOUT AS SOMEONE WHO 

PUBLICLY AND PRIVATELY SPEAKS OUT ON BEHALF OF DYFS WORKERS. 

THEY ARE SOME OF THE BRIGHTEST, MOST DEDICATED PEOPLE I KNOW IN 

PUBLIC SERVICE. THEY WORK HARD AT AN IMPOSSIBLE JOB, SUFFER 

GREAT STRESSES AND DESERVE WHATEVER HELP THIS COMMITTEE, DYFS 

MANAGEMENT, AND, INDEED, THE PUBLIC CAN GIVE THEM. 

I APPLAUD THE NEW INITIATIVES THAT DYFS MANAGEMENT UNDER 

TOM BLATTNER AND NOW BILL WALDMAN, HAS UNDERTAKEN TO INCREASE 

SUPPORTS TO·THE CASEWORKER. IN PARTICULAR, I HAVE SEEN THE 

MORALE OF MIDDLESEX COUNTY DYFS WORKERS IMPROVE WHEN THEY 

RECENTLY MOVED FROM CROWDED, DIRTY OFFICES IN NEW BRUNSWICK TO 
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A NEW FACILITY IN EDISON. BUT MORE THAN JUST IMPROVING THEIR 

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT, MANAGEMENT HAS ENCOURAGED WORKERS TO 

STAY IN FIELD POSITIONS BY WAY OF THEIR CAREER LADDER PROGRAM 

WHICH GIVES THEM THE OPTION OF STAYING IN THE FIELD AND ALSO 

RECEIVING THE HIGHER PAY THAT THEY WOULD HAVE GOTTEN IN A 

· SUPERVISORY POSITION RATHER THAN HAVE TO GIVE UP A ACTIVE 

CASELOAD IN ORDER TO MAKE MORE MONEY AT A DESK JOB. THE NEW 

POLICY OF SHARED RESPONSIBILITY FOR DECISION MAKING IN DIFFICULT 

CASES IS ONE THAT SHOULD MAKE EVERY CASEWORKER LESS STRESSED AND 

FEARFUL. AND DR. CAHILL'S STRESS MANAGEMENT PROGRAM FOR FIELD 

STAFF IS A LONG-NEEDED ONE. 

HOWEVER, MUCH AS WE SEEK TO ALLEVIATE OCCUPATIONAL STRESS 

AND BURNOUT AMONG PROTECTIVE SERVICE WORKERS, WE CAN'T INSULATE 

THEM FROM THE HOSTILITY THEY RECEIVE FROM MANY OF THE FAMILIES 

THAT THEY ARE COMMITTED TO HELP. THAT JUST GOES WITH THE 

TERRITORY. I HAVE RECEIVED OVER THE YEARS, MANY COMPLAINTS 

FROM FAMILIES THAT DYFS WORKERS ARE OFFICIOUS MEDDLERS. I 

HAVE BEEN CALLED BY ATTORNEYS WHO WANT ME TO INTERCEDE WITH 

DYFS TO SUPPORT A PARTICULAR POSITION OF THEIR CLIENTS IN 

MATRIMONIAL OR CUSTODY DISPUTES. JUDGES CRITICIZE THEM, IN PART, 

' 
I THINK FOR BRINGING THEM SOME VERY DIFFICULT, HUMAN PROBLEMS 

TO DECIDE. POLICE OFFICERS COMPLAIN THAT THE DYFS WORKER IS 

NOT DOING WHAT THEY THINK SHE SHOULD BE DOING. THEY ARE TOO 



SLOW TO REMOVE A CHILD AT RISK OR THEY ACT TOO PRECIPITIOUSLY. 

MANY COMPLAINTS - FEW COMPLIMENTS. PERHAPS WE SHOULD HAVE A 

STATEWIDE DYFS WORKER APPRECIATION QAY. 

IN 1984, THE NEW JERSEY LEGISLATURE APPROVED A $18.8 MILLION 

SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATION TO HIRE NEW CASEWORKERS TO MEET THE 

SHARP INCREASE IN REPORTED CHILD ABUSE CASES IN THE STATE. 

I'M SURE THAT THIS COMMITTEE WANTS TO KNOW WHAT IMPACT THAT 

MONEY HAD ON THE SYSTEM. ARE CHILDREN BEING BETTER PROTECTED 

BECAUSE OF IT? HAVE SERVICES TO FAMILIES IMPROVED BECAUSE OF IT? 

I MUST GIVE A QUALIFIED, YES, I THINK SO. THE AVERAGE CASELOAD 

PER WORKER HAS DECREASED. ALTHOUGH, 40 CASES PER WORKER IS STILL 

WAY TOO HIGH. THAT WORKS OUT TO AN HOUR PER WEEK PER CASE INCLU­

DING PAPERWORK. IN MIDDLESEX COUNTY WE HAVE 3 DYFS DISTRICT 

OFFICES THAT HAVE HIGHER ALLOCATED CASELOADS. IN THE EAST 

BRUNSWICK OFFICE THE RATIO IS ONE CASEWORKER TO 49 FAMILIES. IN 

PERTH AMBOY, ONE TO 42. IN NEW BRUNSWICK OR WHAT IS NOW THE 

EDISON OFFICE, 1 TO 47. IN THE IDEAL WORLD, THE CASELOAD, IN 

MY OPINION, SHOULD BE HALF OF THAT. 

DIRECTOR WALDMAN REFERRED TO THE MANY RESPONSIBILITIES OF 

CASEWORKERS, AMONG WHICH ONE IS THE TRANSPORTATION OF CLIENTS TO 

MEDICAL AND THERAPY APPOINTMENTS OR FAMILY VISITS. IF THERE 

IS NO SUCH POSITION AT PRESENT, WHY NOT HAVE TRANSPORTATION 
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AIDES TO DO THAT CHORE AND FREE CASEWORKERS FROM THAT ONE 

SMALL RESPONSIBILITY. 

ON THE PLUS SIDE, DYFS WORKERS ARE FAR BETTER TRAINED 

TODAY AND HAVE A GOOD KNOWLEDGE OF WHAT CONSTITUTES A 

THOROUGH AND COMPETENT INVESTIGATION. THE ALLIANCE BETWEEN 

LAW ENFORCEMENT AND DYFS, WHICH WAS ENCOURAGED BY FORMER COMMISSIONER 

GEORGE ALBANESE AND FORMER ATTORNEY GENERAL KIMMELMAN IN 1983 

WHEN THE WORKING GROUP WAS FORMED TO DO JUST THAT, HAS BEEN 

GREATLY STRENGTHENED. THE WORKING GROUP WHICH I CHAIRED 

RECOMMENDED THE FORMATION OF THE TASK FORCE WHICH HAS B-EEN 

INSTRUMENTAL IN INITIATING JOINT TRAINING OF POLICE AND DYFS 

CASEWORKERS, FIRST AT SEA GIRT AND THEN ON A COUNTY-BY-COUNTY 

BASIS. AS A RESULT, REPORTS OF ABUSE ARE BETTER INVESTIGATED, 
. ' 

MORE CRIMES AGAINST CHILDREN ARE BEING PROSECUTED AND MORE 

CHILDREN ARE THUS BETTER PROTECTED. 

THE TASK FORCE, FROM ITS INCEPTION, HAS BEEN CHARGED BY 

GOVERNOR KEAN WITH, AMONG OTHER THINGS, TO "PROMOTE AWARENESS 

OF THE EXTENT OF THE PROBLEM OF CHILD ABUSE AND NEGLECT IN 

NEW JERSEY." I THINK WE HAVE ACCOMPLISHED THAT GOAL, .A 

CONCOMMITANT COMMISSION IS THAT WE "MOBILIZE CITIZENS AND 

COMMUNITY AGENCIES IN A STRONG, PREVENTION-ORIENTED, PROACTIVE 

EFFORT TO ADDRESS CHILD ABUSE AND NEGLECT." WE HAVE BEEN DOING 

JUST THAT AND ARE COMMITTED TO CONTINUE OUR BEST EFFORTS BECAUSE 
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WE BELIEVE, AS DOES DIRECTOR WALDMAN THAT DYFS CANNOT BE 

ALL THINGS TO ALL PEOPLE. THEY ALONE CANNOT POSSIBLY SOLVE 

THE PROBLEMS OF CHILD ABUSE AND FAMILIES IN CRISIS. THERE 

MUST BE COMMUNITY-BASED SERVICES THAT WILL TAKE OVER AND 

PROVIDE HOMEMAKER SERVICES, DAY CARE, MENTAL HEALTH THERAPY, 

MEDICAL CARE, CRISIS NURSERIES, AFFORDABLE HOUSING - ALL THE 

THINGS THAT FAMILIES IN CRISIS MUST HAVE SO THAT CHILDREN IN 

THOSE FAMILIES HAVE A CHANCE TO GROW UP WHOLE AND HEALTHY. 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR KIND ATTENTION. 

- 5 -
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TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

AC-NJ 
Association For Children Of New Jersey 

September 15, 1987 

Honorable Catherine Costa, Chairperson 
Members, Senate Children's Services Committee 

Ciro A. Scalera, Executive Director 
Cecilia Zalkind, Assistant Director 
Association for Children of New Jersey, (ACNJ) 

PUBLIC Dll;IHG OH~ 
I 

As a statewide child advocacy organization, the Association for 
Children of New Jersey (ACNJ) has a long tradition of commitment to 
children and families in the child welfare system. We believe 
strongly that the children within this system are those to whom the 
state owes its greatest responsibility. We have advocated for these 
children on several fronts: through the legislative process, through 
budget analysis and review, through efforts to encourage public 
scrutiny of Division of Youth and Family Services data and through 
participation in numerous task forces, committees and projects 
designed to improve the delivery of child welfare services in our 
state. 

We come before you today with a nonpolitical agenda, fully aware that 
the recent administrative changes within the Division create a 
potentially political climate for this hearing. We are not interested 
in a lengthy assessment of the successes and failures of the past nor 
in an investment in further effort and time in justifying the change. 
our agenda is more forward-looking and urgent. 

In short, our agenda today is children and whether the current child 
welfare system is adequate to meet the needs of the children and 
families it is supposed to serve. We believe strongly that the time 
has come for the adequacy of this system to be measured not in terms 
of policy but rather in implementation and practice: not in terms of 
the overworked caseworker but rather the impact on the wellbeing of 
cqildren as the result of staff turnover and increased caseload size: 
and not in terms of how much funding is being provided to community 
agencies but rather what services that money is purchasing and 
providing. 

Our theme is responsibility, not only of the administrative agency, 
but also of the Legislature and the community. Providing 
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funding for necessary social services is insufficient without also 
requiring accountability - both for the expenditure of those funds and 
to the families they are designed to help. The desperate plight of an 
increasing number of New Jersey families - the homeless, the poor, the 
children at risk of child abuse and neglect - continue to demand that 
we require accountability and responsibility for those children and 
families. 

A second important theme to our testimony today is the responsibility 
of the state to strengthen families. The concept of permanency - that 
every child has a right to a permanent family of his own - has been 
the philosophical underpinning of the child welfare reform movement of 
the last ten years. But eff arts to achieve permanency do not and 
should not begin after a child has been separated from his or her 
family. Our social service system has an even greater responsibility 
to ensure that support services are provided to families to keep them 
together in the first place. 

Our recommendations. for this committee today are very specific and 
practical. Over the last five years we have engaged in a number of 
cooperative efforts with DYFS to improve the social service delivery 
system. The continuing American'Bar Association, ACNJ and DYFS 
Committee, for example, has been successful in improving the adoption 
system in the state. We are currently involved in a federal grant 
project which is examining timely decision making for children in out­
of-home placement. These efforts have made us a bit impatient and we 
are anxious to direct our efforts - and the attention. of this 
Committee - beyond the policy, beyond the rhetoric, beyond the 
planning and promises,to an assessment of whether the implementation 
of these policies, plaps and promises has been successful. 

AN ANALYSIS OF THE EFFECTIVENESS AND ADEQUACY OF THE CHILD WELFARE 

SYSTEM MOST STRESS IMPLEMENTATION, NOT POLICY 

If the efforts and success of the child welfare system were to be 
judged on the basis of its philosophy and policy, there would be no 
reason for this hearing today. But implementation of that policy is 
far more difficult to undertake successfully and to assess. Our 
advocacy efforts in this area lead us to question whether there really 
is a system in place - of standards, timeframes, and monitoring - to 
translate this policy into effective practice. 

our first concern involves the area of protective services - the point 
of entry into the child welfare system for the majority of children 
and families. Is the Division meeting its legal obligations and 
responsibilities in this area? We have received a number of calls 
from parents during the last year concerned about child abuse cases 
that Division staff have refused to investigate, primarily when the 
abuse allegation involves a custody dispute. We have also been told 
that response time is slow - that, although the law is clear on how 
quickly the Division must investigate an abuse allegation, some cases 
are not seen for several days or even weeks. 

We are also concerned about discrepancy in practice standards from one 
DYFS office -to another. Would, for example, an abuse complaint made 
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and investigated in Bergen County be handled the same way in Essex or 
Camden County? Can a family be assured of the same treatment anywhere 
throughout the state? 

We are also concerned about services to families once a case has been 
accepted for Division intervention. What kind of services are being 
offered to stabilize families and to keep them together? How much of 
an effort is made to ensure that out-of-home placement is truly a last 
resort? How thorough and effective are services to families who are 
served in their own home to ensure that the child is safe from further 
risk of harm? Again, are these services provided uniformly throughout 
the state as opposed to at the discretion of/or practice within the 
individual office. 

Once a child comes into placement, what services does the Division 
provide to ensure that he or she will leave placement in a timely 
manner,either to return to his family or to move on to adoption? Are 
there effective systems in place in all offices to ensure that the 
child will not remain in the out-of-home placement system longer than 
is necessary? 

A serious concern of our Associat.ion, which we have expressed 
repeatedly to the Division, is the quality of care for children in 
out-of-home placement. We believe that, despite the best efforts of 
good quality foster homes and other placement alternatives, children 
often suffer in the out-of-home placement system. A look at some of 
the common effects of foster care - including repeated moves from one 
foster home to another, infrequent contact with parents, separation of 
siblings and risk of physical and sexual abuse - suggest that for many 
children, the- very system designed to protect them results in more 
serious harm. 

We believe that the time has come for the Division to assess the 
adequacy of all of these services in terms of actual practice. Are 
there standards in place that are consistent, clear and adhered to by 
every Division worker irrespective of their particular office or 
county? Are there clear timeframes for providing services and 
achieving case goals? And, most importantly, is there an effective 
monitoring system in place in every office to ensure that these 
standards and timeframes are being applied appropriately and 
effectively? 

We also believe strongly that the .community has a role in assessing 
these services and practices. We are aware that the Division has 
evaluated some of these services through its quality assurance 
reviews. This information should be open to public scrutiny. Input 
from outside the Division is essential to ensure that all the 
important questions are asked and to further ensure that the findings 
are used to improve the quality of services. 

ALLOCATION OP STAPP RBSOURCBS MUST ll ASSBSSBD DI TBRMS OP TBB. IMPACT 
QB TD lfBLLBBING OP CBILDRBlf ll TBB. CHILD J!BLPIBB SYSTBX, 

standards, timeframes and monitoring cannot be assessed without an 
evaluation of staff resources. Policy cannot be implemented without 
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the appropriate staffing levels to deliver the services. ACNJ shares 
this committee's concern with the allocation of current staffing 
resources within the Division. 

In 1985, ACNJ, along with many other community groups and this 
Legislature, supported a supplemental appropriation of $12.8 million 
for the Division to hire an additional 500 caseworkers. our support 
stemmed from the fact that allegations of child abuse and neglect had 
doubled in 1984, putting a tremendous burden on Division staff. We 
also supported the appropriation because the Division had made a 
commitment to developing community resources to support and treat 
families under its care. 

Today we join with you in asking for an accounting of that 
appropriation. Were the additional staff positions filled? If so, 
where were they deployed? What was the impact on the individual 
offices? Now that the numbers of allegations have stabilized, have 
these positions been redeployed to other overburdened areas? For many 
years, there has been recognition that the urban counties have faced 
more acute problems. Have staffing allocations addressed this? 

ACNJ has not conducted an independent analysis of staff allocations 
within the Division. Issues of staff resources, caseload size and 
staff turnover, however, have surfaced in many of the committees in 
which we participate. our federal grant project is currently 
examining some of these concerns in the context of national standards 
and practice, and we will report on this when the committee completes 
its activities next March. 

In reviewing some of this information, however, we have noted several 
issues which might be of assistance to this committee in its oversight 
of staffing allocations. First, any calculation of caseload size must 
be based on accurate and meaningful information. An analysis that 
merely divides the total number of staff will not accurately reflect 
true caseload size. There are many administrative and resource 
positions within the Division which do not and should not carry actual 
cases. An accurate determination of caseload size must be made by 
looking at only those positions involved in the delivery of direct 
services. 

Staffing turnover and vacancy rates comprise the second issue 
essential in an assessment of staff allocations. We understand that 
staff turnover within the Division has been very high. One of the 
district offices involved in our project experienced a loss of 50% of 
its staff in 1986. Although these positions were ultimately filled, 
the training of new staff takes considerable time which has a 
significant impact on the delivery of services. In the interim, cases 
are shifted for coverage from one worker to another or even worse, are 
left uncovered. 

Our primary concern in looking at the issue of staff turnover is the 
impact on children and families. All of the issues we raised in 
regard to implementation and practice are particularly dependent on an 
experienced, stable staff. Staff turnover results in cases being 
handled by many different caseworkers. Obviously, the continuity of 
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casework services and planning is disrupted and children suffer. 
Sometimes the result is a prolonged time in out-of-home placement. An 
assessment of staff allocations must include a look at the reasons for 
staff turnover as well as the efficiency of procedures, including 
civil service, to fill vac~nt positions. 

We are also concerned by what we see as increased pressure on certain 
segments of the child welfare system. Division statistics reported in 
July 1987 indicate that there has been a decrease in the number of 
cases served by almost every district off ice in the state. At the 
same time, the number of cases _ moved to the four Adoption Resource 
Centers has increased dramatically. From July 1986 to July 1987, the 
ARC offices experienced an increase of 423 cases, a significant 
percentage of their current total caseload of 2157. 

We are particularly concerned that sufficient resources be available 
to maintain the adoption system. Through the ABA Committee, chaired 
by ACNJ and convened in 1984, the Division's Adoption offices were 
opened to considerable public scrutiny. As a result, standards for 
adoption services were improved, timelines were decreased and more 
effective monitoring was instituted not only within the Division 
system but in the courts and Deputy Attorney General's office as well. 
We are very concerned that the Division look at staffing levels for 
these offices to ensure that the quality and efficiency of this system 
not be lost because of the dramatic increase in cases served by those 
offices. 

AB ASSBSSMBIIT ll NEEDED OP %0 AVAILABILITY OP EPPEC'l'IVE COMMONITY­
BASBD SERVICES 

One of the strengths of the Division over the last several years has 
been its support for community-based services based upon the 
recognition that the cases of tens of thousands of New Jersey's 
children and families cannot be the responsibility of the state alone. 
The Division has made a clear commitment to the importance of 
community-based services and has backed up this commitment with 
considerabl~ funding. 

Although we strongly support these initiatives and urge that they 
continue, we believe that the time has come to take a hard look at 
what services are being provided in local communities. It would be 
impractical and shortsighted to commend the Division for its 
commitment to funding such programs without also looking at what 
services this funding has purchased. 

First, and most important, are the services which the Division has 
funded over the last several years being used by Division staff for 
the children and families they are mandated to served? Are staff on 
the direct service level aware of these available services? Are 
referral· guidelines and program goals clear to all staff? Has there 
been any assessment by the Division of the quality and effectiveness 
of such programs? What is the impact of such programs on 
strengthening families? 
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second, have these programs been developed in response to the greatest 
and most pressing client needs? several recent reports, for example, 
including those of the Division itself, have documented the 
relationship between homelessness and the resulting break-up of 
families and placement into foster care. Some reports have suggested 
that as many as 40% of all out-of-home placements occur because of 
homelessness or housing-related problems. Yet .there has been very 
little information available about programs that the Division has 
developed or supported to address this very serious problem facing 
families in New Jersey today. 

Similarly, there is a growing alarm about the availability of 
facilities for children who need more treatment-oriented placements 
such as group care, teaching parent families or residential placement 
- than traditional foster care services can provide. What programs 
have been developed to meet the needs of these children? This will be 
addressed more fully in the testimony of the New Jersey Association of 
Children's Residential Facilities. We share their concern that 
children needing out-of-home treatment services are instead being 
placed in detention, shelter or correctional facilities. We are also 

,concerned about what we perceive as a growing population of children 
who are being placed in out-of-state treatment facilities because 
there are too few treatment alternatives available in New Jersey. 

Although we are concerned about what the Division of Youth & Family 
Services is doing to ensure that such resources are developed, we are 
also very well aware that the problems go beyond this one system. We 
have very serious concerns about the entire out-of-home placement 
system for children in our state. The critical problems and needs of 
these children are the responsibility of other state entities 
including the Department of Corrections, Division of Mental Health and· 
Hospitals and Division of Developmental Disabilities. Our concerns 
and comments are directed at these agencies as well. 

Our recommendation that the Division take a hard look at the services 
they have developed is not based on a concern that those programs that 
have been funded are inadequate or ineffective. Quite the opposite is 
true. Many positive initiatives have been developed which must be 
maintained. Among the most successful are the joint programs for 
juvenile offenders developed by the Division of Youth and Family 
Services and the Division of Juvenile Services of the Department of 
Corrections. Initiatives such as these must continue and grow and a 
comprehensive evaluation of their effectiveness can only support their 
continuation and, hopefully, expansion. 

What we are advocating for is simple program monitoring and evaluation 
in the perspective of greatest client need. This is a recommendation 
that should be supported by every agency receiving funding from the 
state. Monitoring and evaluation is essential to assess the 
effectiveness and availability of programs and to foster coordination 
so that they may be utilized with the greatest efficiency and success. 
The underlying goal for all of us must be the wellbeing of the 
children and families of New Jersey who must depend on the state for 
their future. 
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RICOJQIBIDATIOIIS 

In light of our concerns, some recommendations which we would make 
today are: 

1) Division data on its services, practices, and outcomes must 
be made readily available for legislative oversight and 
public scrutiny. 

2) An immediate implementation review of Division policies and 
practices must be conducted with respect to standards, 
timeframes, resources and monitoring to gauge the overall 
condition of case practice in the District Offices. 
Following such a review, the information for which we believe 
already exists within DYFS and in other related projects in 
our state, DYFS should make any necessary administrative 
changes designed to implement the review's recommendations. 

3) A special emphasis must be directed toward children and 
families in the out-of-home placement system - foster care, 
treatment homes, group care and residential care with a focus 
not only on the availability of these services but on the 
quality of care. 

4) An evaluation must be undertaken of the availability, 
effectiveness and appropriateness of Division - funded 
community based services. 

5) The availability and adequacy of programs for children 
needing interdivisional and interdepartmental services must 
be reviewed and formal agreements clarifying roles and 
responsibilities with the other divisions, inside and out of 
the Department of Human Services, should be executed. 
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ASSOCIATION FOR CHILDREN OF N::W JERSEY 

~nanas Bla-=.ner, Director 
~n-ision c: Youtil i. 1-·amily Services 

Soutn r-t>nt<:7arery Street 
·ren~on, Nee,.· Jersey 06625 

ear Tan: 
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C>::-tooer 3 , 1986 

17 Acaaemv Street. Su11e 709 
Newark. l'llew Jersey 07102 

'h:is lctter will serve as a follow-up to our on<:JQing discussion atoUt AC;.J's concerns 
r:.th' the child welfare systsr.. We have taken the opportunity to review tne data v,:rncn 
ou snared with us and to consider it in light of problems discussed at th~ AEr\ 

or:r.attee and the Adoption Advisory Conrnittee, among ether groups with wnicn we 
ar~1c1pate. 

le are primarily interested in two broad issues. First, we would 1 ike a fol lart:p to 
he ciata 1n terms of clarifying sare questions about the data we did receive as well 
s reiterating our request for the additional data which we have not yet received. 
econdl y, from cur analysis of the data, we have identified three areas which we 
el 1eve are of serious concern: the length of tirre children remain in out-of-home 
lacement, the quality of care for cnildren in out-of-hane placement and the 
vailabil1ty of services to parents to prever.-; pla::ement or to effect tunely 
:J:.:..-,lif 1ca-=.ion. 

'.? D'.!lleve t.na-: the forum cf concern for tnese issues ha: broaaened in \·1€'W c: Scn,l':or 
:-o· ... ·:-.·='. ir:t.-:res:. 1n -:.n<::- ::hil::::l w~lf.ar~ sy.ste~ as w~l 1 as tn"? ap:01!·-n::n~nt o: 2. nPw 

:::r.:-:.:s:-;1on~:- o:· !1,:,a.~ Sc!'"",.:ices. '!"h~· 1ss~4=s ,,:~~1~:, W':> ::-:.t'? oelo~' r~1;resc:-::. n :°'-~·· c.: 
.;:::- a::1·:oc3::-:' ,_,::c:-t.5 1:1 t.:as are~ an:1 an doa:aa fc::- o~:- a~iv1ti· in -=i1~ :eaer:il sra:::. 
r~:ii::=:. .,,.-:-.:.:::1 w,:- ·.-,::..1 l u.:v.:1r: 1:-. o-.:t.c::ie:-. 

lr. r0·:1e·.-:1n:: t.n-e q-.la! i ty as£:.1rar1c~ r~rurts ,:m:] t.n-:• d.:it., 1,mic:1 ~-·o-.; !'.:rare:: ... ·: ~'1 

~s aoo;.;: :n~ f oste!" -.c:ire ~vst-::?IT., w-~ n.Jvr- 1as~:.1.:1e:i som~ areu= t.n.:-:tt r.'.•,:-:J 

cia~1f:.::-n-:.1or.. Ua~1=:ill·,·, ~ need more 1r.:orr.-a:.1c:1 abou4: ~"6:· µ:-oc-es=- "'·:!1cn 

s,:•l ~-=t~~:, t.n-=- ::-hi 1 :jr~:i ..,,.!"lo W'.:'r~, ass,:-;::;s~:! a::: w-: 1: as wn.J.~. measur~ents w--re: 

us":'C. :- c~- e>:.:t:r;, l £... 1 n t.n:. d:1t:.t, m~us;.;.:- 1n:-: tO'. l cr,=t.:·, c; t 1m:> a:1 ,;1 V€.·ra.:J•. · :::-:-.1 l d 
st1€:1d:. 1:1 r-ia::~m~r.-:., you 1n::1c~ted tnnt 14~ ct cnil::!"~r. 1r. oui-of-:;om-::.• 
µ1a=~~-:. rczro1n tnere over 4 years. lJoes tn1s fiaure 1n=lua~ the c~1l:::rcn 
su~rv1sed oy the f-our ARC o:f1ces? t'\dd1t1onally, aoes tn1s :ic-.ire re::flect. 
th~ clients· r.•1.::ic~~e~-= h1stc:-\''.:' \\as only the date of la~t placement for a 
child. neasurea er aces tn1s ±1c-.lre represent. the length o: tune in pla~ment 
basal uoon the date tne child cnt~red tne sys~an, 1rrespe~i ve cf subsequ-ent 

l'la=ements? 
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We also found trie use of averaaes somewnat misleading. Averaae visu:at:.1on 
t:et:.-ween oaren-: and cnild, to:- examole:, recort.ed a: 7.6 v1s1ts oer vea.r, can 
snow a marKeo difrerencc if, a~ w,2 assum.ed, tnr.· 1m:ens1ve v1s1tatio:: tnat:. 
oc=urs :_1us-:. p:::-10:- to a cnild s returr. :1orrc: 1s 1r.::l i_:aed. Add1t1cnal 11 , if a 

cnilc.i 1£' v1s1t1m: ""·1~.n ootn p.:ircnt.s, ar•_· ~u=:1 \·1s1 t.:~ count.en seU:lr.lte}. ':" ~:.' 
are .sugaes-=.in:1 tn::i:: tn-e aata 1n=1ua~ me.::a~ns, ma.:-~1m:i and rr.1n1r. . .:., as....,_. were 

snowl"l 1r. so~ oi tn-:.' gual i ty assurance re;o.:-t.s, and tna:. t:.t1-2 ur-.::.: c: 
measurements oe aefinea attn~ lowest meas1...raol':: level, 1.e.:., oy d1~::.:-1c: 

office:. 

The data that you snared with us reflects a snapshc: cf children 1n the child 
welfare system at a specific point. in time. Pernaps a more aetailed c::-oss­
sectional analysis of tne foster care syste~ would be more valu3ole, 
especially i: related to sane tlJile series data tna-:. tracks a cnild-s prC9ress 
tnrough tne systaT" • 

In our prior data requests, we requested some furtner information which we 

have net yet reoei ved. We are very conc:::-erned a.i:x>ut tne rate of re=id1 visrn or 
replacement in foster care, including children wno return to parents er 
relat1 ves and t.nen care back into placerrent as 'Nell as chi ld.ren who rrove :rem 
one foster heme to another. It is difficul't to ITEasure tne effe:.-ctiven~s of 
services desi9ned to facilitate farr.ily re-u."1ific3:1cn, for ex.:rr.ple, if t.nere 
is no oat.a aoaut the percentaae of c.~ildrcn wno rmain at horre once the goal 
of farri ly re-unification 1s acn1eved. 

We are also con~rned abo'.Jt tne lacx. of-data rca::ir::ing Di\·is1on servic-c~s to· 
cni ld.ren a:.:=1n; ?lac~1c.:1~. Hov-i c'.tt.c:: ar~ c:.i lo.re~. ~"la::ed o:.:t.-c!-co:..int:t·? H~ 
o~:e:-: aoe2 tn~ case...,·8r-Ker se-::- tn~ =ni 1 d? Ho;,.- ~ :ten ar~ .: 1:.- l 1 nu •; 1.: 1 t.s 
a:-ran~-=---L·' :-10· • .- c~t.s:, an:i "'-n.:l": tj-pes c: scr·:1~:: ::.,_., IT'l':'C1ca:, ?s:,·:=n0lo:.:~::3.l, 
e::1:;:::a-:1c:-,a:, ~t=.) ar-:." ;::,rov1ae..: to tn<:' :::ii ld: \-.~-,J.: 1:-.£cnr.ut.1c:-. exist=. z.:.xY.::. 
tne rat.e c: sexua: abus~• 1 n o~~-cf -hom-:.• ;:. l ac-2:-:-,~nt.? Ho...., a re sucn C.ises 
re;:orted ard hCM· ar'2 tney handled bi· t.n~: !J1 •,1s10:1:~ 

J\ p1ctur-e c: wn!::rt~ tn~ out-of-nom<:> i:ilacemE>n~ pc;::..;l.:::it1on fits 1:-. tn-= t.~-:.al 
system wo..:.ld also n<::- useful. ~na~ perc-::?r.t:a~~ ~.: ~n'=' Div1.s1on·s c.;:1s~ lood 
rec-:::1 ves 1!"!-naTI-::- scr:1ces as c•ar::-"'-,red t.C' ':.11'? ;-:,er-::-~r-.t"100 c[ =ases ..... r.1cn rEY...:·..:!.r-:..· 
o~t.-of-nom~ ;:.,lac~m~:1:.? It. ""·c,-.;ld o·::- n':.;ipr~: fc:- o-..;r p~n,oses i.: ye:.: ~.:i.s,:vJ 

t.nese pcr=~:-,t3:J£.S c:-i cas~s a=::-~r.:t~,i io:- cn=~1n: ~ .. 1•.·1.;10~ ~:1..:~.,cr•,:1s1cn. u~:} 

e>:=lucie-...i -:.nc5~ C.:.t5~? 1:1 v.~.1=:: a:-, ~n:.i.c:~:. an:-: nCCllt•::-~ r·~fc~r~1~ ""·a::- rr~-iCJ--2 c~-: ~:::. 

su.os't.n~~1at.e:.l ~~:! 4:..!1'~r-0tor':.' no-: ac::-cot.e:: ro~ on:::::·1:.:-: .scr\·1 CW=..::.. 

It. ',,,'OUld D~: also n-_•1;::ful to :cl low 1-.;;, c:1 SOIT'~' c: ~n-_- 1:--.1-:.1.:::d d.:it.:1 ,.,.-:11:::-. ,..,-:J~ 
snared ~it~ us. ~~ underst.:::ind :na: a :nir~ s~:1~s o.: qual:t.} as~~r~n=~ 
re\·1ews fol low•2• those wh1cn were reL-crt.ed tc· u£. Did tncy ref i<.:>::: an 
1m=rov~t o:- worsc!'iinc: cf scr:1ces? \\1 l l th15 infcrna:.ion oc snarcvj .,,_,. t.h 
us? Add1t1onall1, since a year nas elapsed since tr¥..: Dl\"lSion 1dcnt.if100 case 
coals for all o: th-= children un:1er 1ts sur:en·1s1cr., \o\"l l l there o-~ <'l.'1Y fol lo,.•­
up to assess wnctner or not tnes~ goals w~re-mct? If so, ~ill ~n1s 

1ntcrna.t.1on be shared \o\ri. th us? 

... .. ,,,, 
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v.--· :::cr:-:.1 nu<£• to hav'"" scrn-'." sc::-10:;:· con~rn~- abou:. tn--:- l cr.::~: c:· -:1mc chi l dr~n 

zr:::,c.~.:..: 1:-. tost:.e:- care:.. C.U:- c.--cm:"'·...:r:-. a:x>U:. 00\,.' ion? ::::ni laren rerr.:.1r-. 1:1 plu~'!rc.~:. 

1:: d1re~tly related tc t.n~· 1sr;u~· of p~rm.c-incr.C"_;. W:111€' 1:. is clear tnat 

o~nr..::incr::-~· naz; oe:::ane a stron~ ::::ra l osoc-n·/ an::i c-o l icy o: t.n~· L'l v 1s1or., we 

aues:.10:1 wn~ner o:- no:. t.nc poll ::·y nas a:::.:uall y oeen 1rr.;::;.1.anr.-...nt.~.,..:i 1n-r.e> pra::-:.1ce 

to re::.fle=-:. t.1rrely pe.rn-anenc:,' c1-=.ner wrougn re-ur.1£1cat:.1on c:- aac;;t1an. 

Administrative and superv1sorv supports as wel 1 as stron? leadership are 

esser.-:.ia l t.o the del 1 very o: c!:fect.1 ve pernanmcy serv1res. As you Y.no..·, we 

are seriously concerned arout a worker's abil u:y to cive s1~ni:1ca"lt <:~ arrl 

attent.1on to a fost.e.:- care caselood wnen he or sne must. also res~nd to c::1ses 

1 n otner, more demandtn? cases. Wnat has been the impa:::-: c: tne increased 

child aouse and neg l.ect reporting on tne 11ne worker? We understand tnat 

case 1 oad size has again 1n=reas£Xi ar:d t.mt sare workers hav-2 case loads c:: 60-

80 cnildren or tmre. Do dist:-ict o:fices still ruve !=Ernane.~C'j' units? ls 

tne easel oad size in these uni t.3 rranageabl e? 

'!i"le de=isior.-niaking pr~ss its'=! l f has been 

.:1n~ tne Adop~ion Advis:,ry Co~1 ~tee. 

a=u.:ns~ra-:.ive s:.:~:-ts fc!" ci::1c:; l ~ case 

an issue c: tx:>t.h the Af3A Crnr.-.::. -=.tee 
Are worKcrs 
aecisions? 

re=-.:::?::. •,1ng .:id~uate 

ls ~n~!"~ manag~r1al 

IT10~:. -:..c=i n? an:l a=cour.~ubi ~ i -::. t.o ass~rc traat. de=i s ic~s c:.r-:..:. o-:.:. in; rr . ..:1::J~ ar.d 

1rr:;1lement:.ed 1n a ~imely fas:uc~? Ar<: cases b~in~ a:::::u.-r:c::.~d i!::c~l'.J3t~l:: so 

~:13.:. s~~~ld -:.ne =asi:- coill :::i:-ir?!:·, no ft:r4:.ne:- a-::la~'S c:::::...::- v.·!"'lil•_· new 

c=:=-...:n,::'::-:~ :.1 o:-. 1 s c::,t..:1 ~ ~ :' 

::-.:.i~~·"'·:JrK a1:>:-1~!C~. ~=-o=~s: .... ~:,':. !1::-!r.:1.:: of 4-:n~, I>,\:~ =-r:~r1i:-:-- :.:1.1~. ":n':· ~:,,;.:; 

:::!""~·.-1~1:;:; 100:l: r-:-::::r~:€'r.:..:1:.1c:-. ,-:!t~!"" ~nt:.· dn·1z1c:-. na~ 1ac-:-.:::.::1-:--:; .:i c:is~ a:::•~d. 

\·.:,~: :-c~=~=-n:"". ~= .3n,:~: ,::1i!:.: ~:-:l::-:.ic.-:~ 1s its cr.i:1!n:: t:!:':'=:..: ri,:.":..."'':'r:::1r.:: a~ 

::.~:::·.-1=~~: JM~ ~t.nr.::1:1:-d:.,, :--=:-:: .. :.:·: ~~:i:lr':':1 ilr~, n~"'~!· 0".'•""'1:-: :-:,~::~:i".:!"'~~j :.or 

OC"':" .T.JS•. ' C : c~.:1r:.:1Z1::"":~1: 
. . 

:.n·.. !...':. •.:1~1or,. 
n.:i.:::: m-i:1-2 no a~kx::..1on cam~t:mc.'1~- t.cn-~rally, "'~rK~rs r:-c:::-c€1v-:-• cu:11",:11.:m .. =-.n1r, as 

1r::.::csz::1ble in tnes~ cas~s: t.n•.· n."ll"!"nts' 1:ivolv~n:, ncw-.:-ve~ r..1n11ml, n<:a.:ites 

-;n-:.' t.1ih:r-= tc plan orc:m~i fer auar::hansh1r and trie l:1.: •~ of ad::-r:10:1 

=:r.r..: t::rn'-""_r.:.. by th-? f ostc:- par~:-:.: r: l 1rr.1n:it:.e~ the bes: 1 ntcrest '1r::'....""l'Cr:: basCI:? on 

;:-sv=:1olo~ic.;1l paren:.ino. l: seems to be tnese ch1ldre;1 ",:n=-• ri:ma1n 1n the 

sy;'.t.~-n i o:::- a 1 ong tin• w:-:i l ~ tn-.:: L'l \·1s10:1 wcrks to""'3rd i a.'T~ l y n:·-~"'li f ic:1t1c:1, 

-...·n:-• s~te::- ~~ r:os~ !requ~:::. r;-:..la~'its a."'ld "'no arc una::il~ to ,3::nieve any 
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w.::.· need to: tai<:~ .:i nard loo,~ a: thos-:? C"r.i)drer. tha:: rem:iin in o:.1t-o..,-nome 

r.,,lacerrer:: ~n-=- l onaest. arrour.: c:: -:1.m-_. /-..r-:· t.!'Y.:·: t..'1-::> c:-. .:. larer1 to wnom L_.;. ~1e::-
( 

-:.ne1; r-.=ir~:-:-:= o::- tost~::- parer.t.? hnv•.' m ... '-i•'-' u ccrrr..10TY.:'rrt:· l 1r<c> tht:?~: tn':." cm 1 c.r<2n 

1,,.;n.::, ar,_ r~:..~a::-c-2::i :reau~ti~. :ror nm,._, t..,, n~-=~· .Art· t.n~:,· tn':.' cara-i.ost.e: care 

case;::' />.r,- t~:.- t:.n~- olae!· cr.::.1ar~n.' ~- se,, c?P' tf)c-':. :-rnlare.:i •••.:no er-=.,.,.-;.:: 1:1 

car:: c, "-"=re_:• ~.nf'\.' placej as t!?enau~r:=:-:' U=-iies.::: W'C.' ar,_• uol-:.· to looi-'. a~ tn~· 

cn.:ira=ts:::-1~-:1c.--; o: tnes~ cn1lcre:;, we_ .... .-J.11 n<:vc:::- :ul 1 ~- r:.v."' able to act.enr.in-.· 1.: 

tn~· syst.e=:-: 1 s directing approor1at.e sen·ices t.c., t.n81:::- neeas. 

O:z se::ona m.3 :ior concern aoout the ou~ -o~ -home pl a cement system is wh:1: we 

view as tne aual1ty of car~ fa:- cnilcren 1n placenent.. Division data or:. -::us 

issue is ae?ressing. Your rate o: replacement statistics, for exa~~le, 

1n::i1c.3te -:na-: tne averaae foster child e.:,-uene...,ces at: leas-: t.hree placem:-r:t.s 

'--Tii le in C3.re. Since you nave nc:. rreas:.rred rec1d1 v1sm an:::1 since tius flc-..lre 

in:: ludes cni ldren who are 1n pl aceren-: for a sncrt pericxi of t.ure, we es:.1=r.ate 

t.nat. tne a::tual rate of replacement. may be even h1c;mer. We are conc:::::!'.'ned 

because we are seeing a populat.1on of cni ldren w1tnout. stani l1ty, who move 

tran pla~'it. to placarent. and evcnt.ucl ly end up in residential care. 

Similarly, your statistics re<;:rard1n9 t.re scmrat1on o: si!:)linas in pla~r.t. 

are also :nst.'..lr:nna. A=::crd1ng to ~s: q,J.;111~y ass:=ariC"'.: re~:-cs, 60~ of t.ne 

c:nl::r£:"". 1:; plac~n-:. are sep,:irat.cd ~rcr.-. -:ne1:- s1bl1.n::s. I: this f1c-..:r'? 15 

r:ase:i l:DO:-. 1:--.1 t.1al ~la::errent 1r. tos:.er c.:ire, 1:. 15 l 1.Kel y t..-a:. t..'115 ~rc~..r.:...:1c~ 

1s eve.--1 r.l:::i~:- since s1::il1nas ar~ c:te:--: s~oor::it.ed wn~., re;.ia~r:-: a~::=:-:. v-.--:::> 

ar<:.' c-=:;::,:::-n-~.::: a.:x:iut. t.n~ cffc:ts t.JE• LJ1•:1::1c:; l.5 rra,~1n~ -:c) ~ns:.:!"~· 4:.n.:l:. :::-i.:-:rr,:::-i 

r0!:~1~ ~~,=-:~n~:- or ut. le;.1s--:. 5':'4? 4?:1:-~·j c:.n~~ rc~:.;i;.;.~1:: 1: -:ne\· are ~.-1 .. l:-cd 

_,_ .. __ 
..• ~ .L••··~ 

r a'7.!. l v. 

1 c::ot.e:- :::-.i l j 1 oses ever_;t.h1n:'.l nP n.-=is .._;1,:-r, n-:, ::-cm:?s 1:-:t.o ;;la::~-: - no: c:7"'. l y 

1s h:- sc-:::-.,r:J.t.0J frcrr. :11:; p.:rrc:.t.s !:>:.::. n-:- IT>-::::r<:.' :.ron l 1K·::ly 1s; l.::i~ utx1:-~ :ran 

:-ns c-=-=~~rs and sisters. H~- 1s rroro trun llK!:!ly ranovt!d :ro,1 h1s c-=r.m·..1:-.1t.y 

and ;:..,l.:1.:-e>j 1n anot.ner to-...'11 or county. He mus-c leav€> rns scno:::>l, h1s 

a=-:1\·:-:.ie=i, :us friends, an~ ext.ended t~.ily ne nas. His :1:-s-: !-Jlace.~cr:-: 1.s 

nc:. ~1K.-:.:l-.· t=' oe n1s las-: .:m.:l :us t.lrT 1n ~,-? sy::um ... ·il 1 nc:. be sro~. (.n::e 

1:-: ;-i.,=-=:-n~-.:., n~ .• ,.-111 no: c::.~:. sec :--.1.., t':;!"':.'r'l':.~, :n.s si:.:.·l1n.:Js er 0,·-::. ~ilS 

/1.K 
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caseworKe.::-. On<? must auest1on wnetner tne consequences of care Just:::: tne 

need fo:::- placenent.. 

Th-= dt:>velcom~r:: c~ well-trained, auali:1ed foster oarents is an ess~:.:.ial 

E: l~J1:. c~ tn-:. svs~'3!- we ar-:.' awan . .- o: an:; su:::::::cr:: t~ L.!1 •:ision s c: ::cr:s to 

r12::7:.n:., tr:i::.:-. 3n:; m.:ur:t:.,:nn "' nctwort~ c:· .~o;;t:..::- nares. \'e:: en:~- m:..is: c: .. L.·::-::.10;1 

L'1\·1s1or1 c::.c~- -c.~ 1 r~t.3.1r~ t..nes~· r.ost:€'!- nare.s. P...r~J s~!'"'"',:1ce:-- t.c1 to:3~e:- C·~~'.-':'~.:..s 

a s1cr11:1car.:: ::::::-1cr1-::y 1n tn~: d1s:.r1s:. cf:.lc~· ou:::10<:': ar.:i oolicv? L .. tn'=' 

cons~;::. c: p.:1:-:.n~r5:11~, su~~c:"t.ed strcnai:. 1:-1 ;,8l1=-~, o~:-. 1rr.ple.rrn:r.: 0 .. ·:: 1:1 

a::t.ual -cr3=-:.1e<2? Ar'=! supocrts tc- foster parents dVa1la.:ile to encouraa~ ~n-~1:­

aev~lc;::m:::.r.:. ::.r.to exper1enc:ea carec1yers? 

~e relieve tnat we cannot ethical 1 y raise issues such as terminat10:--1 of 

parental r19:1ts and tirrely dec1s1on-rrak1ng 11.1~'10:.:t lcoku)9" at t:n:>se ser:ices 

available to parents to prevent out-o:: nan'= placare.'1t c:- to ef feet t1rre l ~.- re­

uni: 1cat1on. '!'ne federal Adcpt1on Assistance A~ req .. 11res tnat reasom.!:)le 

ef:c:--ts be rrade to prevent placement. We are aw:i.rc tmt tir.? D1v1s1cn ra.s r::ee:1 

ag:;:r~ssive 1r. providing funding to develop and 1:r.-plement cc:rnmun1ty-:::>ased 

ser\·1ces fer fa.'T.il1es. It seans an a;::;::ro;:::=iate trne to evaluate wnet..h'.:::- or 

not such services have been successful. Are tney directed to the most 

ap;::~pr1ate ;:oo~lat1on? Has tnere oeen any assesgmr-,__nt of tn'= utilization and 

su=cess of trosc prcgra.'T'.s fu.'1ded by tne D1 \·is:rnn? 

Sirr.i 1 a:-1 y, are e!"fe-::-:.i ve services bein? provide:} by the Di vi~ion to r~:..:.."'.i fy 

and s :.:irn l 1 ze : a.-r:i ~ 1es ,,,.;ncr~ ? 1 a::emen:. nas c:::::;rred? W~ ar€: ser1 v'.J3 l y 

cc~::c=ncd a:Y"--''....:~ som~ a: tne aual l~i· ass~~a::=t· a\J~a on ~:1is ~>01n:.. 

cxa::-:;;l(.., par12r:~-..,..,c~_-:er ~"·1:::.4:.:i~1cr: a\'';:!""a:J~:=. S- \"lS:~s oe~ :,1 e=1r.. lE" 
S ,.,_,..\,...... __ 

~~=--- -· - an~ s c r ·: 1 cs- s 

:.~·'.' ': lr.l · c: 

:.o a 

n., ,.,.-, l · r,,:l-· --o--· .. } ......... ;-,~ -. ._. - ."") 

:c, S'Jrr..or: :.~·- =:11 lj a:.. nom-:.. il.:i:s ~:,::.• ! .. :1'\."1.:::c:--1 r. 1•:.~3.:::,·;r~':l ~n-~ c: :c:-~ c: s·...1::-:1 

c::c:-ts? H.3:=; -:n•2n.· ~n -µol 1::· O!'l st.ana:ir-a.:, tc: c.:::cu-rc.~t.a:.10:1 rc9.:ir-Jies:::. cf 

c:i:=e c~ 1: 

.~ c3~:,ct c~n=luj~ ~:-=-~ou-: ackno~led;1na ~n~ strije~ -:.n~ D1v1s1on has m3d2. We 

·.:r:::-:.::: l \" su;:-:er-: yo-...r s::c:-ts to C!"O\"ld<c> cc:mr:-.. m::. ty-r:us~j scn:1::-es t.o t:ne tani l 1e?, and 

'.:-.::.1::rc..~ vc~ s£-:-ve. \or_ ~211~\'£' t.:13':. t.n-:_: !:11\·1s10:1 na: maa-:· a ~tro:-::i c::r.rr.1onm-:. t.0 tre 

,:::.::,;::.ic:, ~v.:tc::: ar..:: t:- ::c.:t.e:- rore.-;~ conc--=rn:::.. \,.~ :ire .1is:1 a...are oi" I:1v1s1on e:fcrts 

17 X 



co ci'?.V'?.lc:x1 new 1n1t1a-=.1_ves sucn as trl,, lecnsla-=.1v"? orocosal to:- lonr-t.~ Lost':'::-- care 

cus-coay and new pol icy on ooen aao:::.10:1 anci tn-= US,c• o.: r1sK ioste:- nol'l'Es. v-:- ar~, 

nOW':"ve::, conc~r?"'l'=d tna:. 1:. i~. sanewna: rrerrnt.:.ir~ to looK -:.o.,,ara ne .... tJOi1c'"_: Defor- :.he 

crc::.,l'.:!T' . .=; w:~·un tn~' oas1-:- S'.'Ste:--; ar,_· !...:~ 1· n:::1::r'=zser~. LU:- 1e.:i.:- 1: tn.,-: TY.:.'w co.:ii: 1r::: 1 

c.~ a~v-:: l rn...c.:.: nc:. t::.i me~: ':n:. neea:: c: c:.: l :::r-=:-. :J~·- t.o a::::-0:.1:-::. 1 c, ::ru i arc: 1 t.n-· s·:st.Er 

Tn<.: 
. - . 

1 ssues .:in:..: cor.c<2:-n::.; 1,,;--::: ra1s:_, 1:-: :.:-.1.- 1c::t.~:- a!"'' r<::.:.1c:-:.12n:-; c: :.:-.. --:: :-c:-:-::-.1::n ... ...::-::.. h-.· 

o~ l 1eve tnc1:. tn·..: cni l are::i w1 :.;nn ':.:--.1~; svste."'1 ar':-' :.n::>s'= -rc1 wno:-:-: t.r.·.· :::..:1t:-::: ov.":=.:- 1 :..::: 

=!'"e21-:es-: resocnsioi l 1 ~:.~: tnosi:.' c:-1:. l=!'"~r. !"c:-- Yw'no~ -:n~:. stat~ r,az:-~ 1 ~1:~:--,..l'cr1-::'~- .Jnd 

un::1ert.aKen c1 parent.ins; rolE;. ~'-· ar-_· cc:-.::crnei t...'1.:.:. tn:.· pol 1cic~; ~- 1:-;--:. 1errcr.t.e:.;., ':.na: 

ssrv1ces and s1.m~::.-ts be· J:::'."O\' 10~::. t...-u:. rn.:i..'1aae."TEn':. p:-cY.·1a-:: ac=-our.:..:..:.1:::. t\' t.o e.,.;;:.xe 

t.nat. no cm .. l d su.:.ters t:.ne conse::rJsnces c:: ;.1 .syst.gn tru:. na~ no:. l't"lS':. nis ne":ri;; • 

• 
10 conclusion, ~ would liKe to ex;:-ress o~= a~~reciat1on ro= :cu:::- CCXJ~ra~10~ 1~ ou:::-

e~;o:-c.s. 'l'.ou::- wi 111naness to snare a.::i.t.a .,,;1 t.'1 us and yoi= su~r:o::-t: o: o:..::- oa::.1::n . .c.:.1on 

i:1 \·a:::-1ous LJ1 \·is1on t.aS.r( fcrces and CCJT:;.: ~tees nas all~:: tc:::- ~lic s::-::-ut1nv c: :.:ns 

1r.oc:::--ca.r.:. issue. we wc~ld welcan: c1 rne-:::.1n9 to fu:-J1e:::- discuss tros~ conce:::-ns "''e n:we 

'1d::ressed. 

'.:::;.ro ;.,, • .3::.:ilcra 

11)( 
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C~-..::::.:.1.:1 Zali-;.1n'.J 
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TROUBLED YOUTH IN NEW JERSEY 
CRITICAL ISSUES 

SUMMARY 

New Jersey's system of caring for troubled children has reached a 

crisis situation in which: 

* There are not enough beds; detention centers, ·shelters 

psychiatric units, correctional facilities, and ODD and 

residential treatment programs are at or over capacity; 

Over 500 children are placed by DYFS out of state. 

* A troubled New Jersey child is more likely to be placed 

in a locked or temporary placement than in a residential 

treatment program. 

* Increasing numbers of children are being placed in 

corrections, shelters, and detention care. 

* A pattern of inequality exists with the likelihood of 

a child's being placed in a treatment program versus 

being placed in a correctional or temporary facility 

varying significantly by county. 

-!: The number of New Jersey children placed out of state 

has increased almost 607. in two years; at the same time 

the number of in-state residential treatment programs 

has dropped substantially. 

* The DYFS placement process is cumbersome and time 

consuming, often resulting in children waiting six 

months or more in "temporary" settings and/or being 

denied appropriate treatment. 

* The source of funding may play an inordinate role in 

determining a child's placement. 

* Major changes in the entire child welfare, juvenile 

justice, children's mental health system are necessary; 

A Department of Children's Services is called for. 



TROUBLED YOT.ITH IN ~EH JERSEY 
CRITICAL ISSUES 

In one of her last keynote addresses, Margaret Mead announced that, 

based on her many years of research, she now kne"! what to do abo1Jt ado­

lescents in America. As the audience eagerly awa i t_ed, she carefully ex­

plained her "solution": "The minute they turn thirteen, put them in the 

attic and lock the door; !!2,,!!£!, und~r any circumstances, onen the door 

until they turn twenty." Although at times an appealing thought to parents 

of teenagers and to others in the community, this is not seen by most as 

a socially acceptable solution to dealing with difficult youngsters. 

For ~ew Jersey's most troubled children, a variety of Departments, 

Divisions and agencies provide a variety of "solutions", often involving 

placement of the child in some type of residential program, some of which 

offer no more resolution to a child's problem than Margaret Mead's attic, but 

do serve the purpose of getting them out of the community. The most 

difficult children may be placed in "temporary" shelter and detention care, 

correctional facilities, psychiatric hospitals, or treatment facilities, 

including residential treatment centers, group homes, and teaching parent 

families (specialized foster homes). 

In reviewing statistics pr6vided)by-different sources, we find a 

discriminatory non-systern, full to over--capacity. While the statistics 

are not entirely com,arable, they paint a vivid picture of 1) insuffi.dent 

beds, 2) insufficient beds allocated for treatment, and 3) entry hto 

treatment vs, correctional placement varying considerably accordinz to 

county, Numbers, while valuable in pointing to patterns and in r;:i.isinr,; 

questions, tend to o-bfuscate the children which they represent. 1t i.s 

worth rer.1inding ourselves constantly that each number represents a ch·ll,'­

an abused, troubled, handicapped, delinquent, and/or disturbed chiln-~ 

child worthy of out attention and care. It is also worth reminding 

ourselves what the different placements mean to a child, stigIT1atized as 

"crazy" or "criminal", waiting in limbo powerless to ~ee or P.ffP.ct ri.s 

future, or·sent hundreds of miles from home and community, 

~o Room at the,,. 

>few Jersey's child welfare/juvenile justice/ children's mental health 

"systems" have reached a c-risi.s situation in whi.ch therr:> arP. !'lot ~no·wh 
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beds for troubled youth in any system. Excluding foster care, most of ~;ew 
Jersey's troubled children who are placed outside their homes are served by 
several systems, all of which are full to overflowing: -Detention centers are over capacity with the average population having 
increased 32% in two years. 

-Shelters are near capacity with their population having tripled in 
two years. 

-The two state psychiatric hospitals are at or over capacity,(at the 
time, the plan is to substantially cut long-term beds). -All CCIS units are at capacity with waiting lists. The TRIS wahi ng 
list is six weeks for emergencies. 

-DYFS funded residential treatment centers and group homes are near 
capacity with an additional 500 or more children placed out of state. 
Out of state placements have soared over 507. in two years. -ODD facilities are at capacity with approximately 150 children placed 
out of state. Having a child accepted by DOD is described as a "near 
irnpossibi li ty." 

New Jersey's ill planned non-system of caring for troubled children 
has reached a crisis in which all the diverse agencies are at or over 
capacity with those children who are accepted for services. No figures 
are available on the number of children denied services. 

h1here Have .\ll the Children Gone? Not only are there insufficient beds, the allocation is such that 
a troubled ~ew Jersey child is more likely to be placed in a highly 
restrictive, locked stigmatizing (correctional or state mental hospital) 
facility or in a "temporary" shelter or detention center (which provide 
no treatment) than in a less restrictive treatment program. Of the approxi~ 
mately 3,900 children placed outside their homes in other than foster care 
(of ODD facilities, CCIS units, or privately funded placements): -23% are in shelter or detention centers. Many wait six months or 

more, in a limbo status, in these "temporary" settings, receiving no 
treatment. 

-39% are in correctional settings-DOC facilities or detention. -25"~ are in Department of Corrections faci l i ti.es, -Approximately '56~; are in correctional, ~tate psychiatric hoi;pi tals, 
or temporary shelter or detention care. 
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-Only 44% are in non-restrictive treatment programs. Since the non­

restrictive placements (unlike correctional, detention and shelter placP­

ments) serve children of all ages, the percentage of adolescents receiving 

treatment services is probably considerable lower. 

Increasing number of children are being placed in correctional, 

detention and shelter facilities. 

-In 1985, juvenile committments to corrections numbered 794. In 1986, 

974. Waiting lists for correctional placements soared as high as 173 in 

April 1987. The increase in correctional committments came primarily from 

four counties (Passaic, an increase of 47; Camden, an increase of 46; 

Hudson, an increase of 38 and Essex, an increase of 27), 

-In January 1985, children in shelters numbered 117; in February, 1987, 

the number tripled to 352. 

~In 1985, the average daily detention population was 431.7; in the 

first five months of 1987, 571. 

-:fuile an increasing number of children are being placed in cor­

rectional facilities, according to a recent JDDC paper, within one year , 

(between the first six months of 1985 and the comparable period of 1986) 

court referrals to DYFS decreased by 41,9%, from 215 to 125, 

In addition, in 1986, 298 children were committed to state hospitals 

(141 to Arthur Brisbane and 157 to Trenton) while an esti~ated 1,254 

entered CCTS units, Children in "temporary" detention and shelter care 

averaged about 887 in 1986; an additional 1271 were committed to correc­

tional facilities or state ho$pitals for a total of 2159 (this does not 

include those temporarily committed to CCIS units). Only 1721 were in 

treatment facilities, of which over 500 were placed out of state. Thus for 

every five children placed in a restrictive or temporary placement, only 

four were in a non-restrictive treatment facility, 

Some Are Lucky, Some Are ~ot 

The likelihood of a child being placed in a non-restrictive treatment 

facility versus being placed in a restrictive or temporary facility varies 

siP,nificantly depending on the child's county. In Passaic county, for 

instance, for every child in a treatment facility, 4,4 wer~ in restr.ic-t:ve 

or shelter care; onl,· lR~'. were in treatment facilities, In neighboring 

Bergen county, 63"', were in treatment facilities. 50"~ of Passaic's placed 

(nther than foster care) children are in 1epartment of ~orrections ~~c;litie~; 
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Only 10% of Bergen's .. 72% of Passaic's were in correctional/detention 
settings compared to Bergen's 25%, Comparing Passaic to Essex, a Passaic 
child had less than half the chance of being placed in a treatment facility 
(39~ Sssex to 18% Passaic) and twice the chance (50% Passaic to 24~ Sssex) 
of being placed in a correctional facility, The number of children com­
mitted to·corrections does not appear to correlate with the number of offenders 
nor the nutflber of offenses: 

!! of f! of Correct, Corr, Comm, 
County offemi~.s offenses committ, fr offenders 

- '· t/l/87~3/31/87 1986 (annualized) 
Bereen 949 1416 18 0.4~: 
Passaic 282 445 ,. 72 20,3~~ 
Essex 2573 4260 143 1,8?. 

While Passaic County is extreme, in reviewing the figures, there are 
significant differences between other counties, The discrepencies also 
include children committed to state ps1chiatric hospitals. The percentage 
of this group (of the placed as defined) in state hepitals ranged from 
highs of 19, 6i. of Morris children and 17, r~ of ~fiddles ex children to lows 
of l. 6% in Bergen and O in Gloucester and !-larren. 

The pattern of inequity continues to hold true as we compare the 
number and types of placements to the total population, age 10-19. It is 
clear that the wealthier, less urbanized counties with lower minority 
populations place relatively few children in correctional, short term or 
treatment facilities in comparison to the poorer nore urbanized counties. 
Seven counties placed 20 or less per 10,000 (Bergen, Burlington, Gloucester, 
Hunterdon, Morris, Sussex, and Warren). Seven counties placed more than 
40 per 10,000 (Atlantic, Camden, Cumberland, Essex, Hudson, Passaic, and 
Union). However, it is important to note the differences between these 
counties 

Detent. Treat :; of- f.~of- Corr. Corr., Co!:!, 
Countz Correct. ment Total fenders fenses C6m.r:i. offe!'lders 

Passaic 35.1 9.0 48.9 282 445 172 20.3 
Camden 26.5 19.8 51.1 867 1344 169 6.S 
Atlant. 23.4 21.1 48.4 S34 951 63 3.9 
Ci..unber. 21.6 20.7 44,5 430 933 22 ,. • 7 

llnion 19.2 15,7 44.1 967 1687 75 2.6 
Zs!'= ex 18.7 19.3 !• 9 .3 2673 4760 i.43 1.S 
'.Tunson 15.0 25,7 '19 • ,_ 966 14~7 {i., ? ., 

- 9 -· 
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In looking at the five who place 48-51 per 10,000, the difference of 

less than three per 10,000 is less significant than the proportion placed 

in correctional versus treatment. Hudson, with a total of 49,1 places 

only 15 in correctional settings while sending 25.7 to treatment facilities, 

Passaic, on the other hand, while placing 35.1 in correctional settings, 

sneds only 9 to treatment facilities., In comparison to Passaic's meager 9, 

Camden, Atlantic, and Essex send over 19 per to,ooo to treatment facilities. 

There is no correlation between the number of offenders and offenses and 

those coITlI!litted to correctional facilities, Comparing the number of children 

committed to the number of offenders, we find a wide range between l,8: 

and 20.3~(, Only ·o.4":: of .Bergen offenders were committed, 

It is not within the purview of this paper to analyze the reasons 

for the serious differences in the treatment of children based on their 

county. An in-depth study, analyzing a range of factors, seems indicated, 

Regardless of the reasons, there arei!lous public policy concern~ when one 

finds a clear pattern of inequitable access to non-stigmatizing less 

restrictive treatment programs and an inequitable and inordinate utiliza­

tion of correctional facilities, 

Out of Sight.,, •• 

Over the past years, )Tew Jersey has been unwilling to make a com­

mitt:ment to serve its handicapped, emotionally distttrbed, and troubled 

youth by developing and maintaining a range of residential treatment faci­

lities and community based servtces, The misallocation of resources and 

the reluctance of New Jersey to plan in a comprehensive way and support 

services for its children is demonstrated not only by the substantial 

numeer of children in non-treatment facilities, but also by ~ew Jersey's 

"exporting" a large number of its most needy children for placement in 

other states, At the same time that increasing numbers of children are 

SP.nt out of state, the number of in-state residential treatment centers 

has dropped substantially, 

-The ACNJ (Ass~ciation for Children of ~ew Jersey) 1975 study of 

rP.sidential facilities listed 28 private residential facilities (excludi~~ 

specialized substance abuse and maternity faci. liti.P.s); ~ n 1.9~7 DYF'S lists 

fifteen (i_ncluding two also licensed and used primarily by lJDD) ~xcluding 
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specialized facilities.;': Actually one, Boys Town has become a group home, 

cutting the number to 14, 

-In 1975, 1.013 New Jersey children were placed in New Jersey resi_­

dential treatment centers; in April, 1987, only 664, 

-During the same time period, there has been an increase in the number 

of children placed in community based homes (from 176-237) and in teaching 

parent families (from 0-178). With ti;esEf'group home' and teaching parent 

family beds, if the 1013 New Jersey residential beds had been maintained 

(developed and funded to serve the appropriate populations), ~ew Jersey 

would be able to serve approximately 1428 children in state, thus cutting 

down substantially on the number of children sent out of state, 

-Of the 14 existing residential treatment centers, two are new since 

the time of the ACNJ study (Project Use and Devereux Deerhaven). In other 

words, in just over twenty years, 16 of the 28 facilities closed (or were 

modified into smaller group homes, In addition, other new programs 

were developed and closed during this time. 

-Over the years, there has been li:nited support by DYFS and OHS for 

the treatment facilities. Costs of comparable s.tate-run residential 

treatment centers are approximately double those of private facilities. 

In spite of turnover rates approaching 100% annually in child care staff 

(and its negative impact on needy children), the Department of Hu.~an Services 

has been unwilling to fund a moderate salary increase. Salaries for the 

state child care staff are considerably higher than those of private 

facilities. This critical salary issue is indicative of a pervasive lack 

of support of the private agencies which provide most~of·t~e in-state 

residential treatment. 

-From 1985 to 1987, the number of children placed out of state has 

risen from 318 to 506, an increase of over 50%! 

-In spite of the number of children placed out-of-state, no compre­

hensive study has been done to evaluate their needs nor has there been a 

comprehensive plan to develop and maintain programs in state to meet their 

needs 
., . 
... Urns, Bancroft, Bonnie Brae, Children's Home of Burlington, Children's 

Psychiatric Center, DmetDi, "olley Center, Kilbarchen, Mount Sr. Joseph, 

:.fount Scott, Project Use, Ranch Hope, SomPrset ~!ills, and St, Peter.'s. 
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The "exporting" of troubled children has a serious impact on the 

possible quality of care they receive, on the individual children and' 

and their families, and on the ')Tew Jersey child care system. 

-In-state facilities must meet rigorous state standards and are 

recularly monitored in both announced and unannounced visits, Stringent 

(and appropriate) institutional abuse and neglect regulations apply and 

are enforced, Out of state facilitie~ do not have to meet similar stringent 

standards nor are they subject to comparable levels of monitoring, 

-Community people (board members, volunteers, and others), visiting 

family members, DYFS caseworkers, school personnel, and child placement 

review members provide additional informal monitoring, and can (and will) 

report possible problems for immediate investigation. 

-Utilizing both the formal and informal referral systems in-state, a 

child ready for discarge can be more readily and appropriately moved home 

or to a less restrictive setting, Other New Jersey resources are more 

readily available to the child and family, thus helping insure better 

continuity of care, 

- For most children, continued and regular contact with their families is 

essential. Even for child~n for whom (because of their own severe disa­

bilities or because of the severe dysfuntion of the family) return home is 

not a viable plan, visits-at·the facility or at home, and recular telephone 

contact are important. :,'hen the plan is return home, frequent visits are 

essential to help insure that the child remains psycholoeically a par.t of 

the family. 

- Visits and regular contact by the DYFS caseworker and local school- • 

essential in planning a child's return-are less likely for children placed 

out of state. 

-The ability of the facility to work with the family around the child's 

problems and toward return home is minimized as the child is placed out 

of state, 

-Although many of the children placed out of state are within fifty 

mi.les of New Jersey, children placed in Delaware and Pennsylvania, for 

instance, are often a three hour or more drive (with limited public trans­

portation) for families from northern New Jersey, a serious obstacle to 

rezular visits. 

~ew Jersey's reliance on other state's facilities has allowed it 

to avoid planning and developine the necessary range of services :n state, 
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At this time, there are not sufficient beds in state, nor are there 
programs designed to meet the specific needs of many of the children plac~r! 
out of state. Facilities do not exist in state based on a needs assessment 
and a comprehensive plan. The few remaining facilities determine their 
own plan and program, changing only in response to changing referrals. 
Exporting children is an easy , and in the short-term less costly., 
.. solution" to developing and mai.ntaining the needed in-state programs, 
In long term, it is expensive and detrimental to New Jersey's children • 

. It's Sasier to Get Into Harvard 
The DYFS placement process is a cumbersome complicated one in which a 

minimum of six months is not uncommon. Obtaining the diagnostic workups, 
educational classification and funding approval (or non-approval), pre­
paring the summary, obtaining necessary DYFS (District Office,.Regional, 
and/or Central Office) approvals are only the first steps in a non-co­
ordinated process. At any point in this initial phase, a variety of barriers 
can emerge. Criteria for detez:ming which children are~appropriate for 
placement seems to vary between district offices, 

Once the package is complete and a decision made that some form of 
residential place~nt is necessary and appropriate, phase two begins. In 
the majority of cases, placement packages are sent out shot gun fashion 
to a large number of "least restrictive" (an euphemism for less costly) 
placements, even when the caseworker does not feel thesP are appropriate 
for a child c~.case records note-"He has to be rejected by the group homes 
before I can apply to the residential treatment centers he needs.)Once 
rejected on round one, a similar process is carried out on round two, 
If again rejected, exceptional funding is sought to permit placement in 
certain facilities, and the serious search for an appropriate placement 
begins. !Jith few exceptions, most DYFS caseworkers have little lmowledge 
of the different·facilities; decisions are made not by the caseworker based 
on how they see the needs of the child, but rather by which facility has as 
opening and is willing to serve the child. 

Obviously this is a frustrating and costly process which does not 
ne~t the needs of children desp~rately in need of tr.eatnent. r.aseworkers 
s~end valuable tiMe preparing multiple packets for aP,encies which are inap• 
propriate ("i.ncludine; referring an adolescent giri to a facility serving 
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yo1:1ng boys). .\gencies spend valuable staff time reviewing children 

clearly inappropriate for their program. In the meantime, parents, judges, 

and the community become angry and frustrated. Caseworkers become angry 

and defensive about being blamed for a process over which they have little 

control. 

And the child waits and waits and,,.often deteriorates. Children sit 

in "temporary" holding facilities-shelter and detention-receiving no 

treatment and frequently minimal educational services. They may move from 

one foster home to another and another. They may be excluded from school. 

They may act out, run away, attempt suicide, Their escalating behavior-

in response to being in limbo-may then make them inappropriate for facilities 

Yhich could have served them six months earlier. One child who had sat 

in the shelter for months explained her running away: "At least I got to 

see the judge, I just wanted someone to tell me \Jhat's going to happen 

to me," Given the non-functional pla~ement process, there is no rational 

answer to her question, 

Money Makes the Placements Go Round 

No placements-be they shelter, detention, corrections, state hospi· 

tals or treatment facilities-are inexpensive. :~nat does differ is: who 

pays the bill? '.11hile never publicly or officially stated, this may be a 

major factor in delaying or preventing placemnts, and may partially 

e.xplain the high number of correctional placements from some counties, 

Detention: The county pays; no school funding 

Shelter: The county pays a substantial part; the cost to DYFS 

is lower than a treatment facility; no school funding 

Corrections:Department of Corrections; county pays nothing; 

low cost school funding-schools can~ refuse to fund 

State Hospitals: DNHH (Medicaid)-Counties may pay a portion; 

low cost school funding-schools can~ r~fuse to fund 

Treatment facilities: DYFS funded-Counties pay a quarter of the 

cost; education costs vary; none to sending school district 

in most group homes anct teaching parent families; in residP.ntial 

treatme~t centers, varies, but are often higher than in core-ctions 

and state hospitals; schools can and do delay or refuse to 

provide f•mcEng. 
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Clearly it is in DYFS's and the local school system's fiscal interest 
to move slowly, it at all, in placing a child into a treatment program. 
".:t is also in DYFS's, the school"s arnd tne co1mty's fi..scal interest to 
defin a child as more appropriate for corrections. Two examples highlight 
the pr.oblem. At a time when Arthur Brisbane is overcrowded, a DYFS region 
refused to place disturbed,t:hildren in a less restrictive (and less costly­
but not to DYFS) facility which had accepted them because of the region's 
budgetary constraints, A ··facility, in one year, accepted sixteen chil­
dren from one school district, Not one entered the facility because the 
school district refused to provide funding, It is not inconceivable 
that judges, facing overcrowded detention centers and frustrated by the 
DYFS placmnent process, decide to send a child to a correctional facility 
rather than to a more appropriate treatment facility, Thus, the varying 
financial responsibilities ~, in some instances, determine where and 
when a child is placed rather than the needs of the child or the actual 
cost of care. 

Not I Said the,,,,. 

It is both easy and difficult to assess responsibility for this 
non-system disaster, In public declamatory simplistic statements,Division 
and Department heads, Commissioners, legislators, agencies and child advocates 
can (and will) easily and loudly blame ·everyone else, \-Iith fervor, one 
can hlame: 

1. One's predecessor(s). All of them! 

2. Lack of funds (from the legislator, from DYFS to fund programs, from 
the local governments, etc.) 
3. The other divisions .for not taking. responsibi1ity-for their d1il5iren. 
4, 

5. 

15. 

7, 

counties/municipalities 

The state 

The schools 

Private agencies 
" 

" 

" 

" " 

" 

" 

" " .. 
" " 

" .. .. 
" " " 

8~ :,: 3-7 for not cooperating, coordinating, planning. 

9, Poverty 

1.0 rtaci.sm 

11, Lack of prevention, or education or •• ,. 

" " .. 
" " " 

" " 

" .. 

'.ihile each of these factors play a role in the current situation, the 
prnblerns are long standing and no easy answers full? explicate nor re-
solvP thP rr0blems. !ihat i.s clear is th<lt we ran and do devote consi dPr;:ihle 
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energy attempting to establish blame; what this accomplishes is a diversion 

from looking at underlying problems, a confusion in the minds of the publir 

and the legislature, and a propensity for quick fix solutions in a ti~e 

of cr·isis. C ·1 • 1 - · l 
Tne current mental health "plan" 1.s aster 1.ng examp e of 

such a quick-fix non-plan "solution",), Rather than searching for the 

scapegoat, it may be more constructive to look for underlying themes.which 

have resulted in the current situation,· 

1. An overemphasis (whether based on philosophy or on fiscal reasons) 

on least restrictive rather than most appropriate. Rather than recognizing 

that~ children require residential treatment for some period of tine, 

and working to insure quality and appropriate treatment facilities, many 

(including child advocates) view almost any form of out-of-home treatment 

as a (somewhat necessary) evil. Community based is not a panacea! 

2. Flowing from this philosophy, New Jersey has been unwilling to 

make the committment to develop and maintain the necessary range of services 

for its most troubled youth, including sufficient and appropriate treatment 

beds. 

3, Within their existing budgetary constraints, mental health and 

corrections have placed less emphasis on serving children thah·ad·ults,thus 

diverting resources from children. 

4. Fiscal:· responsibilities may play an inordinate role in determining 

whcne and when a child is placed, The actual cost may be less a concern 

t~an whose budget is being tapped. \-/hen it is easier and cheaper to allow 

a child to remain in "temporary" shelter and detention care, there is less 

incentive to DYFS to revise an unweildy placement process, School districts 

can prohibit a child's receiving treatment for financial reasons, 

5. .\ pervasive penny-wise, pound-foolish philosophy undercuts the 

development and maintenance of quality programs. Bureaucrats too rarely 

articulate publicly the actual cost of quality care and advocate strongly 

for the necessary funds, 

6,'.Tith a variety of agencies, divisions, and departments having res­

ponsibility, often no one is responsible and accountable. .1. multi-problemed 

youth ( who may be: emotionally disturbed, of borderline intellit;~nce, 

rl.el i..nq11ent, abiised/neglected, and a substance abuser) nay have multiple 

case managers and ~ultiple assessments, The result, all too o~~e~, ~s eac~ 

aGency, division, and department stating that he "doesn't helong becat.:se 

~e is too _____ (fill in the blanh) and should be _____ 's responsi-
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bility, Hore broadly, wi.th the variety of agencies having overlapping 

responsibilities, it is difficult to hold any one fully responsible and 

accountable for systemic problems. 

7. Planning takes place without comprehensive and comparable 

statistics being readily available on the children served by the various 

state and county agencies. There are apparently few statistics available 

on the children who are denied services. 

8. At each crisis, quick fix plans are developed in a vacuum with 

little recognition of and input from other divisions and services, and 

without recognition of the impact of the newest plan on other services. 

"Xew" commissions, committees, and task forces are proposed and/or establisher:' 

to deal with a segment of the problem, "New" iniatives and programs are 

promulgated. 

Regardless of the good will and best interests of professionals and 

advocates, the antique non-system of serving troubled children is not 

only fragmented and divisive, it is also costly, fiscally, and more impor­

tantly to the children and their families. Our approach to this non-system 

of caing for troubled children is comparable to trying to keep a twenty 

~rear old car running. At each breakdown, a new transmission, battery, or 

carburator is provided to try to keep the rusty failing machine moving a f~w 

more miles. Xew coats of shiny paint are applied to attempt to cover the 

dents and rust, but quickly slough off, Regular maintenance is not 

carried out so, as in the oil filter comnercial, we pay later. Cver the 

long run, the repair bills mount, breakdowns increase, often at critical 

times, and the inefficient car becomes less safe, To carry the analoey 

a step further, the old wreck is jointly owned by different drivers who 

take it to be repaired by different mechanics (each guaranteeing-not in 

writing-a miracle). The repair bills always exceed the estimates and the 

repairs barely outlast the warranty. Each driver and mechanic blames the 

others for the problems, "If only ~ had fixed the hose when you put in 

the battery." "If only you had taken it to my garage." l-ihile a new car 

would be less costly and far more efficient, the various drivers not only can 

not agree on the model, they also have not agreed who will pay the down 

payment and whose names will appear on the owner.ship papers. The current 

r::risis whi.ch incl:1rles insuffic~ ent heds, 1.ns11ffld0.nt bf"ds allorc:1.tcrl for 

tTcat71ent, seem'ine;ly discriminatory placer.nt of children, and the 1:1or.dinate 

0•1rnbP.r of children plar.ed nut of state is syrnptomatir. that the old wrec!-: 'has 
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has again broken down. Do we do a quick-fix repair job, or do we now develop 

and invest in a new model? 

Forward to the Future! 

While it is easier to be critical, it is more difficult to formulate 

solutions (and even more difficult to implement the solutions into realistic 

programs). I would like to propose a general direction for children's 

services in this state. In proposing a new model, I would like to focus on 

one major structural change, and then focus on issues specific to resi­

dential Se-t"vices. There are many additional issues relating to prevention, 

child abuse/neglect, foster care/adoption, voluntary vs involuntary, and 

premanency which, while not· discuss_ed in this paper, are critical issues to 

be adch:'essed in designing our new model. I would hope that the concepts 

in this paper provide an impetus for discussion, debate, additional ideas, 

revisions to this model, and most importantly, action. 

Model 

1. A Department of Chilch:'en's Services be established which includes 

all children now served by DYFS, oon~ OMHH, DOC, and DOH. 

2. Ongoing comprehensive needs assessments ·be carried out to include 

all children served by these agencies and children referred who are-not 

served. While the needs assessment should be carried out on a state wide 

basis, it i.s essential to have local input. 

3. The Department of Children's Services establish in each county an 

intake/diagnostic/assessment unit with the capability of completing a full 

work-up in one month. 

4. A child and family have one case manager who is responsible for 

arranging appropriate services, regardless of the child's specific needs. 

s. The Department of Children's Services be responsible for funding 

all· long term, placements (including what are now correctional,-mental 

health, developmentally disabled, and treatment) (possibly with the counties 

contributing a percentage) and for funding county shelter/detention care 

after a limited time period so that the child's needs and most appropriate 

services de~ermine the placement or non-placement rather than the funding 

source. Fucn,.-i.ng mechanisms be developed to provide incentives to counties/ 

municipaliti.es to develop community based programs which prevent entry into 

the more restTictive state system. 

6.The Department of Children's Services, in establishing its funding 
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priorities, focus on children most at risk of out of home placement and most 

at risk of abuse and neglect. 

7. An Office of Child Advocate be established, separate and distinct 

from the Department of Children's Services. 

s. fil children in out of home placement be reviewed by the child 

placement review boards acting as arms of the court. 

Residential Issues 

1. One major component of the needs assessment focus on those children 

who are in or are referred for an out-of-home treatment program to determine: 

a. What community programs are necessary to maintain children in the 

community or to enable them to return more quickly? How many, where, with 

what components? Day tTeatment, respite care, expanded mental health, intensive 

family therapy, for instaace, are options to be considered. 

b. What addional residential (to the exi• ting correctional, mental 

health, DYFS, DOD, shelter and detention) beds are needed to serve all 

children in state? How many? What specific programs? Where located? 

can some of the existing beds be utilized for more appropriate programs? 

For instance, could shelters become community based treatment programs? 

c. In developing an ongoing process of needs assessment, it is essential 

to develop a means for early identification of those populations for whom it 

is difficult to find appropriate services/placements (currently, for instance, 

arsonists, sex offenders, dually diagnosed) so that necessary programs can 

be developed in a timely fashion. 

2. A change from a philosophy that least rest-rictive community based 

is always in a child's best interest~. The guiding principal should be !!2.!,! 

apprgpriate (a child should not have to fail in the community or in several 

foster homes before receiving necessary treatment). For a variety of reasons, 

some children must be in a more restrictive environment for some period of 

time. Rather than an anti-residential philosophy, we should insure that the 

children who need residential treatment receive it at the appropriate time and 

for the necessary length of time, and with a quality prog-ram that meets 

their needs. At the same time, we should insure that no child is in a 

restrictive setting for lack of necessary cOIIIIIIUllity based programs. 

3. Quality prog-rams a-re costly, Certain populations require very high 

staff/child ratios. The caliber of the program is contingent on the quality 

of the staff. There must be a committment on the part of the state to 
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recognize the need for and adequately fund quality programs, including providing both adequate salary levels and adequate staffing levels. 
4. An ongoing training program must be developed and required for all child care staff. 
s. A child should be able to move easily and quickly between different types of programs. A child in a residential treatment center who is suicidal must be able to enter a closed psychiatric unit inmediately, be stabilized, and return to the center; or a child. whe has progressed Smould be able to move to a group home, specialized foster heme Gr return to his family with the ability to re-enter the treatment center, if necessary. Underlying this concept is the need for one agency responsible for!!! out-of-home placements, regardless of their being "mental health", "corrections", ~:c. We must not continue a fragmented system in which varying divisions compete to develop specialized programs for "their" Populations. 

6. The residential programs should have primary responsibility for working with the families as well as the child, and should have the capacity of providing services to the family in the COD1DUnity where necessary. Too often now, the child is treated in isolation with the family's not being an integral part of the treatment plan. Families (if they receive treatment at all) may be served by overburdened DYFS workers or by local private agencies who have little idea of the child's needs, progress, or program. In order to help insure the child's reintegration into the family and community, the resi­dential provider should be responsible for developing and helping provide after-care, in conjunction with the Department of Children's Se'l'Vtces and c~nmrunity agencies. Too often now, children who "succeed" in a residential program "fail" when they return home because there is no planned and inte­grated program of after care. 
7. A residential system be developed so that the majority of children are served within their region (or within a reasonable geographical distance) so that distance is not a barrier to regular visits, family therapy, and after care. Whenever possible, treatment progTams should be located in those counties with the larger populations r~quiring placement. Within each region, there should be a range of Se't'Vices including the most restrictive (psychiatric hospitals, correctional), residential programs with specialized schools (these programs could provide a range or more or less intensive services), group homes, specialized foster homes, as well as, on a county (or cross county) level day treatment, respite care, etc. Children should cross 
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regional lines only when a) there is not a suitable program (with an opening) 
in their region and b) the geographical distance is not significant (children 
in bordering counties could be served equally well by either region)or, 
because a highly specialized program serving a limited number of children 
would not be cost effective on a regional level, placements should be on a 
state level. Consideration should be given to developing programs providing 
a range of these services. For example, ..a residential treatment center 
could also provide a day treatment program., Specialized services could be 
developed to serve children in a variety of programs; for instance, an 
"outward bound" type program could be utilized by children from any of the 
community or residential treatment programs. 

8. Family partici"pation in treatment should be required, with support 
from the court from the court, if necessa~. All too often, families, 
overwhelmed by their child's problems, "dump" the child, and abrogate all 
responsibility and involvement. (In addition, families must be budgeted 
and required to contribute to the support of their children.) Only when it 
has been carefully determined that family reunification is impossible and 

-· . -
that the family's involvement is detriment!~ to the child should the family 
not be involved. In such instances, termination of parental rights and/or 
emancipated minor status should be considered. 

9. When a child is determined to be in need of residential placement, 
specific goals and objectives withreuonable time frames should be formulated. 
Ongoing (internal and external) monitoring must be carried out to help 
insure that progress is being made and that a child is moved to a less 
restrictive program when appropriate. 

10. While it is clear that we lack specU.Hzed programs_ for c:.eli'tain 
populations (for instance, sex offenders, arsonists, autistic, dually diagnosed), 
an additional service area also must be developed. Some children can not 
return home. For children whose families are destructive, rejecting and 
dysfuntional, independent living programs must be available. For severely 
handicapped children who will require long term institutional or sheltered 
care, clear mechanisms must be established and enforced so that at a specific 
age they are "picked up" and served by the relevant agency (such as ODD). 

11. Except for a very unique child with highly specialized needs, !!2. 
child should be placed out of state. A program to develop the necessary 

f,,li"I 
resources in-state should be plaMed immediately and~implemented within 
two years. If necessary, the legislature should mandate that (except for 
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a specific small number or percentage of children) all children be served 

in state and provide the resources necessary to develop the programs. 

12. Educational funding must be available immediately to a child who 

requires out of home placement. No child should be denied the right to 

treatment based on the lack of funding from a school district. One passible 

approach would be for the Department of Education to assume inaediate responsi­

bility for funding and later billing the responsible school district. 

Another issue to be consid1tted in the case of group homes is whether the 

sending school district should retain responsibility for its.children. 

Numbers and Questions 

The numbers are not comparable ( se= page t<D. Some reflect populations 

on a given day, others a yearly average, and others colllllitments in a year. 

However, these were the available figures. Figures also were not generally 

available with age breakdowns. Although one could anticipate some minor 

changes in percentages when using comparable figures, the figures point to 

clear patterns and raise more questions than they answer. Explanations 

require skilled research and very specific knowledge of the counties and 

of diverse agencies on a state and local level. 

For example, coming from and knowing Bergen County, I was not surprised 

to find, within the low over-all rate of placement, the the low proportion of 

correctional placeme~ts and the higher proportion of placements in residential 

facilities. Not only is Bergen one of the wealthier counties, its county 

government has made a firm and lasting c0111Ditment to provide many services 

to its troubled youth. It has a long judicial tradition of seeking (and 

insisting on) treatment for troubled acting out youth, while utilizing 

corrections only for hard-cord delinquents for whom other alternatives are 

not suitable. The vast majority of its school districts not only are willing 

to provide edtla.tional funding, they frequently are strong advocates for a 

child. Parents often are also strong advocates for their children and are 

frequently able to negotiate the systems. The DYFS district office has 

recognized and supported residential placements when appropriate, while 

seeking and utilizing the many t:eDDllunity servicess it has an experienced 

residential unit with a knowledgeable supervisor. The many county agencies 

work to coordinate services and to develop comprehensive plans for children. 

The mind-set of many coDDllunity figures and the resultant commitment clearly 

are factors that are not measurable by numbers. 
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While one might expect clear differences between the wealthier and 
poorer counties, I have no easy explanation of the reasons between the 
differences between Passaic and Essex. What explains the wide differences 
in the use by different counties of the state psychiatric hospitals and 
of CCIS units? What explains the high rate of total placements in Cumberland 
and Salem counties? F.ach review of the numbers raises additional questions 
about the varying patterns. 

While I and others could offer reasonable guesses, they would be just 
that-guesses- and planning must take place on t~e groundwork of facts and 
solid research rather than guesses and theories. I would hope that policy 
makers would ask the hard questions and insist on answers based on facts 
and research rather than theories and philosophy. I would also hope that 
the aJers would lead to action and change. 

How Do We Get There From Here? 

Clearly, some parts of the reconmendations are easier to implement than 
others. We can, if we so choose, do a needs assessment, develop specialized 
programs, adequately fund salaries and staff levels, develop resources to 
serve children in state, and r-eaolve the educational funding problem. 
Given the curr~t crisis, these are minimal needs. Far more difficult, 
obviously, is the total rethinking and restructuring of a system so that all 
children .ire served by one agency. There aTe political barriers, civil 
service barriers, etc., etc. Which children should be served by public 
agencies and which by private? How do we utilize the existing buildings and 
agencies? What would it cost and how would it be funded? Because it is 
difficult does not mean that it should not be dome. We have a choice to 
makes do we continue to patch and repair a failing wreck or do we plan and 
invest in an effective efficient new model? 

Julie Turner 
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The Tables and'the Figures 

Information used in the tables and throughout the paper came from the fol­
lowing sources: 
Population figures1 u.s. Census Estimated 1985 
DYFS placement and shelter figures-DYFS Statistical caseload-Activity Report for April 3, 1987 was used for the figures used in Tables I-V, and reflect t.lle nlllllber of children in various placements on'April 3 1 U>8f. Additional figures were derived by information provided by DYFS to ACRF. 
1975 figures on children in residential placement- Long Term Residential care of Children in New Jersey: A Report of the Residential Task Force, Association for Child;~ of New Jersey~ 

. State Psychiatric Hospital Commitments and CCIS admissions-Division of Mental Health and Hospitals. Reflects the number of commitments in FY 1?86 and the estinia.ted number of admissions to CCIS based on a two month period. 
Department of Corrections-Co111111itments-Nev Jersey Division of Juvenile Services ansl,.JQ,DC. The figures in TablesI-V reflect the number of commitments in 1986. PTobation-New Jersey Division of Juvenile Services; Detention-JDDC 6/24/86. 
Offenders/offenses Administrative Office of the Courts-l/1/87-3/31/87 

Table I shows the actual numbers as derived from the above sources. It must be remembered that the figures are for somewhat different time periods, and may show childTen in placement on a specific date or children committed during the year. Table II sUJ1111&rizes the figures in Table II into various categories. 
Tables III and IV show the relationship of children in various placements to the 10-19 populations the figures shown reflect the number per 101 000 population. 
Table V shows the relationship between certain types of placements to the total number of children placed in corrections, detention, shelters, psychiatric hospitals and treatment facilities. 
Table VI lists the number of offenders and offenses, and the relationship of those conunitted to corrections to the number of offenders. 
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Table I 
pop. pop. known placed RTC shelter deten- correc- psych proba-

County 1,mc1~r 10-19 to by gp home tion tions hosp tion 
19 DYFS DYFS pub inst 

Atlantic 79,400 38,400 2,193 288 75 11 27 63 !1 182 

Bergen 207,600 108,ioo 'r,770 248 H2 19 28 18 3 341 

Burling- 133,000 66,300 1,390 288 56 11 12 23 8 282 
ton 
Camden 'I:57,800 77,700 4,6!2 647 142 21 37 169 16 374 , 

Cape 30,800 15,200 790 97 18 3 3 13 3 51 
May 
Cumber- 48,100 22,700 1,120 247 38 0 27 22 5 281 
land 
Essex 239;200 123,000 11,237 2151 207 88 87 143 50 1006 

Glou- 70.500 34,900 736 188 41 5 7 5 0 126 
cester 
Hudson 146,200 72,700 3,803 492 174 36 43 66 25 597 

Hunter- 27,100 13,800 387 44 7 13 0 4 t 62 
don 
Mercer 97,000 48,400 2,009 375 69 21 27 21 12 575 

~liddle- 170,600 .84,600· 3,275 401 92 34 33 43 44 453 
sex 
:-:on- 157~ioo 79,600 3,026 586 131 18 20 67 32 497 
mouth 
~orris i..26,000 61,500 830' ~ 13Zl 42 7" is a· 19 287 

Ocean 118,900 55,700 t,946 257 62 a· 12 2! 18 382 

Passaic 140,500 70,000 1,733 268 63. 10 74 172 23 602 

Salem 19,300 9,800 634 100 10 5 2 4 3 101 

Somer- Eil,900 32,000 567 76 32 11 9 30 11 148 
set 
Sussex 43,200 20,500 917 82 17 2 10 6 4 143 

Union 126,600 66,200 3,392 451 99 34 52 75 27 582 

'.far-:-en 27,500 13,600 672 68 8 l_ 10 1 0 95 

~ew 2,233,100 52,581 9,001 1543 352 535 974 298 7176 
Jerse·.,. 1., 114,800 



Table II 

cor/det rtc,gh total 

County corr. det psych psych p.i. long total and CCIS 

det. shelt corr shelt t.p.f. term DYFS 

Atlantic 90 33 67 105 81 148 186 382 12 

'B'ergen 46 47 21 68 117 138 185 -J.97 186 

Burling- 35 23 31 54 58 89 112 331 24 

ton 
Camden 206 58 185 243 154 339 397 8&9 84 

Cape 16 q 1 $. 22 21 " 43 37 116 30 

Ma 
Cumber- 49 27 27 54 47 74 101 301 0 

land 
Essex 230 ,. 75 193 368 238 431 606 2431 138 

Glous- 12 12 5 17 46 51 63 200 6 

cester 
Hudson 109 79 91 170 187 278 357 626 48 

Hunter- 4 13 5 18 7 12 25 49 0 

don 
'.!ercer 48 48 33 81 75 108 156 435 246 

Middle- 76 67 87 154 104 191 258 521 48 

sex 
Mon- 87 38 99 137 146 245 283 705 18 

mouth 
Morris 23 22 27 49 48 75 97 176 156 

Ocean 33 20 39 59 65 104 124 308 18 

Pa!:isaic 2l16 84 195 279 63 258 342 :37 90 

'.3alen 6 7 7 l4 20 27 34 1.09 18 

Somerset 39 20 41 -61 3~· 77 97 126 30 

.. 
22 Sussex u;- n 1b· 19' 29 41 102 30 

Onion !Z7 ~T, 102 188 104 206 292 605 60 

\.Jarren ii ·n· 1 - 12 12 13 24 79 12 

-
~ew 1509 887 1272 2159 1721 2993 3880 10,808 1254 

Jersey 

'flX 



Table III 

Relationship to 10-19 population (.0000) 

known placed RTC shelter deten correc- psych proba-County to by gp home tion tions hosp tion CCIS 
DYFS DYFS tpf 

Atlantic 571 75 21.l 2.9 7.0 16.4 1.04 47.4 3.1 

Bergen 164 23 10.8 1,8 2.6 1.7 .27 31.5 17,2 

Burling- 210 43 8.7 1.7 1.8, 3.5 1.2 42.5 3.6 ton 
Camden 594 83 19.8 2.7 4.8 21.8 2.06 42.5 10.8 

Cape 520 64 13.8 12.0 2.0 8.6 1.97 33.6 19.7 
May 
Cumber- 493 109 20·.7 0 11.9 9.7 2.2 123.8 0 
land 
Essex 914 175 19.3 7.1 7.1 11.6 4.07 81.8 11.2 

Glous- 211 54 13.2 1.4 2.0 1.4 0 36.l l.7 
cester 
Hudson 523 68 25.7 5.0 5.9 9.1 3 .-,, 82.f 6.6 

Hunter- 280 32 5.l 9.4 0 2.9 .7 44.9 0 
don 
~!ercer 415 77 15.5 4.3 5.6 4.3 2.5 118.8 50.8 

Middle- 387 47 12.3 4.0 3.9 5.1 5.2 53.5 5.7 
sex 
t·1onmouth 380 74 18.3 2.3 2.5 8.4 4.0 62.4 2.3 

Morris 135 22 7.8 1.1 2.4 l.3 3.1 46.7 25.3 

Ocean 349 46 11.7 1,4 2.2 3.8 3.2 68.6 4,7 

Passaic 248 38 9.0 'L4 !o.6 24.6 3.3 a~.o 12.9 

Salem 6l,(7 to2 20~·4 s.1 2.0 4.1 3.1 103 .1 18.4 

Somerset 177 24 11.6 3,4 2.8 9.4 3.4 46,3 9.4 

Sussex 447 40 9,3 1.0 4,9 2.9 2.0 69,8 14.6 

l:nion 513 68 15.7 s.1 7.9 11.3 4,1 87,9 9,1 

Warren 494 so 8,8 o., ,.4 ·' 0 69,8 8,8 

New 472 81 15 .4 3,2 4,8 8,7 2.67 64~4 11.2 
Jersey 417"• 68, 6,'e 

.,., excluding, Essex 



Table IV 

Relationship to 10-19 population (.0000) 

County Det 
corr 

Atlantic- 23.4 

Bergen 4.3 

Burling- 5 ,3 
ton 
Camden 26.S 

Cape 10.S 
May 
Cumber- 21.6 
land 
Essex 18. 7 

Glous-' ' 3 .4 
cester 
Hudson 15.0 

Hunter- 2.9 
don 
Mercer 9.9 

Middle- 9.0 
sex 
Monmouth 10·~9 

Morris 3.7 

Ocea'l S.9 

Passaic 35.t 

Salem 6,1 

Somer- 1. 2. 2 
set 
Sus:sex 

Union 

;·larren 

~ew 
Jersey 

7,8 

19.2 

8.1 

13.S 

shelt 
det 
9.9 

4.3 

3.5 

7.5 

11.9 

14.2 

3.4 

10.9 

9.4 

7,9 

-3 .6 

3.6 

12.0 

7.1 

6,3 

5.9 

13.0 

8.1 

8,0 

psych 
psych det--
corr corr: 
17.4 24.4 

1.9 4.6 

4.7 6.5 

23.8 28.6 

10.s 12.s 

11,9 23.2 

15.7 22.8 

12.s 18.4 

3.6 2.6 

6.8 

to.3 

12~4 

4,4 

1.o 

27.9 

7.1 

12.8 

4,9 

15.4 

o.1 

11.4 

12,4 

f4.z 

6.8 

9.1 

38.4 

9.2 

15.6 

9.8 

23 ,3 

8.t 

16.2 

det-cor corr 
psych psych 
shelt treat 
27.3 38.5 

6.3 12.8 

8.t 13.4 

31.3 43.6 

14.S 24.3 

23,8 32,6 

29.9 35,0 

4.9 14.6 

23,4 38.2 

13.0 8.7 

16.7 

18.2 

17.2 

8.0 

10.6 

39,9 

14.2 

19.i 

lo.7 

28,4 

8.1 

19.4 

22.3 

22.6 

30.8 

12.2 

18.7 

36.9 

27.6 

24.6 

14.1 

31.1 

9.6 

26.8 

det-cor 
tri:><tt total 
shelt placed 
48.4 99.S 

17.1 27.S 

16.9 49.9 

st. 1 111 ,8 

28.3 76.5 

44.5 132.6 

49.3 197,6 

ta.I 57.3 

49.l 86,1 

18.l 35.5 

32.2 

30.4 

35.6 

15.8 

22.3 

48.9 

34.7 

30,3 

20.0 

44.1 

17,6 

34,8 

89.8 

61.6 

88,6 

28.6 

55.3 

76,7 

111,2 

39.4 

49,8 

91,4 

58,1 

97,0 
84,5 (excludin~ Essex) 

det=detention; cor=corrections' shelt=shelter; psych=state psychiatric hoSPital; 
treat= residential treatment centers, group homes, teaching parent families; total= 
all DYFS placements and corrections, detention, state psychiatric hospitals 



Table V 

cpr,.get 
treat correc, cor,aet det.sh. psych shelt treat treat 

Countv total total total total total total long tm-corr psych 
Atlantic ,44 ,34 · .48 ,20 .021 ,54 -.55 1.21 

Bergen • 63 .10 ,25 .25 .016 ,35 ,85 5.si 

Burling.., • 52 .21 ,31 .21 . .on ,42 ·• Gs·--.- l.87 
ton 
Camden ,39 .43 ,52 ,15 ,04 .s8 .45 .83 

Cape ,49 .30 ,37 ,14 ,07 ,44 .57 1.31 
Maz 

,47 Cumber- .22 ,49 .27 .os ,49 .64 1.74 
land 
Essex .39 ,24 .38 .29 ,083 ,53 .55 1.23 

Glous- .73 ,08 .19 .19 0 ,27 .90 9.20 
cester 
Hudson .52 • 18 ,31 .22 .01 ,40 ,67 2.os 

Hunter- .28 , 16 • 16 ,52 .04 .68 ,58 1.40 
a.on 
Mercer .48 ,13 .31 .31 .077 .44 ,69 2.27 

Middle- .40 .17 ,30 ,26 .171 .43 ,54 1.20 
sex 
Mon- .52 .24 .31 .13 ,113 .37 .60 t,47 
mouth 
Morris .49 ,08 ,?.4 .23 .196 ~31 ,64 1.-78 

Ocean .52 .17 .27 • 16 ,145 ,33 ,63 L67 

Pass:iic .18 .so .72 .25 ,067 .75 ,24 0,32 

Salem ,59 .12 , 18 .21 ,088 .33 .74 2.86 

Somer- ,38 .31 .40 .21 ,113 .52 ,48 0,90 
set 
Sussex ,46 • 15 ,39 .29 .098 .44 ,67 1.90 

Union ,36 .26 ,43 .29 .092 .ss .so 1.02 

Warren .so ,04 ,46 ,46 0 .so ,92 12.00 

New ,44 ,25 ,39 .23 ,07 ,48 ,58 1.35 
Jerse 

Total=All the.above placements:corrections, detention, shelter, psychiatric hospital, 
and treatment. Treatment=residential treatment centers, group hemes, teachi:,g 
parent f;i,,~lies. Cor.=correctional facilities; det.=detention.Sh or Shelt= 
shelters, Psych= ~sychiatric hospital 



Table VI 

Con. Con. Comm. 

County Offenders* Offenses* Comm. Offenders+ 

Atlantic 534 951 63 3.9 

Bergen 949 1416 18 0.4 

Burlington 692 1222 23 1.1 

Camden 867 1344 169 6.5 

Cape May 73 123 13 5.9 

Cumberland 430 938 22 1.7 

Essex 2573 4260 143 1.8 

Glouscester 340 606 5 o.s 

Hudson 964 1487 66 2.3 

Hunterdon 91 154 4 1.s 

Mercer 808 1430 21 0.9 

Middlesex 939 1540 43 1.s 

Monmouth 961 1742 67 2.3. 

Manis 516 860 8 o.s 

Ocean 553 1050 21 1.7 

Passaic 282 445 172 20.3 

Salem 145 237 4 o.9 

Somerset· 294 522 30 3.4 

Sussex 147 287 6 1.4 

Union 967 1687 75 2.6 

Warren 123 263 l o.3 

New Jersey 13,248 22,563 974 2.4 

*Four moneh period 

+ on an aMual basis 



DYFS Placement Trends 
resid. res. i.n res. out group shelter ~t~ch. rte 

Year care N.J • of state homes parent gh 

1975 1629 1013 616 176 na na 1805 

1/85 942 643 318 205 117 101 1147 
2/6 
1987 .1124 651 446 217 351 180 1314 

4/3 
1987 1153 664 489 237 352 178 1390 

6/87 506 

Detention Trends 
Average daily population Admissions 

1985 
1st 5 mos. 
1986 
1st 5 mos 
1987 

1st 5 mos. 
1986 .,;.; 
lst·5 mos 
1987 

increase 

431.7 

493 

571 

9;188 

' 
3,916 (annual rate 9,398) 

4,514 (annual rate 10,834) 

Department of .Conections Trends 

Average Daily Population 
Institutions Residential Day Treatment 

608 291 234 

706 331 293 

98 40 59 

CoDDitments 

1985 794 

1986 974 

1st 5 mos 1986 468 

1st 5 mos 1987 356 

rte, gh 
teach. par. 

1248 

1521 

1668 

Total 

1,133 

t,330 

197 (17.47.) 
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NEW JERSEY ASSOCIATION OF CHILDREN'S RESIDENTIAL FACILITIES 

The members of the New Jersey Association of Children's Residential 

Facilities serve children in need of long term out of home placement, 

The thirty group homes and residential treatment centers serve approximately 

550 extremely troubled children who can not live at home or in a foster 

home. Most of the children coming under the supervision of our members 

are so damaged that caring and warmth alone will not remedy their problems. 

The individuals working with these children must also be highly skilled 

and well trained. 

Child care salaries in residential facilities in which DYFS children 

are placed are abysmally low, with line child care workers• starting 

salaries at $12,500 and child care supervisors at. $15,500. Comparable 

positions in OYFS facilities an~ in ODD and DMHH funded p-civate facilities 

have significantly higher salaries. DDD and DMHH, recognizi?J,g the importance 

of qualified staff, have provided additional funding this year to upgrade 

salaries. 

While the low salaries have been of concern for some years, more 

recently the inability to recruit and retain qualified child care staff has 

reached a crisis situation. A survey conducted by the Association documents 

the high turnover rate as well·as the inability of facilities to attract 

educated, mature child care workers. This has a serious impact on the 

troubled children in care. Indeed, as a result of lack of qualified staff, 

facilities will become less able to accept and treat the most difficult 

children who may remain in the state hospitals, correctional facilities, 

"temporary" shelter or detention centers, or who are sent out of state to 

facilities which are not subject to the rigorous monitoring required of 

in-state facilities. 

The child care crisis was brought to the attention of Commissioner 

Altman in October, 1986. The Association had hoped for an immediate infusion 

of funds to address the crisis; however, the Conunissioner directed the 

Association to negotiate with DYFS. A series of meetings were held with 

representatives of OHS and DYFS. Ba.sed on a clear recognition of the 

crisis situation and its negative impact on children, there was consensus 

on the part of DYFS that the requested modest salary upgrade was necessary 

and reasonable. In late May, the Assoc~ation was informed that the Com­

missioner had decided that there would be no salary increase, 

It is.worth noting that the cost of care in DYFS public facilities 

is substantially higher than in private facilities; the private facilities 

ti- 1X 
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average cost to the state is less than 607. of that of the DYFS facilities. 

Even with a moderate salary increase 'Which would bring salaries more in line 

with those of comparable DYFS positions, private facilities would be far 

less expensive. In addition, with the unwillingness of the Department to 

provide the necessary funding to address this critical situation, many board 

members have serious questions about possible expansion to develop resources 

for children sent out of state, some as far as Wisconsin. 

In October, 1986, the requested salary increase was $2,000, with an 

additional $500 for fringe and overtime. The total package was $875,000. 

Eight months later, with the salary upgrades granted to DOD and DMHH 

funded facilities, the Association finds it necessary to request a $3,000 

increase (with $750 for fringe and overtime) for a total package of ap­

proximately $1, 312,000, This would bring line ·child care starting salaries 

to $15,500, child care supervisors to $18,500 and masters level social 

workers to $22,000. 

FACT SHEET 

DYFS DDD DMHH ACRF 
Child care ·14,448-20,214 
or youth worker 12,500 

senior youth 
(BA) 

~orker (experienced) 15,927-22,294 15,500 12,500 

child care or 
17,558-24,584 18,500 

youth supervisors 15,500 
15,500-

caseworker (.BA) 20,327-28,454 16,000 

MSW Social worker 20~000 18,800 

DDD gave a 12% increase (5% for cost of living and 7% for salary equalization) 
on salary and fringe. 

Costs of Residential Facilities* 

DYFS ifivatft fiiyate oup omes C S 

i986 actual 53,268 21,892 26,242 

1987 revised 53,751 27,769 27,769 

19811 esi:imated 52,686 29,529 29,544 

*Based on the Department of Human Services Budget Request, p. D-245 
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NEW JERSEY ASSOCIATION OF CHILDREN'S RESIDENTIAL FACILITIES 
CHILD CARE WORKERS SURVEY-SUMMARY 

Child care workers are essential members of the treatment teams 

in all residential facilities, and provide the twe??.ty-fo1-tr ~-.:-·.= r h:.:lds-on 

care for New Jersey's most·-~roubled children. In order to meet these 

children's needs, agencies must be able to attract and retain mature, 

educated, qualified child care staff. To provide stability and consis­

tency for the children, there must be limited turnover. Training and 

experience are necessary~ 

A survey conducted by the Assocation of its member agencies in 

Spring 1987 clearly documents the crisis in recruiting and retaining 

qualified child care workers. New Jersey's most troubled children are 

being cared for primarily by young, non-college educated, inexperienced 

workers, the majority of whom stay with the agency for less than a year. 

There is a paucity of mature, experienced college educated workers for 

whom child care is a long term career. Wi~ rapid turnover, on-going 

in-depth training is not possible. The survey provides a clear picture of 

a transient, young inexperienced child care staff without the support 

of sufficient experienced career child care workers. 

The survey showeda 

Turnover rateg-; approach 100%! In 1986, 216 new workers were hired in 

agencies with a total of 264 positions. In half the agencies, the 

number of new workers equalled or exceeded the number of available 

positions. 

Less than 10% of the child care workers have remained in their positions 

for five years. 70% of the agencies have only one or no worker with 

five years experience. over half the staff have been with the agencies 

for under a yearJ a third, under six months. 

Only 42% of the child. care staff have college degrees; 36% have only a 

high school education (or less). 

Less than a fifth qf the child ·care workers are over forty. 57% are 

in their twenties. 



CHILD CARE WORKERS SURVEY 

, . GROU!' RESIDENTIAL COMBINED 
HOMES TREATMENT CENTERS TOTALS 

Number child care positions 92 172 264 
Number hired in 1986 89 127 216 

Total individuals 
worked in 1986 110 220 330 
Number of positions for 
agencies providing this 53 '1.36 189 
information 

Years with Agency 
5 years+ 1S (14%) 10 (6 1/2%) 25 (9 1/2%) 

3-5 years 11 (10%) 22 (14%) 33 (12 1/2%) 

1-3 years 21 (20%) 47 (30%) 68 (26%) 

under 1 year 59 (56%) 76 (49%) 135 (52%) 

under 6 months 35 (33%) 44 (28%) 79 (30%) 

Education 
High school or less 34 (32%) 62 (39%) 96 (36%) 
High school+ some college 19 (18%) 38 (24%) 57 (22%) 

Colle§e dgree 54 (50%) 58 (37%) 112 (42%) 

Age 
4o+ 28 (25%). 23 (14%) 51 (19%) 

30-39 28 (25%) 37 (24%) 65 (24%) 

20-29 57 (50%) 97 (62%) 154 (57%) 

Prior Experience 

5 years or more 3 3 6 

3-5 years 8 13 21 

1-3 tears 10 16 26 

less than 1 zear 39 86 121 



NEW JERSEY ASSOCIATION OF CHILDREN'S RESIDENTIAL FACILITIES 

CHILD CARE WORKERS SURVEY 

Child care workers are identifled as a key component in effecting 

positive change in ~oungsters placed in residential treatment facilities, 

With increasingly troubled children entering the facilities, the necessity 

for mature, _experienced, well-trained staff is critical. Child care 

staff are expected to function as an integral part of a treatment team; 

they must be able to understand, contribute to, and carry out the 

treatment plan, difuse explosive situations, provide (in a non-abusive 

way) the controls necessary for an out-of-control child, identify 

children at risk, and provide the nurturing, care and emotional support 

so essential for needy distur~ed children. As role models, they provide 

the continuity and stability the children have rarely experienced. 

Not only must they be caring individuals, they must have the training and 

experience to know how to understand and handle severely disturbed children. 

Ideally, a facility's ~taff should haves relative stability with limited 

turnoverJ a significant number of individuals with considerable experi­

enceJ a mixture of ages, including a number of older u.at...rc ~~.rr; a 

college education with background/experience in the social services/ 

child care fields. 

In order to determine how child care staff in Association facilities 

meet these criteria, a survey of member agencies was conducted in the 

Spring of 1987, with members completing a questionnaire on their child 

care staff. Responses were received from eleven group homes and nine 

residential treatment facilities. Members were asked to provide informa­

tion on thd number of child care positions, the number hired in 1986, the 

length of time with the agency, their ages, and their educational and 

experiential backgrounds. 

In reviewing the results of the survey, we find a varied picture 

with a small number of agencies having a stable, mature and educated 

child care staff. The vast majority_of agencies have a significant 

number of young non-college educated enexperienced workers, and turnover 

of 100% or more in a year. 

The figures reflecting staff turnover are startling. Within a one 

year period, 216 new child care workers were hired in agencies with a 
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,.· total of 264 positions. With the exception of only four agencies, at 

least a third of the remaining agencies• staff were new; in approximately 
half of the agencies, the number of new workers hired equalled or 
exceeded the number of available positions. In these nine agencies, a 
small number of experienced staff (17 with three or more years with the 
agencies out of a total of 103 positions) provided an anchor for the 
144 new and changing staff for the remaining 86 positions. 

The picture of rapidly changing staff is reinforced by the results 
of the study on the total number of individuals who worked in 1986. 
For the agencies who responded to this question, 330 individuals filled 
189 positions. Again, a small number (five) of agencies showed little 
or no turnover, with 44 individuals occupying 39 positions. For the 
other eleven agencies, the picture is far bleaker with 286 individuals 
occupying 150 positions. With only eighteen (of the 150 positions) 
being filled by workers with three or more years experience, one has a 
clear picture of a transient child care staff, staying an average of 
six months, without the experience and support of knowledgeable "old 
timers". 

Unfortunately, the survey did not ask about vacancies. However, 
several agencies commented on having vacancies for varying periods of 
time as a result of being unable to attract adequate staff. 

career child care workers who remain with a facility for some years 
are key in providing stable role models not only for the children, but 
also for new inexperienced staff. Unfortunately, the results of the study 
indicate that a small percentage of workers-less than 10%-have been 
with their agency for five years or more. Excludi,ag tha twu •gencies 
who have ten very experienced workers between them, the percentage for 
the rest of the agencies plt.amnets to 6% (1S workers). Only six of the 
twenty agencies have two of more child care workers with five years 
experience with the agency; six have only one, while eight hatre none. 
Only 22% of the c:hild care staff have three or more years experience with 
their agency. Over half (52%) of the child care staff have been with the 
agency under one year; nearly a third (30%) have been with the agency · 
under six months. 

Many of the children in residential facilities have come from 
dysfunctional families and have experienced abusive and destructive 
parenting. Thus it is-essential that they have the opportunity to 
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corrective relationships with older child care workers, It is also 

important to have older individuals who have raised children and have 

experienced "normal" child and adolescent behavior to provide this 

perspective to the child care staff as a whole, However less than a 

fifth (19%) of the child care staff are over forty, Two agencies 

account for a third (18) of theseJ excluding these two agencies, the 

percentage of those child care workers over forty in the other seventeen 

agencies falls to 14%, Over half the agencies have only one or no staff 

person over forty. The majority of the child care staff-57i.- are in 

_their twenties. In the residential treatment centers which serve the 

most disturbed children, 62% are in their twenties, 

Child care workers are an essential part of the treatment team, and 

must have the educational background and experience in order to contribute 

to, understand, and carry out increasingly sophisticated treatment plans. 

Most facilities would prefer to be able to hire primarily college edu­

cated child care workers. However, only 42% of the child care staff 

have college degrees, 36% have only a high school diploma or less, 

Relatively few (19%) had a year or more experience prior to joining the 

agency. 

The results of this survey give a clear picture of the crisis 

in attracting and retaining qualified child care staffs Exceptionally 

high-approaching 100%-rates of turnoverJ a paucity of experienced, well­

educated, older' individuals who. remain·,rith the agency; the majority 

of child care staff are in their twenties, without a college degree, 

and remain with the agency for less than a year, While this is clearly 

a crisis for the facilities, most importantly it is a crisis for New 

Jersey's most troubled children. 

Julie Turner 



TESTIMONY PREPARED BY 
?HE NEW JERSEY ASSOCIATION OF CHILDREN'S FACILITIES 

SENATE COMMITTEE ON CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
September 22, 1987 

I am Julie Turner, Exe.cutive Director of the New Jersey Association 

of Children's Residential Facilities which represents the private 

residential treatment facilities and group homes serving troubled 

children placed by the Division of Youth and Family Services. I 

appreci1.te having the opportunity to testify before you. 

Last week I heard a ehild's story which I wuld like to share with 

you. The victim of severe physical and sexual abuse, "Lisa"-not her real 

name-had entered a residential treatment center acting like a dog­

crawling, barking and growling, she had retreated from humaness in 

reaction to the inhumanity she had encountered in her short life • . 
After years of treatment from a dedicated staff, she reJoined humanity and 

became a delightful little girl. Recently she was adopted by a loving 

family. Lisa's future is bright and hopeful. 

I wish I could say that this was true for most New Jersey children 

who are so troubled that they require intensive treatment-children who, 

because of their own severe emotional or other handicaps or because of 

serious maltreatment, are unable to function in the community and require 

placement in a treatment facility or group home. These children vary in 

their background and needs: they range in age from five to twenty; they 

come from poor or well•to-do families; they are black, white, Hispanic or 

oriental; they can be autistic, runaways, suicidal, severely hyperactive, 

aggressive, destructive, and/or severely handicapped. They are often 

difficult to love, difficult to live with-a challenge to even the most 

dedicated. They are our most vulnerable children desperately in need of 

professional treatment and care. I invite each of you to visit any of 

our facilities to meet and know our and your children. 

Unfortunately, New Jersey has not made the commitment.to provide the 

necessary resources to adequately treat many of these youngsters. Over 

the years, there has been a pervasive neglect by the state in developing 

and maintaining the services necessary to treat these very difficult 

children. In my testimony, I will focus on only a few areas; however, 

the papers I have provided document a non-system which serves children 

poorly if at all. 

A key component in treating troubled children is a trained and 
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qualified child care staff-the ones who live day in and day out with the 

children. They deal with the tears and tantrums, control the out-of­

control child, provide the parenting, love and security these children 

have lacked. For this demanding job, New Jersey has been willing to 

provide a starting salary of $12,500 for child care staff in private 

facilities-a salary well below that paid state employees doing a similar 

job, a salary, even in one of the wealthiest states, below the national 

average. The result of these abyssmally low salaries is predictable; 

facilities are unable to hire or retain qualified staff; the attached 

paper (Child Care Workers _Survey) documents turnover rates approaching 

lOOi.; it documents that New Jersey's most troubled children are being 

cared for by young, non-college educated, inexperienced child care worke~s, 

the majority of whom stay with the agency for less than a year. Even 

people who are dedicated-who would like a career in child care-can not 

afford to stay in this job. 

What does this mean to the facilities and, more importantly, to the 

children? With vacancies and untrained staff, facilities are unable to 

accept troubled children who may wait in expensive overcrowded state 

hospitals, Facilities can not provide the training to rapidly changing 

staff, and can not guarantee the quality of care and even safety of the 

children. A recent article in ''Child Welfare" on institutional abuse 

noted that: "The area of institutional abuse and neglect least addressed 

by state systems of child protective services appeared to be prevention. 

The scarcity of money available to residential facilities to develop and 

maintain adequate programs and qualified staff was noted as a major 

barrier. Unqualified and overworked direct care staff, receiving 

little training in child care methods or acceptable discipline and re­

straint techniques, was identified as one of the primary causes of 

maltreatment." Children, many of whom have experienced multiple place­

ments and changes in their lives, again experience multiple changes in 

caretakers when they need consistency and stability. The unwillingness 

of the state to provide adequate salaries has resulted in a crisis which 

short changes-which neglects-the most troubled and needy children, 

The salary issue, while the most critical at this time, is only one 

example of the long-term lack of support of adequate treatment and care for 

New Jersey's children. In the past fifteen years, over half of New 

Jersey's private resident:.al treatment centers have c1o8ecJ; at the sarr,e 
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time, we export children to other states, some as far away as Wisconsin. 

Over 500 children are placed by DYFS out of state, an increase of over 50% 

in a year and a half. The unwillingness to develop and support facilities 

in state has resulted not only in our "exporting" our most troubled and 

needy children, it has also resulted in children being backed up in 

inappropH.ate placements. You are all ve'tl aware of the serious problems 

which occured in the state psychiatric.hospitals which were exacerbated 

by serious overcrowding. However, the back-up and overcrowding has 

effected every area; there are not enough beds in any system, and children 

are being denied treatment. 

Detention centers are over capacity with the average population 

having increased 32% in two years 

Shelters are near or over capacity with their population having 

tripled in two years. 

The two children's state psychiatric bo~pitals are at or over capacity. 

All CCIS units are at capacity with witing lists. 

Children are more likely to be placed in a correctional facility, 

state hc.rpital, or "temporary" shelter or detention center than in a less 

restrictive program where they can receive treataent. 

Children wait tn "temporary" care for months as a result of lack of 

placements, of an unwieldy placement process, of the tmwillingness of 

school districts to provide educational funding. 
· .. 

A pattern of inequality exists with the likelihood of a child 

receiving treatment varying significantly by cotmty. 

The paper, "Troubled Youth in Nev Jersey-Critical Issues", documents 

the crisis in New Jersey's non-system of caring for troubled children and 

discusses a number of the issues in depth. I would encourage each of you 

to read, study, and raise the necessary questions with the appropriate 

state agencies. 

Equally importantly, I would encourage this co111ittee to provide the 

leadership in insisting and insuring that Nev Jersey's most troubled and 

vulnerable children receive adequate treatment and care. I would urge 

you to support legislation to provide adequate salaries to attract and 

retain qualified child care staff. I would urge you to provide the 

resources to develop and maintain the necessary range of programs in 

state. 

Quality care is not inexpensive. Not to provide quality treatment 
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i• even more costly in the long run-increasing numbers in prison, on 

velfare-Jnon-functioning adults-are a reflection of our unwillingness to 

provide services to chi_ldren. Developing and supporting the necessary 

range of in-state programs can not be done cheaply; however we are now 

spending substantial sums on shelter, detention and correctional care 

and in·out·of·state facilities which could be better utilized in providing 

treatment 

You and we have a choice. Do we continue the disgrace that is 

New Jersey's non-system of neglect of its most troubled children, or 

do we provide the leadership, planning and resources to help our children 

develop into healthy functioning adults? I would like to able to tell you 

of many successful ''Lisa's" in the future. We need your help to do so. 

Thank you. 

Julie Turner, Executive Director 
New Jersey Association of Children's Residential Facilities 
590 Highland Avenue; Ridgewood, New Jersey 07450 
(201) 652-S539 
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My name is Sue Dondiego. I am a foster pare~t and Legislation 

Chairman for the New Jersey Foster Parents Association. I want 

to thank you for the opportunity to address this Committee today. 

The issue of sufficient staff allocations and workable caseload 

sizes is not new for DYFS. It is an on-going problem, hampered 

at times by both external contraints and internal bickering. 

Inadequate funding, employment requirements, untimely testing and 

even the location and condition of a District Office can be major 

barriers to filling positions. Ways must be found to elimininate 

these barriers to ensure vancancies will be filled promptly so 

additional cases will not be assigned to existing staff. 

I think, at times, we all lose sight of the fact that children can 

become the victims of a system established to help them. We believe 

all children are entitled to a permanent home ••• either with their 

birth parents or adoptive parents. This goal must be time limited 

as a year or two, in the life of a child, can seem an eternity. 

Workers must have the skills and time they need to work with 

families, whether they be birth families, foster families or 

adoptive families. 

How many cases should a worker be responsible for? We believe the 

number should be looked at realistically. 

In 1984, when we testified in support of an additional 507 workers 

for DYFS, it was because child abuse reports had increased 

tremendously. At that time we did not realize the substantial 

impact substance abuse, AIDS and homelessness would have on 

children and families. The job of line staff and foster parents 

is not getting easier. It is becoming more difficult and complex. 
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We are recommending that the problems of families and children 
and the types and intensity of services required to help them 

remain a family, as well as the amount of work required to find a · 
permanent home for a child, through adoption, be looked at 

seriously when determining caseload size, rather than by a ratio 
of worker to families and/or children. 

We are not suggesting that DYFS be given an open ended funding 
source to hire staff. DYFS must be accountable. But perhaps DYFS 
needs some flexibility and the capability to hire additional staff, 
in a timely manner, if a genuine need arises. 

One example of this is the fact that DYFS has done a better job of 
transferring cases from a District Office (foster care) to an 

Adoption Resource Center. Once it has been established that the 

goal for a particular child is adoption, that child should move 

through and out of the system as quickly as possible ••. but 

additional caseloads have only prolonged the process. 

We hope a great deal of time will not be spent on further study of 
the problem of staffing allocations and caseload sizes, but rather 
on finding solutions. It seems to us, the question should not be 
what does DYFS need but what do families and children need. 

Our Association has received the support of this Committee to help 
us provide quality care for our.foster children. We are asking 
this same support, for DYFS, to ensure that all families and 

children receive the attention and services they deserve. 
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TESTIMONY FOR LEGISLATIVE HEARINGS ON DYFS 

Submitted by 

Pat Stanislaski, Director New Jersey CAP Project 

I imagine much of the testimony you will be hearing today 

will center around the issues cf caseloa~s and level-cf-service. 

Although we certainly believe caseloads to be high and advocate 

fer additional personnel to increase the level-of-service to 

families, I am here today to offer support,as well, for an aspect 

of DYFS that rarely receives the commendation and recognition it 

deserves - prevention work. For three years, DYFS has joined 

forces with the National Assault Prevention Center in Columbus, 

Ohio, to offer New Jersey's children one of the most 

comprehensive and innovative prevention programs in the country. 

With ~upport from the legislature, DYFS has funded the CAP 

program in all 21 counties. During this time, CAP has reached 

over 150,000 children and thou5ands of parents and teachers with 

strengthening information. 



Based on a community approach to prevention, CAP,seeks to end 

the vulnerability of children to verbal, physical and sexual 

assault. Using public schools as its primary vehicle, CAP offers 

workshops for teachers, parents and children, encouraging 

assertiveness, peer support and communication with a trusted 

adult. 

Although our primary focus in on prevention, cases of abuse 

and neglect inevitably come to light during CAP presentations. 

It .is at such times that the close working relationship between 

DYFS and CAP is so essential for the successful resolution of the 

problem and the well-being of the child and the family. 

In some counties, that relationship begins with a staff in­

service presented by a CAP person and designed to familiarize the 

district office staff with the philosophies and procedures of the 

CAP program. It may culminate in a district office sending a 

caseworker directly to a school while the program is being done. 

That worker is then available for consultation on suspected cases 

of abuse and neglect. This kind of relationship between the two 

agencies maximizes the effectiveness both of CAP's prevention 

efforts and DYFS's intervention. 

I am sitting before you today to help you understand the 

wonderful work being done by the Division of Youth and Family 

Services and to encourage your continued support of that very 
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necessary work. Despite the fact that their case loads are 

phenomenal and their offices understaffed,they continue,overall, 

to make a positive difference in the lives of the families they 
' 

service. We who work so closely with them are painfully aware 

that, because of these problems, there are times when individual 

caseworkers or district offices are unable to render the level-

of-service that they would like to_give, that we all expect, and 

that the children and their families so desparately need. 

I would like to ask you to do two things here today to 

strengthen OYFS and increase its level of service. You need 

to support DYFS financially - provide more workers, increase 

support services, help them maintain a high standard of service. 

Of equal importance, you need to believe in the work they are 

doing. You need to strengthen and create legislation that gives 

high priority to the protection and welfare of our children. 

You need to assess statistics, nationwide, that point to a less 

than 27. rate of false reporting. And, lastly, you need to pass 

laws that allow children to no longer bury secrets that eat away 

at them--secrets that only they and the offenders ever really 

share. 

Your task is a difficult one but it is the only way that we 

will ever effect a change. Those of us who work in prevention, 

those of us who work in intervention can only work within the 

framework of the legislation you create. We encourage you to be 

there for us, to listen to us, to believe us, to help us make a 

difference. ux 



Testimony before the Committee on Children 

Dr. Janet Cahill 

Glassboro State College 

September 22, 1987 

Thank you for the opportunity to testify today. By way of intro­

duction, I am an associate professor of Psychology at Glassboro State 

College. I am also a consultant to the DYFS/CWA stress management com­

mittee, which has been an ongoing joint venture for the past two and 

one half years. My area of academic and professional expertise is the 

field of occupational stress, particularly in human services. I have 

condu~ted several large research studies on this topic as well as con­

sulted to human service agencies. I have a good working knowledge of 

the sources of stress involved in human service agencies in general and 

DYFS in particular. 

The focus of my testimony today will be twofold. I would first like 

to review the efforts that the stress management committee has made to 

improve the work environment of the agency. Secondly, I will identify 

some problem areas which remain in the agency despite these efforts. 

The labor\management stress committee grew out of a mutual con­

cern that there were unacceptably high stress levels within the agency. 

It was understood by all parties that these high stress levels was hav­

ing a negative impact on both workers and the clients they serviced. I 

should point out that the scientific literature in this area has long 

ago established the fact that there are a number of powerful sources of 
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stress and burnout that are endemic to human service work. It is also 

widely accepted that having a demoralized staff who are experiencing a 

number of physical and psychological symptoms themselves has a pro­

foundly negative impact on the quality of services delivered. 

This recognition led the committee to explore ways to reduce 

stress in the agency. This process has been an ongoing one and has led to 

a number of important and innovative programs. I think it would be. useful 

to briefly outline the components of the program at this point: 

1) Initial training session- this educational program is done in 

the district offices and is designed to familiarize the work force with 

the common symptoms and causes of stress, as well as giving them some 

strategies for dealing with it. This educational piece is an important 

foundation for the remainder of the program. 

2) In-service days- after a local office has received the initial 

training, they are able to schedule monthly in-service days. These day$ 

are designed to provide further training, as well as to provide some 

protected time for completing outstanding tasks. This is of particular 

importance since the ordinary pace of work in the offices makes it 

extremely difficult to finish a given task. This ongoing component also 

includes a recreational package similar to models common in private 

industry. 

3) Supervisory training- the quality of supervision has consis­

tently been shown to be one of the most importan~ factors in staff reten­

tion and development. First line supervis~rs are also known ~o be under 

significant sources of stress themselves. The committee therefore decided 

to provide supervisors· in offices involved in the stress program with 
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supervisory training designed to both increase support to the workers 

they supervisors, as well as to the supervisors themselves. 

4. Change of shift hours- this component is part of a broad 

effort to make provide alternative work schedules for employees. This 

has allowed the work force to be more responsive to both their clients 

and their own families. This type of program has been shown to be a 

very useful strategy for reducing staff turnover. 

5. Paperwork/computer project- paperwork has been one of the most 

consistent sources of stress identified by this work force. For many 

reasons, there are a great forms that need to be filled out, often 

requiring much of the same information. Both case workers and clerks 

report that they are often spending a large percentage of their time 

processing often repetitive information. The stress committee has 

launched a pilot program which using microcomputers as well a new 

training techniques to address this problem. Several applications have 

already been developed and the agency has made plans to expand the pro­

ject. 

I believe that the stress program represents a significant and sus­

tained effort geared·towards improving the work environment of the 

agency. Both management and labor have made a sincere effort to develop 

useful programs in this regard. I believe that several of the compo­

nents, in particular the paperwork/computer proj~ct are truly innovative 

in nature and the committee should be commended for it. In conjunction 

with Len Feldman of the DYFS Bureau of Research, I have conducted an 

empirical evaluation of the project. The preliminary results seem to 
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support the conclusion that the program has helped to support the 

staff in offices we have been involved in. 

However, despite the success of stress program, several other fac­

tors are continuing to create serious problems for DYFS workers and the 

agency. My research has also found that both objective case size and 

perceived work load remain too high. Case workers and clerks report 

that they are having difficulty in keeping up with the case loads and 

the clerical work needed to sustain them. The vacancy rate has been a 

persistent concern. I am not directly involved in this aspect of the 

agency, but I believe a serious effort is being made to resolve this 

problem. It is obvious to all concerned that speedy replacement of 

staff is essential if the agency is to be able function smoothly. 

While the supervisory training offered by the stress program is 

of use, it is not a substitute for a comprehensive training program for 

supervisors. In addition to this, case workers are in rteed of addi­

tional training in several areas of basic skills. Finally, the agency 

would benefit from a slower pace of change. This woulq allow a more 

effective absorption of policy changes by the staff. 

It should be noted that none of these problems are unique to 

DYFS. Child protection agencies across the country are facing these 

types of problems. DYFS management has demonstrated willingness to work 

with labor in addressing these concerns in an innovative fashion. My 

own view is that the outstanding problems of the agency would also 

benefit from such an approach. 

As a final ~omment, I would emphasize again the critical impor­

tance of aggressively addressing the concerns of the case workers, sup­

ervisors and clerical staff. This is not a factory where productivity 

(1~ 
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can be physically measured. It is an agency which primary purpose is to 

protect and serve children in need. I have spent a considerable amount 

in local district offices, talking with these workers. I am consis­

tently impressed with their genuine concern for their clients. These 

people want to do a good job. It is in all of our interests to give 

them the support and resources they need to do just that. 

Thank you. 



JOS~tl F. SHANAHIJ,I 
R.O. 2 - BOX 105 

t.J.,'ABERTVILLE, N.J. 9~~,3-~ ,o,-3 ,1- '11 S'tt' 

C 

22 September 1987 

Madame Chairman and Members of State Senate Committee on.Childress' 
Services: 

I am Joseph F. Shanahan of Lambertville and have had some 

experiences with the operations of the Division of Youth and Family 

Services (DYFS) relative to children over the past few years which I 

would like to share with the members of the committee for their infor­

mation and whatever action they may deem necessary. 

I have heard individual horror stories concerning the opera­

tionsof DYFS personnel and the general public but, as a lawyer, I 

prefer to bring to your attention only facts that I have actual know­

ledge of; which for the purpos~ of this hearing, consists of two att­

ached letters ( A and B) that describe an incident which took place in 

1985. The matter had to do with the innocent victims of an anonymous 

call and the actions and final answer of DYFS. 

I find the practice of keeping such records on file with the 

agency on a permanent basis, as described by Mr. Blatner in his letter 

( Att B) as " secure and confidential:' more in keeping with a Red gov­

ernment operation trying to maintain control of its subjects rather 

than one by a free goverDDent agency who have nothing to fear from its 

citizenry. 

But I do not have geeat confidence in the admini'strative 

processes of govert1nent nor its ability to keep anything"secure and con· 
. . 

fidential" and suggest to this committee that the better way for the s~ 1 

agency to operate in the interest of all, after the innocence of the 

person under investigation is established, is to destroy the record, 

since no reason remains to keep it. Otherwise, if that is not done as 

tl _matter of course - perhaps the citizem.-.. does have reason to fear 
.. b1.s government. ~ ~, /~v ~ h~ · 
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ALEXAUKEN CREEK ROAD 
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RD 2, LAMBERTVILLE, N. J. 08530 

Thomas Blatner, Director 
Division of Youth and Family Servicee · 
1 South Montgomery Street 
Trenton, New Jersey 08625 

Dear Mr. Blatner: 

609-397-3158 

25 January 1985 

am representing Mr. and Mrs. 
New Jersey 1 I I in this comulaint 

which concerns the ill treatment they received in their own home 
at the hands of two of your employees. · 

On Saturday, 12 January about 130PM two agents of 
DYFS?identified as~ and 1[ i Ji J of the I 31 
I I office gained entrance tote complainants' apartment by ruse. 
Mrs. was home alone and opened the door to some one w&o ~ 
said " Is~ home" which is her nickname. They then stated that 
they were from DYFS and had a court order to see the baby ( no 
court order was ever shown) and that there was an allegation 
against her that there were bruises on h.er baby's head. Mrs. 

became upset and said she was overwhelmed by such a charge 
and denied that there were any such bruises. She said that the 
baby ( about 6 monthE) was with his grandparents and would be 
home later in the aft.ernoon. The agents stayed on for some time 

· . questioning Mrs. ~t length about her ,>ersonal affairs ask-
1t;:.~; ing.'her how she could 'cope" with the situation. 

. r. • • . 

· Thei returned about 4PM after making a phone call 
. and,the baby, Mr. ••z••and the grandparents were present. At 
~~~th,.t time they saw the baby who was clearly without bruises. Again 

.-. ··. they stayed and turned their questioning on the parents, recommend­
ing that~e some kind of counseling and pointedly sugges~ -
ing the~Day Care School for the baby. Before they left 
they stated that a social worker would call on them on the follow­
ing~n 16 January they received a telephone call from 
an~ of DYFS who said that any help tha·t the department 
had to offer was voluntary. 

- Needless to say, these official visits by your 
agents from out of the blue have causedthe•a•r,great mental 
anguish; the wife, because of the way she was presented with their 
entrance, the husband, for the tra\Blla of seeing his wife's agita­
tion and both, over the present threat hanging over.them of social 
workers coming to call - and all in the face of their obvious 
innocence of the original allegation. 

-1-



I am sending this to you, Mr. Director, for your in­
formatio~ and whatever action you think it merits. Your agency 
has a great reaponsibility in carrying out its primary goal of 
preserving and strengthening the family unit. But it will miss 
its mark if the tactics shown in the instant case are routine; 
that is riding rough shod over a family's right to privacy even 
after it has been established that there is no evidence of abuse 
or neglect and consequently no jurisdiction. 

So, I am hereby requesting assurances that: 

1. This matter is officially closed including the possi­
bility of visits from social workers . 

. 2. Any record of this incident that is in your files will 
be removed and destroyed. 

3. A written apology be forthcoming from the local office 
for its unwarranted intrusion into the privacy of a family unit. 

cc: ~co. Prosecutor •• 

Very truly yours 

Jose~h F. Shanahan 

: ~· . 
t 
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THOMAS BLATNER 
Director 

OVFS Man..-ment TNm 

&tatt af New Jnsry 
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES 

DIVISION OF YOUTH AND FAMILY SERVICES 

Joseph F. Shanahan, Esq. 
Alexauken Creek Road 
RD 2 
Lambertville, NJ 08530 

Dear Mr. Shanahan: 

March 20, 1985 

l South Montgomery StrNt 
CN 717 

Trenton, N.J. 08625 

Thank you for your inquiry on January 25, 1985, concerning 
your client, New Jersey. 

On January 12, 1985, the Division of Youth and Family Serv­
ices (DYFS) did receive a protective service referral on behalf 
of ........... indicating that the infant had been seen with 
bru~ child abuse was suspected. As you are probably 
aware, N.J.S.A. 9:6-8.11 requires the Division to investigate· 
such referrals. While preserving and strengthening the family 
unit is a crucial mission in our service to children and their 
families in New Jersey, child protection is our primary or 
"bottomline" responsibility. Initial interventions without prior 
notification to the family are policy which reflects this goal of 
protection. It is our task to identify child abuse and neglect 
and "at risk" situations through a thorough investigation and 
asessment of the situation in order to strengthen the family such 
that the abuse, neglect, or risk is abated. 

We have reviewed this particular situation and have found 
that proper procedures were followed in that the employees 
properly identified themselves and their purpose in a profession­
al manner. The interview with ._.. was also appropriate 
in that our investigations are not limited to a physical inspec­
tion of a child. -----..,as very cooperative during this 
interview and revealed to us that it was difficult for her at 
times to cope with the demands of an infant, which prompted the 
dis€ussion about counseling and day care. 

)J..X 
New Jersey ls An Equal Opportunity Employer 

• 
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On the other hand, ..-and the grandpar-ents were less 
cooper-ative in the later 1nterv1ew and it was they who questioned 
our authority to intervene. It was at that time that in response 
to their inquiry, it was conveyed t'tTa t the Div is ion could seek 
legal actions in situations which meri.t such actions. No such 
determination had been made with regard to the ..,family. 

To date, we have not substantiated any child abuse occurring 
in the -family. During our initial investigation our staff 
was concerned about whether this family had adequate supports and 
services available to it. This concern stemmed from the knowl­
edge that the ...... are new parents and have had some personal 
difficulties. At present, we believe that the family has these 
supports and will terminate our involvement. Should these sup­
ports for any reason prove to be inadequate in the future, we 
hope that ~ 4 .f.a~i1y .l!lilh,kQOtc\i!ii;..t6the local district office for 
assistance. 

Though records that we establish as a result of referrals 
which are investigated are not destroyed, such records are kept 
secure and confidential. Therefore, we regret that we cannot 
honor your request to destroy the record. 

Should you have further concerns or questions with regard to 
this matter, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

TB:cb 

Sincerely, 

~ ~,,) 
Thomas Blatner, Director 
DYFS Management Team 



CERTIFICATION 

Senator Catherine Costa's Hearing 

Tuesday, September 22,1987 

Verlan J. Kliewer 
54 Richard Street 
Passaic, New Jersey 07055 
(201) 472-1758 
Defendants-Appellants-Petitioners 

New Jersey Division of Youth 
and Family Services, 
Plaintiff-Respondent, 

vs. 
Linda Kliewer arid verland 
Kliewer, 
Defendants-Appellants-Petitioners 
IN THE MATTER OF: 
Jonathan Kliewer and 
verlinda Kliewer 

Superior Court of New Jersey 
Appellate Division 
Docket no. A-5313-85T6 
Supreme court of New Jersey 
Docket no. 26,902 

CIVIL ACTION 

Trial court judge: 
Carmen A. Ferrante, P.J.F.P. 

Appellate Division Judge: 
Michael Patrick King, P.J.A.D. 

Attorney for the Division of Youth and Family Services: 
Modestino Carbone 

Law Guardian: 
Susan M. Slaff 

Status of the case: 

The trial was completed. Case is before the Appellate Division. Some issues 
are before the Supreme Court. 

I, verlan J. Kliewer, hereby certify: 

1. I am the attorney for Verlan J. Kliewer, one of the 
Defendants-Appellants-Petitioners in this case. 

2. I am the father of Verlinda Kliewer, age 9, born in December of 
1977, and Jonathan-David Kliewer, age 8, born in the spring of 1979. 

3. verlinda· and David were removed illegally from their rightful home 
on June 7, 1987. The documents used for the removal of the children were 
falsely sworn, and directly contradicted testimony of dyfs workers in the 
trial court. The law requires that the documents used for the removal of the 
children be explicit and not by way of inference, and the documents were 
explicit, but the testimony in the trial court revealed that the children 
never made the accusations attributed to them and that the information was 
obtained by improper inference from the use of sexually explicit dolls. 

4. The trial court testimony was that in connection with the removal 
of the children, verlinda was given sexually explicit dolls, she refused to 

?'-I '{ 



play with them but was forced to do so, and was given no alternative but to 
place the dolls all in bed together in a way that would indicate a sexual 
configuration, and sexual inferences were drawn from there. The court 
testimony is that verlinda stated that there was no sexual abuse at the time 
of her removal. 

5. Six different reports of physical examinations by doctors all 
showed that there was no sexual abuse of the children. on the day of their 
removal, June 7,- 1987, a report from Saint Mary's hospital shows both 
children healthy with no problems, and no indication of any type of sexual 
abuse, verlinda's hymen intact, and no lacerations of the vagina. A second 
set of two reports, taken a week later and United hospital, shows verlinda's 
hymen still intact, but a laceration in the vaginal area at 4:00. DYFS did 
something to verlinda to give her the laceration. This report was later 
doctored by dyfs to show that verlinda's hymen was ruptured a week after her 
removal from her rightful home. What caused the first laceration on 
verlinda's hymen under DYFS care, and a second sexual incident also took 
place early under DYFS care to cause the hymen to be ruptured. What was it? 
(T5.105:10-12, T5.109:7-9, T5.105:2-4, T5.lll:7-9, other references will be 
available once the appellate brief is prepared) 

6. The testimony from DYFS witnesses themselves is that there was no 
indication of any type of abuse when the children were removed (testimony of 
Pam Slaff, available when appellate brief is completed). 

7. The children were not removed as a result of a legitimate concern,· 
but as a result of a conspiracy. A meeting was held prior to the removal of 
the children, and prior to any sexual allegations, where DYFS had decided to 
remove the children, although. it was freely admitted that there was no 
evidence of abuse. The sexual charges came as a result of the meeting; not 
as a result of any sexual evidence. 

8. The children are very unusual and very dear children, very valuable 
not merely because they are my own children. They are very intelligent, 
affable, very charming, the kind of children you'd really like to take home 
with you (T5.88, T6.16). 

9. The parents faced a criminal trial, in which they were aquitted by 
the jury in February of 1985. 

10. The judge refused to return the children, in clear violation of the 
New Jersey Constitution which states that once a·person has been aquitted, 
he can not be tried a second time for the same offence. we meet the 
qualifications for that rule, according to court decisions. 

11. Both children have been continually molested while under the care 
of DYFS. Numerous incidents of sexual activities imposed upon our innocent 
children are found throughout the transcript. David was molested to the 
point where his penis was red and raw, and black and blue and brused -­
after about a year under DYFS custody. Kevin Devine, the foster father who 
certainly is implicated, tried to testify that David, who was four at the 
time, ejaculated and had done so in the foster father's hand. 

12. The parents have cooperated in every way possible, and have seen 
six different counselors ·in cooperation with the courts. With the last 



counselor, we went at the court's request, but DYFS defied a court order and 
refused to taJce the children to the counselor. 

13. The judge found in his original opinion of May, 1985 that the 
parents were relentless in their efforts to regain custody of the children. 

14. The judge in the end decided that DYFS did not have to taJce the 
children to the counselor as he had ordered, but they could keep the 
children. The case is under appeal. 

15. The children were heavily indoctrinated under DYFS care, so much so 
that a foster mother objected, that Verlinda had no time for play. Pam 
Slaff, the theropist (unqualified legally) for Verlinda, was much disliked 
by verlinda, according to Pam's own testimony in court. The foster mother's 
objection is also found in court testimony. 

16. During one visit with a psychiatrist, Verlinda stated that Pam 
Slaff, one of the social workers, told her that her parents wanted her back 
so they could be bad to her. (T6.4:19-22, T6.6:12-15, %6.12:23-25, 
T6.13:l-12) The judge even found this statement.from the psychiatrist to be 
true. 

17. During one of the visits with a psychiatrist, verlinda's younger 
brother, David, jumped up and insisted that verlinda was lying (which shows 
the indoctrination that verlinda was receiving). T6.28:10-ll. A little note 
about David. David has a strong character, and even if threatened with 
physical punishment, he would stand up, and because of his young age, the 
same attempts at indoctrination could not yet be accomplished with David. 

18. DYFS freely admitted in court that the children were worse under 
the care of DYFS than they had been in their rightful home. 

19. The judge found that the parents were not even charged with 
physical sexual abuse, but only some form of non-physical sexual abuse, in 
his first opinion. Later, the judge specifically eliminated any possibility 
of any form of non-physical sexual abuse too, but still DYFS was able to get 
the judge to find the parents guilty of sexual abuse. Obviously, the whole 
idea is rediculous. The parents are not even charged with physical sexual 
abuse, but what is non-physical sexual abuse? There is no such thing!! The 
judge eliminated any possibility of non-physical sexual abuse anyway. 

20. DYFS has waisted much mo~ey on this superfluous case, in their 
malicious prosecution, ~nd because of DYFS, more money was waisted for the 
state in a malicious criminal prosecution. In addition, DYFS wasted $4,800 
in producing more transcripts than they needed, and now are threatening to 
throw them away, even though they will need the transcripts if they plan to 
appeal the decision from the Appellate Division. The threat to destroy the 
$4,800 worth of transcripts was found in a letter dated April 26, 1987. 

CONCLUSION 

There is no form of child abuse worse than destroying the bond between 
a child and a parent, of forcing a child to believe his or her parents are 
bad, thus maJcing orphans out of innocent children, and there is nothing more 
cruel to be conc~ived to do to children, parents, and families. 



DYFS obviously, from our case alone, has much experience in such cruel 
forms of abuse, and has heightened the abuse of the children by sexually 
molesting them while they are under DYFS care. 

If funds for DYFS were cut off, or greatly reduced, this would serve to 
reduce the cruelty to citizens, entire families, and tax payers, while an 
increase in funding would increase this abuse. 

A reduction in funds would be in the best interest of the children in 
this state, as it would reduce the abuse and force a much needed reduction 
in case loads, allowing DYFS to concentrate on actual abuse instead of 
fabricating cases. 

In a letter to the editor, in THE RECORD, for Thursday, August 28, 1986, we 
have the following statements by C.N. Herget of Hackensack: 

"Of the 47,000 cases of abuse reported, 18,038 were confirmed. (My note 
of the confirmed cases, most of them have no foundation anyway). What was 

the outcome of the rest? I can tell you. Homes destroyed, marriages ended, 
and, worst of all, children taken from their homes, some never to return. 

"A new system of justice has sprung up through DYFS's input into the 
family: you are guilty until you prove yourself innocent at your own 
expense. You are fighting a system that is not accountable to anyone. DYFS 
has an answer for every abuse, but it does not answer for its own mistakes." 

I certify that the foregoing statements made by me are true. I am aware 
that if any of the foregoing statements made by me are willfully false, I am 
subject to punishment. • 

--~--<---JZ.r,r,,,?'· /~u.~J/ 
September 21, 1987 

(date) verlan J. Kliewer 
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